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CHAIRMAN BOB SHIPP:  Good morning.  My name is Bob Shipp and as 1 

Chairman of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council, I 2 

welcome you all.  This is the 225th meeting of the council.  3 

Members of the public will be permitted to present oral 4 

statements in accordance with the schedule published in the 5 

agenda.  Please advise the council staff if you desire to 6 

address the council.  Please give written statements to the 7 

council staff. 8 

 9 

The 1996 amendments to the Fishery Management Act require all 10 

oral or written statements to include a brief description of the 11 

background and interest of the persons in the subject of the 12 

statement.  All written information shall include a statement of 13 

the source and date of such information. 14 

 15 

It is unlawful for any person to knowingly and willfully submit 16 

to the council false information regarding any manner the 17 

council is considering in the course of carrying out the 18 

Fisheries Act.   19 

 20 

If you have a cell phone, pager, or similar device, we ask that 21 

you keep them on silent or vibrating or turn them off during the 22 

council and committee sessions.  A digital recording is used for 23 

the public record and therefore, for the purpose of voice 24 

identification, each member is requested to identify himself or 25 

herself, starting on my left. 26 

 27 

MR. CORKY PERRET:  Corky Perret, Mississippi. 28 

 29 

MR. KEVIN ANSON:  Kevin Anson, Alabama. 30 

 31 

MR. JOHNNY GREENE:  Johnny Greene, Alabama. 32 

 33 

MR. ROBIN RIECHERS:  Robin Riechers, Texas. 34 

 35 

MR. MIKE RAY:  Mike Ray, Texas. 36 

 37 

MR. MYRON FISCHER:  Myron Fischer, Louisiana. 38 

 39 

MR. DAMON MCKNIGHT:  Damon McKnight, Louisiana. 40 

 41 

MR. HARLON PEARCE:  Harlon Pearce, the greatest state of 42 

Louisiana. 43 

 44 

DR. STEVE BRANSTETTER:  Steve Branstetter, NOAA Fisheries. 45 

 46 

DR. ROY CRABTREE:  Roy Crabtree, NOAA Fisheries. 47 

 48 
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MR. SHEPHERD GRIMES:  Shepherd Grimes, NOAA General Counsel, 1 

Southeast Region. 2 

 3 

DR. BONNIE PONWITH:  Bonnie Ponwith, NOAA Fisheries Service. 4 

 5 

MS. KAY WILLIAMS:  Kay Williams, Mississippi. 6 

 7 

MR. DAVID CUPKA:  David Cupka, South Atlantic Council. 8 

 9 

MR. BILL TEEHAN:  Bill Teehan, Florida, the fishing capital of 10 

the world. 11 

 12 

MS. JULIE MORRIS:  Julie Morris, Florida. 13 

 14 

MR. ED SAPP:  Ed Sapp, Florida. 15 

 16 

DR. TOM MCILWAIN:  Tom McIlwain, Mississippi. 17 

 18 

LCDR BRIAN SULLIVAN:  Brian Sullivan, United States Coast Guard. 19 

 20 

MR. BOB GILL:  Bob Gill, Florida. 21 

 22 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR STEVE BORTONE:  Steve Bortone, Executive 23 

Director, Gulf Council. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Steve, did you want to make a few 26 

comments regarding laptops and any other housekeeping? 27 

 28 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  To the general public, you’ll 29 

probably see us using laptops.  Please understand we are paying 30 

attention, but the members of the council are taking notes 31 

during that period and they’re not emailing their grandmothers 32 

and things like that. 33 

 34 

Also, we have a timer up here and you’ll see a green light that 35 

starts your three-minute period.  At one minute left to go, it 36 

will turn yellow and when it turns red, you should wrap things 37 

up and stop speaking. 38 

 39 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thanks, Steve.  The first item on the agenda is 42 

the Adoption of the Agenda, which is Tab A, Number 5.  Do I have 43 

a motion to adopt the agenda?  44 

 45 

MR. GILL:  So moved. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second?  Is there objection?  The 48 
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agenda is adopted.  Are there any new business items that anyone 1 

would like to add to the agenda? 2 

 3 

DR. CRABTREE:  At some point, I would like to talk about council 4 

meeting lengths and time we’re allocating, because it seems to 5 

me we’re running out of time in committees and that’s creating 6 

problems and so I would like some discussion at some point about 7 

perhaps lengthening our meetings into Fridays or doing 8 

something, because I just don’t think we’ve got enough time to 9 

do the job justice that it needs. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Dr. Crabtree. 12 

 13 

MR. PEARCE:  At some point, I would like to also discuss the 14 

possibility of having our law enforcement, our LEAP Committee, 15 

meet with the full council, or at least do it through a Law 16 

Enforcement Advisory meeting, because there seems to be a 17 

disconnect between enforcement and what we’re doing here at the 18 

council and so I would love to have them here so they understand 19 

better what we’re trying to do and how they can help us. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do you want to discuss that as new business? 22 

 23 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Okay.  Any other additions to the agenda?  26 

Hearing none, the agenda is approved with those additions.  The 27 

next item is the Approval of Minutes, Tab A, Number 6.  Do I 28 

have a motion? 29 

 30 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 31 

 32 

MR. GILL:  Not at this time, but I do have a correction, if I 33 

could.  On page 158, line 1, Mr. Perret addresses Mr. Perret and 34 

I suspect it’s supposed to be Mr. Chairman. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any other corrections or additions to the 37 

minutes?  Hearing none, do I have a motion to approve the 38 

minutes? 39 

 40 

MR. GILL:  So moved. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there objection?  Hearing none, the minutes 43 

are approved.  That brings us to public testimony.  I have a 44 

couple of comments regarding this.  I am told that there is a 45 

contingent of fishermen that are on their way and may not be 46 

here until after lunch.  We will try to accommodate them as best 47 

we can. 48 
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 1 

I initially thought that that meant we would not have that many 2 

before lunch, but it looks like we do and so we will do the best 3 

we can to accommodate everybody, but, again, we do have our time 4 

constraints, in addition to the ones that Dr. Crabtree 5 

mentioned. 6 

 7 

The three items for which we’re going to take public testimony, 8 

we don’t have anyone for exempted fishing permits, but we do 9 

have a few for amberjack and so we will start with that.  Dennis 10 

O’Hern will be first, followed by Captain Scott Hickman.  I’m 11 

going to call out both names so the second speaker can be ready 12 

when the first one is finished and please all take note of your 13 

time constraints.  It makes it a lot easier on everybody if we 14 

don’t run over.   15 

 16 

PUBLIC TESTIMONY 17 

FRAMEWORK ACTION FOR GREATER AMBERJACK 18 

 19 

MR. DENNIS O’HERN:  Thank you, Chairman Shipp.  For the record, 20 

Dennis O’Hern, Executive Director, Fishing Rights Alliance.  21 

I’ll be brief about the amberjack comments.  I would like for 22 

you, as we move forward and you consider rules and regulations 23 

and further restrictions, that one of the paradigms you consider 24 

it against is maintaining the opportunity to fish as much as 25 

possible. 26 

 27 

I would like to see a thirty-six-inch minimum length for an 28 

amberjack, which would be equivalent to what the commercials 29 

have now, and I believe that would reduce our landings greatly.  30 

I understand there’s concern about discard mortality, but you 31 

know there’s discard mortality in all of our fisheries and those 32 

amberjack, during good years, grow quickly, very quickly. 33 

 34 

The interesting thing too I think most of you may or may not 35 

know is that aging amberjack is very tricky.  You can’t cut 36 

their otoliths out and cut the rings.  It’s very difficult to 37 

determine what age they are and so that stock assessment -- I’m 38 

worried that the stock assessment was done with a lot of 39 

uncertainty and then regulations are going to be done with a lot 40 

of uncertainty and it seems like you’re managing to the low end 41 

of uncertainty on every step of the way and that’s just going to 42 

kill the opportunity to fish and I think unnecessarily.  I know 43 

you’ve got a tall task in front of you and I hope you do your 44 

best.  Thank you. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thanks, Dennis.  Hold on, Dennis. 47 

 48 
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MR. TEEHAN:  Dennis, thanks for coming.  This is for you, a 1 

question for you, and anybody else who may get up to address 2 

amberjack.  90 percent of the amberjack in the Gulf of Mexico 3 

are caught off of Florida in federal waters and so we have a 4 

great interest in it. 5 

 6 

We have a northern contingent and this includes Alabama, in my 7 

opinion, a charter industry that’s interested in making sure 8 

that they don’t have concurrent closures and that we try to 9 

spread these out.  I think you’ve been here for the discussions 10 

yesterday. 11 

 12 

We’re trying to figure out some way of making sure that they’ve 13 

got red snapper and then they’ve got amberjack.  Going down your 14 

way and south of you in Florida, southwest Florida, is an area 15 

that’s going to be different, because you’re not really going to 16 

have the red snapper competition.  You’re going to have more of 17 

a competition of grouper and amberjack. 18 

 19 

One of the things we’re really looking at, and you’ve seen the 20 

whole suite of different seasonal closures, is trying to pick 21 

some sort of a season closure for amberjack that won’t be 22 

concurrent with some other closures.  Do you have any sort of 23 

recommendation for Tampa or Ft. Myers or southwest Florida for a 24 

season to close amberjack, if that’s the way we choose to go? 25 

 26 

MR. O’HERN:  I think certainly you wouldn’t want the closure to 27 

coincide with any closure of grouper or actually, you would like 28 

to have the amberjack open while grouper are closed and while 29 

red snapper are closed.  The red snapper is pretty thick off of 30 

our area.  I’m looking forward to it opening up and, again, 31 

that’s an expansion of their range that we’ve seen. 32 

 33 

I do applaud you all for considering that and, again, that goes 34 

to the opportunity to fish and trying to maintain it.  If you’ve 35 

got a closed season, try not to make them coincide with each 36 

other.  We fully support what the charter sector is saying about 37 

that. 38 

 39 

MR. FISCHER:  Dennis, the only question I have for you is where 40 

did the information come from that the otoliths were difficult 41 

to read and therefore a stock assessment might be in question?  42 

 43 

MR. O’HERN:  I’m not saying in question.  I’m saying they had to 44 

make a lot of assumptions.  I was on the original amberjack 45 

stock assessment SEDAR and that was one of the things that came 46 

up.  They’re very difficult, if not almost impossible, to age 47 

with any certainty.  Am I incorrect?  That’s exactly what the 48 
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scientists said during the SEDAR. 1 

 2 

MR. FISCHER:  I don’t know how far back that was, but today’s 3 

technology, with either a good Hillquest or Isomet saw, they 4 

could be cut and aged properly. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Dennis.  Captain Scott Hickman, 7 

followed by Mike Nugent. 8 

 9 

MR. SCOTT HICKMAN:  Good morning, ladies and gentlemen.  Thanks 10 

for hearing us and having us here.  I’m Captain Scott Hickman 11 

from Galveston, Texas, a charterboat operator.  I’m also a 12 

manufactures’ representative for Stamas Yacht, the oldest 13 

family-owned boat company in the United States.  I basically 14 

wear two hats, the charter for-hire industry and also in the 15 

boat business. 16 

 17 

As far as the amberjacks go, being a charter captain and having 18 

the shortened snapper season, it would be greatly beneficial to 19 

the charter fleet, especially in my area, to have the closures 20 

not coincide.  We can benefit from an open amberjack season 21 

after the red snapper season closes. 22 

 23 

As far as the Texas coast, it’s very windy in the springtime and 24 

so it’s hard for us to get out this time of year, as you all see 25 

when you walk over to your hotel and your hats are blowing off.  26 

It would be very difficult for us to fish this time of year. 27 

 28 

The fall here is very nice and so having the snapper closure at 29 

the end of July, it would be great to be able to fish for 30 

amberjacks in August, September, October, which would extend our 31 

season way out and that would be greatly beneficial to the 32 

charter fleet, especially with this tough closure on red 33 

snappers. 34 

 35 

Something like a May/June closure or something about that time 36 

would be great and also explore having a type of slot -- 37 

Increasing the maximum size, but I do worry about mortality as 38 

far as releasing fish with a large size like that and so I would 39 

want to look at that too and see what the numbers are. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Scott.  The next speaker is Mike 42 

Nugent, followed by Darrell Hingle. 43 

 44 

MR. MIKE NUGENT:  Thank you.  My name is Mike Nugent, a 45 

charterboat owner/operator from Aransas Pass.  I support 46 

Alternative 2 on the March, April, and May on the amberjack and 47 

basically, for this particular one, I made some phone calls and 48 
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talked to some guys and our association has not voted on it yet 1 

and so this is just purely as an individual. 2 

 3 

I think as an association we would oppose a summertime closure, 4 

because of our Deep Sea Roundup and there’s other tournaments 5 

and because the vast majority of private recreational in our 6 

area do their amberjack fishing in the summer, when it’s calm 7 

enough for them to run offshore.  That’s it and thank you. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mike.   10 

 11 

MR. RIECHERS:  Mike, just help me because I don’t remember, but 12 

when is the tournament? 13 

 14 

MR. NUGENT:  The Deep Sea Roundup is the weekend after July 4, 15 

whenever that falls.  I think it’s the 9th this year. 16 

 17 

MR. RIECHERS:  The May/June closure might work for you guys and 18 

still be closed -- Then that would allow it to be opened a 19 

little bit more when red snapper isn’t. 20 

 21 

MR. NUGENT:  As long as we had the summertime stuff, I think we 22 

could work with any of that, but July, we would like it. 23 

 24 

MR. RIECHERS:  If you could.  The notion was yesterday we had a 25 

June/July closure that we added the last meeting and then it got 26 

extended or talked about of a May, June, and July closure.  What 27 

you’re seeing is you might want to have July because of some of 28 

the events down south. 29 

 30 

MR. NUGENT:  Just looking at it and the reason the -- The 31 

March/April/May was because of the spawning aggregation and also 32 

because, as Scott said, it’s so windy that we have very few days 33 

to get off. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thanks, Mike.  Darrell Hingle, followed by Troy 36 

Frady. 37 

 38 

MR. DARRELL HINGLE:  I’m Darrell Hingle.  I’m a charterboat 39 

operator here out of Galveston.  I would like to say I support 40 

the May/June/July closure for amberjack.  Again, that would just 41 

give us more days later in the summer and into the fall to fish 42 

here out of Galveston.  Just like Scott and Mike said, the 43 

spring just doesn’t happen for us. 44 

 45 

I like the May.  You all have talked about June and July and I 46 

like the May.  It gives them a little more chance on the 47 

breeding end of their cycle, on their spawning.  I guess that’s 48 
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it on the amberjack. 1 

 2 

MR. FISCHER:  Darrell, I just didn’t understand what you said.  3 

You said the spring doesn’t happen for you. 4 

 5 

MR. HINGLE:  It’s just too windy, the number of days. 6 

 7 

MR. FISCHER:  You would prefer the closure during June and July? 8 

 9 

MR. HINGLE:  May, June, and July. 10 

 11 

MR. FISCHER:  A closure rather than what Mike said, a 12 

March/April/May? 13 

 14 

MR. HINGLE:  I want to be able to extend and have more days to 15 

fish in the fall when snapper season is closed, to continue 16 

fishing. 17 

 18 

MR. FISCHER:  The March/April/May was the only scenario where 19 

even the upper confidence limits would still be within the quota 20 

and there would be no closure at the end of the year.  I’m just 21 

curious.  You all said the same thing, but you preferred a 22 

June/July closure and he preferred a March/April/May closure. 23 

 24 

MR. HINGLE:  I would like to be able to, after the end of July, 25 

the middle of July, when snapper closes, projected, and 26 

amberjack is projected for July 21.  August, September, and 27 

October are some of our best days off the water here to be able 28 

to go out and catch something other than kingfish. 29 

 30 

MR. FISCHER:  I guess my question was if it’s rough in the 31 

spring when you can’t get out, why wouldn’t you support Mike’s 32 

March/April/May closure?  Your rationale is the same. 33 

 34 

MR. HINGLE:  I don’t get enough days in March and April for that 35 

to matter.  That’s not into the days I’m counting. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Troy Frady, followed by Pam 38 

Anderson. 39 

 40 

MR. TROY FRADY:  Hello.  I’m Troy Frady and I’m a six-passenger 41 

charter operator out of Orange Beach, Alabama.  I’m also a 42 

sitting member on the Data Collection Panel and the catch shares 43 

or the LAPP panel. 44 

 45 

The amberjack closure that we’re talking about here for Orange 46 

Beach, Alabama and the surrounding area right there would be 47 

probably better, in my opinion, if we were to close it during 48 
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June and July and the reason I say that is because I’m very much 1 

concerned about the health of the stock and with the current 2 

situation with the red snappers being open during June and part 3 

of July, the economic impact of having overlapping seasons would 4 

probably hurt a lot of people. 5 

 6 

I would like to probably see the red snapper season be open 7 

during the June and July and close the amberjack during that 8 

period of time, simply because it’s just an economic solution to 9 

help some of these charterboats who are really struggling to 10 

make a living have a better chance to sell fall trips and spring 11 

trips. 12 

 13 

Also, the fishing pressure is the greatest on the amberjacks 14 

during the summertime because of the tourist season.  That’s 15 

when the biggest demand is put on these fish and so as far as 16 

helping the stock assessment or the amberjack stock get better, 17 

if you take the pressure off of them during when the red snapper 18 

pressure is heaviest, I really feel like it will benefit the 19 

stock and it will divide the fishing pressure over a longer 20 

period of time, so the other charterboats can make a living.  21 

Thank you. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Troy.  Pam Anderson, followed by 24 

Michael Miglini. 25 

 26 

MS. PAM ANDERSON:  I’m Pam Anderson with Captain Anderson’s 27 

Marina in Panama City.  I’m bringing these comments from the 28 

Conservation Cooperative of Gulf Fishermen and Captain Bob 29 

Zales, II, the Executive Director. 30 

 31 

On behalf of the members of CCGF, I wish to provide comments on 32 

the issue of greater amberjack.  I was prepared to offer a 33 

recommendation from the membership, but after hearing a couple 34 

of the new alternatives adopted by the Reef Fish Committee, I 35 

cannot provide you a recommendation at this time, since our 36 

members are not aware of the new alternatives. 37 

 38 

Clearly the alternative to close the season for March through 39 

May is something that needs serious consideration.  I assume 40 

that since the new alternatives that have been adopted may be 41 

adopted at full council, which is after the public comment, so 42 

that any final action will not be taken until the June meeting 43 

and we will have prepared comments for that meeting.  Thank you. 44 

 45 

I will tell you that in my experience in listening to the guys 46 

on our marina that they need whatever they can have outside of 47 

the red snapper fishing season so that they can continue their 48 
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businesses.  I think that’s going to be something that they’re 1 

going to be talking about this next week or so. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Pam.  Any questions? 4 

 5 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thanks for coming, Pam.  You’re looking probably at 6 

the similar situation that Johnny and Damon are looking at and 7 

you would prefer -- I’m not trying to nail you down, 8 

understanding that there’s some new alternatives here, but you 9 

would probably prefer to have red snapper season open and 10 

amberjack closed and then have amberjack open? 11 

 12 

MS. ANDERSON:  Yes, when we close a season, just like red 13 

snapper, our business drops from 50 or 70 percent at the marina.  14 

If they have something that they can definitely offer on those 15 

shoulder seasons -- That doesn’t help the headboats, but it does 16 

help the charterboats and so I think it’s very important to keep 17 

them running as much as possible.  We’re talking about just one 18 

marina and 200 employees that it affects and that’s besides all 19 

the other people that are affected in the industry. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Pam.  Mike Miglini, to be followed 22 

by Bill Kelly. 23 

 24 

MR. MICHAEL MIGLINI:  I’m Michael Miglini and I run a 25 

charterboat out of Port Aransas, Texas.  I would support some 26 

sort of a closure for amberjack in the early summer or possibly 27 

overlapping the red snapper season.  May and June would be fine.  28 

I would like to see my charterboat be able to fish later in the 29 

fall, when the water is clear and we can’t take snapper.  If 30 

everybody wants to do a May and June closure, that’s fine. 31 

 32 

I am also concerned about our Deep Sea Roundup.  It’s a little 33 

bit of a special interest on my part, but we do have a seventy-34 

five-year time series of data that is used by the University of 35 

Texas Marine Science Institute and Texas A&M Corpus Christi and 36 

if during that July tournament we were unable to take amberjack 37 

during that tournament, then it would interrupt that data stream 38 

and so I’m a little concerned, but the fishery has to be managed 39 

and we’ll figure a way around that somehow. 40 

 41 

I’m also on the Data Collection Advisory Panel and I would like 42 

to maybe use this as an opportunity to enhance data collection, 43 

since the amberjack could possibly be used a test for a fish tag 44 

system, where anglers are issued an amberjack tag or as many 45 

amberjack tags as they want and each amberjack has to be tagged 46 

and reported upon landing, the length and depth of water it was 47 

caught in or something like that.  This may be an opportunity 48 
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for us to help enhance data collection.  We’re all very much for 1 

data collection.  That’s it. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Any questions?  Thank you, Mike.  4 

Bill Kelly and by the way, that’s the last card I have on 5 

amberjack, unless one got stuck in the other stack, and so we’re 6 

going to move now to open public comment.  Bill Kelly, again 7 

followed by Troy Frady. 8 

 9 

OPEN PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 10 

 11 

MR. BILL KELLY:  Mr. Chairman and members of the council, I’m 12 

Bill Kelly and I represent the Florida Keys Commercial 13 

Fishermen’s Association.  Although I’ve provided written comment 14 

to you, I just want to make a couple of points regarding 15 

Amendment 18 on king and Spanish mackerel. 16 

 17 

Number one, our organization fully supports an increase in the 18 

quota from 10.2 to 13.2 million pounds.  In fact, we would like 19 

to suggest to you that you increase the king mackerel quota to 20 

14.5 million pounds, which is still within the SSC’s guidelines. 21 

 22 

We’ve been waiting twenty years for this and the fishery has 23 

completely rebounded and we can’t emphasize enough how anxious 24 

we are to increase that poundage to 14.5 million pounds and 25 

recoup some of the losses that we’re faced with due to the ban 26 

on net fishing in state waters and how it hinders the harvest in 27 

Spanish mackerel. 28 

 29 

With regard to the hook and line fishery, we would like to see 30 

trip limits increase from 1,250 to 1,500 pounds and regardless 31 

of whether you keep them at 1,250 or increase them to 1,500 32 

pounds, we would like to see you maintain that throughout the 33 

fishery instead of dropping it down to 500 pounds when 75 34 

percent of the quota is met. 35 

 36 

This initial rule was established when gas was about sixty cents 37 

a gallon and that’s no longer the case and the hook and line 38 

fishermen would like to see you maintain that trip limit quota 39 

throughout the life of the fishery and also, as a testament to 40 

their confidence and their ability to catch that 1,500 pounds on 41 

a daily trip limit. 42 

 43 

With regard to overs and unders, we would like to see you apply 44 

overages and underages to the following year’s quota and we’ll 45 

do our part too.  On April 7, we had a meeting of the 46 

approximately fifteen active permit members in Marathon 47 

regarding accountability measures.  We’re going to have a 48 
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follow-up meeting on May 7 and we will then provide written 1 

adjustments that we think the industry can do to accommodate 2 

overages and underages at the June council meeting and 3 

primarily, we have fifteen active permit holders and we have two 4 

pilots involved in this. 5 

 6 

We’re going to select a lead pilot and we’re going to establish 7 

a catch monitor and we’ll be able to fine tune that so that we 8 

can eliminate these issues, especially overages, within the 9 

industry. 10 

 11 

Finally, with regard to catch shares, I just want to reiterate 12 

that the members of our organization that are involved in the 13 

king and Spanish mackerel west coast subzone, that we are 14 

unanimously opposed to catch shares in that fishery.  Thank you. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you. 17 

 18 

DR. CRABTREE:  Bill, yesterday, somewhere in the discussion, the 19 

Keys came up with respect to all the multiple jurisdictions down 20 

there in terms of councils and there was some discussion about 21 

possibly looking at revising the jurisdictional boundary between 22 

the South Atlantic and Gulf Council to try to get the Keys all 23 

in one council’s jurisdiction.  Have you all ever talked about 24 

that or do you have any comments on that? 25 

 26 

MR. KELLY:  There has been limited discussion and for the 27 

council’s sake and my own, I’ve had this position for about 28 

seven weeks here and so as I get acclimated to this, that is 29 

something that I need to get a little more in-depth knowledge 30 

on.  Yes, it has been discussed and yes, there’s some concern 31 

and we are focusing now, as we wrap our trap season and a number 32 

of other things, that we can devote more attention to the 33 

regulatory process.  We’re working on these things and that is 34 

an item that’s up for discussion. 35 

 36 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Just a comment.  I’ve asked the 37 

Ecosystem Management group to look at all rules and report to 38 

the council about their fuel efficiency and so that would just 39 

be a recommendation, but to take into account what you’ve just 40 

described, because you’re right that fuel costs are likely to go 41 

way up. 42 

 43 

MR. KELLY:  We’ll do that and thank you. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Troy, welcome back.  Troy Frady, 46 

followed by David Avant. 47 

 48 
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MR. FRADY:  Troy Frady again here.  I would like to address the 1 

council on encouraging you to open the EEZ to a limited amount 2 

of harvest and looking at the data that could be collected for 3 

the redfish, for the red drum. 4 

 5 

It’s really important for us as fishermen to be able to have 6 

access to a fishery and it would be such a waste not to take 7 

this opportunity to collect the data and on a limited access -- 8 

Not limited access, but on a limited amount, maybe one fish per 9 

boat, but use the data to really establish how healthy the 10 

fishery is on the red drum. 11 

 12 

I do have strong feelings about implementing data collection as 13 

quickly as we can.  I think it’s very important for us to start 14 

measuring ourselves against ourselves and taking that data to 15 

help really find out how many fish we are harvesting out there.  16 

There’s been a lot of disagreement on how we should do it and 17 

when we should do it, but I urge you to let’s get this ball 18 

rolling as quickly as possible and not delay another year or two 19 

years.  I would say by January of 2011, definitely have 20 

something in place where we could start counting the effort. 21 

 22 

On the red snapper issue, I’ve been doing a lot of thinking 23 

about this and I’m kind of leaning towards encouraging you to 24 

reduce the size limit of the red snapper to a thirteen-inch 25 

limit and possibly keeping the first fish, to help reduce the 26 

mortality rate of the fish and the bycatch.  That’s pretty much 27 

all I’ve got to say.  Thank you. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Troy. 30 

 31 

MR. PEARCE:  Troy, thanks for coming.  I know your input at the 32 

Data Collection AP was very valuable to a lot of us.  A couple 33 

of questions.  First off, you’re in favor of data collection and 34 

are you in favor of electronic data collection or paper or is 35 

there any preference? 36 

 37 

MR. FRADY:  Coming from a Department of Transportation 38 

background, I would say a combination of both.  I would not be 39 

afraid to implement a paper log system for those who don’t want 40 

to or cannot afford the electronic or don’t see really a 41 

justification for it, but by all means, an electronic means of 42 

reporting for charterboats or for-hire charterboats. 43 

 44 

MR. PEARCE:  Also, you mentioned red drum and what size red drum 45 

are you catching offshore?  I know Dr. Shipp was interested in 46 

that before. 47 

 48 
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MR. FRADY:  The average size red drum we catch off of Alabama 1 

range anywhere from twenty-eight to thirty-five inches, anywhere 2 

from I would say sixteen to twenty-two to twenty-six pounds, on 3 

average. 4 

 5 

MR. PEARCE:  Would it be possible for you to maintain a head, 6 

weight, and length off of those fish if we gave you some sort of 7 

a research quota? 8 

 9 

MR. FRADY:  We would be happy to. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you. 12 

 13 

MR. ANSON:  Troy, how often do you catch red drum in federal 14 

waters, how many times per trip or -- 15 

 16 

MR. FRADY:  Off of Alabama -- I can’t relate to anywhere else 17 

off of Alabama waters, but the redfish historically off of 18 

Alabama, they move in right after October 31 and stay in state 19 

waters, but starting in about February, depending on the outside 20 

air temperature and the water temperature, those fish start 21 

moving offshore. 22 

 23 

I’m going to tell you that maybe 3 to 5 percent of the time in 24 

federal waters I run into redfish while fishing during March and 25 

April, during the spring break season.  This year has been a 26 

little bit more common.  I would say probably close to 10 27 

percent of my trips and I’ve run close to thirty-something trips 28 

already this year in federal waters.  I would say at least 10 29 

percent this year and I think that’s more because of the water 30 

temperature.  It’s been a little bit colder, but no more than 31 

that. 32 

 33 

MR. GREENE:  If you were able to catch those fish in federal 34 

waters, do you think that that effort would change or the 10 35 

percent of the time that you catch those fish, do you think that 36 

would go up if you were able to catch those fish? 37 

 38 

MR. FRADY:  I don’t know if it would change or not.  The redfish 39 

is more of an incidental catch for us.  We’re out there fishing 40 

for triggerfish and vermilion snapper this time of the year and 41 

red porgy.  Whenever we do catch a red drum, it’s pretty much 42 

incidental.  I don’t think I can go out there and say let’s 43 

target red drum in the EEZ.  That’s just more of an incidental 44 

bycatch. 45 

 46 

We get them and we hate to see them float off, because they do 47 

not -- They suffer from barotrauma, especially in waters greater 48 
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than sixty to eighty feet.  I would rather us harvest one of 1 

them than to see them float off behind the boat.   2 

 3 

Generally when we start catching redfish, we try to move and go 4 

to a different area, because assuming that they school up, if 5 

you catch one, there’s a chance you’re going to probably catch 6 

another one.  As a precautionary measure, if we start catching 7 

redfish, we try to move off that spot at this point in time. 8 

 9 

MR. PEARCE:  To follow up on Johnny’s question, would you as a 10 

charterboat operator target redfish at certain times of the year 11 

if you had the ability to catch them when you might not have the 12 

option on other species? 13 

 14 

MR. FRADY:  Personally, I target redfish during the wintertime 15 

in the state waters of Alabama.  If you told me that I could 16 

actually go out and target redfish in the EEZ, I probably 17 

wouldn’t say yes.  I probably wouldn’t go after them.  It’s just 18 

not something that I enjoy doing.   19 

 20 

I think it’s more of a light tackle fight for me in that fifteen 21 

to twenty-five foot of water right off the beach and give 22 

somebody something to do in the winter that’s entertaining.  It 23 

gives the customer a good fight and so I would still think it 24 

would be more of an incidental catch rather than going out and 25 

targeting red drum to try to see how many we could bring up.  26 

That’s why I’m encouraging a limited amount of harvest of one 27 

per boat, just to let the customer have something to take home, 28 

like a trophy fish, but don’t go so far as trying to kill the 29 

whole world with it. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Troy.  David Avant, followed by Bob 32 

Spaeth. 33 

 34 

MR. DAVID AVANT:  Ladies and gentlemen, I’m Captain David Avant, 35 

III.  I’m a sixth generation Floridian, born and raised in 36 

Tallahassee and I operate my charters out of St. George Island, 37 

which is Franklin County, the poorest county in Florida, and 65 38 

percent of the population is in the seafood industry. 39 

 40 

I’ve come here to testify and traveled a thousand miles and left 41 

my eight-and-a-half-month wife pregnant at home with ten new 42 

birddog puppies to be here, because I believe it’s very 43 

important and I’m not here for myself.  I’m here for my son, who 44 

will be born in a couple of weeks. 45 

 46 

I look around the room and I see a lot of gray hair and older 47 

people up here and you probably won’t be on this council when 48 
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it’s time for my son to be here fishing and so I hope the 1 

actions that you take now will ensure him to have a long time of 2 

fishing like I’ve enjoyed. 3 

 4 

I’ve made sure you all have the letter that we’ve put out, some 5 

other captains and I, about addressing the gag grouper situation 6 

through slot limits and closures.  I think that those are 7 

probably a good step to look forward to.  I also think that some 8 

sort of tag system would work well and some reserves that are 9 

smaller than the current no-fishing reserves we have and more 10 

dispersed throughout the total area of the Gulf instead of just 11 

one or two big areas.  I think smaller sizes and more dispersed 12 

would help. 13 

 14 

I also think that we need to look very closely at educating the 15 

anglers.  I’ve fished all over the world and most countries that 16 

I have fished in do not have game wardens and do not have 17 

councils that operate effectively and the only effective way 18 

that they have kept their marine resources or river resources is 19 

because of the social taboo of breaking the law among the 20 

sportsmen.   21 

 22 

Until we have a better class of sportsmen out there, we’re going 23 

to continue to have problems with law violations and people who 24 

want to take more than their share and I think a mandatory 25 

fishing license test would be in order, at least a fish 26 

identification and laws. 27 

 28 

Also, the State of Florida has a lot of the Yankees which come 29 

down and overrun our waters and take our seafood and they pay 30 

very little fees and I’ve spoken to our Florida representatives 31 

here about that and they say that their hands are tied and it’s 32 

in the legislature.  To me, that’s a copout.   33 

 34 

You’ve got to do something or sue the legislature to make them 35 

raise the fees and raise the fees and make them sue you to not 36 

raise them, but do something and don’t just pass the buck.  I 37 

appreciate your time and I hope you’ll use all of your 38 

biological knowledge that you have to make a fair and equal 39 

assessment to both commercial and recreational anglers and 40 

increase our gag so we’ll have a better population in the future 41 

for my son. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thanks, David. 44 

 45 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thanks for coming over from Tallahassee.  A couple 46 

of comments and a question.  Corky will still be here when your 47 

son is probably well into his twenties.  This question has to do 48 



20 

 

with amberjack.  You’ve heard the discussion and you’re from 1 

Florida.  You’re from the north part of Florida and have you got 2 

any thoughts on season closure if that’s the way we choose to 3 

go? 4 

 5 

MR. AVANT:  Yes, sir.  I think that having a closure is going to 6 

hurt any fisherman that makes his living from fishing.  Having a 7 

closure that coincides with another species of the same type of 8 

bottom fish at the same time would be very detrimental.  I think 9 

the closures should be short and maybe broken up, like a dove 10 

season has two or three phases. 11 

 12 

You have some closures for a few weeks and open it back up for a 13 

few weeks and then closures.  During those times, the closures, 14 

it may be good weather and during the open time, it may be bad 15 

weather.  Smaller closure times and maybe a breakup in the 16 

seasons and regional closures which coincide with the 17 

industries. 18 

 19 

In my area, we have tourism from April to when school starts 20 

back in August and in south Florida, when the snowbirds are 21 

down, it’s all through the winter.  It would not make sense for 22 

me to close the whole state when some of the state is really not 23 

fishing when the other half is fishing.  It should be broken up 24 

in better zones, like our hunting zones.  Break it up to be more 25 

site-specific for the area.   26 

 27 

I think that the amberjack in my area are very plentiful.  We 28 

have no trouble catching our one fish and most of the time 29 

they’re all well over the limit, the legal size limit, and so 30 

there’s not a problem with throwing back a lot of shorts and 31 

it’s sure a good eating fish and I hope the stocks improve and 32 

continue improving and any closures should be done briefly and 33 

not coinciding with other closures for the gag and snapper and 34 

stuff. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, David.   37 

 38 

MR. PERRET:  I appreciate your comments.  We don’t get a lot of 39 

comments about improved angler education and angler ethics and 40 

so on and so I appreciate that comment.  In your experience in 41 

fishing, has angler knowledge of rules and regulations and 42 

ethics improved over the years, do you think, or are we going in 43 

the opposite direction or just what’s your feeling?  Has it 44 

gotten any better? 45 

 46 

MR. AVANT:  No, sir, not in my area.  Again, I’m in one of the 47 

poorest counties in the state and the literacy rate is probably 48 
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50 percent and so how are they going to read those regs anyway?  1 

That’s the honest truth.  That’s not the case in the whole state 2 

of Florida, but in my area and I’m sure some of the other areas 3 

of the Gulf Coast, we have that problem and it’s a socioeconomic 4 

problem that will not be solved in this generation. 5 

 6 

I think that the education -- In the case of Germany, they have 7 

a three-year waiting period and testing and apprenticeship to 8 

get a hunting license.  They do not have game wardens and they 9 

don’t have game violators.  They have sportsmen and that’s what 10 

we need for fishing.  Not three years, but maybe an online 11 

course on identification or something like that would be a big 12 

step and I think maybe in the public schools teaching it. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thanks, David.  Bob Spaeth, followed by Shannon 15 

LaBaure. 16 

 17 

MR. BOB SPAETH:  Thank you, council members.  If you remember 18 

the last meeting, I appeared before you with a lot of 19 

information on fish traps.  The council decided basically to 20 

send it to purgatory.  We thought we had a way to be able to 21 

harvest fish. 22 

 23 

We’re only catching 15 percent of our quota where just a couple 24 

of years we were closed down for two or three months and it’s 25 

not due to stocks, contrary to some of the beliefs.  It’s due a 26 

lot to regulations.  It’s due a lot to snapper taking over the 27 

bottom and it’s due to a lot of things that nobody gives us 28 

credit for. 29 

 30 

Basically, we have been moved out to thirty-five fathoms with 31 

the longline.  Some of the boats that are going to lose their 32 

endorsements are now buoy fishing.  There were some gray areas 33 

in the definition.  The Southern Offshore Fishing Association 34 

put together a team of ten people to go out there and try to do 35 

different things. 36 

 37 

One of our major objectives was not to interact with turtles.  38 

We would be crazy.  Our intention was not to go ahead and fudge 39 

on saying it’s a longline and calling it a buoy gear and making 40 

a longline.  That’s not the intention of what we did. 41 

 42 

We’ve asked for a modified buoy gear definition and our 43 

definition would have been, very simply, you have to have a 44 

buoy, a weight, and no more than forty hooks.  That would, 45 

number one, limit the length of your line and, number two, 46 

enforcement could go over there, which they do, and pull our 47 

line and count the hooks and know whether you’re in violation or 48 
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not. 1 

 2 

We have had -- I think Bonnie mentioned we have already had 3 

observer coverage on some of the boats and so far to date, the 4 

whole fleet, with all of them longlining and doing that, have 5 

caught one turtle in four-and-a-half months.  I hate to say 6 

that, because I don’t want to bring bad luck on us.  I’m real 7 

happy with that. 8 

 9 

What happens is we have to economically survive and as you keep 10 

crunching us down and crunching us down, we can’t.  Go ahead and 11 

look at your records of what a bandit and vertical line boat 12 

catches and makes and how many people it employs and how close 13 

it is to getting to the quota. 14 

 15 

After Amendment 31 goes into effect, you watch what happens 16 

there.  We also told you pushing us out into that one area that 17 

it was going to slow down and it did.  What we hope is that the 18 

council will help us become more efficient and more turtle 19 

friendly, but when you put seven hooks on the end of it, it just 20 

doesn’t work for us.  I’m out of time. 21 

 22 

MR. SAPP:  Thanks, Bob.  When we displaced all those longline 23 

guys, I think we all had the expectation that the vertical line 24 

gear they were going to go to was going to be bandit rigs and 25 

what we’ve seen is something that has wound up being a little 26 

bit different, at least at this point.  Can we conclude from 27 

that that the transition was so difficult that the guys are not 28 

able to do it and can the bandit rigs not work for those guys?  29 

Is that what you’ve concluded? 30 

 31 

MR. SPAETH:  What I’m saying is bandit rigs are not working for 32 

the larger boats, number one, but also, with the IFQ and what’s 33 

going to happen with the Amendment 31, there’s boats sitting at 34 

our dock now that were worth $100,000 last year and they’re not 35 

going to go fishing because they can’t make it and it’s a shame 36 

to see the fleet laying around. 37 

 38 

It’s almost what happened to the shrimpers and it’s due to a lot 39 

of these regulations and that’s why we’re asking you to please 40 

help us.  Help us harvest these fish which we’re supposed to. 41 

 42 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Bob, thank you for coming.  Can you tell me 43 

what’s the average number of hooks, that you know of, that is 44 

used on a bandit rig when they are grouper fishing?  That’s my 45 

first question. 46 

 47 

MR. SPAETH:  The number of hooks on a bandit rig, it depends on 48 
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what you do and whether you’re in the southern Gulf or the 1 

northern Gulf.  Most of our boats use two rigs, but if you’re b-2 

liner fishing and you use a vertical line, you can put up to 3 

forty hooks on it for b-liner fishing and I used to call it a 4 

rat rig.  I used to use twenty hooks on a line when I snapper 5 

fished, but the snapper are up in the water column, where 6 

grouper is a bottom fish. 7 

 8 

It’s like if you try to make me fish up in the water column, I’m 9 

not going to catch any grouper.  All of you guys that have been 10 

grouper fishing know that the fish are on the bottom.  If you 11 

give us a gear that has to fish up in the water, you’re not 12 

helping us. 13 

 14 

MS. WILLIAMS:  That’s why I was asking about the hooks, because 15 

if you -- We’re asking you, well why didn’t you use bandit rigs 16 

to go out there and attempt to fish and if you can count the 17 

number of bandit rigs that it would probably take, at least 18 

probably eight, four on each side if you have a large vessel, 19 

and you count the number of hooks, I’m actually trying to also 20 

look at the effort and how many hooks would there have been 21 

fishing in that area versus how many hooks on these buoy gears.  22 

How many hooks are you going to need on the buoy gear? 23 

 24 

MR. SPAETH:  If I’m getting your question right, Kay, if I’m a 25 

bandit boat and I’m stopping over here on this piece of bottom 26 

where the fish is and I’m anchored up on it and I’m dropping my 27 

bandits and my bait is going away, I’m probably dropping two 28 

hooks and am I catching fish?  If I’m not catching fish, I’ll 29 

probably drop all four bandits four or five times on the same 30 

spot until I don’t catch anything and then I’ll move.  You’re 31 

talking thirty or forty hooks anyhow by doing it that way. 32 

 33 

If I throw a buoy on it, that’s what we’re kind of doing.  I 34 

don’t think there’s a whole big bunch of difference.  I know 35 

we’re worried about the ESA stuff, but -- 36 

 37 

MS. WILLIAMS:  One other question.  How many buoy gears are you 38 

setting out?  Are you setting out three, ten, thirty? 39 

 40 

MR. SPAETH:  From the information and talking with Bobby Carter 41 

and some of our others, the ones that were using the rig with 42 

the more hooks, he said it was about ten was the maximum they 43 

could do and a lot of them averaged eight.  That was the 44 

information I got from our study group. 45 

 46 

MS. WILLIAMS:  How many hooks are you suggesting that this 47 

council go with? 48 
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 1 

MR. SPAETH:  Our organization would want fifty, but I would 2 

probably -- We never get what we ask for and so if we ended up 3 

with thirty, it would be a godsend.   4 

 5 

MR. GREENE:  How much weight does it require to keep your gear 6 

on the bottom? 7 

 8 

MR. SPAETH:  What we usually do is use a sash weight, one of the 9 

old window sash weights.  That’s what we put on the end of the 10 

buoy and sometimes that’s what you also use on a bandit rig and 11 

turtles are able to swim.  The buoy rig that we have designed, a 12 

turtle can swim up and be waiting for you when you come by and 13 

you could limit the amount of buoys on a boat, because they’re 14 

going to pull one right after the other. 15 

 16 

When you’re fishing, the bait is gone, boom.  If you don’t catch 17 

a fish pretty quick, your hooks are empty and so that buoy is 18 

just sitting there doing nothing if it didn’t catch a fish right 19 

off the bat.  Little fish get everything. 20 

 21 

MR. GREENE:  Are we talking like six pounds of weight or ten 22 

pounds of weight or twenty pounds of weight? 23 

 24 

MR. SPAETH:  I would guess that it would probably be five to 25 

eight or nine pounds. 26 

 27 

MR. JOE HENDRIX:  Thanks for your comments, Bob.  Bob, you think 28 

if we limited it to like eight rigs per boat, that’s not going 29 

to be restrictive? 30 

 31 

MR. SPAETH:  According to what the guys say, eight or ten rigs 32 

is what they -- They’ve got a cycle.  You throw them over and 33 

you’ve got to run over and you’ve got to pick it up and you’ve 34 

got to bait it and you do as many as you can in a day.  I think 35 

Bobby said if you caught one or two fish on his rigs that he 36 

would have a 400 or 500 pound day and ten days, you get 5,000 37 

pounds and that’s what it’s going to take to keep us on the 38 

water. 39 

 40 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Bob.  Next up is Shannon LaBaure, to be 41 

followed by John from Texas. 42 

 43 

MR. SHANNON LABAURE:  I’m Captain Shannon LaBaure.  I’ve been 44 

running charters out of Galveston and I’ve been based here for 45 

fifteen years and I support sector separation and the electronic 46 

logs this season or as soon as you guys can pass that. 47 

 48 
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I just wanted to talk about the gross sales of our bait camp 1 

here at the Galveston Yacht Basin.  I talked to the guy who owns 2 

it, Raymond Francis, and he would normally order an eighteen-3 

wheeler truck load of bait every two weeks and now he’s ordered 4 

an eighteen-wheeler for one year, gross sales. 5 

 6 

I think the pressure is way down.  I see the same sportfishing 7 

boats advertised at the January boat show and the March boat 8 

show and so I think the pressure is down.  The sales are down 9 

and we need some help with charterboat regulations and that’s 10 

about it. 11 

 12 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Shannon.  Next up is John from Texas 13 

talking about sector separation.  I couldn’t read your last name 14 

and I apologize. 15 

 16 

MR. JOHN WALKER:  My name is Johnny Walker and I’ve been in the 17 

charter headboat sector here in Galveston for about twenty-four 18 

years.  I’m also in the commercial IFQ snapper fishery.  I’ve 19 

been in the snapper fishery for about fifteen years. 20 

 21 

I just wanted to kind of go over, as far as on the charter 22 

headboat sector, how in years past we were fishing pretty much 23 

year-round and here of late, we have basically -- Our seasons 24 

have been dwindled down to fifty-five days this year and through 25 

non-compliance, this has what has happened with the federal 26 

regs. 27 

 28 

In the commercial side, as far as the commercial fishery, we 29 

were fishing derby back six or eight or ten years ago.  The 30 

derby, we were fishing ten days a month and seven or eight 31 

months a year and thrashing to get to the fish and through the 32 

IFQ share program, we have gone to a fishery -- With sector 33 

separation, we’ve gone to a fishery that is accountable and 34 

manageable and good both for the fishermen and the fish. 35 

 36 

I see that if we can implement sector separation in the charter 37 

for-hire sector that through accountability that we can further 38 

manage the fishery a lot better than what’s happening right now.  39 

I think the council is all about hard numbers. 40 

 41 

Right now, in the charter headboat recreational sector, who 42 

knows what we’re catching?  Through sector separation and 43 

implementing catch shares, I think that we can further manage 44 

this fishery to where we have a fishery for tomorrow.  Right 45 

now, we’re heading for a dead-end street as far as I’m 46 

concerned. 47 

 48 
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What’s really neat is in the commercial fishery, I’ve seen it go 1 

from a fishery that was near collapse about three years ago.  I 2 

couldn’t hardly catch a fish and through sector separation and 3 

catch shares, we have taken a fishery -- It’s turned it 4 

completely around.  There’s plenty of fish out there now and the 5 

effort is less on the commercial side.  Our profitability is 6 

better and there’s more fish.  It’s win/win/win in every aspect.  7 

If we can implement this program on the charter headboat sector, 8 

I think it’s going to be win/win for everyone, fish, fishermen, 9 

the whole deal.  That’s about what I wanted to say. 10 

 11 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Walker.  Next up is Darrell Hingle, to 12 

be followed by David Krebs. 13 

 14 

MR. HINGLE:  I’m Darrell Hingle, a charterboat operator here out 15 

of Galveston.  I’ve had my permit since about 1998 and in that 16 

time, I’ve seen it go, like everybody else has said, downhill to 17 

basically -- For lack of a better word, we have a derby now on 18 

the charterboat side.  The commercial guys used to have to hit 19 

it ten days, ten days, ten days, now we have to hit for fifty-20 

five or fifty-four days.  That’s not good.  I would like to have 21 

it year-round. 22 

 23 

I think sector separation would do that.  It would give me more 24 

days to spread them out throughout the year.  I don’t know the 25 

numbers and how to figure the allotment and IFQs.  That’s a 26 

whole different ballgame down the road, but at least get us 27 

separate from the recreational, because we know our numbers.  28 

It’s already a control group.  Call it what it is and it’s 29 

separated and let’s do it. 30 

 31 

I would like to thank Mr. Harlon for his wanting to push the 32 

electronic logbooks.  I would like to see it start now.  You’ve 33 

been pushing it and every year you push it back and you’ve 34 

pushed it back to 2012 now with you all’s study.  You’ve got a 35 

control group and let’s just put them on there and do them. 36 

 37 

I would like to see a redfish harvest.  I think that would throw 38 

us a bone.  An extra fish on the boat makes customers happy and 39 

that’s about it.  We need VMS to help make the e-logbooks 40 

accountable.  You need to be able to show up at the dock and 41 

check your fish to make your numbers verifiable.  That’s it. 42 

 43 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Hingle.  Next up is David Krebs and 44 

you have two cards, but you can only talk one time.  He’ll be 45 

followed by Steven Garey. 46 

 47 

MR. DAVID KREBS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I guess I was under 48 



27 

 

the impression there was open comment this morning and then 1 

Amendment 32 this afternoon, but I may have been confused and so 2 

I’ll be quick. 3 

 4 

I want to thank you for the start date on the King Mackerel AP, 5 

understanding that it is purely a design phase, to let fishermen 6 

have an idea of what a catch share could look like in the king 7 

mackerel fishery.  Certainly the Gulf is looking at different 8 

issues than the South Atlantic and the Mid-Atlantic. 9 

 10 

We still feel that fish tags in the private angler sector is 11 

going to be very important for the future of truly knowing what 12 

that sector harvests.  Obviously we agree with most of the 13 

people that are coming to the mic saying that closed seasons are 14 

hurting everybody.  If we could go to some sort of 15 

accountability system across the board for all species in the 16 

Gulf, we could do away with closed seasons, regulatory discards, 17 

and all the bad things that are associated with it, allowing 18 

people to build a better model. 19 

 20 

To that end, we support sector separation between the charter 21 

for-hire and the private angler.  Simply stated, you have a 22 

finite number of charter for-hire vessels that cannot continue 23 

to grow and you have a private angler sector that is continuing 24 

to grow and that doesn’t make them bad people, but it just makes 25 

a tremendous imbalance as you move forward. 26 

 27 

We support opening redfish, however Harlon envisions that.  We 28 

think that it’s an underutilized stock.  We’re still looking 29 

forward to working with Bonnie at the Science Center to 30 

establish some good fishery-independent data to go along with 31 

the fishery-dependent data that you’re getting from the catch 32 

share program in the commercial sector. 33 

 34 

We think you’re getting some good fishery-dependent data off 35 

that and we would like to improve that.  I think that’s the meat 36 

of my comments.  T.J. Tate is going to give a much more formal 37 

presentation and so I’m going to leave some time on the clock 38 

today.  Thank you. 39 

 40 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Krebs.  To clarify, there is a period 41 

this afternoon, scheduled from 1:30 to 2:30, but we’ll continue 42 

open public comment and so when you come to the mic, speak your 43 

mind, because you’ll have that one time to talk.  Thank you, 44 

sir.  Next up is Steven Garey, to be followed by Jack Golden. 45 

 46 

MR. STEVEN GAREY:  Good morning.  My name is Steve Garey and I’m 47 

a charterboat captain in Galveston and I would like to thank you 48 
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for the opportunity to speak today.  I just have a few concerns 1 

about the decline in fishing days we have for the red snapper. 2 

 3 

We’ve gone in the past twelve years to fishing year-round to now 4 

going this year to fishing fifty-five days and I think it’s time 5 

to try something different.  I really support the sector 6 

separation as an opportunity to gather data for the council and 7 

help us be more of a way to verify our fishing and stop the 8 

overfishing so we can stop losing days and help our business out 9 

a little bit. 10 

 11 

We’ve been asking the council to explore this opportunity for 12 

the past couple of years and now I think it’s time to take a 13 

good look at it and having the electronic logbooks and a way to 14 

verify what we say we catch and when we catch it and make sure 15 

that the people that are actually putting these logbooks down 16 

are actually going out and giving the right data.  That’s about 17 

all I have today and I appreciate the opportunity for you all 18 

letting me speak. 19 

 20 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Garey.  Next up is Jack Golden, to be 21 

followed by Jim Clements. 22 

 23 

MR. JACK GOLDEN:  I was going to talk about buoy gear, but I 24 

guess everybody I know is going to talk about buoy gear and so I 25 

have questions about Amendment 31.  It’s really dragged on a 26 

long time and I would like to know when we’re going to get it 27 

opened back up and if anybody can -- Roy probably can enlighten 28 

us on what’s happening with it.  Are we going to get it opened 29 

back up?  We’re taking too much of a beating here that it’s got 30 

to open up.  The longline is taking a beating and the forty-31 

break is taking a beating and now we’re getting into this thing 32 

over buoy gear and it’s mostly because of being put out to 33 

thirty-five fathoms.  Have you got any answers for us, Roy? 34 

 35 

DR. CRABTREE:  If the question is when will the final rule for 36 

Amendment 31 go into place -- 37 

 38 

MR. GOLDEN:  Yes, when are they going to do something about it? 39 

 40 

DR. CRABTREE:  It’s already been approved by the Fisheries 41 

Service.  The proposed rule published -- 42 

 43 

DR. STEVE BRANSTETTER:  The final rule is under review by the 44 

Department of Commerce right now.  It’s that close to being 45 

published. 46 

 47 

DR. CRABTREE:  The answer is the endorsements and all should go 48 
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into effect soon. 1 

 2 

MR. GOLDEN:  Soon is maybe this month, end of the month?  Have 3 

you got any idea at all is what I’m asking. 4 

 5 

DR. CRABTREE:  It could be the end of the month.  That would be 6 

my hope.  There’s a thirty-day delay in the effective date and 7 

we’ll have to go through the process of issuing endorsements and 8 

all that. 9 

 10 

MR. GOLDEN:  Do you believe that we will get back inside of 11 

thirty-five fathoms before June 1? 12 

 13 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t know.  The rule would have to publish -- 14 

If the rule published the end of this month with the thirty 15 

days, we would be in June and so my guess is it’s a good chance 16 

you’re not going to get out there for very long, if at all, 17 

until the end of the summer. 18 

 19 

MR. GOLDEN:  We were discussing it the other day and talked 20 

about we’ve only got about 15 percent of our TAC under red 21 

grouper and is that right, somewhere near that? 22 

 23 

DR. CRABTREE:  It’s somewhere close to that, but that’s been the 24 

case for the last several years.  You haven’t come close to 25 

catching the red grouper quota really since 2005 and most of the 26 

evidence we have indicates that a lot of that is because the 27 

stock has declined. 28 

 29 

MR. GOLDEN:  You’re going to take part of that from us anyway 30 

next year and so that should settle some of it, 25 percent of 31 

it, if I’m right.  The regulations, like 750 hooks and 6,000-32 

pound trip limits, I just don’t want people to think that we 33 

can’t catch them.  We can catch them and I believe they’re 34 

there.  It’s just the regulations have stopped us from catching 35 

them and you don’t seem to think that in your discussion. 36 

 37 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think that’s part of it, but I don’t think 38 

that’s the whole story.  I think the stock has declined.  That’s 39 

what the assessment indicates.  I think regulations probably 40 

have something to do with it, particularly this year with the 41 

closure of longlining and all that.  There’s no question that’s 42 

had a big impact. 43 

 44 

MR. GOLDEN:  All right.  Thank you very much. 45 

 46 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Golden.  Jim Clements and following 47 

him is Mike Colby and I would ask that when your name is 48 
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announced as next up if you would come up behind the speaker so 1 

we could expedite and move along and not hold everybody later. 2 

 3 

MR. JIM CLEMENTS:  My name is Jim Clements and I’m from 4 

Carrabelle, Florida.  I’m speaking for the GFA, Gulf Fishermen’s 5 

Association, and myself.  I’ve talked to most of you council 6 

members and by representing GFA, our position has changed. 7 

 8 

I want to thank the Reef Fish Committee for passing the motion 9 

on Monday to include an alternative that will allow both red and 10 

gag multiuse shares to be used for shallow-water grouper.  I 11 

also agree that no multiuse shares should be used for gag 12 

grouper. 13 

 14 

An alternative to restrict recreational anglers from keeping the 15 

large spawning male gags was proposed on Monday.  I would like 16 

to add to Ms. Morris’s motion to explore an upper limit maximum 17 

size slot for gag grouper.  I think this upper limit for 18 

recreational gag grouper should be set at forty-three inches.  19 

This is when 50 percent of gag male grouper are mature.  This is 20 

a large grouper and should satisfy the goal of recreational 21 

fishermen, which is to catch the big boy. 22 

 23 

I also think there should be no or a very small size limit on 24 

gags below the forty-three-inch limit, in order to minimize dead 25 

discards, possibly twenty inches.  As for these large fish dying 26 

when discarded, according to your science, approximately 16 to 27 

36 percent will survive at the thirty and forty-fathom depth.  28 

This means that almost one-third of these large spawning males 29 

will survive discard.  That is certainly a large amount of males 30 

that can and will spawn the following year. 31 

 32 

We do not support any more closed areas, seasonal or permanent, 33 

at this time.  Our fishermen are in an active program and will 34 

adjust their fishing techniques in areas that best fit their 35 

business.  I’m trying my best to prevent any more permanent or 36 

seasonal area closures and I would like for you to give me any 37 

suggestions that would help.  Thank you. 38 

 39 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Clements.  40 

 41 

MR. PERRET:  Jim, I’m looking at the illustration in the 42 

document of the possible two additional closed areas and 43 

proposed area Alternative 2 is north of the current closed area 44 

and proposed Alternative 3 would join the two closed areas.  I 45 

don’t know how many miles that is in a straight line if all that 46 

were closed, but it looks pretty substantial to me. 47 

 48 
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I guess that’s around the forty or fifty-fathom break.  What 1 

would that closure or closures do to your grouper fishermen if 2 

that were, number one, permanent or seasonal?  Can you comment 3 

on that, please? 4 

 5 

MR. CLEMENTS:  Yes, sir, I think that’s a very good question.  6 

It’s definitely going to reduce the capacity in the fleet and 7 

there’s no doubt about it.  How much, I don’t know, but as you 8 

know, one of the objectives of the IFQ program that started 9 

January 1 is to reduce the fleet and that’s working. 10 

 11 

We don’t feel like we need any more closures.  The capacity is 12 

being reduced by the IFQ program, which has only been in effect 13 

for three months.  Let us just see what this does without doing 14 

anything drastic like closures. 15 

 16 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Clements.  Mike Colby is next, 17 

followed by James Bruce. 18 

 19 

MR. MIKE COLBY:  My name is Mike Colby and I’m from Clearwater, 20 

Florida.  I’m a headboat and charterboat operator out of 21 

Clearwater and I am representing our association members, the 22 

Clearwater Commercial Marine Association.  They went to great 23 

pains to send me here. 24 

 25 

Our group is a combination of different vendors and merchants, 26 

twenty-five or so of which are headboats and charterboats.  The 27 

association is made up, as you can imagine, of a fairly diverse 28 

group.  There’s operators in there from Michigan, New Jersey, 29 

Texas, North Carolina, and one from Oklahoma and albeit that 30 

they are diverse, they are pragmatic and they do understand that 31 

to remain in this fishery, to be a viable business and remain in 32 

this fishery, they do feel that they need to be a part of a 33 

process. 34 

 35 

Part of that process that we have been discussing in Clearwater 36 

is part of the action of sector separation.  I can guarantee you 37 

that all of our operators, including myself, would welcome a 38 

workshop or some other venue where we could continue to explore 39 

the particulars of sector separation. 40 

 41 

In addition to that, our operators have indicated that they 42 

would welcome being part of any kind of a test bed, if you will, 43 

for any type of monitoring or positioning or accountability 44 

procedures.  They would welcome that as part of their venue in 45 

participating in this process. 46 

 47 

In addition, I think that, again, the operators, not knowing a 48 
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lot about this process that the council goes through, I think 1 

are wise enough to now know that they do need to be active 2 

participants in whatever process takes place, which I hope if 3 

they have enough confidence in me that you’ll get to see my face 4 

again, if that doesn’t cause you any sleepless nights.  That is 5 

particularly where our association stands as a group and I’m 6 

simply speaking for that group and thank you. 7 

 8 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Colby.  We do have some questions for 9 

you. 10 

 11 

MR. TEEHAN:  Mike, thanks for coming from Clearwater.  I’ve got 12 

to take advantage of your location to pick your brain a little 13 

bit about amberjack, because I think it’s very, very important 14 

that we get to the bottom of south Florida versus the northern 15 

Gulf issue. 16 

 17 

Karen has sent around a graph to the council members, and you 18 

don’t need to look at it right now, but we need to look at in 19 

deliberation over amberjack, that shows the locations and 20 

breakdowns and the seasons and the area that this gentleman is 21 

from definitely has a different peak and season for amberjack 22 

than the northern Gulf.  When do you see the greatest effort 23 

down in your area, recreational? 24 

 25 

MR. COLBY:  It’s a bad time to ask me that.  We’re in an El Niño 26 

system and that means all of us are having bad spring weather.  27 

Normally, our for-hire operators and private recreational boat 28 

owners would target amberjack just as fast as the weather allows 29 

them.   30 

 31 

Unfortunately, I agree with the gentleman from Alabama and 32 

others who have said that possibly having them fish through the 33 

spring for amberjack may not give them the greatest total 34 

effort, simply because of weather, particularly in an El Niño 35 

year like this.  They may not even have access to that resource, 36 

simply because of weather and not due to any other particulars 37 

that would keep them dockside. 38 

 39 

Having said that, I think that the for-hire and private 40 

recreational boat owners would probably like to see something 41 

concurrent for them, where they could fish through the red 42 

snapper season and then be able to fish amberjack through the 43 

rest of the summer or there may be some operators and boat 44 

owners that would rather just see it all open at the same time, 45 

having the closure in March, April, and May and have it open 46 

concurrent with red snapper and then closed in the summer. 47 

 48 



33 

 

I think you’re going to get a lot of varying opinions on that, 1 

regionally-based.  This year, I think our fishermen would much 2 

rather be able to fish through the red snapper opening, the 3 

forty-five of fifty-so days, and then have the chance to have 4 

amberjack open up at that time, simply because at this time of 5 

year in the weather systems that we’ve had, effort has been 6 

down, way down. 7 

 8 

I probably ran four charters in January and probably had sixteen 9 

booked and I just couldn’t run them through January and 10 

February, simply because weather kept us at the dock.  There’s a 11 

lot of things that peck away at this for-hire industry and one 12 

of them certainly is weather. 13 

 14 

I think the recreational crowd could go either way on that, 15 

depending upon like when you ask them.  This is the time of the 16 

year, in 2010, that I think most of them would say let’s fish 17 

snapper and then let’s fish amberjack. 18 

 19 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thanks.  That’s good information.  One more follow-20 

up question.  The issue in the northern Gulf, as I understand 21 

it, and Johnny or Damon can correct me if I’m wrong, is the 22 

conflict between red snapper season and amberjack season.  23 

 24 

You’re kind of down in the middle of the peninsular of Florida 25 

where you’re still probably starting -- You’re probably starting 26 

to see more red snapper than you historically have, but you’ve 27 

also got a grouper issue.  Grouper is closed, presently, 28 

February and March to recreational harvest.  Does the grouper 29 

issue fit in more than the red snapper for you in Clearwater? 30 

 31 

MR. COLBY:  Yes.  Our for-hire operators, grouper is king in our 32 

marina.  That’s not to say that even the charterboat industry 33 

doesn’t take good advantage of the open snapper season, but 34 

grouper is what our market desires to target. 35 

 36 

Nine-and-a-half out of ten trips that I run, they want gags and 37 

red groupers and, again, that’s a lot to do with our fleet, the 38 

type of fleet we have in Clearwater.  It’s not necessarily a 39 

long-range fleet in terms of eight-hour trips.  Most of us are 40 

twelve to fourteen-knot boats with two-cycle GMs and we can fish 41 

in sixty to ninety feet of water and that’s kind of where my 42 

bread and butter is and so grouper is essentially what we target 43 

the most. 44 

 45 

MR. PEARCE:  Thank you for your testimony.  Listening to your 46 

testimony, I take it that your group will be in favor of a 47 

mandatory electronic logbook reporting system? 48 
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 1 

MR. COLBY:  I can’t speak for all of them.  I would be and I 2 

think what our operators want is to explore that further.  3 

They’re anxious to hear from you folks.  They’re anxious to go 4 

to a workshop and they’re anxious to see what is on the table 5 

for them.  They’re open to this and certainly with logbook 6 

verification of their catches. 7 

 8 

In terms of VMS, again, we want to know where that’s all going 9 

to take us and hopefully, from what they’re telling me is, is 10 

that if that takes us to sector separation and improves our 11 

businesses and secures the viability of their businesses, then 12 

they’re all for it. 13 

 14 

Their businesses -- We’re full-time fishermen in Clearwater.  We 15 

don’t have part-time jobs.  We pay our phone bills and our 16 

mortgages and our food bills by our fishing boats and so we are 17 

desperate to see something that will improve our standing in the 18 

fishery and ensure the continuation of our businesses. 19 

 20 

There are three businesses in that marina now that are family-21 

owned charterboats that have been there for forty-five years.  22 

Headboats have been family owned for that long of a time or 23 

longer.  We have embedded people there that have a real stake in 24 

this process. 25 

 26 

MR. MCKNIGHT:  Do you usually target amberjack year-round? 27 

 28 

MR. COLBY:  I don’t, no, sir. 29 

 30 

MR. MCKNIGHT:  Which months do you target them? 31 

 32 

MR. COLBY:  For the for-hire operators, when the weather allows 33 

and when they have a customer that desires that.  That’s really 34 

the driving force in the for-hire industry.  I would love to go 35 

out and fish amberjack on a whim, but I need the customer.  I 36 

need the customer to say this is the type of fishing I want to 37 

do and as I mentioned, our market -- I would say 60 to 70 38 

percent of our market that fishes out of the Clearwater area 39 

want to catch grouper.  It’s a biggie.  40 

 41 

MR. MCKNIGHT:  Which months of the year do you mainly fish for 42 

amberjack? 43 

 44 

MR. COLBY:  On my boat personally, I’ll fish for them usually 45 

Memorial Day right on through Labor Day and essentially that’s 46 

because all I have to do is dodge thunderstorms and they don’t 47 

scare me.  As long as I can get the boat out and I don’t have to 48 
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beat the boat up in rougher sea conditions, I’ll fish amberjack 1 

in those years when I can get the boat out. 2 

 3 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Colby.  Next is James Bruce, to be 4 

followed by Mike Nugent. 5 

 6 

MR. JAMES BRUCE:  James Bruce, Cut Off, Louisiana, commercial 7 

fisherman.  What I mean by commercial fisherman is if I don’t 8 

catch it, I don’t eat.  IFQs is a great tool to manage the fish, 9 

but what’s going on with the IFQs now, we have too much leasing 10 

going on, but it’s not leasing in the right places. 11 

 12 

It’s not going for the bycatch.  I’ll give you a good example.  13 

We’ve got a guy where I’m from and he got over 100,000 pounds of 14 

fish caught already and he’s got another 200,000 pounds of 15 

snapper to go and now he gets this fish from a guy who is 16 

leasing 100,000 pounds of fish and then he goes and catches it 17 

for him for $1.25 a pound.  That don’t make no sense to me.  The 18 

system wasn’t set up like that and we have to fix it. 19 

 20 

The IFQs work, but the system is broken in the aspect of it’s 21 

not going in the right places and to fix it, I see the owner on 22 

the boat to catch it or limit something somewhere and I don’t 23 

know.  You all make all the laws and I voted for IFQs, but you 24 

all make the laws after and the way it’s set up, caps are not 25 

working, because if caps would work, we wouldn’t have this 26 

problem right here and it’s very serious. 27 

 28 

300,000 pounds of fish this guy is going to catch and it’s all 29 

going through one guy.  He goes out and the guy gives him an 30 

order of I want so many two to fours and I want so many one to 31 

twos and he’s got three big crates on the back of the boat and 32 

he loads that with ice and catches the fish and then he fills 33 

the orders.  What’s going on with the other fish? 34 

 35 

Maybe a use-it-or-lose-it or some kind of privilege in there 36 

that makes it work.  I don’t know and you all might have the 37 

answers, but I think that’s a hell of a lot of fish for one man 38 

to catch and when you’ve got the bycatch issue in the eastern 39 

Gulf.  Have you all got any answers? 40 

 41 

MR. PEARCE:  Thanks for coming.  From your testimony, you’re in 42 

favor of the IFQ permits, for snapper I assume, as a use-it-or-43 

lose-it type of a clause? 44 

 45 

MR. BRUCE:  Either use-it-or-lose-it or the owner onboard or 46 

some kind of a sentence in there where a guy can’t -- The way 47 

it’s set up now, you don’t have to go fishing.  The corporations 48 
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buy it and it’s a great tool to manage, but it’s not for the 1 

fisherman himself.  It’s not for the -- When I grew up, I would 2 

go fishing all summer long and I all I wanted to do was save me 3 

enough money to buy a boat.  Right now, you need billions of 4 

dollars, because they inflated our snapper prices outrageous.  5 

It’s ridiculous.   6 

 7 

You’ve got to lease it for three bucks and I’ve seen four 8 

dollars on the internet and when you’re going to get $4.50 for 9 

it and then you pay your 3 percent taxes and now this guy is 10 

going to go and fish it for $1.25?  What is he paying you all 3 11 

percent on?  Is it the $1.25?  It don’t make sense.  You all 12 

have got the information to find it out. 13 

 14 

MS. MORRIS:  I hope that when we get this discussion paper about 15 

where we’re headed with red snapper and anticipating the five-16 

year reevaluation of the snapper IFQ that the whole subject of 17 

what’s working and not working and leasing will be part of that 18 

discussion paper. 19 

 20 

MR. FISCHER:  James, what I understood is you would prefer like 21 

a use-it-or-lose-it clause where the person who actually 22 

harvests the fish ends up with those shares. 23 

 24 

MR. BRUCE:  Yes, because if you lease it, that means you don’t 25 

need it.  If you’re leasing your fish to so and so, that means 26 

you don’t need that fish.  All you need that fish for is to make 27 

you money and so what is this system, a money maker, the stock 28 

market, or it’s to manage the fish for the fishermen? 29 

 30 

MR. FISCHER:  Okay.  So you would like to see the actual 31 

fishermen end up with the shares? 32 

 33 

MR. BRUCE:  Yes, sir. 34 

 35 

MR. PERRET:  Are you always on your boat?  Don’t you have times 36 

when you’re ill or family problems that somebody else fishes 37 

your boat? 38 

 39 

MR. BRUCE:  I caught 30,700 pounds of snapper in seven days.  My 40 

longest trip was thirty-five hours and so if a man can’t go do 41 

that -- The way you all set it up, the fish is so thick that it 42 

don’t matter. 43 

 44 

MR. PERRET:  While you don’t necessarily mean the individual 45 

would have to be on the boat 100 percent of the time, make it 50 46 

percent or 60 percent, but the owner of the shares should be 47 

fishing a major part of the time? 48 
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 1 

MR. BRUCE:  At least 75 percent or so. 2 

 3 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Bruce.  Next up is Mike Nugent, to be 4 

followed by Pam Anderson. 5 

 6 

MR. NUGENT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  My name is Mike Nugent 7 

and I’m a charterboat owner/operator from Aransas Pass.  I 8 

represent the membership of the Port Aransas Boatmen 9 

Association.  The Port Aransas Boatmen Association continues to 10 

be opposed to sector separation. 11 

 12 

We support electronic reporting for the for-hire sector.  We 13 

continue to say that there’s no correlation between sector 14 

separation and electronic reporting for the for-hire.  There’s 15 

maybe other reasons for sector separation, but it’s not just for 16 

data collecting. 17 

 18 

We also remain opposed to mandatory VMS for the for-hire sector.  19 

Another thing I would like to bring up is Mr. Perret, on 20 

Tuesday, brought up an idea for you all about using public 21 

testimony for the idea of getting catch share opinions from the 22 

public and I think it’s a great idea and I hate to bring this 23 

up, on account of somebody may throw rocks on me, because I 24 

understand what you all go through on that deal, but I would 25 

like to see you give some consideration to having some of your 26 

public testimony in the evenings if you really want to get the 27 

private recreational people a chance to maybe come out and hear 28 

what they say about catch shares.  I think that’s the only way 29 

you’re ever going to hear what their feelings are about it. 30 

 31 

Another thing I wanted to bring up from our LAPP AP that you all 32 

touched on in the report was one of the recommendations was to 33 

contact all the permit holders in the for-hire sector with an 34 

informational and questionnaire combination to find out where 35 

everybody stands and inform them about the catch shares for the 36 

for-hire. 37 

 38 

I just want to emphasize that I think that is so important that 39 

I hate to see it get watered down and tucked into the back of 40 

some kind of survey or some kind of questionnaire.  The time and 41 

the money that’s going into this AP and other APs right now for 42 

this is such that I would like to see you take a little bit of 43 

expense and a little bit of effort and time and contact permit 44 

holders with a coherent piece of paper explaining the catch 45 

shares and start getting some opinions from the whole industry 46 

and not just the ones of us that make these meetings. 47 

 48 
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I think Ms. Morris could tell you from our AP that Gary Jarvis 1 

and I agree on very few things in this world, but we both agree 2 

on that one and I think it would be something we would like to 3 

see you do.  Thank you very much. 4 

 5 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Nugent. 6 

 7 

MR. PEARCE:  Thank you, Mike.  The first thing, I’m glad you 8 

made the point that data collection and sector separation and 9 

catch shares are all three different discussions.  We need data 10 

for pure data purposes.  It has nothing to do with anything 11 

else.  Let’s get our numbers in and let’s get it done and I’m 12 

happy that you’re in favor of electronic reporting, because I 13 

think that’s the way for us to get our act together. 14 

 15 

With a fifty-four-day snapper season, electronically, at least 16 

we’ll have some data before that season is over and so that’s 17 

important to me.  We do have evening sessions, but it’s an open 18 

session that Roy holds once every council meeting. 19 

 20 

I am personally not against having some other session or 21 

something to hear from the average recreational fisherman, 22 

because we’re having problems understanding their needs, in 23 

particular with data collection. 24 

 25 

MR. NUGENT:  Those evening sessions are good and I don’t want to 26 

throw cold water on them, because they’re very worthwhile, but 27 

you’re not going to get people that are not used to coming up 28 

here and making comments -- You’re not going to get people 29 

sitting back there with people that know this and talk all the 30 

time and you’re not going to get them to stand up and say 31 

something, because it’s just not something that’s conducive to 32 

someone that’s unfamiliar with this process, in my opinion. 33 

 34 

MR. PEARCE:  I appreciate all your comments today. 35 

 36 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Nugent.  Pam Anderson and next up will 37 

be Captain Scott Hickman. 38 

 39 

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and council members.  40 

Thank you for allowing me the opportunity to share a few 41 

comments.  I am Pam Anderson, representing the Panama City 42 

Boatmen Association, and I’m a member of the Governmental 43 

Affairs Committee of Panama City Beach and Bay County Chambers 44 

of Commerce. 45 

 46 

You have heard from me several times that the red snapper 47 

regulations in the Gulf are causing severe negative economic 48 
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impacts in our individual businesses and our communities.  1 

You’ve heard me speak of the need for correct data and it is 2 

still very true. 3 

 4 

We need a longer season.  We should have a longer season.  We’ve 5 

been rebuilding the red snapper fishery since 2000 and it is 6 

overwhelmingly abundant, more than anyone could have imagined.  7 

Those fish that we left back in the water from 2000 to 2006 are 8 

growing up now and producing a lot more. 9 

 10 

The abundance we see is not just from the last two to three 11 

years.  These are older, larger fish, which you have said time 12 

and again that when we have the large fish, the more productive 13 

fish, we would be able to increase our annual catch limit and 14 

thus, our seasons.  Now is the time. 15 

 16 

We are in a severe economic downturn and with anyone who thinks 17 

otherwise, just look at the unemployment numbers throughout the 18 

U.S.  We do not need more unemployed.  In Bay County, the 19 

provision to take the student loans out of the private sector in 20 

the Obama care bill cost 700 jobs.  The drawdown of F15s at 21 

Tyndall Air Force Base is going to cost 800 jobs.  Our guys 22 

don’t have anywhere else to find work except what they know, 23 

which is fishing. 24 

 25 

We are working with our legislators to get you the funds you 26 

need for independent research, cooperative research, and for the 27 

MRIP program.  You have seen that in the last three years we are 28 

complying with the regulations and now we need to go to work. 29 

 30 

Bob Zales has written in his comments from CCGF that the TAC 31 

should be increased, stating we support the increase of the ABC, 32 

but highly recommend the TAC be increased to the level it could 33 

be, which is 9.26 million pounds.  We argue that the 25 percent 34 

buffer included in reducing the recommended TAC has already been 35 

included in the SEDAR stock assessment process and is not 36 

necessary to ensure the fishery continues to rebuild.  This 37 

would give us more season and more jobs. 38 

 39 

In the Reef Fish LAPP AP, the recreational private angler group 40 

had definite concerns regarding the seeming push for catch 41 

shares.  We know we need to help get data for the scientists 42 

from all the recreational sector and we want you to have correct 43 

data.  We need to do it at the least possible cost and the least 44 

possible government intrusion in our lives.  Do we have 45 

something to hide?  No.  We just don’t want to relinquish part 46 

of our freedom for something you don’t need.  There is so much 47 

insistence from some that we have a VMS on the for-hire vessels.  48 
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A VMS is not necessary on recreational boats.   1 

 2 

We support the motions of the Data Collection Committee.  We 3 

support educating the fishing public on the need for data.  I’m 4 

doing that through rotary clubs and chambers of commerce and 5 

through our business.  We support getting the public into a 6 

saltwater database, like the one we are proposing to the FWC, 7 

and an endorsement stamp for our saltwater license holders with 8 

requirements for contact information so you can use that 9 

information to collect on your surveys.  We support working with 10 

the public to require catch cards so you will get real data from 11 

them. 12 

 13 

MR. GILL:  Ms. Anderson, can you wrap it, please? 14 

 15 

MS. ANDERSON:  What we do not agree with is reducing the fleet 16 

so that some can make a better profit nor with sector separation 17 

nor catch shares.  We do not agree with many of the 18 

environmental groups whose purpose here is to reduce the fishing 19 

fleets. 20 

 21 

MR. GILL:  Ms. Anderson, I’m going to have to cut you off.  22 

You’re long past your limit.  Thank you very much.  23 

 24 

MS. ANDERSON:  All right.  Thank you. 25 

 26 

MR. GILL:  Captain Scott Hickman, to be followed by T.J. Tate. 27 

 28 

MR. HICKMAN:  Once again, good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen 29 

of the council.  Thanks again for having us.  My name is Captain 30 

Scott Hickman and I’m a charter for-hire operator here in 31 

Galveston, Texas and I’m also a manufactures representative for 32 

Stamas Yacht, the oldest family-owned boat company in the United 33 

States. 34 

 35 

First off, I wanted to say we want to keep sector separation in 36 

the ACL/AM Amendment.  We think it’s very, very important to 37 

have sector separation.  One is to get started as an 38 

accountability measure, which it makes sense to keep it in that 39 

amendment. 40 

 41 

Sitting here for the meeting the last couple of days, I wanted 42 

to say thank you to the council and Harlon Pearce for working so 43 

hard on bringing this forward to push the data and electronic 44 

logbooks on our charterboats and we want to support that and we 45 

want to get that done as fast as possible.  We would like to 46 

have it done by the end of 2011. 47 

 48 
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It can provide a lot of important things and another thing is to 1 

address all of these latent permits.  We want to know who is 2 

really fishing in this fishery and that’s another thing that by 3 

pushing this through quickly and getting that done is we can 4 

identify these permits, which will help us with our computer 5 

models and such in this fishery, knowing how many people are 6 

actually fishing for red snapper in the charter for-hire 7 

industry. 8 

 9 

I support the red drum harvest in federal waters.  I think with 10 

the shortened snapper season, just like running the amberjack at 11 

a different time than snapper season, anything the charter for-12 

hire industry can get that will help us get our boats on the 13 

water and pay for our slips and pay for boat maintenance and pay 14 

for upkeep and feed our families.  We need those boats to be on 15 

the water and so anything you can give us like that, that will 16 

really help. 17 

 18 

Along with what he’s talking about with the electronic logbooks, 19 

I see a lot of value in having a VMS system on all the 20 

charterboats, to be able to validate that those boats are 21 

actually fishing and that somebody is just not messing with 22 

their electronic logbooks or pushing in data when they’re 23 

fishing or not fishing. 24 

 25 

I know that the VMS pool has plenty of money.  We can put these 26 

on all these boats and it would be a good start.  I also do 27 

support catch shares, at least exploring catch shares in the 28 

charter for-hire industry.  That’s all I’ve got. 29 

 30 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Hickman.  T.J. Tate, to be followed by 31 

Buddy Guindon. 32 

 33 

MS. T.J. TATE:  T.J. Tate and I’m the Executive Director of the 34 

Reef Fish Shareholder’s Alliance.  The first thing I want to say 35 

is that IFQs are working.  The IFQ programs that the Gulf 36 

Council and NMFS have implemented for red snapper, grouper, and 37 

tilefish are working. 38 

 39 

Within a few years of experiencing the red snapper now, we know 40 

that the fishery is meeting its biological and economic goals 41 

for the first time in decades.  IFQs allow managers and industry 42 

to readily adapt to the new requirements of the annual catch 43 

limits and the IFQ management system itself is an effective AM. 44 

 45 

We have not forgotten the days when we had to struggle to adjust 46 

to new catch levels with rising minimum size limits, trip 47 

limits, and closed seasons.  Our businesses, family, and fish 48 
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stocks are thankful to be past those struggles and regulatory 1 

conflicts and economic and environmental hardship of those days. 2 

 3 

Within Amendment 32, it is putting ACLs and AMs in place for red 4 

and gag grouper and creating a rebuilding plan for gag grouper.  5 

We understand that this process is in the early phase and it’s 6 

intended to list the possible measures that may ultimately be 7 

adopted by the council.  We would like to offer a few 8 

recommendations. 9 

 10 

It is important to remember that IFQs are the fishery’s 11 

accountability measure.  Under IFQs, regulations that force 12 

discarding are reduced and removed, such as size limits and 13 

closed seasons, and fishermen have incentives to balance their 14 

allocation with their catch.  Given the expected gag quotas for 15 

the coming years, fishermen are already working on ways to 16 

address discards and improve targeting of red and other 17 

groupers. 18 

 19 

We do not support additional regulations for the council to try 20 

to balance the landings or reduce catches of gag, including time 21 

and area closures, like those described in Section 2.8, Action 22 

8, Time and Area Closures, if applied to the commercial fishery, 23 

but rather we support regulations that let the fishermen do this 24 

as a matter of their business operations and hold each 25 

accountable. 26 

 27 

While IFQs are drastically reducing bycatch in our reef fish 28 

fisheries, the Alliance goal is to work towards zero discards 29 

and 100 percent accountability.  We know that some people have 30 

not yet adjusted to this new system and continue to discard 31 

fish.  However, most fishermen are complying. 32 

 33 

Given the opportunity presented in Amendment 32, we recommend 34 

the council add a suboption to current Alternative 3a under 2.6, 35 

Action 6.1, which proposes to establish video monitoring systems 36 

for commercial reef fish vessels to identify areas with high gag 37 

bycatch.  We request that the council add a suboption b in this 38 

section that is to establish video monitoring systems and use it 39 

to ensure that gag and all fish caught is counted toward 40 

individual quota shares and allocations. 41 

 42 

We believe that operating under an IFQ system has established 43 

accountability measures and that the commercial sector should 44 

not share the burden of recreational overharvest of the ACL.  We 45 

do support payback provisions for both the commercial and 46 

recreational sectors.  No sector should be penalized for 47 

another’s overharvest. 48 
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 1 

MR. GILL:  T.J., could you wrap it up, please? 2 

 3 

MS. TATE:  Yes, sir.  We do support the use of a minimum ten 4 

hooks with a twenty-foot backbone to be added into the buoy gear 5 

that we displayed at the roundtable. 6 

 7 

MR. GILL:  T.J., I’m going to have to cut you off.  Thank you 8 

very much.  Do we have questions? 9 

 10 

MS. MORRIS:  T.J., did you -- I want to clarify that you said 11 

that your organization is opposed to any seasonal closures, even 12 

if those are designed to protect male gags and gag spawning 13 

aggregations?  Is that what you said? 14 

 15 

MS. TATE:  That is correct. 16 

 17 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I have two questions.  Are you opposed to the 18 

time/area closures or is your organization opposed to the 19 

increased time/area closures that this council is talking about? 20 

 21 

MS. TATE:  Increased time/area closures. 22 

 23 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Okay, because to me, that’s definitely a 24 

difference.  The other question is has your organization priced 25 

the cost of these video monitoring cameras versus observers? 26 

 27 

MS. TATE:  No, ma’am, we have not.  We would be happy to do so. 28 

 29 

DR. CRABTREE:  This gets a little back to Kay’s and it’s 30 

probably hard for you to answer, since you haven’t really priced 31 

it out, but are the fishermen willing to pay the cost of the 32 

video cameras that go on their vessels?  I won’t put you on the 33 

spot, because that’s something you all need to talk about. 34 

 35 

MS. TATE:  That’s something we can definitely scope out, 36 

pricing, and respond to that at a later date.  I’m not going to 37 

say that they will or they may chop my head off. 38 

 39 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’ll ask you again the next time around. 40 

 41 

MS. TATE:  Fair enough. 42 

 43 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thank you, T.J., for coming and your testimony.  44 

Just real quick, it looked like you had some other 45 

recommendations.  Do you have the whole list of recommendations 46 

in writing that you can send to us? 47 

 48 
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MS. TATE:  Yes, sir, I do and I will submit them. 1 

 2 

MR. GREENE:  I’m just making sure I heard you correctly, T.J., 3 

and thanks for coming.  You’re wanting to put a video monitoring 4 

system onboard to make sure that all fish caught are being used 5 

for harvest and could you expand on that for just a minute, 6 

please? 7 

 8 

MS. TATE:  I can’t hear you, Johnny.  Could you speak up a 9 

little? 10 

 11 

MR. GREENE:  In your comment, you said that you wanted to go 12 

with a video monitoring system onboard all vessels to make sure 13 

that all fish being caught are used for harvest.  Could you 14 

elaborate on that for just a little bit, please? 15 

 16 

MS. TATE:  We just want to ensure what’s actually being caught 17 

is counted towards individual quota shares and allocation and 18 

the video monitoring system is a way to implement that. 19 

 20 

MR. GREENE:  There could be a situation where someone has 21 

allocation of fish and they’re not using them and this video 22 

monitoring system would help with that problem? 23 

 24 

MS. TATE:  That is correct. 25 

 26 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I need a little more clarification.  When you say 27 

they’re not using them -- 28 

 29 

MS. TATE:  Not using what? 30 

 31 

MS. WILLIAMS:  The coupons or the fish.  You’re saying that 32 

they’re possibly throwing the fish back because they want to 33 

hold on to their coupons to fish later?  When you’re saying used 34 

for harvest -- I know there’s been some discussion about how do 35 

we stop people that has the IFQ coupons that if they’re out 36 

there and they’re fishing and they hear, well, we’re not paying 37 

very much for that particular fish right now -- We don’t want 38 

them throwing those fish back to save their coupons for 39 

something in the future to use and is that what you’re talking 40 

about as far as the video monitoring? 41 

 42 

MS. TATE:  To stop the high grading?  Is that what you’re 43 

referring to? 44 

 45 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 46 

 47 

MS. TATE:  We definitely want to stop the high grading and if 48 
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the video monitoring system can do that -- I don’t think that 1 

was my intent by what I wrote here. 2 

 3 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Explain it to me. 4 

 5 

MS. TATE:  I wrote this at midnight and so -- We just want to be 6 

able to use the video monitoring system as a way to ensure 7 

accountability.  That’s our main goal. 8 

 9 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Ms. Tate.  Next up is Buddy Guindon, to be 10 

followed by Vicki Cornish. 11 

 12 

MR. BUDDY GUINDON:  My name is Buddy Guindon and I’m a 13 

commercial fisherman.  I own a fish house here in Galveston and 14 

I’m the treasurer of the Reef Fish Shareholder’s Alliance.  I 15 

would like to speak -- After T.J., she’s covered a lot of good 16 

points.  I’ll let you know that our IFQ system is working 17 

wonderfully in my business. 18 

 19 

We’ve been able to supply fresh fish all year-around for the 20 

past three years and that’s a great thing.  We would like to see 21 

a time when we had zero discards in the Gulf of Mexico and that 22 

would ensure 100 percent accountability and the way to 23 

accomplish that is through video monitoring. 24 

 25 

Once you have a system in place that forces a fisherman to go 26 

back to work and decide how to avoid certain species, I’m sure 27 

you’ll see it take place.  You won’t have the problems with 28 

interactions with gag groupers and such species, because 29 

fishermen will figure out ways to catch fish and not interact 30 

with them if they’re given the opportunity to use gear that will 31 

address those fish. 32 

 33 

That’s one of the things we really need to work on in council, 34 

is allowing fishermen to tell you what gear will work and then 35 

let’s see if it’s going to hurt those turtles, so we can get out 36 

there and catch these fish, regardless of what system we’re 37 

using. 38 

 39 

I support the sector separation in the recreational fishery, 40 

purely for accountability measures.  We can get them in place 41 

faster if we can get those two sections separated out.  I think 42 

that the charter for-hire industry faces a loss in market share 43 

because of unrestricted growth in the private recreational. 44 

 45 

The Reef Fish Shareholder’s Alliance would like to hear any 46 

comments from anyone that cares to give them about our five-year 47 

review that’s coming forward in about a year-and-a-half and we 48 



46 

 

are going to work on some of the problems that have come up in 1 

our fishery and we would like to take any and all suggestions to 2 

make sure that we cover all the bases and so we’re inviting 3 

anyone that cares to participate to step up to the plate and do 4 

that and that’s all I have. 5 

 6 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Guindon.  Next up is Vicki Cornish, to 7 

be followed by Bill Tucker. 8 

 9 

MS. VICKI CORNISH:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, today for the 10 

opportunity to provide comments on behalf of Ocean Conservancy.  11 

My comments pertain to the use of buoy gear and efforts by the 12 

council and NMFS to better define this gear. 13 

 14 

Yesterday, we heard a lot about buoy gear and how it’s currently 15 

being fished and I would like to extend my appreciation to the 16 

fishermen that provided this information to us.  From 17 

discussions with fishermen and with NMFS staff, it’s clear that 18 

buoy gear is currently being fished in a number of different 19 

ways to target red grouper and other reef fish species in the 20 

eastern Gulf of Mexico. 21 

 22 

We support efforts by NMFS and the council to refine the 23 

definition of buoy gear to put a limit on the number of hooks 24 

and the weight on the line as well as restrictions on the type 25 

and length of line that can be used, consistent with its 26 

classification as vertical gear.  We also recommend limiting the 27 

number of rigs that can be used by each vessel. 28 

 29 

This clarification would ensure consistency between what was 30 

analyzed in the biological opinion on Amendment 31 and how the 31 

gear is actually being fished.  NMFS noted in the biological 32 

opinion that impacts to sea turtles from buoy gear were likely 33 

to be less than traditional longline gear, because buoy gear was 34 

at the time being used only infrequently and because any sea 35 

turtle that might be caught on this gear would presumably be 36 

able to reach the surface because of the relatively light weight 37 

of the gear. 38 

 39 

However, as was predicted in the biological opinion, fishermen 40 

are now interested in expanding the use of this gear and even 41 

modifying how it is fished in the reef fish fishery because of 42 

current and pending restrictions on the use of longline gear, 43 

restrictions put in place to protect sea turtles. 44 

 45 

It’s not clear to me how this expanded use of buoy gear will be 46 

handled by NMFS, both in the allocation of observer days and in 47 

the extrapolation of fishing effort, as currently logbooks do 48 
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not distinguish this type of gear.  Therefore, we recommend that 1 

the council consider any expanded or modified use of this gear 2 

in the reef fish fishery as a change in how the fishery is 3 

currently being prosecuted. 4 

 5 

Any significant increase in buoy gear or modification in how 6 

buoy gear is being fished could potentially impact loggerhead 7 

sea turtles and other ESA-listed species and their habitat in 8 

ways not previously considered, thereby requiring reinitiation 9 

of consultation under Section 7 of the ESA. 10 

 11 

As was noted earlier this morning by Dr. Crabtree, the northwest 12 

Atlantic population of loggerhead sea turtles was recently 13 

proposed to be listed as endangered under the ESA, signifying 14 

the vulnerable status of this species. 15 

 16 

As the eastern Gulf of Mexico is an important foraging and 17 

nesting area for loggerhead sea turtles, we strongly urge the 18 

council and NMFS to continue to take whatever steps are 19 

necessary to ensure the recovery and survival of sea turtles in 20 

the Gulf of Mexico.  Thank you. 21 

 22 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Ms. Cornish. 23 

 24 

MR. SAPP:  Thanks, Vicki.  My question is about timing.  All of 25 

this is new to us.  I understand that the gear that we didn’t 26 

anticipate is out there in the water fishing and we don’t know 27 

what the bad effects of it might be as far as loggerhead turtle 28 

interactions.  Do you want to see the council move quickly and 29 

actually do something at this council meeting or would you 30 

rather see us have a little bit more time to digest what the 31 

problem is and get input from industry and get input from the 32 

other environmental groups? 33 

 34 

MS. CORNISH:  Thank you for that question.  I would recommend 35 

that the council move quickly to clarify the definition of buoy 36 

gear at this meeting if possible and then to investigate how the 37 

possible expansion and/or modification of this gear as it’s 38 

currently being fished, as we heard from some of the fishermen, 39 

may be impacting sea turtles over the long run, making sure that 40 

the way that we allocate observer data and how we extrapolate 41 

fishing effort is currently being handled in a way that 42 

recognizes that buoy gear may be a different gear type and that 43 

there may be variations actually in how that buoy gear is 44 

currently being fished. 45 

 46 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Ms. Cornish.  Next up is Bill Tucker and 47 

after Bill is done with his comments, we will recess for lunch 48 
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until 1:30 and then reopen the public comment period at 1:30. 1 

 2 

MR. BILL TUCKER:  I’m Bill Tucker and I’m a commercial fisherman 3 

out of Clearwater, Florida.  I’m also the secretary of the Reef 4 

Fish Shareholder’s Alliance.  I have a few comments on our IFQ 5 

fisheries. 6 

 7 

They’re very effective and we’ve managed to eliminate closed 8 

seasons in these fisheries and for years, we talked about the 9 

down side of closed seasons and it’s nice that we have open 10 

seasons in some of these fisheries on the commercial side and I 11 

think we need to learn to figure a way to take what we’ve 12 

learned in the commercial side and apply it to the recreational 13 

side, so that we can have year-round seasons there. 14 

 15 

I think the sector separation idea is certainly worth looking 16 

at.  At least that way a portion of the recreational sector will 17 

have some of the same benefits that we have in the commercial 18 

sector, while at the same time improving the accountability in a 19 

portion of the recreational sector. 20 

 21 

I have some thoughts on the forty break and the cameras and IFQs 22 

and the five-year review and while these systems are very 23 

effective, we still have fine tuning to do.  We have a five-year 24 

review coming up and it’s commonly discussed that we need more 25 

allocation to deal with bycatch in the red snapper fishery. 26 

 27 

We need to keep in mind that after five years, the way the IFQ 28 

is currently written, it opens up these shares to anyone in the 29 

country.  What that will effectively do is take shares out of 30 

the commercial fishery.  We need more in the commercial fishery 31 

to deal with the bycatch that we have. 32 

 33 

Anything that’s designed in to take shares away from the 34 

commercial fishery just doesn’t make any sense from a manager’s 35 

standpoint that I see.  I think that’s one of the considerations 36 

and I think we need to start talking about this stuff before the 37 

five-year hits us. 38 

 39 

We have some high grading issues that we would like to 40 

eliminate.  We’re working on this stuff, but we do need to fine 41 

tune these IFQs a little bit.  I kind of feel like the -- I’m 42 

going to stop right there. 43 

 44 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Bill.  I’ve been where you are and 45 

lost my train of thought and so that’s fine. 46 

 47 

MR. TUCKER:  I would have loved to have been the one right after 48 
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the lunch break. 1 

 2 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Do you want to come back after lunch? 3 

 4 

MR. TUCKER:  I’m not so sure I’m saying that. 5 

 6 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’ll talk to you away from there and thank you. 7 

 8 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Tucker.  As I mentioned, we’ll recess 9 

now and we’ll reconvene at 1:30 and we’ll start the open public 10 

comment period at 1:30.  Thank you all. 11 

 12 

(Whereupon, the meeting recessed at 12:00 p.m., April 14, 2010.) 13 

 14 

- - - 15 

 16 

WEDNESDAY AFTERNOON SESSION 17 

 18 

- - - 19 

 20 

The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 21 

Council reconvened in the Galleon Ballroom of the Galveston 22 

Convention Center, Galveston, Texas, Wednesday afternoon, April 23 

14, 2010, and was called to order at 1:30 p.m. by Chairman Bob 24 

Shipp. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We still have a lot of public testimony to get 27 

through and so if you would, please take your seats and check 28 

your cell phones, put them in the off position.  The first 29 

person to testify is Tres Atkins, followed by Tom Hilton. 30 

 31 

MR. TRES ATKINS:  My name is Tres Atkins and I’m a charter 32 

fisherman in Galveston, Texas.  I also am the owner and operator 33 

of the Fishing Vessel Lauren Grace, a commercial bandit boat 34 

here in Galveston.  I would like to thank you for the 35 

opportunity to speak today. 36 

 37 

First of all, sector separation needs to be in the ACL/AM 38 

Amendment.  I would also like to thank council member Harlon for 39 

pushing the electronic logbooks.  This fishery needs 40 

accountability and electronic logbooks are one of the tools that 41 

we need to get us there. 42 

 43 

I feel that we need to design an application that is 44 

enforceable, a system that would allow law enforcement to board 45 

my vessel and within minutes verify that I have declared, 46 

received confirmation, and which fishery I am participating in. 47 

 48 
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We would like to have logbooks sooner rather than later.  2012, 1 

in my opinion, is not a sound business strategy.  If possible, I 2 

would like to invite Matt Clark with NOAA Fisheries Law 3 

Enforcement to speak for a moment if that’s possible.  He has 4 

some really good ideas that could help us push this thing 5 

through. 6 

 7 

As far as the best ways to validate, I think that with a little 8 

bit of thought or forethought, you might say, this particular 9 

application could be utilized without a lot of cost or time.  10 

Thank you. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, sir.  No questions?  Okay.  Tom 13 

Hilton, followed by Glen Brooks. 14 

 15 

MR. TOM HILTON:  Good afternoon.  I’m Tom Hilton, a recreational 16 

fisherman here in Texas.  I’m here to strictly go on the record 17 

as I and a large majority of fishermen do not believe that NMFS 18 

really cares what we have to say and that’s a problem. 19 

 20 

99 percent of all recreational fishermen believe snapper limits 21 

are set more by politics than science and that’s a problem.  22 

That’s the reality of what NMFS has created, based on twenty 23 

years worth of fisheries management that has now resulted in the 24 

shortest red snapper season in history and this is in the midst 25 

of a population explosion of red snapper out there. 26 

 27 

Now you are poised to follow the politically-correct course of 28 

implementing sector separation or catch shares in the Gulf 29 

recreational fisheries when neither one are the answer.  If you 30 

go to the NOAA catch shares site, you’ll see that over 80 31 

percent of the respondents are adamantly against sector 32 

separation and catch shares, as are most everyone I know, 33 

including the Gulf States governors. 34 

 35 

Sector separation and catch shares are not required by Magnuson, 36 

congressional mandates, or any other legal instrument.  They are 37 

simply being pushed by EDF in an effort to privatize our public 38 

resource so that a select few can profit from what we all own.  39 

EDF’s David Festa has advised investors that catch shares could 40 

produce profits of 400 percent or more and that’s the real story 41 

here. 42 

 43 

We fished under a six-month season, four fish limit, 9.12 44 

million pound TAC for several years and to give NMFS credit, it 45 

actually seemed to work well, but since the recreational TAC was 46 

tied directly to the shrimper bycatch, our limits and seasons 47 

were cut back drastically to mirror the mandated 74 percent 48 
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reduction in bycatch. 1 

 2 

Now that the shrimper bycatch has been reduced by about 80 3 

percent, the red snapper are no longer undergoing overfishing 4 

and our TAC is still tied directly to that shrimper bycatch and 5 

then why aren’t we talking about returning to that previous six-6 

month season scenario? 7 

 8 

Instead, you all are talking about cutting our bag limit down to 9 

one fish and this seems to be a one-way street and a dead-end 10 

one at that.  Here’s a graphic that shows the success that the 11 

Alabama reefing program had in playing a significant role in 12 

helping NMFS to rebuild the Gulf red snapper fishery. 13 

 14 

It’s amazing that such a small area could be responsible for 15 

almost half of all the red snapper caught in the Gulf.  However, 16 

the two-month seasons and two fish limits have all but destroyed 17 

this artificial reefing initiative and with it, the most 18 

effective tool for rebuilding the fish stocks that this Gulf has 19 

ever seen. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Tom, you have to wrap it up.  Your time is up. 22 

 23 

MR. HILTON:  You don’t need to be a fisheries scientist to see 24 

that if you are really interested in rebuilding the snapper 25 

population, forget catch shares and forget sector separation and 26 

forget the mumbo-jumbo and get down to basics and provide 27 

viable, countable data on the number of fishermen, the number of 28 

fish swimming out there in addition to implementing a Gulf-wide 29 

artificial reefing initiative. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Okay, Tom, we’ve got to do it.  Harlon, did you 32 

have a question? 33 

 34 

MR. PEARCE:  Tom, thanks for your presentation.  At the end of 35 

it, you said you needed viable, countable data for the average 36 

fisherman and how would you go about doing that if you had the 37 

chance? 38 

 39 

MR. HILTON:  I believe, if you look in the latter part of our 40 

packet, you’ll see that there should be a state-issued 41 

endorsement for snapper across the five states.  That will 42 

identify 100 percent of the recreational snapper fishermen, 43 

whether they’re fishing on private recs, on charter for-hire 44 

boats, or on headboats.  I want every single person out there 45 

fishing for snapper to have an endorsement.  Use the monies from 46 

that endorsement to obtain the data on the catch that the 47 

recreational fishermen are catching. 48 
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 1 

MR. PEARCE:  I want to finish up with that.  Would there be a 2 

reporting requirement with that endorsement? 3 

 4 

MR. HILTON:  I’m open to whatever is feasible and acceptable to 5 

the council.  I think you have to take into reality the average 6 

Joe Blow fisherman going out and what he’s going to be able to 7 

do that’s viable for you guys to consider to be actual data.  8 

Yes, we encourage any kind of data reporting on the catch. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Tom.  Glen Brooks, followed by Billy 11 

Wright. 12 

 13 

MR. GLEN BROOKS:  Good afternoon, council and council staff and 14 

chair.  I appreciate this opportunity to address some of our 15 

issues with you today.  My name is Glen Brooks and I’m with the 16 

Gulf Fishermen’s Association and I also sit on the Board of 17 

Directors of the Reef Fish Shareholder’s Alliance. 18 

 19 

I’m here speaking today to ask you to define buoy gear for our 20 

fishery.  I think most of you have seen what we brought in 21 

yesterday to the Q&A and got a drawing of what we have in mind 22 

for our buoy gear.  I don’t think we want to standardize the 23 

gear.  What we need is limits, whether it be fifteen hooks or 24 

twenty hooks or forty hooks. 25 

 26 

All fishermen don’t fish the same way and if the limits were 27 

thirty or forty hooks, most wouldn’t use that many, but it gives 28 

flexibility to the fishermen.  It gives them their choice of 29 

what’s going to work best for them. 30 

 31 

I think we need to keep some flexibility in here so that 32 

individual fishermen can adjust their fishing technique that 33 

works best for them.  All the bandit fishermen didn’t become 34 

longliners and all the longliners didn’t go out and string 35 

twenty miles of gear, just to give you an example of how 36 

fishermen work.  That’s all I have on buoy gear. 37 

 38 

On Amendment 32, Action 1, our preferred would be Alternative 3, 39 

the seven years.  Action 3, Alternative 2, we want 40 

accountability in this fishery from all sectors.  Action 6.1, 41 

Alternative 4, set aside a portion of the gag quota to account 42 

for bycatch and maybe also Alternative 5c, no size limit, 43 

require that all gag be retained. 44 

 45 

On Action 8, Alternative 1, no action, do not create time and 46 

area closures that prohibit fishing for gag and other reef fish.  47 

We think our fishermen can put their own business plan together 48 
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with the IFQs and stay away from gags if they don’t have IFQs to 1 

catch them with.  That’s all I have and thank you. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Glen.  Questions? 4 

 5 

MR. TEEHAN:  Glen, thanks for coming over and your testimony and 6 

showing us your concept of the buoy gear.  Just a thought, and 7 

maybe this already is a requirement, but I haven’t seen it 8 

anywhere.  On the buoy -- I know that the intent is to tend 9 

these things at all times, or at least that’s what I’ve been 10 

told by the people that seem to want to use them, that they set 11 

out several of them and by the time they end setting them out 12 

that they go back and start picking up and continue in a circle. 13 

 14 

There’s folks there most of the time, but would it be reasonable 15 

to have some sort of identification, reef fish endorsement 16 

number or something, on these buoys, in case some of them get 17 

away from you guys? 18 

 19 

MR. BROOKS:  It would probably be a good idea and maybe vessel 20 

documentation number would be a requirement.  That would be 21 

simple enough. 22 

 23 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Glen, for coming.  You’ve echoed the 24 

recommendation by the Alliance and others for no time and area 25 

closures in Amendment 32.  If that meant, because of the 26 

severity of the problem that Andy outlined on Monday, no direct 27 

fishing for gag and gag would be closed, would you still 28 

recommend that? 29 

 30 

MR. BROOKS:  I would regretfully say we missed all the good 31 

presentations the other day.  We were tied up in other meetings 32 

and so your question is whether we would have no directed catch 33 

of gag grouper? 34 

 35 

MR. GILL:  It’s definitely one possibility.  The severity of the 36 

problem is that we’ve got to do a bunch of mean and nasty things 37 

in order to accommodate the discard problem with a very low TAC 38 

and one of those potential measures in time/area closures, but 39 

if you’re saying that you don’t want any of that, the other 40 

options that we have may not be sufficient to achieve that TAC, 41 

given the discards, so that says the only real option is no 42 

directed harvest of gag in the commercial sector. 43 

 44 

MR. BROOKS:  I guess we would probably have to get back together 45 

out here and discuss it some more and get back with you on that, 46 

Bob. 47 

 48 
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MR. HENDRIX:  Thank you for your comments today, Glen.  Glen, do 1 

you think that ten hooks per rig on this buoy rig and eight rigs 2 

per vessel would be adequate for you all, what you and your 3 

fishing association members need? 4 

 5 

MR. BROOKS:  No, I don’t think that would be sufficient for 6 

everybody.  Some of my guys are running as little as eight 7 

hooks, but they’re running as many as thirty buoys and we’ve got 8 

other fishermen that are running more hooks and less buoys.  I 9 

guess what we’re looking for is a broad range, so that each 10 

individual fisherman can devise their own technique. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Glen.  Next is Billy Wright, 13 

followed by Bill Cochrane.  I would like to remind everybody 14 

that we have a lot of cards and we need to make sure everybody 15 

gets a chance to speak and so we may be running quite late this 16 

evening.  Again, I would ask the speakers to be ready.  I’ll 17 

give both names.  There’s an on-deck chair.  Is Billy Wright not 18 

here?  Bill Cochrane, followed by Holly Binns. 19 

 20 

MR. BILL COCHRANE:  My name is Bill Cochrane.  Thanks for 21 

allowing me some time to speak my piece.  I’m from Galveston and 22 

I’ve been fishing offshore only for about forty years in all 23 

three areas, commercial, charter for-hire, and recreational. 24 

 25 

I think we all agree that over the years the formulas and 26 

surveys and all the stuff that’s been going on really hasn’t 27 

helped with sustaining the fisheries, but luckily, we’re now 28 

able to collect hard data, at least through the commercial 29 

sector with the IFQ catch share system that’s in place, which 30 

not only gives a 100 percent accountability system, but also 31 

gives law enforcement a much better opportunity to check the 32 

boats and know where they are.   33 

 34 

It’s kind of a complicated system that’s in place, but I 35 

understand we have Matt Clark with the federal fishery 36 

enforcement here and I would really at this time like to 37 

respectfully ask you all to let him speak at some time today 38 

before this is over, because he can explain the accountability 39 

much better than I can. 40 

 41 

My son is a full-time commercial snapper fisherman and I’m a 42 

part-time.  Obviously the recreational charter for-hire 43 

fishermen have seen the good things that have happened to the 44 

commercial fisheries because of the accountability and, of 45 

course, they want to do the same thing.  Me being a charterboat 46 

fisherman also, I can understand that, because the whole thing 47 

is about accountability. 48 
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 1 

Accountability -- If the commercial sector has accountability 2 

and the charter for-hire breaks away from the other part of the 3 

recreational, you’ve got two-thirds of the accountability and I 4 

think that if that happens the recreational fishermen, like 5 

myself and my grandson, won’t be held as accountable, because 6 

really, there’s hardly any way to hold them accountable. 7 

 8 

You can have all the fish cards you want, but you’re still on 9 

the honor system.  The only thing that I can say about the 10 

recreational accountability is that technology is going to take 11 

over, when you can report things on your GPS, your cell phone, 12 

your iPad, your onboard computer.  It will make it a lot easier, 13 

but as far as the charter for-hire, we need VMS onboard, because 14 

really and truly for the better accountability, you have to have 15 

law enforcement.  This keeps everybody honest.  16 

 17 

I just want to go on record as supporting the IFQ, catch shares, 18 

both in the charter for-hire and the commercial sector.  I think 19 

once we have a better accountability that it’s going to be a lot 20 

easier to manage the fishery.  Thank you. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bill.  Any questions?  The next 23 

speaker is Holly Binns, followed by Dr. Tony Sappington. 24 

 25 

MS. HOLLY BINNS:  Good morning, Chairman Shipp and council 26 

members.  My name is Holly Binns and I manage the Campaign to 27 

End Overfishing in the Southeast for the Pew Environment Group, 28 

which is the conservation arm of the Pew Charitable Trust.  I 29 

appreciate the opportunity to share some thoughts with you on 30 

Amendment 32 and the Generic ACL Amendment. 31 

 32 

In Action 2 in Amendment 32, we understand the reasoning behind 33 

removing the ACL control rule from the document and instead 34 

incorporating it as part of the Generic ACL Amendment.  However, 35 

in the absence of control rules, we do urge the council to be 36 

more explicit in describing how the remaining alternatives in 37 

Action 2 account for management uncertainty or to add 38 

alternatives that incorporate elements of that ACL control rule 39 

to account for management uncertainty. 40 

 41 

Given the severe depletion of the gag grouper population and the 42 

high fishing rates, we also strongly encourage the council to 43 

move forward with an interim rule to put in place some 44 

protections for gag by January of 2011. 45 

 46 

Regarding the Generic ACL Amendment, we are not opposed to 47 

options in Action 1 to transfer management authority for 48 
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yellowtail and mutton snapper, Nassau grouper, and octocorals to 1 

the South Atlantic Council and the transfer of management for 2 

stone crabs to the State of Florida, provided that their 3 

authority extends into the Gulf for these species. 4 

 5 

In Action 2, we would support removing from consideration the 6 

designation of stocks as ecosystem component species.  I think 7 

National Standard 1 Guidelines are pretty explicit about what 8 

type of species qualify for this category and there don’t seem 9 

to be any species in the Gulf Council’s FMPs that meet this 10 

criteria.  It would perhaps be more appropriate to include less 11 

frequently encountered species in species complexes so that 12 

management authority is retained. 13 

 14 

While we’re talking about that, there are some species, 15 

including white grunt, black sea bass, red porgy, and others, 16 

that are heavily targeted in federal waters, but are not 17 

currently in an FMP in the Gulf.  Relatively little is known 18 

about the status of some of these stocks and so we would urge 19 

you to consider including them in an FMP, to better monitor and 20 

assess their fisheries. 21 

 22 

We do support the use of the ABC control rules once they’re 23 

finalized and we would suggest you urge staff to better address 24 

how setting ABCs at the stock complex level would be done and 25 

then as the Generic Amendment moves forward, we would encourage 26 

the council to apply these control rules to all species going 27 

forward. 28 

 29 

I just wanted to say that we appreciate the work that was done 30 

on electronic monitoring and data collection in the Data 31 

Collection Committee and support the motions that were put 32 

forward the other day and so thanks. 33 

 34 

MR. PERRET:  Holly, did I understand you to say that your group 35 

supports the giving to the State of Florida stone crab 36 

management with some certain stipulations? 37 

 38 

MS. BINNS:  Yes, I think as long as their authority to manage 39 

will extend into the Gulf and so essentially that they’re not 40 

sort of in no-man’s land with no management authority, then 41 

that’s fine. 42 

 43 

MR. PERRET:  Does that mean your group is not supportive of 44 

doing the same thing with spiny lobster? 45 

 46 

MS. BINNS:  No, not necessarily.  I think in general as long as 47 

there’s some mechanism for management authority, I think we’re 48 
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mostly okay.  I can circle back and let you know for sure and 1 

I’ll give you our comments in writing as well. 2 

 3 

MR. GILL:  Holly, I think Corky was going down the same path I 4 

was and that is you picked up and endorsed on the alternative 5 

that we added relative to the transfer to the South Atlantic, 6 

but there was three other alternatives there and I think what I 7 

heard you say was that you’re really looking to make sure 8 

management isn’t abdicated and you functionally really don’t 9 

care which organization does it, as long as someone does it, as 10 

opposed to supporting only that alternative which was the South 11 

Atlantic.  Is that correct or is that incorrect? 12 

 13 

MS. BINNS:  I think for species -- For stone crab, if they’re 14 

mostly or almost primarily caught in state waters, then 15 

transferring that authority to the State of Florida, we’re okay 16 

with it.  I think if there are species that are encountered or 17 

caught in federal waters, then we would prefer that management 18 

authority either be retained by the Gulf Council or transferred 19 

to the South Atlantic Council, so those federal protections 20 

would apply.  Is that clear? 21 

 22 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thanks, Holly.  Just real quick, I just want to 23 

clarify that.  If it does go to the State of Florida and neither 24 

one of the councils have it, the State of Florida can still 25 

extend its regulations out into the EEZ.  However, it only would 26 

affect Florida-registered vessels or vessels that are landing in 27 

the State of Florida.  There is the possibility that folks could 28 

come in from some other state and harvest off of Florida in the 29 

EEZ and take it back to their state and have no regulations 30 

applied if Florida was the sole management. 31 

 32 

MS. BINNS:  To be clear, the species that are practically only 33 

encountered in Florida state waters, we’re okay with the 34 

transfer to state management.  Other species that are 35 

encountered with sort of any real frequency outside of state 36 

waters, we think that the management authority should stay with 37 

the Gulf Council or be transferred to the South Atlantic 38 

Council. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Dr. Sappington.  He may have gotten 41 

called out.  Mare Wilkinson, followed by Mike Jennings. 42 

 43 

DR. TONY SAPPINGTON:  I do charters for-hire part-time and first 44 

of all, I think that we definitely need the separation.  Sector 45 

separation needs to be in the ACL and AM Amendment.  I would 46 

like to thank the council and Harlon for pushing for the 47 

electronic book.  Our fishery needs to be more accountable and 48 
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will be with that type of monitoring and thank you for letting 1 

me sneak in early and get out.  Thank you. 2 

 3 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, sir.  Next up is Mark Wilkinson, followed 4 

by Mike Jennings. 5 

 6 

MR. MARK WILKINSON:  I’m Captain Mark Wilkinson, owner of Blue 7 

Streak Fishing Charters in Freeport, Texas.  I’m here to make 8 

public comment that I’m in favor of sector separation for the 9 

for-hire sector.  Accountability should be from the use of 10 

vessel monitoring systems, a telephone or web-based reporting 11 

system, and with the use of electronic logbooks. 12 

 13 

We’re concerned about the declining fishing days.  The last 14 

twelve years, we’re gone from a year-round fishery to this year 15 

it will be the shortest ever, around fifty-five days.  We can 16 

stop losing the days be separating the for-hire from the private 17 

recreational sector and making sure we fish within our limit.  18 

Sector separation needs to be in the ACL/AM Amendment. 19 

 20 

I want to thank the council and Harlon for pushing the 21 

electronic logbook.  The fishery needs the accountability and 22 

electronic logbooks are one of the tools that we need to get us 23 

there.  Also, we would like for the amberjack season to be 24 

closed for May and June.  Thank you. 25 

 26 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mark.  Next up is Mike Jennings, to be 27 

followed by Robert Peel.   28 

 29 

MR. MIKE JENNINGS:  I’m Captain Mike Jennings with Cowboy 30 

Charters out of Freeport, Texas.  I want to thank you all for 31 

letting me speak today.  We’ve all sat up here and you’ve heard 32 

over and over again how short our seasons are and we’re all 33 

aware of that and we’ve pushed the charter for-hire industry 34 

into what’s become a less than sixty-day derby season and it’s 35 

going to be increasingly difficult for any of us to make a 36 

living in the derby-style fishery and I think we’ve got some 37 

things in front of the council right now that will help us kind 38 

of reverse that trend. 39 

 40 

The two that come to my mind are the sector separation issue 41 

that the council seems to be moving forward with and the 42 

electronic logbooks and personally, we look at those two aspects 43 

and I find a real strong correlation between the two and that is 44 

that we’ve got a limited-entry fishery here and we take that 45 

fishery and we give it its own separate ACL and we implement 46 

that electronic logbook. 47 

 48 
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If it’s real-time reporting, we can do a lot better job of not 1 

overfishing our ACL compared to the way that we’re doing it 2 

today.  I would like to see the council revisit the motion 3 

yesterday on moving that deadline up to 2011 versus 2012 on the 4 

implementation of these logbooks.  We need them now.  We’ve been 5 

talking about this for a long time and we’ve drug our feet and 6 

drug our feet and it’s time to make some moves on that. 7 

 8 

I also would like to caution the council on using everything 9 

that we have in our power as far as validating that information 10 

when we start that.  We don’t want to end up, like I said 11 

yesterday in the Q&A, like they did in Alaska, where years of 12 

logbooks were tossed out because of fraud and we’ve got to stay 13 

on top of that. 14 

 15 

The amberjack season, I’m kind of -- I didn’t touch on that and 16 

I didn’t fill out a card for that earlier, but I’m kind of 17 

tossed on that one.  I see the closure during the red snapper 18 

season, but what concerns me is the access for the private 19 

recreational on that amberjack fishery. 20 

 21 

June is a big time when kids are out of school.  It’s a big time 22 

for us because we book trips when the kids are out of school, 23 

but the guy that owns a private boat -- If we can see some 24 

advantage to extending our season in the fall with a March, 25 

April, and May closure, I think that would be more conducive to 26 

not only the charter for-hire industry, but the private 27 

recreational as well. 28 

 29 

The one last subject that I would like to touch on is there’s 30 

been some talk about allocation for the charter for-hire 31 

industry and with sector separation.  NMFS has got piles and 32 

piles and piles of data and we use that data to manage this 33 

fishery.  Now we either accept that data and we use it to manage 34 

this fishery or we throw it all out and we start over. 35 

 36 

The historical catch in the charter for-hire industry, through 37 

our own data and through all the graphs that were created for 38 

the Red Snapper AP and so forth and so on, depending on what 39 

years you look at, shows anywhere from 57 to 62 percent.  It’s 40 

the data we’ve got laying right here on the table.   41 

 42 

It’s in front of us and we use it or we throw it out or do we 43 

just pick the data we want to choose when it fits our agenda?  44 

We take the data we’ve got and we work with it and I think 45 

that’s the very first step we take if we’re going to talk 46 

allocation in the charter for-hire sector.  I guess that’s all 47 

I’ve got and want to thank you all for letting me talk. 48 
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 1 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mike.  We have some questions, Mike.   2 

 3 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Hi, Mike, and thank you.  You feel that we 4 

already have enough information without going through a whole 5 

lot of economics and trying to reallocate from sector to sector 6 

and to just look at what we have? 7 

 8 

MR. JENNINGS:  I think we have the information that’s there.  9 

Economics, I think economics could be a double-edged sword for 10 

either side.  When we plant that in there, if we’re looking at 11 

anywhere -- As I said, the bottom end of the data that we have 12 

right now shows it’s 57 percent of the red snapper are caught on 13 

charter for-hire vessels. 14 

 15 

That shows a majority right there and then you start talking 16 

about economic impact, there’s not a recreational fisherman out 17 

there that buys anywhere near the gas that goes through one of 18 

our boats.  We’re talking in the thirties and 40,000 gallons of 19 

fuel a year and the bait that we buy every year. 20 

 21 

I would be willing to suspect that I put a lot more people in 22 

local motels and local restaurants than all the private 23 

recreational anglers that you could stack in this room.  All of 24 

my -- The biggest majority of my customers are out of state and 25 

out of town and even the Houston-based customers will come down 26 

and stay in a motel to shorten their drive or because they don’t 27 

feel like driving when they go back that evening. 28 

 29 

The economic impact, if we look at that end of it, it’s 30 

something that I really hadn’t explored, but I think the data is 31 

there already to show where that split comes in the red snapper 32 

fishery. 33 

 34 

MS. MORRIS:  You were talking about the historical data on the 35 

catches and you’re probably thinking about red snapper catches, 36 

right? 37 

 38 

MR. JENNINGS:  Yes, I was speaking to red snapper. 39 

 40 

MS. MORRIS:  In the earlier options paper, we had three 41 

different time periods and one was a twenty-seven-year time 42 

period and one was a nine or ten-year time period and the other 43 

was a four-year.  Do you have a preference for one of those? 44 

 45 

MR. JENNINGS:  No and I’m going off of memory here and not 46 

having it in front of me and I think that’s -- I could look back 47 

on it and give a suggestion, but to stand here going off memory, 48 
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I don’t -- I have the broad range of numbers in my head, but 1 

what each time period came to, I don’t absolutely remember and I 2 

really don’t have an answer for you. 3 

 4 

MR. GREENE:  Just one question.  This amberjack thing, I’ve been 5 

struggling with it the last four or five days.  If grouper is 6 

closed in the spring and snapper is closed in the spring and 7 

amberjack is closed in March, April, and May and you’re in the 8 

charter business, what are you going to fish for? 9 

 10 

MR. JENNINGS:  Johnny, that’s one of the things we’ve talked 11 

about with everybody from other states and I’ve been here all 12 

week and I’m here all week long at every one of these meetings 13 

and I know that there’s a lot of regional differences.  Where 14 

you are there in Alabama, I’m sure it’s completely different. 15 

 16 

We deal with a lot of wind over here and we spend a lot of time 17 

in the springtime, once our beachfront temperature comes up, we 18 

have a very good black drum run in the springtime and our bull 19 

redfish fishery is really strong.  A few sharks start moving in. 20 

 21 

We talked about the red drum earlier today and one red drum in 22 

the EEZ and within eight to ten to twelve-mile trips that we can 23 

do in the spring -- In Texas, we can target that fish.  That’s a 24 

very strong fish for us in the springtime. 25 

 26 

I think the amberjack closure, in my mind, in the early spring 27 

is because it’s just really not an accessible fishery for us 28 

very often.  I’ve probably put, this year so far, less than ten 29 

limits of amberjack on the dock, just because I haven’t been 30 

able to access that fishery because of the distance.  It’s a 31 

sixty-five or seventy-mile run for us, one way.   32 

 33 

That’s my thoughts on it.  I’m looking at it from my aspect and 34 

if we -- I don’t have a problem, to be honest with you, with a 35 

May/June or a June/July closure, because I can target these 36 

species as the seasons come and go.   37 

 38 

I was just thinking more along the lines of the uproar that you 39 

would get from the private recreational anglers because they 40 

would see a closure during the time that the kids are out of 41 

school and we get that fair weather and they have the 42 

opportunity to fish for these things.  Kids go back to school in 43 

August and I’m still booking weekend trips, but their ability to 44 

go fishing kind of goes away. 45 

 46 

I’ve got kind of mixed emotions on this closure.  I know we’ve 47 

got to face a closure on the amberjack and I would rather face 48 
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it in the spring than I would come the end of July like I’m 1 

going to this year.  It’s going to be a mess this year.  I would 2 

whole lot rather fight that issue you’re talking about in the 3 

spring than what I’ve got to deal with this year. 4 

 5 

MR. PERRET:  A question.  The State of Texas is fortunate enough 6 

to have a nine-mile territorial limit.  Unfortunately, the three 7 

inland states, if you will, Mississippi, Louisiana, and Alabama, 8 

don’t have it.  Florida’s west coast also has a nine mile.  When 9 

or if you’re targeting red drum, what percent are you taking 10 

from three to nine miles out? 11 

 12 

MR. JENNINGS:  What percent?  I’m not following you. 13 

 14 

MR. PERRET:  What percent of red drum?  In other words, when 15 

you’re fishing for red drum, do you fish within that three to 16 

nine miles zone or are you just basically at the passes or 17 

within three miles? 18 

 19 

MR. JENNINGS:  No, a lot of those red drum in the springtime are 20 

deeper than that.  We see them -- The red snapper fishery hasn’t 21 

always been closed in the spring.  We’ve targeted red snapper 22 

this time of the year for many, many years and in that fishing 23 

red snapper, especially a structure that goes through the entire 24 

water column, like a rig, in eight to ninety or a hundred or 110 25 

feet, a lot of red -- A lot of slot size for Texas, twenty to 26 

twenty-eight-inch fish. 27 

 28 

We do hit big schools of bull reds that are incidental catches 29 

in the summertime and when we’re snapper fishing, but I see it 30 

for Texas as a species that we could easily target and it would 31 

give us something else.  Even if was one per person, it’s that 32 

opportunity and one more thing that when those guys call on the 33 

phone, like they do all of us, and say what I can catch this 34 

time of year -- 35 

 36 

MR. PERRET:  If you only had three miles, you would not have 37 

access to a lot of that red drum fishery? 38 

 39 

MR. JENNINGS:  Yes, sir, I would.  I still would. 40 

 41 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mike.  Next up is Robert Peel, followed by 42 

Charles Everts. 43 

 44 

MR. ROBERT PEEL:  My name is Robert and I’m a charterboat 45 

captain out of Port O’Connor, Texas.  Basically, you guys have 46 

pretty much heard everything that I came up here to say.  I just 47 

would like to, for the record, let it be noted that I do support 48 
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sector separation and the quicker we can get some type of 1 

instrument or something on our boat to control what everybody is 2 

needing for accountability of the fish, I think the better off 3 

we will be.  Thank you. 4 

 5 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Robert.  Charles Everts, to be followed by 6 

Steve Cunningham. 7 

 8 

MR. CHARLES EVERTS:  Thank you very much.  I’m glad to be able 9 

to appear to you all one more time.  I’ve been here many times 10 

before.  My name is Charles Everts and I want to tell you a 11 

little bit about myself.  I’m a retired Houston policeman and I 12 

worked for the Galveston County Sheriff’s Office for a number of 13 

years.  I’m a retired mayor of a coastal community here in 14 

Galveston County. 15 

 16 

I’ve fished the Gulf of Mexico since the early 1960s.  Back in 17 

the olden days, before there were limits or regulations, I sold 18 

snapper to fish houses and what have you.  I’m a two-time STAR 19 

winner in the red snapper division and if you don’t understand 20 

that, if you win one year, you can’t fish for three and if you 21 

win two years, you can’t fish for six and so I took someone else 22 

in the six-year period and let them win and so I’ve won that 23 

three times. 24 

 25 

I also take responsibility for getting snapper removed from the 26 

CCA STAR tournament, because they are a conservation-minded 27 

organization and pointed out that they were killing the big sow 28 

snappers that are your real egg layers regarding red snapper. 29 

 30 

I’m also a board member of RFA Texas.  Years ago, myself and 31 

Professor Graham took Rollie Schmitten, who then at the time was 32 

either Director or Assistant Director of National Marine 33 

Fisheries, and showed him where the big egg layers live and how 34 

they live and how they are caught, hoping that maybe the council 35 

would take action to try to protect these fish.  I read data 36 

where the Fisheries uses seven or eight or ten-pound fish to 37 

count eggs and what have you and they don’t lay 2 percent of the 38 

eggs that the twenty or thirty-pound snapper lay. 39 

 40 

I would hope that the council would consider a slot limit on red 41 

snapper.  The upper limit needs to be decided and right now, 42 

we’re at sixteen inches and I don’t understand the reason for 43 

that.  You’re increasing the mortality rate on snapper and you 44 

need to back it down like the commercial and let’s go to 45 

thirteen inches. 46 

 47 

That would also increase the length of the season.  We wouldn’t 48 
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come up with our quota so quick.  We’ve got things going so well 1 

that we’ve shut down our limits or shut down our fishing time 2 

because we’re catching bigger fish and our tonnage is right up 3 

there. 4 

 5 

I want to say this, that I am wholeheartedly against sector 6 

separation and also recreational catch shares.  I’m a real 7 

recreational fisherman.  I’m not a for-hire captain and all 8 

these people up here are and I understand they’re trying to keep 9 

their jobs.  They make money from it and I don’t.  I appreciate 10 

being able to appear before you. 11 

 12 

MR. PEARCE:  As a real recreational fisherman, how would you 13 

help us collect data from the real recreational fishermen in 14 

your area? 15 

 16 

MR. EVERTS:  I think data needs to be collected by each 17 

individual state by selling a red snapper endorsement by the 18 

state and I would rely upon the great state of Texas to collect 19 

that data, either by catch card, either by telephone or website, 20 

and I would count on the State of Texas providing that 21 

information to National Marine Fisheries and not leaving that up 22 

to National Marine Fisheries, because there’s always suspect 23 

from someone saying the numbers are skewed.  I think that we 24 

need the accountability and I think that’s the way we should do 25 

it. 26 

 27 

MR. PEARCE:  I appreciate those comments.  Thank you. 28 

 29 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I have two questions.  How would you validate the 30 

methods that you just listed, such as the catch cards or you 31 

said endorsements?  What’s the way that you think we could 32 

validate that? 33 

 34 

MR. EVERTS:  There should be a way of identifying -- There may 35 

be a number that’s on a red snapper endorsement or your fishing 36 

license should be submitted at the time that you submit what you 37 

catch. 38 

 39 

MS. WILLIAMS:  My second question is have you ever thought about 40 

what would happen if you had a season for your private 41 

recreational people, since most of those people fish when 42 

they’re not working, on the weekends, where they don’t fish 43 

seven days a week, perhaps different than what maybe the for-44 

hire sector does? 45 

 46 

MR. EVERTS:  I think that a lot of people take vacations to go 47 

fishing.  I have never entertained the idea to be restricted 48 
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that I have to fish on a weekend or certain days of the week.  I 1 

don’t think that would be acceptable. 2 

 3 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thank you for your testimony.  As a private 4 

recreational fisherman, any thoughts on the amberjack closed 5 

season? 6 

 7 

MR. EVERTS:  No, sir.  I don’t fish for amberjack. 8 

 9 

MS. MORRIS:  One more question.  You told us that if there was a 10 

red snapper slot that thirteen would be the minimum size and 11 

what do you think the maximum size would be? 12 

 13 

MR. EVERTS:  I think that needs to be discussed.  Looking at all 14 

the charts and the documentation that has been provided by PhDs 15 

and what have you, as the age goes up and the weight goes up, 16 

somewhere between twenty to thirty inches in length should be 17 

the top side and the bottom side should be I’ll say thirteen 18 

inches, but those fish need to be protected.  They are your real 19 

brood stock. 20 

 21 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Charles.  Next up is Steve Cunningham, to 22 

be followed by Robert Carter. 23 

 24 

MR. STEVE CUNNINGHAM:  Mr. Chairman and ladies and gentlemen, I 25 

too, like Tom Hilton, have a beef with the council.  I’m spoken 26 

at four of these meetings and two of them Charlie Everts has 27 

been at and both times I’ve had to follow Charlie, but I’ll do 28 

the best that I can. 29 

 30 

My name is Steve Cunningham and I’m from Bayou Vista, Texas.  I 31 

operate a small charter business with my son.  I support the 32 

retention of one red drum in the EEZ and amberjack option Number 33 

3.  You have and will continue to hear from those that consider 34 

themselves the true recreational fishermen and those 35 

organizations like CCA and RFA who represent them. 36 

 37 

Of course the true recreational fisherman in this case is 38 

translated to those who own their own boats.  I’m here to speak 39 

for another group of Americans, those that use the permitted 40 

charterboats and headboats to reach the Gulf reef fishery. 41 

 42 

I think it’s important that somebody at least try to advocate 43 

for these folks.  The fishing dot orgs don’t.  They’ll send them 44 

a magazine or promise them a hat, but they represent the boat 45 

owners.  These people haven’t been counted or considered by 46 

MRFSS because they aren’t coastal residents.  They live inland, 47 

for the most part, and the same, as I understand it, will be 48 
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true of MRIP. 1 

 2 

They come to the Gulf Coast to eat seafood and enjoy the beach 3 

and the casinos and most of all, to go deep-sea fishing.  They 4 

are the lifeblood of our coastal communities and we treat them 5 

like redheaded stepchildren.  As the private recreational boat 6 

fishermen have increased in size, sophistication, and landings, 7 

the Joe Six-Pack’s options have dwindled significantly.  They’re 8 

currently able to retain about one-third of what they were able 9 

to take home five years ago. 10 

 11 

The charter for-hire fleet has been reduced and its numbers 12 

capped.  It’s dying the death of a thousand paper cuts and with 13 

it goes Joe’s hopes and his children’s hopes for access to the 14 

ocean. 15 

 16 

This council has the opportunity to make a difference by 17 

enacting sector separation or separate ACLs for the charter 18 

fleet and at least part of the congressionally-mandated data 19 

puzzle can be solved.  With accurate, verifiable, and timely 20 

landings data from the charter fleet, effective accountability 21 

measures can be implemented, resulting in the charter sector 22 

staying within its ACL and a very large and accurate data 23 

sampling can be applied to all recreational landings. 24 

 25 

All participants, including the private recreational guys, will 26 

benefit.  We may actually meet our rebuilding goals in my 27 

lifetime and that would be nice, but we must act fairly soon.  28 

Another season of four-dollar gas or hurricanes or another year 29 

or two of exceeding ACLs by 75 percent and it may not matter.  30 

There won’t be a charter for-hire industry.  Help us keep 31 

America fishing.  Thank you very much and I appreciate it.  Any 32 

questions? 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Steve.  Currently there are none.  Next up 35 

is Robert Carter, to be followed by Jim Smarr. 36 

 37 

MR. ROBERT CARTER:  I am going to make it real short anyway.  I 38 

only have one question.  In my area, we’ve been having some 39 

problems with our VMS and it’s not necessarily with the units 40 

themselves.  It’s more coming from NMFS, the problems that we’re 41 

having.  I understand that we were supposed to form a committee 42 

to address some of those issues after a settlement and I was 43 

wondering where that stands now. 44 

 45 

DR. CRABTREE:  I believe the council has formed a VMS AP. 46 

 47 

MR. CARTER:  That’s news to any of us.  I’m curious as to what 48 
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are the details on that. 1 

 2 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I guess we don’t have any plan now, 3 

Rick, do we, on the VMS? 4 

 5 

DR. RICHARD LEARD:  We had appointed a VMS AP some time at the 6 

end of last year, but we haven’t had them meet.  I’ve talked a 7 

little bit and made some suggestions about maybe having somebody 8 

from enforcement come and give that panel an update as to how 9 

VMS is working and whatnot and we’ve been working on putting 10 

together some information so that we can put it out, but we 11 

haven’t got that panel together to meet yet. 12 

 13 

MR. CARTER:  Right, because I’ve been told sometimes that you 14 

have to make your declaration, of course, when you leave the 15 

dock and I’ve been at sea for seven days on more than one 16 

occasion and they call me up and say we haven’t had a hit from 17 

your boat in maybe a month on one occasion.  On that occasion, I 18 

was lucky enough to have an observer on the vessel and I didn’t 19 

have to come home, but I would have had to come home if I didn’t 20 

have that observer.  These are issues we need to address, I 21 

think.  Thank you very much for your time. 22 

 23 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Robert.  Next up is Jim Smarr, to be 24 

followed by Dennis O’Hern. 25 

 26 

MR. JIM SMARR:  Mr. Chairman and members of the Gulf Council, I 27 

am Jim Smarr, for the record.  I represent the Recreational 28 

Fishing Alliance Texas.  For the record today, the RFA does 29 

represent individual recreational anglers and I’ve been speaking 30 

to one of your council members here, Harlon Pearce, about 31 

working on covering the data void. 32 

 33 

We don’t believe that recreational catch shares or sector 34 

separation are in order for our sector.  We don’t want 35 

environmentally-driven programs to separate our sector.  We feel 36 

that a simple catch card or a simple 1-800 phone number to call 37 

in and report real-time data would clean up the data that I’ve 38 

been hearing about for twelve years and I think that there 39 

should be a serious fine imposed for not doing that and that 40 

money be allocated directly to law enforcement and not to some 41 

other account, but directly to law enforcement, to beef up 42 

enforcement. 43 

 44 

I think that this recreational data should be mandatory not only 45 

for the for-hire sector, but for the independent recreational 46 

sector.  I do believe that 95 percent of us are law-abiding and 47 

the others are either in jail or headed to jail at any given 48 



68 

 

point by the general population statistics. 1 

 2 

I do have faith in the State of Washington and their catch card 3 

program and some of the other successful programs.  We’ve danced 4 

around data long enough.  Madam Chairwoman Lubchenco has taken 5 

much needed data money and pushed it over in catch shares and 6 

we’re in Congress right now trying to get that reallocated and 7 

hopefully we will do that. 8 

 9 

It violates the tenants in common of the Magna Carta to take 10 

fish that belong to all Americas and to start divvying them up 11 

to a select few and so we think -- Our national office is 12 

stacking the record against recreational catch shares and we 13 

think that that’s the wrong road to go down and we’re on the 14 

record all over the place since day one on this. 15 

 16 

We would like to be part of the workgroup working with Harlon 17 

and his team on coming up with viable recreational data 18 

collection.  We would like to see each state agency be in charge 19 

of their specific data and with this endorsement of fee paid 20 

that will offset that.  Recreational fishermen do not trust 21 

National Marine Fisheries Service, the SEDAR process, or any of 22 

that. 23 

 24 

In light of that, we think we’ve probably solved the problem by 25 

asking for everybody to be accountable without giving up the 26 

farm, without sector separation, and without further fracturing 27 

our sector.  I thank you for the time. 28 

 29 

MR. PEARCE:  Thank you, Jim, for your presentation and all your 30 

hard work and you would prefer the endorsements or reef fish 31 

permits, whatever we call them, be state rather than federal? 32 

 33 

MR. SMARR:  I would like to see the money held at the state 34 

level.  We have a Texas Great Barrier Reef Project we were 35 

trying to get started for reefing and we think that habitat, 36 

inshore habitat, due to oil and gas rigs -- We want that 37 

endorsement so that part of the money can be dedicated, like two 38 

bucks, for data and three bucks for reefing in a hard permit 39 

that could go in a grant program that would support these two 40 

vital plans. 41 

 42 

We don’t trust the smoke and mirrors at NMFS behind the scenes 43 

with the SEDAR process and all that.  We would like hard data of 44 

the guys on the water fishing.  If they’re not on there, I don’t 45 

want a chip telling me I’m fishing when I’m not.  We want to 46 

lock that down and we don’t have to separate sectors to do it or 47 

have a catch share. 48 
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 1 

MR. PEARCE:  Just a quick follow-up.  One of the problems I have 2 

with the state situation is don’t you think that we would get a 3 

better representation of the EEZ fishery with a federal stamp?  4 

I’m interested in those federal water guys right now and what 5 

we’re doing with the guys offshore and I’m trying to lock in on 6 

how many there is and so what is your -- I know you said state, 7 

but don’t you think a federal endorsement might work better for 8 

what we’re trying to do? 9 

 10 

MR. SMARR:  No, sir.  The reason why I don’t is because we have 11 

a joint enforcement agreement and the state agencies have a lot 12 

more law enforcement people than the feds and if you put a $500 13 

fine out there for not filling it out, which the State of 14 

Washington does -- I have some friends that were at the condos 15 

in Rockport and they got a ticket for not reporting. 16 

 17 

If you’re going to fish, there has to be a way to tie that 18 

fishing trip to some kind of reporting.  Washington does it and 19 

I’m not trying to reinvent the wheel, but if we put a state fine 20 

in, a state fine, then it’s going to be able to go through state 21 

court and be prosecuted.  If you go through federal court, the 22 

threshold to get a case before federal court, with all the 23 

murders and drug cases, is going to be next to impossible.  We 24 

could get them prosecuted very quickly in state court. 25 

 26 

MR. PEARCE:  Come to Louisiana.  We’ve got a lot of people in 27 

federal court. 28 

 29 

DR. BONNIE PONWITH:  That’s the vision for how to handle non-30 

reporting.  That’s how you would handle non-reporting, but how 31 

would you handle misreporting? 32 

 33 

MR. SMARR:  There again, it would be an open slate to write this 34 

and to make it a workable thing.  We’re just saying this is a 35 

concept and so obviously, Bonnie, there would have to be teeth 36 

and big teeth in it and I’m sure we -- Parks and Wildlife has an 37 

educational television show and I’m sure the rest of the 38 

departments -- Florida probably has one on the weekend that 39 

people watch. 40 

 41 

If we utilize the outdoor writers and all these people to get 42 

the program out and say, look, the ballgame has changed and 43 

you’ve got to report your catch or you’re going to get hit with 44 

a fine, it won’t take too many fines to get people to adhere to 45 

the policy.  Is that answering what you were -- 46 

 47 

DR. PONWITH:  The big concern is for non-reporting, it would be 48 
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-- If you don’t see the report, then you know you’ve got a 1 

violation.  For misreporting, in other words you say you caught 2 

six, but you actually caught twelve, it’s a more difficult thing 3 

to cite and that’s where a lot of the problems come from. 4 

 5 

MR. SMARR:  We have to go back to the common premise that 95 6 

percent of Americans are going to tell the truth and 5 percent, 7 

again, like the general population, are either in jail or headed 8 

to jail or getting out of jail on a given day. 9 

 10 

I believe the sporting community has been the fairest in the 11 

world with reporting and I tell people it doesn’t matter what 12 

the number is.  If we’re taking twenty-million pounds, which I 13 

suspect we are out of the Gulf if we had everybody report, then 14 

all we need to do is hit Control/Alt/Delete and reset the 15 

biomass at what the biomass is supporting, the breeders out 16 

there. 17 

 18 

We know that the biomass is in much better shape.  It’s 19 

exploding and so if we have to go back and rethink what the 20 

original brood stock was, then so be it.  That doesn’t bother 21 

me. 22 

 23 

MR. ANSON:  Do you have any comment on the greater amberjack 24 

season closure for the private recreational fishermen in Texas? 25 

 26 

MR. SMARR:  I obviously don’t want to see any closures, as state 27 

chairman of a recreational fishing organization.  If we had to 28 

do it, the March/April/May, I believe which is Option 2 or b, 29 

would be the -- I think that would be our preferred.  It would 30 

allow people to fish later in the fall. 31 

 32 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Jim. 33 

 34 

MR. SMARR:  Yes, sir and thank you for your time and welcome to 35 

Texas, folks. 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  Dennis O’Hern is up and Wayne Werner is next. 38 

 39 

MR. O’HERN:  Thank you, Chairman.  I’m Dennis O’Hern, Executive 40 

Director of the Fishing Rights Alliance.  I’m one of those 41 

private recreational anglers.  I don’t own a charterboat or a 42 

permit and I don’t commercial fish. 43 

 44 

FRA members support saltwater angler registration and we have 45 

for a long time.  We realize that’s one of the two main problems 46 

with the recreational reporting and estimates, is that random 47 

phone call.  That whole thing is just -- It’s got some problems 48 
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and I won’t use the F-word, but it’s got some problems. 1 

 2 

We also support reef fish endorsements on the license and I 3 

could see going as far as different fish that we’re interested 4 

in, different fish that are under management plans, when each 5 

person signs up for their license, they merely indicate what 6 

they’re going to fish for.  For instance, in Florida, I buy the 7 

lobster endorsement and the snook endorsement.  I hardly ever 8 

fish for snook, but I make sure I have it just in case I am 9 

fishing for snook that I’ve got it on my license. 10 

 11 

If everybody did what they were supposed to do, licensed or as I 12 

call it registration, we would suddenly have defined the 13 

universe of the angler and we would be able to sample with some 14 

confidence.  Right now, we don’t have the confidence in our 15 

telephone sampling, that random survey. 16 

 17 

Another thing we support, and this is the number two part of the 18 

one-two punch to fix this, is research on the recreational catch 19 

composition.  Very little is known about our discards, the size, 20 

the weight, the sexual maturity, and even the actual true 21 

numbers.  It’s all kind of guesswork.  You get interviewed when 22 

you get back from a day of fishing and they ask you how many 23 

fish you threw back and good luck knowing.   24 

 25 

There’s two sectors in my mind and in all the FRA member’s 26 

minds.  There’s recreational and commercial.  Commercial guys 27 

fish for profit to provide the market and feed the consumer.  28 

Recreational guys fish for fun, whether it’s from shore, which 29 

is the majority of fishing trips, from private boat, or if they 30 

hire a professional to take them fishing. 31 

 32 

FRA members reject the notion of boat owners getting any credit 33 

for their passenger’s fish and that’s kind of how we’re talking 34 

about with sector separation.  If a charter captain takes some 35 

sort of a perceived share of fish, it doesn’t belong to that 36 

recreational angler who actually did the fishing.  It belongs to 37 

another entity. 38 

 39 

I know my guys wouldn’t like it if I told them, if catch shares 40 

came down, every fish that came over the side of my boat was my 41 

share and not theirs.  It’s not fair.  It’s a recreational 42 

angler thing and recreational anglers are held very accountable.  43 

We have been.   44 

 45 

We have season closures and we have bag limit reductions and we 46 

have size reductions.  We have a lot of regulations that we have 47 

to live by and it’s not our fault that MRFSS has been so slow in 48 
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being rebuilt.  MRIP is on its way, but it’s still a couple of 1 

years away.  Again, we oppose sector separation and we oppose 2 

any recreational catch shares. 3 

 4 

One more thing and I’ll take about thirty seconds here or less.  5 

The red snapper stock assessment tried to ignore any regulatory 6 

discard of red snapper because of the IFQ for the commercial red 7 

snapper and that’s simply not the case.  There’s a lot of 8 

commercial guys that can’t lease or can’t get shares that are 9 

throwing a lot of red snapper back, yet that number was zero 10 

until I questioned it and it’s still not very high in the red 11 

snapper update.  Thank you very much. 12 

 13 

DR. PONWITH:  Thanks for your comments, Dennis.  I’m keenly 14 

interested in characterization of the private vessel’s discards, 15 

but I’m struggling with the best way to gather those data.  Do 16 

you have ideas on that? 17 

 18 

MR. O’HERN:  Actually, we’ve submitted a proposal for a pilot 19 

project that if we sample the boats -- We don’t have to put an 20 

observer on every boat, but if we sample boats with some 21 

reasonable reliability, I think we could get that.  We proposed 22 

a camera system that’s a portable camera system, so we would be 23 

able to simply count the discards and the number of fish that 24 

are brought onboard. 25 

 26 

You wouldn’t need an observer.  You would go back and you would 27 

have a DVR with the two or three cameras and all the information 28 

recorded on it so it could be counted.  Then a subset of those, 29 

we propose that they have exempted fishing permits and we start 30 

to answer the question of just how big were those 4.1 million 31 

gag grouper that we threw back in 2008?  Every tenth of an inch 32 

makes a big difference in the stock assessments and we really 33 

don’t know, but that would start to bring it to us. 34 

 35 

The FWRI, in the case of Florida, and Texas Parks and Wildlife, 36 

in the case of Texas, could do the workups on the fish.  All of 37 

a sudden we would have a real good idea of how big were those 38 

regulatory discards we were throwing back and how big are those 39 

small snapper and non-targeted fish we were throwing back. 40 

 41 

I understand without those numbers it’s all a big, big guesswork 42 

type operation on any stock assessment and we’re willing to try 43 

and bring you the information if you would like it. 44 

 45 

DR. PONWITH:  When you’re talking about getting the biological 46 

samples, do you mean that would be like 100 percent retention 47 

and bring those fish back? 48 
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 1 

MR. O’HERN:  Yes and only on certain cases that it’s preset 2 

beforehand and exempted fishing permits and scientifically 3 

overseen, of course. 4 

 5 

MS. WILLIAMS:  What was the cost that you figured up it would be 6 

to do these cameras?  The cameras, do you have a cost figure on 7 

that, Dennis? 8 

 9 

MR. O’HERN:  It’s surprisingly low, $500 to $600 per set.  Those 10 

are portable wireless cameras that can be clamped on or snapped 11 

on to almost any boat and a small DVR recorder.  For an extra 12 

$150, because I’m looking at that, it will put in a special 13 

device that senses movement, so that the operator doesn’t even 14 

have to turn the camera on and off.  When the boat speeds up, 15 

the camera goes off and when the boat slows down or anchors up 16 

or a slow troll, the cameras come on, but it’s a very, very 17 

reasonable cost.  I’ve been working with the FWRI and the people 18 

at USF.  Gino is some camera expert and it’s pretty amazing how 19 

inexpensive it really is. 20 

 21 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Great.  Thank you.  You come up with a lot of 22 

good ideas and I appreciate that. 23 

 24 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Dennis.  Wayne Werner.  Wayne, you had two 25 

cards, but you still have three minutes, followed by Mark 26 

O’Heman. 27 

 28 

MR. WAYNE WERNER:  My name is Wayne Werner, owner/operator of 29 

the Fishing Vessel Sea Quest and a member of the Reef Fish 30 

Shareholder’s Alliance.  I would like to say something about 31 

what Bob Spaeth said earlier and I agree with him. 32 

 33 

You all need to look at every possibility to get the American 34 

consumer their fish.  The fact that these traps kind of went to 35 

the graveyard and all I thought was pretty sad, because the 36 

American consumer has a quota in this too and you’re not giving 37 

them the ability to catch it and I know we have the problems 38 

with it and I would like to go right on past that and we’ll talk 39 

about the buoy gear. 40 

 41 

A lot of people got pretty upset about what we did here last 42 

night in showing a buoy gear, but in 1989, when Amendment 1 was 43 

being developed and they said we don’t want any longlining 44 

inside of fifty fathoms, we came to the council and we came to 45 

National Marine Fisheries Service and said we don’t want any 46 

buoy fishing and basically, that was our description of a buoy.  47 

We just wanted to show we’re not saying that you might not want 48 
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to redefine that or whatever, but we were just saying that is 1 

what buoy fishing was at that time.  Really, I don’t have much 2 

more to say, surprisingly, and so thank you. 3 

 4 

MR. TEEHAN:  Wayne, I just wanted to let you know that that 5 

demonstration that you all put on last night of the buoy gear 6 

visualized it very well for me and I, for one, appreciate you 7 

guys doing that and showing us what your actual gear type was 8 

and so keep doing that if you can. 9 

 10 

MR. WERNER:  Okay.  Thank you. 11 

 12 

MS. MORRIS:  Could you recap for us what your recommendation to 13 

us is about a definition of buoy gear? 14 

 15 

MR. WERNER:  From the shareholder’s part?  It was basically that 16 

we didn’t want to specify the one-and-a-half on the drop, 17 

because you might use less weight -- This is in what we 18 

discussed, is sometimes you use less weight and you use more bow 19 

into your gear, which is probably a better thing. 20 

 21 

Our biggest thing was the terminal gear at the bottom and that 22 

was we were talking about twenty feet and ten hooks and that 23 

basically was what we were looking at.  All the talk that we had 24 

heard out of council was this long thing on the bottom where the 25 

hooks were and that was the part that we were worried about, if 26 

that’s all you wanted.  Thank you. 27 

 28 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Wayne.  Mark O’Heman and John Schmidt is 29 

the follow-up. 30 

 31 

MR. MARK O’HEMAN:  Thank you for the opportunity.  My name is 32 

Mark O’Heman and I’m just regular Joe private fisherman out of 33 

Freeport.  I would like to start off by saying I am totally 34 

against any form of catch shares, IFQs, and such.  I think it’s 35 

reprehensible that we would have to go out and purchase the 36 

right to fish and take the kids out to catch a few red snapper. 37 

 38 

The main reason I would like to talk to the council is with 39 

regard to the harvest data that I see on red snapper in the Gulf 40 

of Mexico.  For the six years from 2000 to 2005, according to 41 

your harvest data, we have harvested an average of four-and-a-42 

half million pounds of red snapper every year and this is based 43 

on a 193-day season with a four fish limit. 44 

 45 

Flash up to 2009 and I don’t see any concrete numbers out there, 46 

but everything I read in the papers suggests that we’re now 47 

going to say for 2009 on a seventy-four-day season and a two 48 
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fish limit that we caught the same four-and-a-half million 1 

pounds.  For lack of better words, that conclusion, to me and 2 

every fisherman that I’ve talked to that fish with me and fish 3 

at the dock, is a laughable conclusion. 4 

 5 

I’m a degreed mechanical engineer and part of that training is 6 

some statistical courses.  If I were given the pretense that 7 

we’ve caught four-and-a-half million pounds of fish on a 193-day 8 

season, four fish limit, and came to the conclusion that we 9 

caught the same on the type of season we had last year, I would 10 

have flunked the class. 11 

 12 

What’s even more amazing to me is that these numbers can get 13 

thrown around after the five-year period of major hurricanes in 14 

the Gulf that’s reduced the number of boats fishing and the 15 

price of gas that has decreased the number of trips, average 16 

trips, that people take a year. 17 

 18 

Personally, I’ve gone from ten to twelve trips a year down to 19 

six.  Personally, I’ve also seen on the water that there’s 20 

probably about half the traffic there was five years ago, pure 21 

and simple. 22 

 23 

We’ve been asked to submit comments to the board about what we 24 

think of raising the TAC for next year.  It really doesn’t 25 

matter what the TAC is, because if we get caught at the end of 26 

the year by saying we met that TAC or exceeded it by two-million 27 

pounds every year, it really doesn’t matter what that is. 28 

 29 

MR. GILL:  Mark, could you wrap it up, please?  You’re past your 30 

time. 31 

 32 

MR. O’HEMAN:  Okay.  My last comment is that if we can believe 33 

the four-and-a-half million pounds that we caught last year, the 34 

simple answer is to go back to a 193-day season with a four fish 35 

limit.  The trail of data suggests that we catch less fish or no 36 

more fish on the longer season than we do on a shorter season. 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  Mark, your time is up.  I’m sorry.  Thank you very 39 

much.  Before we move on to John, I wanted to point out with an 40 

update that we have roughly thirty cards left and so in terms of 41 

speaking time, you’re talking another hour-and-a-half, upwards 42 

of two hours, and we intend to go through and so from a council 43 

perspective, if you want to make a break, do it independently, 44 

but we’ve got an hour-and-a-half to two hours to go and we do 45 

intend to go through every card we have.  John Schmidt, to be 46 

followed by Johnny Williams. 47 

 48 
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MR. JOHN SCHMIDT:  Good afternoon, everybody.  I’m John Schmidt 1 

from Palm Harbor, Florida.  I am a member of the Gulf 2 

Fishermen’s Association board and a member of the Shareholder’s 3 

Alliance and also a member of Southern Offshore Fishing 4 

Association. 5 

 6 

I’ve got a small fishing business out of Madeira Beach, Florida, 7 

and I want to thank the council for giving me this opportunity 8 

to come up and give you some heck.  Not really.  That was 9 

supposed to be funny. 10 

 11 

I want to say there was some conversation about buoy gear, which 12 

is really, in my mind, an offshoot of Amendment 31, and I want 13 

to say I agree with the Gulf Fishermen’s Association.  What we 14 

really want to do there is find the broadest interpretation that 15 

will allow us to have a clean and efficient fishery and so I 16 

appreciate everybody’s consideration for the buoy gear. 17 

 18 

There was a comment related to the buoy gear that was something 19 

about bandit boats and that we thought that everybody would 20 

convert to bandit boats and that that would be a solution.  We 21 

have found, without question, that bandit boats are not a 22 

solution and that it would take several hundred bandit boats to 23 

replace that fishing capacity and there’s a cost to that, if you 24 

think about it. 25 

 26 

Also, one thing that we’ve experienced this year, for example, 27 

is the worst weather in a hundred years.  There’s almost no way 28 

that you can bandit fish in fourteen-foot seas.  Not many guys 29 

can and so really, the fishery would have been in big trouble if 30 

we did not have some longline gear underway. 31 

 32 

Bob also made a comment about a turtle that was caught.  One 33 

point I think I want to make is that that turtle returned itself 34 

safely to sea and so as far as I know so far, we really have 35 

encouraging results, in that even with intense observer coverage 36 

of the longline fishery there has been no turtle mortality in 37 

six months.  I think that’s an encouraging thing. 38 

 39 

Another point I want to make is I want to support what Jack 40 

Golden said, that we really need to expedite the implementation 41 

of Amendment 31 for the benefit of our fishery and there was -- 42 

The last thing I want to talk about, real briefly, is Tom 43 

Haugen’s exempted fishing permit. 44 

 45 

This has really been a good process, where some issues have been 46 

brought forth by the Science Center.  Tom is going to revisit 47 

his application and make adjustments to it.  He is going to work 48 
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with the Science Center to come up with a program that is going 1 

to work. 2 

 3 

MR. GILL:  John, you need to wrap it up. 4 

 5 

MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Tom is a good man that’s got some great 6 

ideas.  His goal is really to find better ways to fish and in 7 

the long run, he’s going to do it.  I thank everybody for your 8 

time and you guys are doing a -- I feel that we have the best 9 

managed fishery in the world and the best enforcement in the 10 

world in the Gulf of Mexico and I want to thank you guys for 11 

doing that.  Thank you. 12 

 13 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, John.  The next speaker is Johnny 14 

Williams, to be followed by Libby Fetherston. 15 

 16 

MR. JOHNNY WILLIAMS:  Good afternoon.  I’m Johnny Williams with 17 

Williams Party Boats.  I’m a third-generation party boat 18 

operator here out of Galveston, Texas and I’m here today because 19 

in my industry we’re all having problems. 20 

 21 

The short fishing seasons have been very devastating for my 22 

business the last couple of years and this year looks like it’s 23 

even more bleak.  Back in 1992, the Gulf Council decided that 24 

they were going to do something to help the commercial fishermen 25 

that depended on red snapper when they came up with the 26 

endorsement process, where people that basically historically 27 

depended on red snapper got a 2,000-pound endorsement and people 28 

that did not got a 200-pound endorsement. 29 

 30 

You protected the commercial fishermen at that point and later 31 

on with the IFQ system, you basically enhanced their positions.  32 

Here in the for-hire sector, all we’ve gotten over the years is 33 

fewer and fewer red snapper and shorter and shorter seasons.  34 

Back in 1990, we got a seven fish bag limit and a thirteen-inch 35 

size limit and we were able to fish all year long and now we’re 36 

down to two fish and fishing probably less than two months this 37 

year and a sixteen-inch size limit. 38 

 39 

The system is failing us.  It’s failing a lot of these folks 40 

here currently.  Why would these folks come up here and ask for 41 

sector separation and their own allocation if they don’t even 42 

know what the allocation is?  We’re just at the point now where 43 

we’re willing to try anything. 44 

 45 

You all as fishery managers have a charge to manage the fishery 46 

and not just to say we’re going to have fifty-three days this 47 

year and forty-seven next year and twenty-seven the year after 48 
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that.  You all are here to come up with some innovative ideas 1 

and you all have an opportunity to seize right here. 2 

 3 

We need some help.  We can’t just stick our heads in the sand 4 

and say we’ll just have a two fish bag limit and thirty-seven 5 

days next year and that’s that.  Let’s try to create some new 6 

processes.  If it’s sector separation, if it’s catch shares, if 7 

it’s somehow or another to decide that we need to adjust things 8 

for fishing mortality instead of TAC, which really is what we 9 

should be basing everything on, is fishing mortality instead of 10 

TAC. 11 

 12 

Over the years, we’ve had people say we can’t have sector 13 

separation and divided we stand, but I don’t know how many 14 

recreational fishermen out there have to have a permit like I 15 

have and how many of them have a moratorium on permits like we 16 

have?  How many of them have to throw back the red snapper for 17 

the captains and crew?  How many of them cannot fish in state 18 

waters when federal waters are closed?   19 

 20 

There’s already sector separation and so let’s just at least 21 

examine -- Form some sort of panel or committee or whatever and 22 

come up with some sort of allocation that if we did have sector 23 

separation this is what one side would get and this is what the 24 

other side would get and let everybody in the industry vote on 25 

it, up or down, because basically the system is failing the for-26 

hire sector.  Thank you. 27 

 28 

MR. PEARCE:  Johnny, thanks for your presentation.  I’m pushing 29 

very hard for electronic logbooks in the for-hire sector.  Are 30 

you in favor of that? 31 

 32 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, sir.  I’ve been filling out logbooks since 33 

the 1980s.  I was not required to until Amendment 1 in the 34 

1990s, but I’ve been filling them out since the 1980s and like I 35 

said, all it’s done so far is gotten me shorter and shorter 36 

seasons and fewer and fewer fish.  I need some help. 37 

 38 

MR. PEARCE:  I don’t think the logbooks are getting you in 39 

trouble.  I think the more we do with the logbooks, the better 40 

off you’re going to be and especially if it’s electronic.  41 

You’ve got a fifty-four-day season and the paper trail takes 42 

ninety days sometimes to get to us and so it’s hard to manage, 43 

but I’m hoping you’re in favor of electronic logbooks. 44 

 45 

MR. WILLIAMS:  I’ve always contended there’s a lot more fish 46 

being caught out there than what the data suggested.  Now at 47 

least let us find out and let us adjust the model to accommodate 48 
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that.  Thank you very much. 1 

 2 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Johnny.  The next speaker is Libby 3 

Fetherston, to be followed by Michael Miglini. 4 

 5 

MS. FETHERSTON:  Good afternoon, council members.  My name is 6 

Libby Fetherston and I’m here on behalf of the Ocean 7 

Conservancy.  I would quickly like to thank the council for 8 

indulging all of our comments this afternoon.  It’s a long 9 

session and thank you for asking clarifying questions.  It’s 10 

been an interesting comment period. 11 

 12 

I would like to thank our delegation from Texas for yet another 13 

nice meeting and some wonderful weather outside and I would also 14 

like to -- If Vernon Minton is listening, he should probably 15 

turn his computer off and take a nap, but we offer him our 16 

fondest well wishes for a speedy recovery. 17 

 18 

We would like to encourage the council to continue to consider 19 

the utility of time/area closures and a wide range of other sort 20 

of outside-of-the-box alternatives for analysis of how best to 21 

allow continued fishing on other reef fish species while still 22 

reducing the fishing impacts on gag. 23 

 24 

We would particularly like to highlight what we consider to be 25 

the incredible importance of protecting spawning areas year-26 

round.  There’s some substantial evidence to indicate that the 27 

larger males stay on those locations and that year-round 28 

protection would afford some much needed relief for those 29 

important parts of the population. 30 

 31 

We would encourage the full council to continue the discussion 32 

of elements necessary for interim rule development for 33 

implementation in January of 2011.  I think there’s a lot of 34 

items that ought to be discussed and so that can move forward 35 

along an accelerated timeline.   36 

 37 

We support moving the annual catch target control rule into the 38 

generic document and hope that that document moves swiftly along 39 

in the process and stays on track for implementation along the 40 

legally-mandated timeline. 41 

 42 

Two other points and hopefully I’ll leave you all some time for 43 

the next speaker.  I would like to thank the Data Collection 44 

Committee for an excellent discussion and NMFS for their 45 

willingness to sort of fully conceptualize some of these ideas 46 

and I encourage the council to move those ideas forward.  47 

 48 
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We would also like just to point out with regards to the 1 

amberjack season closure changes and options that as you 2 

consider those and the confidence intervals around those that 3 

you consider those within the light of the looming rebuilding 4 

deadline that is coming up and how important it is to rebuild 5 

that population within its limits.  Thank you very much for your 6 

attention this afternoon. 7 

 8 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Libby.  The next speaker is Michael 9 

Miglini, to be followed by Kaleb Benge. 10 

 11 

MR. MIGLINI:  My name is Michael Miglini and I’m still a 12 

charterboat captain and I fish and have boats out of Port 13 

Aransas, Texas.  First off, I wanted to thank the Data 14 

Collection AP that I’m part of, especially Harlon Pearce and 15 

Vicki Cornish, for you all’s leadership and all the other 16 

members and people involved in the Data Collection Advisory 17 

Panel meeting. 18 

 19 

There has been an unprecedented outcry for data collection and 20 

our AP has worked quickly to provide the council with sound and 21 

acceptable recommendations which will not only provide the 22 

necessary fishery-dependent data for science, but also to 23 

provide for increased confidence in fishery regulation. 24 

 25 

I plead the council to act with haste in making this 26 

indisputable priority a priority and to move it forward.  I also 27 

cannot emphasize enough that waiting for the perfect data 28 

collection system will only provide and prove to continue for us 29 

to suffer from a lack of data. 30 

 31 

Like fisheries management, data collection is a living process 32 

and will evolve if allowed to move forward.  We need to just 33 

move data collection forward.  I want to say I support greatly 34 

increased funding in order to add federal OLE agents to the 35 

current ones.   36 

 37 

I have stated many times and repeat again that it is an insult 38 

to the science, the regulatory process, and the law-abiding 39 

users of the resource that so little funding is directed to 40 

provide federal agents with a dedicated mission of enforcement 41 

in enforcing current laws and protecting our fishery.  There is 42 

really very little purpose for us to pass rules and regulations 43 

here that are not enforced and there’s too few NOAA OLE agents 44 

and they’re spread too thin. 45 

 46 

Much talk has been heard today and for the Lord knows how many 47 

meetings and months and hundreds of years about sector 48 
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separation and catch shares in the recreational fishery.  I 1 

support the development of a set of alternatives related to 2 

catch shares, sector separation, and all the other ideas that 3 

are out there. 4 

 5 

Then a reasonable, directed effort for public outreach to 6 

educate people on the topics and then moving forward on the 7 

issue.  We should just move forward on it and vote.  I would 8 

like to see a vote at the next council meeting, so that the 9 

recreational anglers and operators can either choose to accept 10 

or reject the ideas and however it comes out, it comes out and 11 

then we can move on to the next conservation effort, but we need 12 

to just vote on this thing and get it done with. 13 

 14 

There’s a major issue with COI vessels.  If vessels with a COI, 15 

headboats, are unreasonably restricted from conducting non-16 

fishing activities by the passenger capacity of their federal 17 

permits -- For example, if a vessel’s COI states that it’s 18 

authorized to carry 100 passengers inland and seventy-five 19 

passengers twenty miles and fifty passengers to a hundred miles 20 

and thirty-five passengers while scuba diving and thirty 21 

passengers while fishing, current NMFS policy refuses to 22 

transfer fishing permits with a thirty-passenger capacity to the 23 

vessel. 24 

 25 

This causes the vessel unnecessary hardship, as it cannot run 26 

fishing trips with its allowed passenger capacity for -- It 27 

cannot run non-fishing trips with its otherwise allowed 28 

passenger capacity for non-fishing activities, such as bird 29 

watching, sightseeing, et cetera. 30 

 31 

Restricting non-fishing passenger capacity is of no benefit to 32 

the fishery and rather, it actually provides an incentive for 33 

vessels to fish harder for some species during closures of other 34 

species, as the vessel is unable to properly pursue non-35 

fisheries activities. 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  Mike, I need you to wrap it up. 38 

 39 

MR. PEARCE:  Mike, thank you for your comments.  Real quick, if 40 

you want to go bird watching on a boat with sixty people or if 41 

your boat is capable of doing that and you’re transferring a 42 

permit to that boat, that permit -- The moratorium permit has 43 

only got thirty people allowed and you can’t transfer it to the 44 

vessel and is that what you’re telling me? 45 

 46 

MR. MIGLINI:  Right.  The current National Marine Fisheries 47 

policy is interpreted such that if a vessel has a thirty-48 
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passenger COI, even if that vessel owner goes to the Coast Guard 1 

and says I want my vessel COI reduced such that when I am 2 

fishing I can only carry thirty passengers, but if I’m bird 3 

watching or going to get ice cream or anything else not fishing, 4 

I can carry my sixty passengers, the current NMFS policy 5 

interprets the CFR in such a way that they will not transfer the 6 

thirty passenger fishing permits to that vessel unless the 7 

vessel’s COI is restricted and reduced for all activities. 8 

 9 

MR. PEARCE:  Thank you for that.  Mr. Chairman, in talking to 10 

Shep about some of these problems, he’s mentioned -- He said we 11 

had five or six or so other people and I would like to maybe 12 

address this to the staff in Other Business later real quickly 13 

and see if we can get an answer for the next meeting, if I 14 

could. 15 

 16 

MR. GILL:  When we get back to council business, we can address 17 

it then. 18 

 19 

MR. PEARCE:  Thank you. 20 

 21 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mike.  Next up is Kaleb Benge, followed by 22 

Mikey Roberts. 23 

 24 

MR. KALEB BENGE:  My name is Kaleb Benge and I work at 25 

Underwater Expeditions and I would like to thank you all for 26 

being here to listen to me.  Pretty much all I’ve got to say is 27 

I would support sector separation and for it to be under the ACL 28 

Amendment and also I support the electronic logbooks and that’s 29 

pretty much it. 30 

 31 

MR. PEARCE:  Just real quick, it’s good to see youngsters up 32 

here testifying in front of us, because what we’re trying to do 33 

is for the future.  Do you believe that this council is doing 34 

its job for you in the future? 35 

 36 

MR. BENGE:  What was that, sir? 37 

 38 

MR. PEARCE:  Do you believe that we’re doing our job to protect 39 

your interests for fishing in the future? 40 

 41 

MR. BENGE:  Yes, sir.  I hope that you all if after this meeting 42 

that something could be done.  I’m eighteen years old and I’ve 43 

been doing this since sixteen and I would like to do this the 44 

rest of my life.  I would like to fish and lately, how it’s been 45 

going, it’s been slowing down a lot and I can tell the 46 

difference, definitely. 47 

 48 



83 

 

MR. PEARCE:  It’s good to see you here and we hope you’ll fish 1 

the rest of your life and we can help you. 2 

 3 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Kaleb.  Next up is Mickey Roberts, to be 4 

followed by Joshua Phillips. 5 

 6 

MR. MIKEY ROBERTS:  Thank you.  I’m also here speaking for 7 

myself and also one of our co-captains whose lunch seemed to not 8 

sit right to his stomach.  My name is Mikey Roberts and I’m a 9 

hundred-ton captain and I operate out of Freeport, Texas for 10 

Underwater Expeditions.  I run the Captain Casey and also I’m 11 

second captain on the Motor Vessel Big E, one of the larger 12 

boats in the Gulf of Mexico that is in the fishing industry. 13 

 14 

I would like to thank the council for your time today.  I 15 

support the sector separation.  I believe that it needs to be in 16 

the ACL Amendment today, rather than years from now.  I believe 17 

the sooner the better. 18 

 19 

I also support the VMS system for proper data collection.  I 20 

believe it is a very effective way of getting the proper data 21 

that we need to move forward in this process and making the 22 

accommodations for the council for the fishermen themselves to 23 

proceed further on in life.  Just like Kaleb said, I’m one of 24 

the younger captains nowadays and I’ve done this for eight years 25 

now and this is how I support my family and this is how I will 26 

support my family. 27 

 28 

I’m concerned with cutting back on the days of the season.  In 29 

the time that I have been a professional fisherman, I personally 30 

have seen the overpopulating of red snapper in our waters on 31 

reefs, artificial spots, and rigs, the depleting of triggerfish, 32 

b-liners and other species of the reefs. 33 

 34 

I feel that the bag limits going down to two has done a very 35 

good job.  The cutting back of the season has actually given the 36 

snapper more time to populate.  In years past, we would have to 37 

fish five or ten minutes to actually catch snapper, because 38 

other reef fish would steal our bait and this and that and the 39 

other.  Now it’s you’re having to fish through snapper to 40 

actually catch anything else. 41 

 42 

I’m making this short and sweet and I thank you for your time 43 

and hope that the council and all the fishermen can come to an 44 

agreement that we will get our boats back on the water so I 45 

myself can do what I love to do and others as well and have a 46 

better means of supporting our family and supporting data for 47 

you all to keep this process going.  Thank you. 48 
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 1 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mikey.  The next speaker is Joshua 2 

Phillips, to be followed by Evonn Caraway. 3 

 4 

MR. JOSHUA PHILLIPS:  Good afternoon, council.  I would like to 5 

thank you all for the time to speak.  My name is Captain Josh 6 

Phillips and I’m from Freeport, Texas.  I work on the Motor 7 

Vessel Big E and I also am a permit holder myself.  I’m in full 8 

support of sector separation.  I believe that the IFQ and VMS 9 

process worked so well for the commercial sector that I don’t 10 

see why it would even be a second thought that it would work for 11 

the recreational and charter for-hire sector. 12 

 13 

I also believe that the VMS would provide adequate data and more 14 

accurate data than any other log system.  I also would like to 15 

thank you all for the time to speak again and that’s all I’ve 16 

got. 17 

 18 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Joshua.  Evonn Caraway, to be followed by 19 

Raul Reyes. 20 

 21 

MS. EVONN CARAWAY:  Raul Reyes is going to pass and so you can 22 

go on to whoever is after him.  My name is Evonn Caraway and I’m 23 

the Operations Manager of Underwater Expeditions.  I have two 24 

headboats that strictly fish in federal waters.  One of my 25 

vessels is the largest headboat in the Gulf of Mexico and I have 26 

taken it upon myself, over the past two weeks, to have a VMS 27 

installed on the vessel. 28 

 29 

We are the gateway to the recreational fishermen.  70 percent of 30 

our customers come from out of state.  We are not a tourism 31 

community.  We consistently accommodate the blind, our cancer 32 

kids, paraplegics, and handicaps.  Without headboats, how would 33 

these customers have access to the Gulf of Mexico? 34 

 35 

I believe sector separation needs to be in the ACL/AM Amendment.  36 

I support sector separation as well as catch shares.  Finally, I 37 

believe that the 2012 is too long for headboats to wait.  38 

Headboats are struggling and 2011 would be a more reasonable 39 

timeframe. 40 

 41 

I want to see sector separation move forward as it is, but if 42 

the council chooses not to, then I would like for the council to 43 

consider pulling the headboats who have the history and issue us 44 

IFQs as a trial and let us move forward.  Thank you. 45 

 46 

MR. PEARCE:  You said 2011 versus 2012 and you meant for data 47 

collection? 48 
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 1 

MS. CARAWAY:  Correct, yes. 2 

 3 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Evonn.  Louis Schaefer is up and Lynn 4 

Curry to follow.  Is Louis Schaefer in the room?  Is Lynn Curry 5 

in the room? 6 

 7 

MR. LOUIS SCHAEFER:  I would like to thank the council for 8 

taking the time to listen to me.  My name is Louis Schaefer and 9 

I’m the owner of Underwater Expeditions.  We own the Motor 10 

Vessel Big E and the Captain Casey out of Freeport, Texas. 11 

 12 

We support the separation because we feel like the charterboat 13 

people will -- It’s in their best interest to keep accurate 14 

records and promote fishing.  Really, that’s the main thing I’ve 15 

got to say.  Any questions? 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Louis.  We appreciate your testimony.  Is 18 

Lynn Curry in the room?  That’s the last card I have of the 19 

cards that came in before.  The late arrivals that the chairman 20 

mentioned at the beginning of public comment -- Now we’ll get 21 

into the late arrivals and we’ll ask that they address their 22 

comments in the open public comment period.  First up is Mike 23 

Hutto, followed by Cole Sikes.   24 

 25 

MR. MIKE HUTTO:  My name is Mike Hutto and I’m from Freeport, 26 

Texas.  I just want to thank the council for letting me speak 27 

today.  I’m going to try to keep it short.  I know we’ve got a 28 

bunch of people still to go, but I just wanted to basically just 29 

voice my support for sector separation. 30 

 31 

The charter for-hire business needs to be accountable and wants 32 

to show that accountability measure.  I just wanted to basically 33 

also show my support for the electronic logbooks and basically, 34 

I think, just in my opinion, that’s something that needs to be 35 

addressed sooner rather than later. 36 

 37 

I know it’s come about to try and get things to come about and 38 

2012, I kind of can’t see any reason why 2011 can’t happen and I 39 

hope it can.  On the amberjack closures, I just wanted to kind 40 

of voice my opinion that it’s more of a kind of personal opinion 41 

or a regional opinion I guess, for lack of better words. 42 

 43 

I kind of want to show some support for a spring closure, like a 44 

March/April/May type closure.  Like I said, it’s not really -- I 45 

think it’s more of just my personal preference and a regional 46 

bias.  We deal with a lot of weather issues and so forth and 47 

trying to get distances for amberjack, to access the amberjack 48 
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fishery, in that time of year -- For us, in my opinion, it seems 1 

like it would help us a lot more to be able to utilize the 2 

summer season.   3 

 4 

With kids out of school, the recreational fishermen would be 5 

able to -- It’s better family time and better weather and better 6 

access to the fishery.  I believe that’s about it, but I wanted 7 

to thank you for your time and just, like I said, wanted to kind 8 

of show my support for those issues.  Thank you. 9 

 10 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mike.  Next up is Cole Sikes, to be 11 

followed by Mike Segall. 12 

 13 

MR. COLE SIKES:  My name is Cole Sikes and I’m a charterboat 14 

captain in Freeport, Texas, Real Throw Charters.  I just wanted 15 

to say that it’s becoming increasingly difficult to make a 16 

living in the industry with the regulations and I think that we 17 

really need to push the electronic logbooks through so that we 18 

can have better accountability so you guys can do you all’s job, 19 

which you all are trying to do.  That’s really just the main two 20 

things I wanted to point out to you guys. 21 

 22 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Cole.  Mike Segall is up, followed by 23 

Peter Cunningham. 24 

 25 

MR. MIKE SEGALL:  I’m Mike Segall, owner and operator of Real 26 

Throw Charters in Freeport, Texas.  Cole works for me and I’m 27 

glad he came up here.  I had a few things to say.  Basically, 28 

it’s pretty much the same as everyone else. 29 

 30 

I’m concerned about the decline in the fishing days for the red 31 

snapper.  Also, I’m concerned about my business surviving on 32 

these shortened snapper seasons.  I’m in it to make money and 33 

that’s the name of the game and also, take tourists fishing and 34 

things like that. 35 

 36 

I’ve been fishing the Gulf since I was a young boy and I think 37 

the red snapper fishing is as good or better than it’s ever 38 

been.  I remember the days when I went with my dad, way back in 39 

the early 1980s, and it was okay, but it’s a lot better now. 40 

 41 

I’m in favor for the charter for-hire sector separation and some 42 

kind of accountability, logbooks, VMS, other ways of 43 

accountability.  I would like that done by 2011.  I’m also in 44 

favor of the one red drum harvested in federal waters.  Like 45 

Mike Jennings said, we have lots of red drum out there.  I would 46 

like to see the amberjack closure during the springtime season 47 

and I appreciate you all letting me talk.  Thank you. 48 
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 1 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mike.  The next speaker is Peter 2 

Cunningham, followed by Matt Schench. 3 

 4 

MR. PETER CUNNINGHAM:  I would like to thank the Gulf Council 5 

for giving me the opportunity to come speak.  My father spoke 6 

earlier.  My name is Peter Cunningham and my father and I own a 7 

charterboat in Galveston, Texas and actively participate in the 8 

red snapper fishery.   9 

 10 

I’ve been working in the charterboat business for the last five 11 

to six years and I would like to say that I support sector 12 

separation and electronic logbooks for the following reasons.  I 13 

believe that the charter for-hire fleet will provide a mechanism 14 

for the council for improved fisheries data to support the red 15 

snapper fishery and these logbooks will provide accurate catch 16 

data and will provide managers with a reliable tool for the 17 

fisheries to provide improved fishing opportunities on the Gulf 18 

Coast. 19 

 20 

Logbooks and sector separation should be implemented as soon as 21 

possible, as it will optimize the balance between our snapper 22 

populations and the public opportunities to enjoy our resources.  23 

I would like to thank you and if anybody has any questions -- 24 

 25 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Peter.  Next up is Matt Schench and he’ll 26 

be followed by Mike Hillman. 27 

 28 

MR. MATT SCHENCH:  My name is Matt Schench and I am the owner 29 

and operator of Texas Offshore Adventures out of Freeport, 30 

Texas.  I’m not going to come up here and kind of beat the dead 31 

horse about the sector separation.  I’m extremely for it and we 32 

need to get something done immediately.  I’m basically taking a 33 

30 percent pay cut this year because of the days that we lose 34 

with snapper season. 35 

 36 

We have more fish out in the Gulf than we ever had before, but 37 

we lose the days because of the recreational side overfishing 38 

it.  Sector separation will be able to regulate the charter for-39 

hire industry in that sector, to be able to have the correct 40 

data, verifiable data, which I do not believe you’ll be able to 41 

get out of the recreational sector if the states are not 42 

complying with the federal regulations.   43 

 44 

There’s just no possible way, because everybody can go out there 45 

and have their state water snapper trips year long and until 46 

there’s some kind of enforcement of that, you’re not going to be 47 

able to get true accurate data from the private recreational 48 
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fishermen that are out there fishing in state waters and 1 

catching federal red snapper. 2 

 3 

I’m not here to really say much more.  I would like to see the 4 

amberjack season get bumped back out of the spring into the 5 

summertime, when it’s more accessible for us, because of the 6 

distances we have to go.   7 

 8 

I would like to see the red drum, at least one, open up out 9 

there as well and we are extremely appreciative of everything 10 

that you all have done with the e-logbooks and would like to get 11 

that started immediately.  If we could do it in 2010, I would be 12 

ready to do it now.  The sooner we can get it, the better.  13 

That’s about it. 14 

 15 

MS. MORRIS:  Could you say again when you think the amberjack 16 

closed season should be? 17 

 18 

MR. SCHENCH:  I would like to close it during the spring and 19 

open it during the summer. 20 

 21 

MR. MCKNIGHT:  Are you full time? 22 

 23 

MR. SCHENCH:  Yes, I am.  Of course, it’s getting to be more 24 

part time now because we’re losing so many days out there. 25 

 26 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Matt.  Mike Hillman, to be followed by 27 

David Conrad. 28 

 29 

MR. MIKE HILLMAN:  My name is Mike Hillman and I support sector 30 

separation.  I do run a charterboat business out of Galveston.  31 

I do support sector separation.  I would like to thank the 32 

council, Harlon, for pushing for the electronic logbooks.  I 33 

think this could probably make the charterboats more accountable 34 

and keep better records of what we’re catching.  We would like 35 

to have the logbooks sooner than 2012 and that’s pretty much all 36 

I have.  You all are doing a fine job and thank you all. 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mike.  David Conrad is the next speaker, 39 

followed by Mike Robinson. 40 

 41 

MR. DAVID CONRAD:  Good afternoon.  My name is David Conrad and 42 

I am a captain and co-owner of Circle H Charters, operating out 43 

of the Galveston Yacht Basin.  I’m here today to show my support 44 

for sector separation.  45 

 46 

As we’re all pretty much aware, the current TAC system is based 47 

on inaccurate, suspect, or flawed data, because we really don’t 48 
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know how many fish are out there and how many are being caught, 1 

but it seems like all the time we come back with the answer of 2 

let’s reduce the season and let’s reduce the bag limit and that 3 

will help the situation. 4 

 5 

As a business, we really rely on days on the water and not on a 6 

season length.  If we could fish every day out of a shortened 7 

season, we could probably make ends meet, but there’s two things 8 

that get in our way and that’s our customer availability and the 9 

weather and we don’t control either. 10 

 11 

It’s my belief that by having a sector separation for the 12 

charter for-hire industry that we could operate very similar to 13 

the commercial industry, using the VMS system for reporting.  14 

This would allow us to be fully accountable for our fish catch 15 

and also provide the valuable and accurate data needed by 16 

National Marine Fisheries Service. 17 

 18 

In addition for the charter for-hire business, we need to have 19 

flexibility to get days on the water.  We need a system that 20 

will allow us to have days out there while staying within our 21 

catch limits.  I believe a catch share or a days on the water 22 

program would provide this as a win/win solution for both the 23 

recreational and the charter for-hire groups. 24 

 25 

We could stay within our catch limits and we would stay in 26 

business and we would continue to provide the recreational 27 

angler access to the fishery.  We’re not asking for more than 28 

our fair share.  We’re just asking for a way to achieve it, to 29 

keep us in business, and most of all, to keep people fishing.  30 

Thank you. 31 

 32 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, David.  The next speaker is Mike Robinson, 33 

followed by L.G. Boyd.  Is Mike Robinson in the audience?  L.G. 34 

Boyd?  James Plaag will follow L.G. Boyd. 35 

 36 

MR. L.G. BOYD:  My name is L.G. Boyd and I’ve been in the 37 

fishing business all my life and I run a bay guide service and 38 

I’m also a charter captain.  I am for sector separation.  It 39 

needs to be in the ACL/AM Amendment. 40 

 41 

I want to thank the council and Harlon for pushing the 42 

electronic logbook.  The fishery needs the accountability and 43 

electronic logbooks are one of the tools we need to get this 44 

done.  We would like to have logbooks sooner than later.  2012 45 

is not a sound number.  Thank you. 46 

 47 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, L.G.  James Plaag, to be followed by Robby 48 
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Mielsch. 1 

 2 

MR. JAMES PLAAG:  I’m Captain James Plaag and I’ve been in the 3 

charterboat business for just about thirty years in Galveston 4 

and I own a company called Silver King Adventures and I like the 5 

sector separation.  I think it’s a good deal and getting us some 6 

logbooks where we can have some data to give you guys and keep 7 

up with it a little bit better.  I think that would be a good 8 

deal.  Thank you all. 9 

 10 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, James.  Robby Mielsch, to be followed by 11 

David Cangelosi. 12 

 13 

MR. ROBBY MIELSCH:  My name is Robby Mielsch and I’ve been in 14 

the charterboat business for about twenty years and I approve of 15 

the sector separation and the electronic logbooks and thank you 16 

all very much. 17 

 18 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Robby.  David Cangelosi, followed by Chad 19 

Hartman. 20 

 21 

MR. DAVID CANGELOSI:  Thanks for your time, council.  Sector 22 

separation definitely needs to be in the ACL/AM Amendment. 23 

 24 

MR. GILL:  Could you state your name for the record, please? 25 

 26 

MR. CANGELOSI:  David Cangelosi.  I want to also thank the 27 

council and Harlon for pushing the electronic logbook.  The 28 

fisheries definitely needs the accountability and the electronic 29 

logbooks are the tools that we need for everything to work 30 

properly. 31 

 32 

We also would like to have logbooks sooner rather than later.  33 

2012 is not a sound business strategy.  It should be a lot 34 

sooner.  It should be something -- Electronic logbooks is going 35 

to be more accurate and more up to date technology.  Thanks for 36 

your time.  Any questions? 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, David.  Chad Hartman, followed by Shane 39 

Cantrell. 40 

 41 

MR. CHAD HARTMAN:  I’m Captain Hartman, owner of Rick’s Dream On 42 

Adventures.  Sorry I look like this.  I actually worked today.  43 

I support sector separation and we really need to get the 44 

logbooks on the boat pretty quick, if possible.  I think it 45 

would be a good thing and help you all keep track of what’s out 46 

there and that’s it. 47 

 48 
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MR. GILL:  Thank you, Chad.  Shane Cantrell, followed by Jimmy 1 

Garner. 2 

 3 

MR. SHANE CANTRELL:  My name is Shane Cantrell and I’m a 4 

charterboat captain here in Galveston, Texas, part-time.  Thank 5 

you for the opportunity to speak today.  I’m in favor of sector 6 

separation and it needs to be in the ACL/AM Amendment.  I 7 

believe the best way to validate who is fishing and maybe 8 

actually went on a trip and to have verifiable data, so we can 9 

get a hail-in and hail-out and VMS with combined shore-side 10 

validation. 11 

 12 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Shane.  Jimmy Garner, followed by Dan 13 

Green.  Is Jimmy Garner in the room?  Dan Green.  Following Dan 14 

will be Keith Carman. 15 

 16 

MR. DAN GREEN:  My name is Dan Green.  I’m a charterboat captain 17 

here in Galveston.  I’ve been doing it about four years and not 18 

as long as a lot of guys that you’ve had speak here today.  In 19 

the last four years, I’ve seen a significant change in the bag 20 

limits and season for the red snapper.  I started doing it kind 21 

of as a fun job.  I had no responsibility and I was nineteen 22 

years old. 23 

 24 

Now that I’m starting to rely more on it for income, I’m kind of 25 

seeing it’s -- I kind of feel for the guys that do it full time 26 

that have families and everything, because I just don’t know how 27 

they can do it, especially with a fifty-five-day season. 28 

 29 

We all know that this year we’ll probably get to fish maybe a 30 

half to two-thirds of those days, because of weather around 31 

here.  I think we need to make a change to maybe be able to fish 32 

more days.  I think we need a way to have more accountability on 33 

the fish that we’re bringing in and I believe sector separation 34 

is one way to do that.  Also, I’m also for the VMS system on 35 

each boat and I think a good way to help make that accountable 36 

is with the electronic logbooks.  Thank you. 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  Dan, if you would stay there, we have a question for 39 

you. 40 

 41 

MR. SAPP:  Thanks for being here and it’s probably not fair for 42 

me to single you out, but it’s become pretty obvious that we’ve 43 

got a group that came here together and obviously you’ve been 44 

together and compared notes and I’m assuming that at some point 45 

you had a meeting and decided amongst yourselves what it is that 46 

you wanted to tell this council. 47 

 48 



92 

 

I’m curious.  At some point, it’s pretty obvious to me that 1 

somebody has made a pitch to you about the benefits of sector 2 

separation for you and for the other folks that came here and do 3 

you mind telling us what it is that you heard that would be of 4 

personal benefit to you that makes you so sold on this whole 5 

sector separation issue? 6 

 7 

MR. GREEN:  Personally, for me, it was being able to maybe fish 8 

year-round.  I actually was kind of doing it full time, even 9 

though I didn’t have a lot of bills to pay and stuff like that, 10 

but it’s pretty much an income thing for me.   11 

 12 

When you have to go out in three to four-foot chop out here, you 13 

kind of beat up your equipment and yourself and I’m twenty-three 14 

years old and my back pops every time I switch one way from 15 

getting beat up.  I think for me that’s mostly what it is, being 16 

able to choose our days that we can go out on the water and make 17 

it enjoyable instead of hard on you. 18 

 19 

MR. SAPP:  Was there any discussion at all about whether or not 20 

you would get to fish the same amount of days or more days or 21 

would the days be lesser and was there any talk at all about how 22 

the allocation would actually be decided when we determined who 23 

got what quantity of whatever fish we’re talking about?  In this 24 

case, I assume that the discussion was about red snapper? 25 

 26 

MR. GREEN:  From what I understand how the allocation is going 27 

to be set up is there’s going to be a period where you fish and 28 

you submit the information and then you’re going to get a 29 

significant amount of shares or whatever.  Last year, the last 30 

four years, I probably run about thirty snapper trips a year, 31 

but that was when I could go every day.  If I didn’t have a 32 

trip, I could go with my friends, just because it was a nice day 33 

and I enjoyed doing it.  From what I know, it is the amount of 34 

time that you put in and the amount of fish that you bring back 35 

during the system that’s going to be in place. 36 

 37 

MR. SAPP:  Was there any discussion at all about how the system 38 

works within the commercial sector and about the salability of 39 

those shares once they were granted to you? 40 

 41 

MR. GREEN:  No, sir. 42 

 43 

MR. GRIMES:  So nobody puts words in your mouth, did you in fact 44 

ride up here with a group of people who were intending to come 45 

in and push for sector separation? 46 

 47 

MR. GREEN:  No, sir.  I speak for myself.  I took a half-day off 48 
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of work today to come up here and so I’m not making any money.  1 

Right now, I’m putting money into my own boat to get it ready 2 

for the season.  I’m putting $2,000 into my steering system just 3 

so I can be able to fish for a couple of months during the 4 

summer, which most of that money is going to be going to the 5 

money that I put into my boat.  Really, for me, it’s just a way 6 

to get out there and get people out there to see what I see and 7 

enjoy doing what I enjoy doing. 8 

 9 

MR. PERRET:  Shep, I think the only person trying to influence 10 

is Harlon.  He could run for anything right now and I think they 11 

would love him. 12 

 13 

DR. CRABTREE:  Is it fair to say though for a lot of you guys 14 

though that you’ve come to realize that the current way we’re 15 

doing business and the status quo just isn’t going to work for 16 

you and we’ve got to find some new way to do things? 17 

 18 

MR. GREEN:  I believe that’s true, because the last four years 19 

the season has been getting shorter and the bag limits have been 20 

getting smaller, but it seems like the fishing -- The 21 

population, I’m throwing back eight to ten-pound snapper all 22 

day.  I don’t understand why we can’t go out there and fish for 23 

more fish when they’re there. 24 

 25 

DR. CRABTREE:  I appreciate you all coming in here today and 26 

thank you. 27 

 28 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I just wanted to say it really didn’t matter how 29 

you got here or to the point that you got.  I think that was a 30 

very unfair question, because we have a lot of hearings where 31 

people ride together and share opinions and I just think that -- 32 

I just didn’t think that was a fair question, but thank you for 33 

your answers.  I appreciate it. 34 

 35 

MR. PEARCE:  I’ve got to answer Corky’s comments and to the rest 36 

of the audience out here, I appreciate the accolades, but the 37 

great state of Texas has the chairman of the Data Collection 38 

Committee, Robin Riechers, and it was the Data Collection 39 

Committee that did all this for you and so those guys deserve 40 

just as much thanks as anybody in the room. 41 

 42 

MR. TEEHAN:  I just wanted to echo Kay’s sentiments.  It’s 43 

fairly obvious that there is a group of people here that have an 44 

opinion, but I don’t think that that should affect the way we 45 

accept their opinion.  We do appreciate you all coming here. 46 

 47 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Dan.  I don’t see behind you, but Keith 48 



94 

 

Carman is next.  If Mike Robinson and Jimmy Garner are in the 1 

room, you’ll be in that order if you’re available. 2 

 3 

MR. KEITH CARMAN:  Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen of the 4 

council.  I appreciate the opportunity to speak before you 5 

today.  My name is Keith Carman and I’m a charter captain out of 6 

Matagorda, Texas.  I haven’t heard the word “Matagorda” very 7 

much.  I just wanted to say thank you.   8 

 9 

I’m still on the fence on sector separation.  I do support it if 10 

that’s what it takes to give us more fishing opportunities, 11 

because at the end of the day, we’re really fun merchants.  We 12 

take people who never get to fish who are deep inland, say 13 

Dallas or Mississippi or Oklahoma, which some of my clients come 14 

down to Matagorda from, and obviously it’s an overnight 15 

destination. 16 

 17 

It’s a tremendous amount of revenue.  Those of you who have been 18 

to Matagorda may or may not know it’s not much of a town if you 19 

don’t fish and you don’t like to do things on water.  What we do 20 

is we take people out fishing. 21 

 22 

Obviously what we are concerned about on our part of the coast 23 

is the weather and the days available.  I often ask people at 24 

boat shows, the manufacturers, you know I never see any 25 

beautiful pictures of your boats from the helicopter shots shot 26 

from the chop in the Gulf of Mexico on the Matagorda side.  They 27 

say there’s a reason, that we would never be able to get a shot.  28 

We would never be able to show a boat doing anything but 29 

crashing waves.  Our clients don’t like to go out in those kinds 30 

of seas and you can probably tell I’m not twenty-three and I 31 

don’t like it either.   32 

 33 

I had planned, in my overall scheme of life, to retire doing 34 

what I really love and that’s this business and really passing 35 

that on.  I’ve got a three-year-old granddaughter who was 36 

offshore last year with me with proper life jackets and fishing 37 

and caught her first fish and I’m proud to tell you that she 38 

landed that fish almost all by herself, but she looks forward to 39 

it and she asks Grandpa if she can go fishing. 40 

 41 

The point of all this is I am just as interested in keeping this 42 

fishery as good as it can possibly get and improving it and not 43 

just for me, but for the future and also, if I can merchant some 44 

fun along the way, that’s a great thing. 45 

 46 

I do support the e-logbooks.  I won’t wink wink over there, even 47 

though I am Texas, but I do support that, because if that’s the 48 
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only way that the data is going to be accepted and believed, I’m 1 

all for that.   2 

 3 

I also would appreciate the opportunity to support the spring or 4 

March/April/May closure for amberjack.  The summertime, it’s a 5 

nice fish and a lot of our customers do that.  Snapper has been 6 

very, very good.   7 

 8 

I would appreciate the opportunity also for one federal bull red 9 

drum if it’s available and also, I would also appreciate the 10 

opportunity to work with the council on anything from the 11 

Matagorda side.  All the captains down there are absolutely pro-12 

reporting. 13 

 14 

We’re sick and tired of any kind of bandit fishing on our end, 15 

folks with no permits or things like that.  We are absolutely 16 

dedicated to preserving what it takes to make this fishery work 17 

and we have no problem in reporting those illegal guys and folks 18 

that do that.  I appreciate the opportunity. 19 

 20 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thank you, Captain, for coming here and hearing -- 21 

The Gulf Council up at this table, we like to think of Mr. 22 

Perret as the fun merchant, but it’s an interesting way to 23 

describe your business.  A different town, but same state and 24 

the same question.  What do you think about the amberjack 25 

season?  What would work best for you? 26 

 27 

MR. CARMAN:  If you gave me my choice and I could check the box, 28 

I would say March/April/May closure and allow the summer to be 29 

open. 30 

 31 

MR. RIECHERS:  I’m going to follow up on that same notion, 32 

because we’ve now kind of heard a split between the group here 33 

on the west side of the Gulf.  We’ve got March/April/May and 34 

we’ve talked about May, June, and July yesterday, so that it 35 

basically is closed when red snapper is open. 36 

 37 

I heard all the discussion and I understand trying to get the 38 

days further and I understand tournaments that we have down in 39 

Port Aransas.  Do you guys want to visit a little bit and 40 

coalesce around some sort of option that might work for 41 

everybody?  We’ve got March/April/May some folks are rallying 42 

around and we’ve got some going May/June/July.  If you all could 43 

-- If you work it out amongst yourselves, you may like our 44 

outcome better than if we work it out.  You guys may want to 45 

talk about that a little bit. 46 

 47 

MR. CARMAN:  Sure thing.  We’ll certainly do that. 48 
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 1 

MR. ANSON:  Thanks for coming, Keith.  You mentioned at the 2 

beginning of your public comment that you were on the fence in 3 

regards to sector separation and you gave one or two items that 4 

you were in favor for sector separation and do you have any 5 

ideas or concerns on the other side of the fence for sector 6 

separation? 7 

 8 

MR. CARMAN:  Thank you for the question.  I’m not anti-9 

recreational fishermen at all.  When I’m not fishing federally, 10 

I have my own boat and I’m a recreational fisherman.  I enjoy 11 

the sport, as many, many recreational fishermen do.   12 

 13 

What I’m concerned about is that we don’t have the opportunities 14 

on the business side and barring some other option from sector 15 

separation, I would like to be a part of it if that’s what it’s 16 

going to take for us to get more days on the water and get 17 

better accountability so that data is better to you folks.  18 

That’s really where I’m at.  I don’t compete in Matagorda.  I 19 

help many of my recreational brethren clean their fish at the 20 

cleaning table when I’m done with my trips and so I’m all for 21 

them as well. 22 

 23 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Keith.  Last call for Mike Robinson and 24 

Jimmy Garner.  Are you in the room?  That’s all the cards then 25 

that I have that have asked to speak.  Have we missed anybody 26 

that didn’t get a card in that would like to speak?  If so, that 27 

closes the public comment period.   28 

 29 

I would like to thank you all in the audience and the council 30 

and staff for your patience.  We’ve run a little over an hour 31 

over the scheduled time and at this time, what we’ll do is we’ll 32 

take a ten-minute break and due to the overrun, we’ll start on 33 

Agenda Item VI, which is Committee Reports, starting with the 34 

Budget Committee and Dr. Bortone’s soon to be famous Fisheries 35 

101 will be provided at the next council meeting. 36 

 37 

(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  One minor change for the council benefit.  40 

Again, I realize we’re a little late, but with us, we have Matt 41 

Clark, who is with the NMFS Observer Program, and he’s going to 42 

give us about three or four minutes on how the program works.  43 

In that regard, I’m also going to schedule us to start fifteen 44 

minutes early tomorrow morning in closed session, so we can deal 45 

with the one issue that requires a closed session.  Thank you, 46 

Matt, for joining us. 47 

 48 
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DISCUSSION OF NMFS OBSERVER PROGRAM 1 

 2 

MR. MATT CLARK:  Thank you for having me, those of you on the 3 

council.  I appreciate the opportunity to speak to you.  My name 4 

is Matt Clark and I’m a special agent here in Galveston with the 5 

NOAA Office of Law Enforcement.  I want to make it very clear 6 

that I’m a working agent in the field and so I’m not a 7 

supervisor type, but I work in the field and I implement and 8 

enforce the regulations that this council comes up with and 9 

institutes through their advisory panels and through the 10 

council. 11 

 12 

I’m currently though assigned -- I do a lot of all of the things 13 

that the council covers, including the reef fisheries and the 14 

things that have been discussed during the meeting.  One of my 15 

duties also is I am the funnel for all observer-related 16 

investigations that are sent out into the field to be 17 

investigated. 18 

 19 

I’ve been asked to explain the process to you of how that occurs 20 

and so I wanted to just begin by saying that when the Fisheries 21 

Science Center comes up with a need for data, they approach the 22 

observer program and say we need a certain amount of sea days in 23 

a certain percentage of the fleet for let’s say the reef 24 

fishery. 25 

 26 

The observer program does a random selection of the reef fish 27 

fishery, those with reef fish permits, and determines which 28 

vessels are going to be selected.  They are mailed a certified 29 

letter that is received and that letter is mailed to the address 30 

that the permit is sent to. 31 

 32 

Typically, the owner, who may own several vessels or in some 33 

cases is just the owner/operator of one vessel, signs for the 34 

certified letter and that card is sent back to the observer 35 

program and typically there are some conversations that occur 36 

between the owner and/or the captain of the vessel between the 37 

observer program. 38 

 39 

The selection letter generally states that you have been 40 

selected and the letter, by the way, goes out approximately a 41 

month to two months in advance of that quarter.  The letter 42 

states that they have been selected and that they are to provide 43 

a certain amount of coverage during their upcoming quarter. 44 

 45 

Typically, again, there’s conversation that occurs back and 46 

forth between the program and the captain or owner about what 47 

this is going to involve for them and one of the things that the 48 
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letter explains, as well as the program explains, is that 1 

they’re required to have a safety decal from the Coast Guard 2 

which allows them to take an observer. 3 

 4 

The next step, generally, if they don’t have that decal, is for 5 

them to call the Coast Guard and have the MSO Office come down 6 

and conduct an inspection of the vessel.  Oftentimes 7 

deficiencies are detected in this inspection.  Perhaps the life 8 

raft is fine, but it’s just not large enough to hold the crew 9 

and an observer and so that’s a deficiency that’s asked to be 10 

corrected. 11 

 12 

Other times, it may be that the EPIRB is out of date and needs 13 

to be recertified or various things like that.  I bring this up 14 

because it’s often one of the key triggers that interferes with 15 

the actual taking of the observer. 16 

 17 

Then there becomes missed telephone calls sometimes between the 18 

Coast Guard inspector and the captain and owner and basically, a 19 

lot of times the captain and owner make the decision to go ahead 20 

and just continue fishing and this issue is never resolved and 21 

at the end of the quarter, the observer program collects data 22 

from the state and often sees that this vessel made ten landings 23 

of reef fish during this quarter and never actually took an 24 

observer. 25 

 26 

Those referrals are gathered and given to me and I review them 27 

and determine whether or not there’s enough facts to send the 28 

case forward and then that case -- Let’s say it’s involving a 29 

vessel in the Keys.  I’ll direct that case package to an agent 30 

in the Keys who will then probably contact the owner and captain 31 

and try to find out what the circumstances were which prevented 32 

them from taking an observer. 33 

 34 

Those cases, if a determination is made that in fact they should 35 

have had an observer and didn’t take one, then that case is 36 

generally forwarded to our General Counsel’s office and then the 37 

General Counsel reviews it and determines what, if any, penalty 38 

is appropriate. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Matt.  Does anyone have any 41 

questions of Matt?   42 

 43 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Has there ever been a case where there was just 44 

some miscommunication, such as you said -- Supposedly there’s 45 

phone calls between the captain and the owner and then there’s 46 

phone calls between --  47 

 48 
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MR. CLARK:  The Coast Guard perhaps. 1 

 2 

MS. WILLIAMS:  The Coast Guard and is there -- Maybe they just 3 

didn’t get the message and has it ever happened where there was 4 

just missed communication and that was the issue, but yet 5 

because they didn’t do what they were supposed to in that 6 

window, for whatever reason, even if was miscommunication, that 7 

they just pay the fine? 8 

 9 

MR. CLARK:  Yes, ma’am.  Would you like some clarification or 10 

just the simple answer yes? 11 

 12 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Clarification, please. 13 

 14 

MR. CLARK:  Quite often, as I mentioned, that does seem to be 15 

the primary cause of failing to take an observer, is that 16 

messages were left by one party or the other and they either -- 17 

I can guarantee the observer program doesn’t forget about the 18 

fact that that vessel is selected, but often, just because 19 

things get busy, the captain or owner just never gets around to 20 

calling the observer program back. 21 

 22 

A lot of times the program is told that the vessel isn’t going 23 

to be fishing that quarter, but then a last-minute decision is 24 

made by the captain or owner to go ahead and go fishing and 25 

they’ve forgotten that they were supposed to have coverage.  26 

Anyway, all those factors are looked at and I only forward the 27 

cases to the field that I feel are the most egregious or 28 

definitely warrant being looked into more.  Quite often, that 29 

occurs. 30 

 31 

MR. SAPP:  Am I correct in assuming, from what you said, that if 32 

in fact we’ve got a conviction and a fine associated with it 33 

that it’s been reviewed and we weren’t dealing with one of those 34 

cases of extenuating circumstances and that there really was 35 

something of substance? 36 

 37 

MR. CLARK:  I’ll defer to General Counsel on part of the answer 38 

to your question.  I will tell you that in general the captain 39 

and the owner are typically charged jointly and severally for 40 

the violation unless it’s shown that the owner of the vessel 41 

truly did have absolutely no knowledge they were ever selected.  42 

Again, those factors are all considered and so if there was 43 

evidence that the owner knew and the captain knew that the 44 

coverage needed to occur and it didn’t happen, then typically 45 

they’re both charged. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SAPP:  I think we can discuss this further in closed 48 
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session and again, I want to thank Matt Clark for coming, but 1 

now let’s go ahead and resume our agenda.  Dr. Bortone has 2 

kindly offered to defer his presentation.  We will go ahead and 3 

move into Committee Reports.  The first one is the Budget 4 

Committee, Tab K, and Tom McIlwain. 5 

 6 

BUDGET COMMITTEE REPORT 7 

 8 

DR. MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The committee was 9 

convened on the 12th of April at 9:30.  All the members were 10 

present.  Ms. Readinger reviewed Tab K-3, the activities for 11 

2009 no-cost funding extension request.  She noted that the 12 

activities listed in the document are activities that the 13 

council could not hold in 2009, but plan to hold in the year 14 

2010.   15 

 16 

She referred to Tab K-4.  That is a revised 2010 budget.  She 17 

noted that the activities in red font are additional activities 18 

and items in a strike-through font are activities that were 19 

budgeted but will not be held in 2010.  She pointed out that 20 

pages 4 and 5 of Tab K-4 list the previously approved budget, 21 

additions/deletions, and the proposed Calendar Year 2010 budget.   22 

 23 

Total travel will be increased by $9,600, personnel costs will 24 

be reduced by $96,100, fringe benefits for staff will be reduced 25 

by $53,400, equipment will be increased by $4,000, contractual 26 

services will be reduced by $11,000, and office equipment leases 27 

will be reduced by $21,600.  Total reductions for Calendar Year 28 

2010 will be $161,600.  Mr. Gill asked about the EFH contractor 29 

and Ms. Readinger responded that the update will be handled in-30 

house by staff. 31 

 32 

Mr. Sapp noted the Reef Fish Amendment 28 is currently in an 33 

indeterminate state and he asked if funding for the amendment 34 

will be lost in the event the council cannot complete all of the 35 

planned activities prior to 12/31/2010.  Ms. Readinger responded 36 

the council could request an additional no-cost extension.  37 

However, it cannot be guaranteed that the request will be 38 

approved by NOAA.  If a no-cost extension is not approved, the 39 

funding will revert to the U.S. Treasury after 12/31/2010. 40 

 41 

Ms. Williams asked for an explanation for the amount budgeted 42 

under “Consultants”.  Ms. Readinger responded the title simply 43 

referred to invitational travel, guests requested to give 44 

presentations to the council. 45 

 46 

Ms. Williams asked for an explanation for the type of travel 47 

involved in the budget category of “Workshops/Technical 48 
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Training”.  Dr. Bortone responded the total budget is used for 1 

technical training and professional development, such as 2 

software training, statistical training, et cetera.  3 

Approximately 1 percent of the budget is used for professional 4 

development. 5 

 6 

Mr. Perret felt the cost for staff’s health insurance was 7 

expensive and he asked how many staff members are under the 8 

health insurance program.  Ms. Readinger responded sixteen, 9 

including the new staff person. 10 

 11 

Ms. Williams stated the council allows 10 percent of the staff’s 12 

salaries towards a retirement plan and the budget is 14 percent.  13 

She asked for the breakdown.  Ms. Readinger responded the 14 

council contributed a base of 6 percent of the staff salary and 15 

matched up to 4 percent, for a maximum of 10 percent.  Based on 16 

a 14 percent contribution, the base contribution is 6 percent 17 

and the match is up to 8 percent.  However, not all of staff 18 

receive the entire match.  There was general discussion of 19 

having more time to review the budget and the level of detail 20 

provided to the council.  On behalf of the committee, I so move 21 

to adopt the 2010 budget revisions as proposed in Tab K-4. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion? 24 

 25 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I just wanted to make sure that we had something 26 

on the record that when we say we had a $161,600 reduction, that 27 

was only because the figures that we came up to present to NOAA 28 

or National Marine Fisheries Service or whoever we present them 29 

to is we went in with the high number, because we actually 30 

received $590,000 more for 2010 than we did for 2009, plus we 31 

had a $354,700 no-cost extension.  That’s close to nine-hundred-32 

and-something thousand dollars and so even though it looks like 33 

that maybe we’re in trouble, we’re not. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Ms. Williams.  Any further 36 

discussion on the motion?  Any objection to the motion?  The 37 

motion passes. 38 

 39 

MR. GILL:  As you all recollect during the Budget Committee, we 40 

had rather extensive discussions of various details of the 41 

budget and it seemed appropriate that perhaps we could 42 

synthesize some of that and I have a couple of motions, with the 43 

indulgence of the chairman, that perhaps we could consider and 44 

proceed down that path and answer some of those questions. 45 

 46 

Having said that, the first motion is that we start receiving 47 

quarterly budget reports with detailed reporting by budget 48 
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category, which was suggested as possible, perhaps even 1 

desirable by Cathy, and that other councils are doing it and I 2 

throw it up for council consideration. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second to the motion?  The motion 5 

has been seconded.  Is there discussion? 6 

 7 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Rather than quarterly, I would just 8 

have it at each council meeting.  That makes more sense rather 9 

than quarterly, because that doesn’t mean anything with five 10 

sessions. 11 

 12 

MR. GILL:  I think the benefit of the quarterly was that we 13 

wouldn’t be overextending our time on it and increasing staff 14 

work to prepare it and so I think I would speak against your 15 

recommendation, Dr. Bortone. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mr. Gill, is your idea to have these reports 18 

submitted via email rather than presented at council meetings? 19 

 20 

MR. GILL:  We could certainly do that.  I think they ought to be 21 

part of the briefing book and on an every three-month schedule 22 

and if we don’t put them on the agenda, that’s fine, but they 23 

ought to be available so council can review and discuss as 24 

desired. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion? 27 

 28 

DR. MCILWAIN:  I think they should be included in the briefing 29 

book, but if council members have a question, we should have 30 

some time set aside to be able to discuss those at the council 31 

meeting that they apply to. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I agree.  Otherwise they wouldn’t serve any 34 

purpose and so for sure in the briefing book and then if need 35 

be, we’ll schedule Budget Committee time to discuss especially 36 

specific items for which there’s a problem or a question. 37 

 38 

MR. HENDRIX:  That was my question.  It implies that we’re going 39 

to have a Budget meeting every council meeting and that would be 40 

the logical place to address it, right?  Is that what you 41 

envision, Mr. Gill? 42 

 43 

MR. GILL:  Every quarter and not every meeting.   44 

 45 

MS. CATHY READINGER:  Does that mean at your June meeting you 46 

want this report and then we do it every three months to 47 

coincide with future council meetings?  I’m just trying to 48 
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understand the reporting time. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  My suggestion, and, Mr. Gill, you can correct 3 

me, but my suggestion is that you do them on a quarterly basis 4 

and if it falls before a council meeting, have it.  If not, it 5 

will be available for the next council meeting, rather than try 6 

to match it up to our five council meetings.  Any further 7 

discussion?  Are you ready to vote?  All in favor of the motion 8 

on the board signify by saying aye; opposed.  The motion 9 

carries. 10 

 11 

MR. GILL:  Phyllis has the next motion and if you like, I’ll 12 

read it.  If not, you can read it yourself.  This encompasses 13 

some of the issues and topics that were discussed during the 14 

Budget Committee and it basically asks that we compare where we 15 

are versus other councils, to see how we stand relatively 16 

speaking and whether that’s a good thing or a bad thing.  We 17 

won’t know until we look, but we can then evaluate and then that 18 

will help us make any decisions about whether or not we think we 19 

want to change.  At least we’ll know where we are compared to 20 

our fellow councils. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We need a second first.  Is there a second?  23 

Okay.  I have a question first and then I will turn to Joe, but, 24 

Cathy, how much would be involved in gathering these data?  Is 25 

it something that’s pretty standard and available at council 26 

websites? 27 

 28 

MS. READINGER:  It won’t be available on any council websites.  29 

It’s not a lot of information to compile.  The only issue I see 30 

is in the past when you polled other councils, especially when 31 

you’re asking them for personnel costs, the response usually 32 

does not occur back to us.   33 

 34 

I don’t know if it’s perhaps something Dr. Bortone can make a 35 

request at the CCC meeting and that might have more weight, but 36 

when I send out polls -- For example, I just sent one out while 37 

we were here for something and I’ve gotten two or three 38 

responses so far and I probably won’t get any more for that 39 

particular question. 40 

 41 

MR. HENDRIX:  I would speak in opposition to this.  I think it’s 42 

very important for the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council 43 

to operate on a need basis from requirements from this specific 44 

council.  Over the short time I’ve been on the council, the 45 

other regional fishery management councils have made some major 46 

mistakes and to my knowledge, we haven’t made mistakes on that 47 

level and we need to manage this based on what is needed by the 48 
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Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council and not what is done 1 

by the other councils, in my estimation. 2 

 3 

MR. TEEHAN:  I agree with -- I’m going to springboard off of 4 

what Joe just said.  I think this motion could be a slippery 5 

slope unless there’s some way that we can calculate into it 6 

workloads of our council versus workloads of other councils and 7 

how much their protocol dictates public hearings and so forth.  8 

I think unless we can somehow quantify the councils’ workloads 9 

that it’s kind of dangerous to start just comparing numbers like 10 

that. 11 

 12 

MS. MORRIS:  I was going to suggest that instead of “provide” 13 

that we use the language “request and compile”, if the mover 14 

would consider that friendly. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Bob, is that okay with you? 17 

 18 

MR. GILL:  That’s fine. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Joe, does that change your view of things? 21 

 22 

MR. HENDRIX:  In addition, I think this would be a very time 23 

consuming process for our staff. 24 

 25 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I think this requires quite a bit of information.  26 

We need to know -- If we’re going to go forward with this, you 27 

need to know, because when I was council chair and I went to a 28 

chair’s meeting and we were discussing budget, you need to know 29 

how much money each council receives.  That’s number one, 30 

because all councils do not get the same amount of money. 31 

 32 

Number two, you would need to know how many staff people are on 33 

each council, because without that, I could say 50 percent of my 34 

budget is going for personnel, but yet I may get a lot more 35 

money than what another council gets and so I don’t know how we 36 

handle that. 37 

 38 

I’ve heard that our staff is underpaid.  I’ve heard that we’re 39 

not up to par on the benefits and if that’s true, then that 40 

needs to be corrected and it was based on information that has 41 

been received just in talking at these council chairs meetings 42 

about what the other councils receive as far as fringe benefits 43 

and things like that. 44 

 45 

Still, to compare, you’ve got to know those other factors and 46 

how you handle that -- You may already have the information, 47 

since you all was at the chairs meeting, as to how much money 48 
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each council gets and then if they want to give you that 1 

information, then that could be something that you could go on, 2 

but you would still have to know how many staff members they 3 

have. 4 

 5 

I just want us to be fair to our staff.  I think they should be 6 

paid for their knowledge and the way that they deliver all of 7 

the various things that we request of them and I don’t want to 8 

be unfair.  I’m all in for giving raises and those types of 9 

things, but I like to know how much money is in the pie for 10 

fringe benefits and personnel and how much money we’ve got in 11 

this other pie to do all of the work that we need to do and make 12 

sure that one doesn’t suffer over the other.  I don’t know if 13 

this does it or not. 14 

 15 

MR. PERRET:  Joe, I support this motion and I’ll tell you why.  16 

So many things, right or wrong, are based on averages.  Teachers 17 

want to be brought up to the southern teachers average and any 18 

time you move up or down -- Generally it goes up and doesn’t go 19 

down, although in these economic times, certain things, 20 

salaries, are going down.  It’s a moving target. 21 

 22 

I know when I was involved with trying to get higher salaries 23 

for the biologists in the State of Louisiana that I think I 24 

might have pulled one over on the Civil Service Commission.  I 25 

used Texas and Alabama’s salaries for comparisons, because they 26 

were a heck of a lot higher than Florida’s and Mississippi’s, 27 

for example. 28 

 29 

Elected officials, representatives and senators, they want to be 30 

brought up to the national average for elected officials and so 31 

I look at this thing both ways.  We may find out that our staff 32 

salaries are lower than any other council and so Dr. Bortone, 33 

I’m sure, is going to come and have a request for something. 34 

 35 

Now, saying that, I don’t want to use the system I use.  Don’t 36 

only go to the South Atlantic Council or the New England.  I 37 

would like to have the comparisons with all, so we can see where 38 

we fit in that mix of things. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  For the reasons Corky just articulated, I am 41 

against the motion.  I think trying to bring it up to some sort 42 

of average is kind of artificial and I think the comments Bill 43 

made earlier about the uniqueness of each council argue that we 44 

shouldn’t try to put ourselves up against someone else and make 45 

a comparison.   46 

 47 

MR. GILL:  Relative to the issue of compiling the data, Cathy, a 48 
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question for you.  Do these numbers get reported routinely to 1 

NOAA by each council?  Is that part of the process that goes on, 2 

so that if councils are unwilling or unable or whatever to 3 

provide an answer to a request that you could simply go to where 4 

everybody sends them and get the same information?  It’s public 5 

information, after all. 6 

 7 

MS. READINGER:  There is a Standard Form 425 that each council 8 

is required to submit and it’s basically an accounting of how 9 

you do spend your money.  It’s not really in total broken down 10 

completely as the cost categories in your request.  I could 11 

email that form out to you, so you could see how it is broken 12 

down.  It’s basically personnel, travel, supplies, contract 13 

services, fringe benefits.  I think there’s five cost 14 

categories. 15 

 16 

Your motion is a little more detailed than that level that’s on 17 

the form.  As far as me being able to obtain that, I can’t just 18 

go to NOAA’s website where I upload our form and obtain other 19 

council’s forms.  There could be a request made and I’m sure we 20 

could obtain it that way. 21 

 22 

Whether it would have to be through a Freedom of Information Act 23 

request, I’m uncertain.  I would probably think so, but I don’t 24 

know.  We’ve usually just sort of had an agreement that we kind 25 

of request information from each other and it’s been supplied on 26 

a voluntary basis.  However, there are several councils that 27 

typically don’t respond or supply information.  I think it’s 28 

going to be difficult to get all eight councils on a spreadsheet 29 

with all the information that you’re asking. 30 

 31 

MS. MORRIS:  The information in this motion that I’m most 32 

interested in is the description of the benefits received.  It 33 

seems like I’m interested in a context to understand whether our 34 

benefits that we provide to staff as fringe benefits are sort of 35 

mainstream or how they compare with the benefit packages that 36 

are offered to other council staffs.  I would be happy if that 37 

was the only part of the motion.  I’m not going to offer a 38 

substitute motion right now, but after some discussion, maybe 39 

that might be another way to go. 40 

 41 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  We, in a way, have already done 42 

that and we sit right around in the middle with regard to that, 43 

but let me qualify that.  It depends upon all these things.  If 44 

you base it on per salary, people are at different levels in 45 

their careers, et cetera, and so when you just do numbers, it 46 

doesn’t sometimes make sense, but we’re right about in the 47 

middle of what the other benefits are. 48 
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 1 

Let me speak a little bit to the salary, whether this motion 2 

passes or not.  In every position I’ve had, I feel my staff, and 3 

this staff in particular, are nationally competitive and we need 4 

to be nationally competitive.  Yes, I know there are regional 5 

differences, but when we hire or want to retain somebody, we’re 6 

competing with everybody else out there. 7 

 8 

What I ask each staff member to do on an I’ll say regular basis, 9 

but every two or three years, is look at their field and report 10 

back to me what the they a competitive salary is in those 11 

regions and then we do it independently of that person as well 12 

and look at those salaries. 13 

 14 

One of the problems that you must understand is that my hands 15 

are basically tied on trying to give people pay raises.  I 16 

basically do it on a very regimented basis and I have almost no 17 

control over it.  It’s not a particularly, quote, fair system 18 

for recognizing merit, but that’s the system we’re stuck with, 19 

but we do, or I, regularly survey each position for 20 

qualifications and try the best I can to keep our staff 21 

competitive. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Dr. Bortone. 24 

 25 

MR. SAPP:  I’ve got to think that if we go to all this trouble 26 

to develop this information and it comes back to us, I don’t 27 

know about anybody else, but I’m not prepared to recommend that 28 

we cut any staff or trim by 20 percent payroll that we’re paying 29 

already and if everybody else feels that way, then what are we 30 

going to use that information for? 31 

 32 

If at some point in the future Dr. Bortone comes to us and says 33 

I want 10 percent across-the-board pay raises, then I think it 34 

might be appropriate at that point to take a look at what other 35 

councils are doing and see if it’s really appropriate and the 36 

same thing if he makes some benefit increase requests, but I 37 

just don’t know what we’re going to do with all this after we 38 

put the staff through it. 39 

 40 

MS. READINGER:  The poll that I referred to earlier was actually 41 

a poll based on the discussion from the Budget Committee.  It 42 

was actually asking the other councils how much do you pay in 43 

benefits in relationship to your total budget?   44 

 45 

I’ve gotten three responses and it’s the typical three that I 46 

usually get.  So far, just to give you the numbers, our salary 47 

and benefits costs, exclusive of FICA, in relationship to our 48 
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total 2010 planned budget, is 45.9 percent.  The South Atlantic 1 

Council’s response was approximately 50 percent and the Mid-2 

Atlantic’s response was 46.6 percent and the New England 3 

Council’s response was 52 percent. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  In a way, Julie, I was in favor of you making a 6 

motion, but since we have this data, I think that’s the main 7 

thing that people were really interested in, was the benefit 8 

comparisons. 9 

 10 

DR. RICHARD LEARD:  Just real quick, there are some things that 11 

are going to be difficult to compare, such as travel.  For 12 

instance, the Western Pacific is going to have an extremely 13 

different travel budget than we’re going to have or that the 14 

Caribbean may have or otherwise. 15 

 16 

Also, in terms of benefits like retirement and stuff like that, 17 

the North Pacific Council, Alaska, their retirement system is in 18 

with the State of Alaska and so they basically have almost like 19 

a civil service retirement program as opposed to a 401K 20 

retirement program like we have and National Marine Fisheries 21 

Service has.  I think the Caribbean has some sort of a strange 22 

relationship maybe with the Commonwealth.  I just wanted to 23 

point out that some of these things may be a little bit 24 

difficult to see some true comparison between. 25 

 26 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I know that our staff goes by what pretty much 27 

the federal people do, those that are not under pay banding, 28 

which is that GS table.  They go by that and I believe it’s in 29 

our SOPPs as to what the different steps are and when you can 30 

advance, because we addressed that once before, if that hasn’t 31 

changed.  I haven’t went back to look to see. 32 

 33 

I know that we give raises, bonuses, merit awards.  The one 34 

thing that I saw that I didn’t understand was where we give -- I 35 

think we went from 10 percent to 14 percent of a person’s base 36 

salary and that’s how much we put into their retirement. 37 

 38 

If your salaries are let’s say $1.2 million, 14 percent is quite 39 

a large amount and I don’t know if that’s standard or not, but I 40 

really don’t care at this point.  I just want to make sure that 41 

we’re being fair to the staff and they’re receiving what they 42 

should receive. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think we’ve had enough discussion on this.  45 

Are you all ready to vote it up or down?  Let’s have a show of 46 

hands on this one.  All of those in favor signify by raising 47 

your hand; all those opposed.  The motion fails.  Go ahead, Dr. 48 
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McIlwain. 1 

 2 

DR. MCILWAIN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Ms. Readinger reviewed 3 

Tab K-5, the 2010 Funding Analysis.  She noted that the council 4 

did not receive its 2010 funding until late February and staff 5 

had to use the 2009 carryover funding to pay expenses.    6 

 7 

Dr. Bortone contacted other councils to determine their use of 8 

research set-asides.  The Caribbean Council has set-asides for 9 

special research on topics related to FMPs and limited amounts 10 

of $5,000 to $10,000, via purchase order.  The North Pacific 11 

Council does not have research set-asides.  However, they may 12 

contract for analyses.  13 

 14 

The Pacific Council does not have research set-asides, but has 15 

asked for them from NOAA.  The South Atlantic Council does not 16 

have research set-asides.  However, they receive coral reef 17 

research funding in the same amount as the Gulf Council.   18 

 19 

The New England and Mid-Atlantic Councils retain 2 to 3 percent 20 

of the quota, depending upon the fishery, that is let out for 21 

bid and the funds brought in are used to fund research.  In New 22 

England, this amount is often an in-kind service for ship time, 23 

where the catch is retained by the fishermen but sampling is 24 

directed, where they sample, when they sample, and how they 25 

sample.   26 

 27 

The most aggressive program is in the Mid-Atlantic Council, 28 

where 3 percent of a catch quota is bid on and the funds 29 

obtained from the bids are applied for by researchers.  The 30 

total amount available is as much as $1.5 million per year.  Mr. 31 

Chairman, that concludes my report. 32 

 33 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Dr. McIlwain.  The next committee report 34 

on the agenda is Administrative Policy.  Julie, are you ready? 35 

 36 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT 37 

 38 

MS. MORRIS:  This is Tab E and it’s been emailed to everybody.  39 

We had Morris, Riechers, Crabtree, Hendrix, and Williams present 40 

for the meeting, as well as many other council members.  The 41 

first part of the meeting was focused on reviewing the proposed 42 

revised and stripped down Statement of Organization, Practices, 43 

and Procedures and then taking a first look also at what would 44 

remain to be shaped into the handbook, the Administrative 45 

Handbook, which we will see at the next council meeting. 46 

 47 

We passed a motion at the bottom of page 1 and it says on behalf 48 
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of the committee, I so move to continue working on the SOPPs as 1 

presented in Tab E-3 in regard to the upcoming model SOPPs 2 

revisions coming from National Marine Fisheries Service and 3 

continue to develop a companion handbook that works in concert 4 

with the revised SOPPs. 5 

 6 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion?  7 

Is there any objection to the committee motion?  The committee 8 

motion passes. 9 

 10 

MS. MORRIS:  Then next we took up the agenda item of revisions 11 

to the travel guidelines for council travel and the travel of 12 

our SSC, our staff, and our AP members and it might be helpful 13 

for this section of the committee report if you pulled up those 14 

Tab E-6 travel guidelines that were distributed as part of the 15 

briefing materials if you would like the details. 16 

 17 

We discussed the authorization section and we discussed the 18 

allowable expenses section and we talked about airfares.  There 19 

was discussion about retaining flexibility in making airline 20 

reservations.  We talked about privately-owned vehicles, 21 

limousine, taxis, and shuttles, actual expenses.  There was some 22 

discussion about the suggestion that if you lived within fifty 23 

miles of the meeting location that we would not reimburse for 24 

lodging and that you should drive back and forth. 25 

 26 

We passed a motion in relation to that one that’s at the top of 27 

page 3 and on behalf of the committee, I so move that in the 28 

Travel Guidelines, in Section D, Actual Expenses, after “or 29 

less”, which refers to the fifty-mile distance, to add “except 30 

for council meetings” so that sentence will read: Lodging will 31 

not be authorized if commuting is fifty miles or less, except 32 

for council meetings. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Discussion? 35 

 36 

MR. PERRET:  I still think that could create some problems.  37 

I’ll use Mr. Hendrix as an example, living in the big city of 38 

Houston.  If Mr. Hendrix chaired a public hearing, for example, 39 

and had to drive across the city of Houston and it lasted until 40 

10:00 or 11:00 at night, he certainly doesn’t want to drive 41 

home.  I know I wouldn’t want to drive home.  I just think it 42 

could curtail some council member participation at some of the 43 

public hearings and so on. 44 

 45 

I live fifty-miles plus from anywhere and so it doesn’t affect 46 

me personally, but I think it may impact some of the others and 47 

so I speak against the fifty mile thing.  I think it should be 48 
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for council meetings, public hearings, all meetings. 1 

 2 

MR. FISCHER:  Corky stated what I wanted to state.  I did not 3 

consult with Damon, but he’s a fine example.  He lives in 4 

Slidell, north of the lake, much less than fifty miles from 5 

downtown New Orleans when we meet at the W, but there’s no way 6 

on this earth I would want him to not stay in that hotel and I’m 7 

fifty-five miles and I get to stay in it?  No. 8 

 9 

MS. MORRIS:  Let me clarify, Myron, that this motion would allow 10 

you to stay at the W and Damon too if it was a council meeting. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Myron, clarify your comments in view of what 13 

Julie said. 14 

 15 

MR. FISCHER:  It’s the same for public hearings.  We just held a 16 

public hearing at the New Orleans airport, which was probably 17 

less than fifty miles.  Through traffic, sometimes it’s tough.  18 

With all we spend, I really hate to limit a council member who 19 

is right on that border of having to drive through a city like 20 

New Orleans.  You all might not be from that area, but those who 21 

are know what I’m talking about.  Coming from Slidell to Kenner 22 

is a nightmare. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion on this motion?  Are you 25 

all ready to vote?  Again, I think we need a show of hands on 26 

this one. 27 

 28 

MR. PERRET:  I have a question.  Voting against this means I’m 29 

against for the council meetings and that’s the problem.  I 30 

would rather it be exactly as it currently is in the SOPPs or in 31 

whatever travel guidelines that could be authorized for fifty 32 

miles or less for any official meeting of the council.  I don’t 33 

have the SOPPs language. 34 

 35 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Would it satisfy if we said instead of “except 36 

for council meetings” and “except for council members”?  Would 37 

that take care of it?  I don’t know. 38 

 39 

MR. PERRET:  Council official functions.  There’s public 40 

hearings and there’s all sorts of travel that has to be 41 

approved, except for approved travel. 42 

 43 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Corky, the language that exists today is more 44 

restrictive than this motion, because it says you will not be 45 

allowed. 46 

 47 

MR. PERRET:  I have, when I lived in Gulfport, lived a lot less 48 
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than fifty miles and all we did was call the Executive Director 1 

of the council and I’ve never been turned down for a hotel stay.  2 

Now, maybe the staffer and I were both breaking some rule and I 3 

don’t know, but it was always approved and it was approved for 4 

others as well as me. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Cathy, do you want to comment on this? 7 

 8 

MS. READINGER:  Just real quick, Corky, the language that 9 

currently does exist says lodging “may not” be allowed within 10 

fifty miles and this says “will” and so it is a change and it’s 11 

up to you guys if you want to be more stringent.  I know how 12 

difficult it is for you guys.  We were just throwing this out 13 

there. 14 

 15 

MR. TEEHAN:  I’m just going to grumble something really quick.  16 

I’ve always thought these sorts of things were ridiculous.  In 17 

Florida it’s thirty-five miles.  Personally, I’m going to go 18 

home, but I don’t think that we should force somebody to have to 19 

-- Like what Myron says, that after a grueling three-hour 20 

workshop or hearing to drive fifty-five miles at ten o’clock at 21 

night.  I think we should pay for any functions and that’s just 22 

my thought and so I’m not going to make a motion to change 23 

what’s going on. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I’m going to ask Cathy or some other English-26 

type person -- When you say may not be allowed, does that mean 27 

it may be allowed? 28 

 29 

MS. READINGER:  That’s correct. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Cannot be allowed is one thing and may not be 32 

allowed is something else. 33 

 34 

MS. READINGER:  Will is a definite no and may is you can.  Like 35 

in Corky’s situation, we have allowed it. 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  Mr. Chairman, I would point out that the will versus 38 

may is not part of this motion.  If we want changes there, then 39 

we need to apply a substitute. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I was just wanting the council members to be 42 

clear that if this goes down that we revert back to the existing 43 

language, where the word “may” is there. 44 

 45 

MR. RIECHERS:  I’m going to suggest to Mr. Perret that if he 46 

feels this way he doesn’t have to vote on this motion.  He could 47 

offer a substitute. 48 
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 1 

MR. PERRET:  I’m ready.  My substitute motion would read exactly 2 

the same except for the quote at the bottom, “lodging will not 3 

be authorized if commuting is fifty miles or less except for 4 

official approved council functions”.  That’s public hearings.  5 

Is that not what we want? 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We are bogging down here and it’s getting late 8 

in the afternoon.  Dr. Bortone, lead us out of this. 9 

 10 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I’m not going to lead you anywhere.  11 

I just want you to realize that it’s not the lodging and even 12 

the driving that’s the issue.  It’s the extra day of salary 13 

incurred by both council members and SSC people that’s the 14 

problem and nobody wants to have anybody drive at night in 15 

safety conditions, but you have to understand that that extra 16 

overnight adds considerably to the funding costs. 17 

 18 

MR. TEEHAN:  I don’t think we should be killing any of our staff 19 

or anybody else either for safety reasons and we should be 20 

putting them up and if it costs some salary, that’s fine.  It 21 

seems to me that the revision that’s been put up there would 22 

negate the need to have fifty miles or anything in there.  Just 23 

say everything is going to be paid for if it’s an official 24 

function. 25 

 26 

MR. RIECHERS:  I’m not willing to help you guys get out of this, 27 

because this was my motion in committee, to try to help you all 28 

get out of it then, but if you want to make a motion, you would 29 

say you want to revert back to the way it was previously worded 30 

in the travel guidelines. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That means if it’s not broke, don’t fix it, 33 

right? 34 

 35 

MR. RIECHERS:  Mr. Fischer, my colleague from Louisiana, did 36 

correct me.  If this is voted down then it will go back, I 37 

assume, to the previous original wording without any changes in 38 

red that we saw in our guidelines and so stand corrected, Mr. 39 

Fischer.  Thank you, sir. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mr. Gill disagrees. 42 

 43 

MR. GILL:  Robin, I don’t think that’s true.  We are trying to 44 

change the issue of the proposed wording on fifty miles or less 45 

and we said nothing about changing the will versus may.  We 46 

accepted that and we’re changing the backend of that sentence.  47 

I would disagree and say if this goes down that it would read: 48 
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Lodging will not be authorized if commuting is fifty miles or 1 

less, period. 2 

 3 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’ll make a substitute motion. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  This is a substitute motion. 6 

 7 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Can’t you make another one? 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  You can make one more, correct. 10 

 11 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Section D, Actual Expenses, and I’m going to go 12 

up to the language, authorize lodging only when the commute is 13 

more than ten miles.  Does that fix it? 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  No. 16 

 17 

MS. WILLIAMS:  No? 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I can’t make a motion, but we are getting 20 

wrapped around the axle.  Perhaps this is something that we 21 

could refer back to staff.  We’ve been living with this current 22 

situation for twenty-some years and I think they all know what 23 

our intents are, especially in view of Dr. Bortone’s comments 24 

that the real concern is salary and not travel.  If someone 25 

would make a motion to table -- 26 

 27 

MR. HENDRIX:  The first thing is a point of order.  There’s a 28 

motion and has she received a second or not? 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  She did not receive a second. 31 

 32 

MR. HENDRIX:  Okay.  I call the question then.  Let’s vote it up 33 

or down. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Joe, I think the problem is nobody is exactly 36 

sure where we are if we vote it down.  If we knew, people could 37 

-- 38 

 39 

MR. RIECHERS:  This is the substitute motion, but what we just 40 

heard about seconds, did it have a second?  All right.  This is 41 

different from the --  42 

 43 

MR. PERRET:  I would like to withdraw that substitute motion, 44 

Mr. Chairman.  I don’t know who seconded it. 45 

 46 

MR. RIECHERS:  This also allows hearings is what it amounts to, 47 

but it says -- The fifty miles is still there.  Then if you 48 
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accept this, then it’s the change that we will later accept when 1 

we accept the whole guidelines.  That’s part of the issue here, 2 

is we’ve got a motion at the end that accepts the whole 3 

guidelines with whatever revisions we make. 4 

 5 

MR. GILL:  I move to table this, with the understanding that 6 

staff revisit and bring it back to the council at the next 7 

meeting. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Would anyone contest that as being out of 10 

order?  He made the motion to call the question, that is 11 

correct, but we can vote down his motion to call the question 12 

and then have a motion to table.  The motion has been made to 13 

call the question. 14 

 15 

MR. HENDRIX:  Can I ask a point of clarification?  The ultimate 16 

judge of what decision will be made on this will be made by the 17 

Chairman and the Executive Director though, right, the judgment 18 

on each one of these situations, if someone were to call and ask 19 

for a waiver of this rule? 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Unless we have one of these will or shall 22 

situations, where we don’t have the authority to do it. 23 

 24 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  The way I had envisioned it was 25 

that I would make the decisions, but if a council member 26 

disagreed, they would petition the chair. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a motion to call the question.  This is 29 

the motion to call the question.  Does everybody understand 30 

that?  If we call the question, that means we have to vote on 31 

this and if not, we can continue this axle grinding.  All in 32 

favor of calling the question signify by raising your hand; all 33 

opposed.  The discussion continues. 34 

 35 

MR. GILL:  I move that we table this motion with the 36 

understanding that staff reconsider and bring it back to the 37 

council at the next meeting.   38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second? 40 

 41 

DR. MCILWAIN:  Second. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s been moved and seconded.  Any further 44 

discussion?  There’s no discussion on a motion to table.  All in 45 

favor of the motion to table signify by raising your hand; all 46 

opposed.  The motion is tabled. 47 

 48 
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MS. MORRIS:  Then we talked about having all lodging billed -- 1 

First, let me say it’s completely embarrassing how passionate we 2 

are in talking about this.  The next thing we talked about was 3 

having all lodging billed to the council’s master account, which 4 

Ms. Readinger estimated would save the council $10,000 per year 5 

in lodging taxes.  On behalf of the committee, I so move to add 6 

a sentence to read: “A council member will only be reimbursed 7 

for hotel up to the rate negotiated for the master account per 8 

room.” 9 

 10 

By discussion, this would allow individual council members to 11 

continue to put their lodging charges on their own credit cards 12 

and not on the master account, but clarifies that if they choose 13 

to do that that the reimbursement will only be up to the rate of 14 

the hotel room without the taxes. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  17 

Any objection?   18 

 19 

MR. RIECHERS:  In committee, I think as we went through this 20 

there was discussion about whether or not we should add that a 21 

council member must notify someone prior to doing it that way.   22 

 23 

DR. MCILWAIN:  The other question I had raised in the committee 24 

is that if you’re not on the master account, and I’ve had this 25 

happen on several occasions, then you don’t receive the group 26 

rate and you would get whatever the hotel charges for a room.  I 27 

don’t know how this plays into that, but I know that’s 28 

personally happened to me a couple of times and that can be a 29 

serious difference. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think the motion accounts for that. 32 

 33 

DR. MCILWAIN:  You would only get paid for whatever the account 34 

was, but in reality, that can be a severe penalty if they choose 35 

to take the points. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  To Robin’s comments, I don’t know if we need to 38 

-- That can just be in the discussion.  I don’t think that needs 39 

to be part of the motion.  Any further discussion on this 40 

motion?  Any objections?  The motion passes. 41 

 42 

MS. MORRIS:  Then we talked about rental cars and there’s only 43 

one final motion.  On behalf of the committee, I so move to 44 

accept the revisions to the Travel Guidelines as presented in 45 

Tab E-7 along with the committee revisions and forward to the 46 

council for approval.  I think the understanding should be that 47 

this motion does not include the change that was tabled and it 48 
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only includes the changes that full council -- 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That would be correct.  We have a motion to 3 

accept the revisions except those that are covered by the tabled 4 

motion.  Any discussion?  5 

 6 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I thought that -- I’m sorry, but I thought that 7 

there was something about the rental cars.  I guess we just went 8 

along with that. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I misread it and made an objection and then 11 

realized I had misread it and so everybody else agreed.  Any 12 

further discussion?  Any objection?  Hearing none, the motion 13 

passes. 14 

 15 

MS. MORRIS:  That concludes my report. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Ms. Morris.  I would comment that 18 

you’ve brought us to within an hour of being over and so the 19 

next doesn’t exist, does it not?  We did not have a Joint 20 

Administrative Policy/Budget meeting and so we’ve gained another 21 

fifteen minutes.  Data Collection and Mr. Riechers. 22 

 23 

DATA COLLECTION COMMITTEE REPORT 24 

 25 

MR. RIECHERS:  Much like Ms. Morris, I’m going to pretty much 26 

give you a high-level view and mostly just read the motions, but 27 

may provide a little background right before them.  The Data 28 

Collection Committee was held on April 13, 2010.  All members 29 

were present. 30 

 31 

Dr. Froeschke reviewed Tab F-3, the Summary of the Ad Hoc Data 32 

Collection AP Meeting, which was held March 29 and 30 in Tampa, 33 

Florida.  Ms. Cornish, the AP chair, and council representative, 34 

Mr. Pearce, then provided summaries and felt that this AP 35 

meeting was successful and the group is progressing toward 36 

implementation of electronic data collection systems for Gulf of 37 

Mexico fisheries. 38 

 39 

To further this goal, Mr. Pearce introduced that he would be 40 

giving six motions to promote subsequent development and 41 

implementation of electronic monitoring programs in the Gulf of 42 

Mexico at the earliest practical time. 43 

 44 

Dr. Ponwith provided feedback on the MRIP pilot program using 45 

electronic reporting on the Atlantic seaboard.  Dr. Ponwith 46 

stated that preliminary feedback was positive and constructive.  47 

She also stated that a pilot study on federally-permitted 48 
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vessels would begin in summer of 2010 and will focus on the 1 

Florida Panhandle and Port Aransas. 2 

 3 

The committee recommends, and I so move, to request that NMFS, 4 

in consultation with the Gulf States Marine Fisheries 5 

Commission, define data standards and operating requirements for 6 

an integrated, mandatory electronic reporting system for the 7 

federally permitted Gulf of Mexico for-hire sector by June 2010. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion of 10 

this one?  Any objection?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 11 

 12 

MR. RIECHERS:  Mr. Pearce stated his desire to educate for-hire 13 

vessels on use of electronic data collection systems and 14 

proposed a series of educational outreach activities throughout 15 

the Gulf of Mexico.  Mr. Fischer stated a need for ongoing 16 

outreach and education to ensure that anglers remain informed 17 

and involved in this process. 18 

 19 

The committee recommends, and I so move, to request that NMFS 20 

implement a trial electronic reporting system for the federally 21 

permitted Gulf of Mexico for-hire sector, using existing 22 

authority under 50 CFR 622, by August 2010. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  25 

Any objection?  The motion passes. 26 

 27 

MR. RIECHERS:  Mr. Pearce expressed his interest in establishing 28 

an education system for mandatory electronic reporting for the 29 

federally permitted Gulf of Mexico for-hire sector.  I’m going 30 

to skip on down to the motion and let’s just go down there.  31 

 32 

The committee also recommends, and I so move, to request that 33 

NMFS work with the Gulf States Marine Fisheries Commission to 34 

begin an education system for a mandatory electronic reporting 35 

system for the federally permitted Gulf of Mexico for-hire 36 

sector by June of 2010. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Discussion?  39 

Objection?  The motion passes. 40 

 41 

MR. RIECHERS:  The next motion is the committee recommends, and 42 

I so move, to request that the NMFS develop a system for at-sea 43 

and shore-side validation of fishing effort, landings, and 44 

discards by January 2011. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Discussion?  47 

Objections?  The motion passes. 48 
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 1 

MR. RIECHERS:  The next motion is the committee recommends, and 2 

I so move, to request that the NMFS implement, using existing 3 

authority under 50 CFR 622, a mandatory, enforceable, and 4 

validatable electronic reporting system for the federally 5 

permitted Gulf of Mexico for-hire sector by January 2012. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 8 

discussion? 9 

 10 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I thought we heard from the industry that they 11 

wanted it by January of 2011. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That is correct.  This motion, I believe, was a 14 

substitute motion in response to Dr. Crabtree’s concerns about 15 

the legal requirements for a timetable that would not allow 16 

2011, but, Roy, do you want to discuss that further? 17 

 18 

DR. CRABTREE:  What it was really about is we’ve asked for a 19 

test and a pilot study and just to me it doesn’t make sense to 20 

put in place a test of the program and then implement it during 21 

the middle of the test.  I understand people’s impatience and 22 

desire to get this done, but we need to make sure that this 23 

thing works and that we put something in place that we have 24 

confidence in.  That was the reason for waiting until 2012.  25 

Aside from that, there’s a logistic issue that I just don’t 26 

think you could get it done by 2011 anyway. 27 

 28 

MS. WILLIAMS:  When we implemented the paper logbooks for the 29 

commercial fishery, did we have to go out there and test that 30 

before we required it and made it mandatory? 31 

 32 

DR. CRABTREE:  Well, no, but I think an electronic system is a 33 

little more complicated than a paper system, plus the goals here 34 

are different.  We don’t use the paper logbooks to estimate 35 

landings.  We get CPUE and things from them, but we get the 36 

landings estimates from the trip ticket system, but what we’re 37 

trying to get through here is that we’re going to use this 38 

system as a replacement for what’s been MRFSS or MRIP now and 39 

it’s a whole different data collection.  We’re going to use it 40 

to monitor their catches and so I think it’s a different system. 41 

 42 

I can tell you from my experience with VMS that if you put these 43 

things out there that you’re going to have problems and there 44 

are going to be issues and we need to work those bugs out. 45 

 46 

MR. RIECHERS:  I think what you heard in testimony was the 47 

question of whether or not -- At least it implied the question 48 
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of whether or not you really need to run a test that goes an 1 

entire year or whether or not a proof of concept in regards to 2 

the reporting and whether or not you can obtain that reporting 3 

and get it into your system and then make it workable can be 4 

done in a shorter period of time.   5 

 6 

I don’t know if you have any answers in that respect, but it’s 7 

kind of more of the proof of concept, can we put this onboard a 8 

boat and can they electronically get it sent and can we receive 9 

it?  There may be other issues regarding validation that you 10 

want it to run a whole year and you may ought to explain that to 11 

some of our folks if that’s what it is. 12 

 13 

DR. CRABTREE:  I can’t explain that.  Dave Donaldson was here 14 

and I think he’s doing the project, but I don’t think he’s here 15 

now and we asked him how long is the project and we got an 16 

answer, but I don’t think anybody questioned him about could you 17 

do this more quickly or something. 18 

 19 

What we got from Dave was the project was going to begin 20 

probably -- They were shooting for June, but it sounded more 21 

likely that it’s July and even if you could run the test much 22 

more quickly, that’s not much time if your goal is to put the 23 

whole system in place by January 1 of that year.  I can’t answer 24 

that question of whether the test could be done more quickly or 25 

not. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We did hear public testimony today about 28 

problems with VMS that are still ongoing.  Any further 29 

discussion?   30 

 31 

MR. MCKNIGHT:  I would like to make a substitute motion.  After 32 

hearing testimony today, I would like the substitute motion to 33 

read exactly what it says here, except changing the date to 34 

2011. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second?  Harlon seconds it.  Is 37 

there further discussion on that?  I would like to comment that 38 

this is a request and if it cannot be met, it will be NMFS’s 39 

inability to do it in the timeframe, but I do think this 40 

emphasizes the need for speed. 41 

 42 

MR. PEARCE:  It is quick, but if we can find ways to validate 43 

it, we can find things to make this work between now and 2011 44 

and I think it’s doable.  We’ve rolled out much bigger programs 45 

in our states quicker than this and so I think to shoot for 2011 46 

is a just program to try and let us go to work and see what we 47 

can find funding-wise to find some different validation 48 



121 

 

techniques that might help us by 2011. 1 

 2 

DR. PONWITH:  I would just like to express a concern about 3 

putting together an operational program halfway through the 4 

pilot study. 5 

 6 

MR. GREENE:  Is there any reason that -- I think there was 7 

three-hundred-and-fifty-some-odd boats that were selected to 8 

participate in this pilot study and is there any reason we 9 

couldn’t select all the boats in the for-hire industry to 10 

participate? 11 

 12 

DR. PONWITH:  The things that would come to mind would be 13 

ensuring that we had enhanced coverage on the dock to do the 14 

validation, the shore-side validation.  I would have to actually 15 

touch bases with the proposers to find out what impediments 16 

there might be to 100 percent participation coastwide.  I could 17 

ask that question. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Further discussion? 20 

 21 

MR. SAPP:  I share Harlon’s enthusiasm for putting this on the 22 

fast track and I’m as enthusiastic as he is to do it almost, but 23 

evidently not quite as much so, because when we’ve got National 24 

Marine Fisheries Service and the Science Center telling us that 25 

there are issues with us actually getting it done, I don’t see 26 

how we can just ignore those issues. 27 

 28 

I understand the difference between a request and a requirement 29 

and what we gain is the hope that maybe it’s going to get done.  30 

I don’t feel comfortable ignoring the advice that we’re getting 31 

from those that I think we need to lean on on these things. 32 

 33 

MR. RIECHERS:  I’m actually going to speak in favor of the 34 

substitute and one of the reasons I am is not because I don’t 35 

have the same concerns as you, Ed, but because the reality of it 36 

is what you’re hearing from industry is we really would like to 37 

move quicker and we’ve been talking about logbooks and 38 

electronic logbooks for a long time. 39 

 40 

We’ve been talking about logbooks for even longer and full 41 

coverage on logbooks for even longer.  Last year, there was a 42 

request to put it in before the red snapper season and there 43 

were a lot of reasons why it couldn’t be done for a pilot then 44 

and here yet we sit the next summer and there’s going to be at 45 

least a delay in getting the pilot started in that snapper 46 

season and the snapper season is really going to be the test 47 

where a lot of this proof of concept occurs.  Again, I 48 
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understand the concerns and I understand we may not meet that 1 

timetable, but at least let’s see if we can’t push for it. 2 

 3 

MR. SAPP:  You convinced me. 4 

 5 

MR. PEARCE:  Mr. Sapp, I appreciate your trepidation here, but I 6 

have a lot of faith in your ability to help me to get it done 7 

and so I feel very good about you and the rest of the Data 8 

Collection Committee helping me get this thing finished. 9 

 10 

MR. FISCHER:  Because the system may have technical difficulties 11 

and the learning curve issues is some of the reasons why I think 12 

we should accelerate it and get the units in the hands of the 13 

fishermen, because the first year’s data may not be worth much 14 

either way.  Let’s get the learning curve year out of the way 15 

and get started in using it. 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  It seems to me that one possible response that Dr. 18 

Crabtree could give us to this would be that we can’t do it and 19 

thank you very much for the request, but it’s going to be 20 

denied.   21 

 22 

DR. CRABTREE:  It’s not going to be Dr. Crabtree responding.  23 

The authority to do this is in the Science Center. 24 

 25 

MR. GILL:  Dr. Ponwith then.  NMFS responding and denying it, in 26 

which case we haven’t gotten anywhere, because we’ve got to come 27 

back and revisit it, in which case the question is moot.  That’s 28 

a risk in going with the substitute motion, it seems to me, and 29 

that to just turn it down, because as they’ve already said, 30 

there’s considerable reasons why they perhaps ought to turn it 31 

down. 32 

 33 

I think I would think carefully and at this point, I’m not 34 

inclined to support the substitute motion, because I would 35 

rather see it get done than come back again and we have to 36 

revisit it and do the same thing here another council meeting or 37 

two away and we haven’t made any progress at all.  If we have it 38 

to the original motion, we have an opportunity to start laying 39 

the groundwork and doing it and actually getting it done.  I 40 

think this is probably an impediment.  41 

 42 

MR. TEEHAN:  The word “request” in there belays some of my 43 

fears.  I too, like everybody else, heard the industry stand up 44 

pretty much in unison here in Galveston and request moving 45 

ahead.  In certain other parts of the Gulf, they’re getting 46 

frustrated and want to move ahead.   47 

 48 
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I don’t know whether it’s a Gulf-wide thing, but as long as 1 

nobody on this council is going to have a conniption if this 2 

doesn’t get done in time, the word “request” up there I think 3 

needs to stay in there and it’s a very important mechanism, 4 

because we’ve heard a lot of valid concerns from the 5 

implementing agency about why this might be problematic. 6 

 7 

MR. PEARCE:  A lot of what we’ve done here in the last two days 8 

is going to help Dr. Ponwith help us get this done.  Washington 9 

is going to hear us loud and clear with this statement and I 10 

think all of us that have some input into what Washington does, 11 

we’re going to be on the phones telling them what we’ve done and 12 

I think it’s a testament to this council’s strength that we are 13 

not afraid of trying to do this and trying to move it along as 14 

quick as we can. 15 

 16 

I do believe that with Dr. Ponwith’s help we can get up there 17 

and help her find ways to get this done and work along with her 18 

MRIP program at the same time and both of them can kind of share 19 

the strengths that they have and so I believe that doing this is 20 

going to help us tell Washington what we want and help us help 21 

Dr. Ponwith get better funding for whatever she’s doing, because 22 

I know she wants this as badly as we want it.   23 

 24 

I believe by doing this we’re telling the guys up there that 25 

hey, we’re here to help you and we want to get this done and 26 

give us the funds and the tools and the means to get this done 27 

and we’ll have it done by 2011. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think we all know the pros and cons and 30 

dangers and tactics and strategy, but I’m going to recognize 31 

Robin and then Roy and then we’re going to vote on this. 32 

 33 

MR. RIECHERS:  Mine was just a comment to Mr. Gill.  Mr. Gill, 34 

it sounded like you were afraid that if we passed a motion 35 

asking for 2011 that it would actually delay it past 2012?  I’m 36 

confused. 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  To that point, no, Robin, that wasn’t my intent.  39 

What it will do is throw us back to the original motion anyway 40 

and they’ve already stated their position regarding that and so 41 

what we’re doing is forcing ourselves to revisit it, to get back 42 

to the original motion. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I don’t understand. 45 

 46 

DR. CRABTREE:  Just a few things.  A lot of what we heard in 47 

testimony about this and about sector separation seemed to be 48 
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based on the notion somehow this is going to get you more days 1 

and there’s really no reason to think this is going to get 2 

anyone any more fishing days and sector separation doesn’t 3 

necessarily get anybody any more fishing days. 4 

 5 

The real question is until this system is adequately tested and 6 

demonstrated, I’m not sure that the Center would accept the data 7 

coming out of it as the best available.  We may continue to base 8 

our decisions on the charterboat survey until this has been 9 

tested and proven. 10 

 11 

My fear is we’re just going to -- If this actually happened, you 12 

get an untested system out there and there are problems with it 13 

and no one knows if the data coming from it is even as good as 14 

the data we already have and that’s going to lead to frustration 15 

and more issue and the last thing you want to do is charge ahead 16 

and put something in place that you don’t know if it really 17 

works or not and then you turn everybody off of the whole thing 18 

and then your compliance falls through. 19 

 20 

I know it’s frustrating and I know it takes time, but there’s 21 

just a logical sequence you go through with these things, where 22 

you test it and see if it works and then you implement it and 23 

we’re jumping ahead of that logical system because we’re 24 

implementing it in the middle of the test and we’re not waiting 25 

to see if it works or not. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Again, I think everybody knows where they stand 28 

on this except me.  I’m just kind of in the middle and so I hope 29 

we don’t have an eight-to-eight vote.  All those in favor of 30 

this motion, which is the substitute motion which changed it one 31 

year, signify by raising your hand; all those opposed.  I 32 

abstain and the motion passes. 33 

 34 

MS. MORRIS:  Mr. Chairman, I want to congratulate Damon on 35 

having his first motion passed at the council. 36 

 37 

MR. RIECHERS:  I’ll continue the Data Collection Committee 38 

report.  The next motion then is the committee also recommends, 39 

and I so move, to request that the NMFS implement a mandatory 40 

electronic reporting system for federally permitted dealers by 41 

January 2011.   42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 44 

discussion? 45 

 46 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Doesn’t that board say something different?  On 47 

the screen it says “and commercial sector”. 48 
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 1 

MR. RIECHERS:  The board has on it what was the first motion.  2 

It was a substitute motion that passed.  Am I correct with that, 3 

John or Roy or somebody on the committee? 4 

 5 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes, because I made the substitute motion and I 6 

believe right there is the motion that passed. 7 

 8 

MR. RIECHERS:  Yes, that’s correct. 9 

 10 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I just wanted to make sure we had the right 11 

motion on the board up there. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a motion.  Discussion? 14 

 15 

MR. ANSON:  Just a point of clarification.  This, potentially, 16 

this could mesh with the existing state trip ticket systems for 17 

reporting?  Is that correct?  As I recall, that was part of the 18 

discussion that was held, was that potentially it would work or 19 

it would work through the trip ticket system.  Did I hear 20 

incorrectly? 21 

 22 

DR. CRABTREE:  Where I was coming from on this is there’s the 23 

state trip ticket system, but what we use to monitor quotas and 24 

make in-season adjustments in the commercial fishery are the 25 

dealer reportings and so what I’m looking at here is to get 26 

electronic dealer reports in the quota monitoring system. 27 

 28 

The states are going to have to do this in the state trip ticket 29 

system and so that’s kind of outside of what we can do.  My 30 

intent was to apply this to the quota monitoring program, 31 

because that would be a great benefit to us in terms of 32 

monitoring quotas. 33 

 34 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Roy, do we already have some electronic -- Surely 35 

we already have the electronic reporting system, don’t we, for 36 

the dealers, if we’ve got the whole ITQ thing going on right now 37 

and if we do not, does this need to be tested? 38 

 39 

DR. CRABTREE:  This is separate from the IFQ system and I do 40 

believe some dealers are reporting electronically right now, but 41 

not all of them. 42 

 43 

MR. RIECHERS:  I’m a little confused in your response to Kevin’s 44 

question, because this is -- You’re asking for this to be 45 

separate from those -- Let me rephrase it and let’s go at it a 46 

different way.  Under the current red snapper quota system, you 47 

have a separate system that is not associated with the trip 48 
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ticket system? 1 

 2 

DR. CRABTREE:  We don’t monitor red snapper quota, per se, 3 

anymore, because there’s the IFQ program, but we do, for 4 

example, with king mackerel.  We have a number of quota closures 5 

and those are now dependent on, at least some of them, paper 6 

sent into the Center. 7 

 8 

MR. RIECHERS:  Under most of the trip ticket systems in the 9 

states, and I can’t speak that all of them do, most of them 10 

allow both an electronic report as well as a paper copy report 11 

that is sent in at the same time period that the electronic 12 

reports are due.  It would be a significant change in the trip 13 

ticket system based on how it’s handled. 14 

 15 

DR. CRABTREE:  This is not a change to the trip ticket system.  16 

This is an entirely separate reporting issue.  This is the quota 17 

monitoring program. 18 

 19 

MR. RIECHERS:  Let me get there.  You’re asking a dealer to have 20 

a different set of reporting programs in addition to the trip 21 

ticket system he or she is reporting to the state? 22 

 23 

DR. CRABTREE:  They already have that.  They’re already required 24 

to -- The dealers who are selected in the quota monitoring 25 

program already have to report to the Center.  All this does is 26 

it makes them report electronically and paper reporting then is 27 

not an option.  Dealers who are selected under the quota 28 

monitoring program already have to do that reporting, plus they 29 

have to do the state trip ticket reporting. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion on this committee 32 

motion?  Any opposition?  The motion passes. 33 

 34 

MR. RIECHERS:  The next part of our discussion was in regards to 35 

the fishery-independent sampling program monies that came into 36 

the Southeast Center and I want to at least read that for the 37 

record again. 38 

 39 

The Data Collection Committee concluded with a report from Dr. 40 

Ponwith on the update on stock assessment funding allocation.  41 

Dr. Ponwith reported a $1.5 million increase for new fisheries 42 

independent data collection.  She stated plans to hire seven new 43 

stock assessment scientists, with four or more working directly 44 

on Gulf of Mexico fisheries, as well as data managers and other 45 

administrative staff with these funds.   46 

 47 

Dr. Ponwith stated that the funding was a restoration of funds 48 
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previously cut.  The restoration of sampling will keep the 1 

current level of fishery-independent sampling, but will not meet 2 

the four-fold increase in fishery independent sampling that the 3 

stock assessment scientists have indicated were needed.  4 

However, Dr. Ponwith stated that collection of additional 5 

fishery-independent data are of the highest priority and they 6 

will direct all the funds available for this purpose.  Mr. 7 

Chairman, that concludes my report. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  There’s not a motion tied to that, but I think 10 

there was a lot of discussion that was generated afterwards.  11 

Bonnie, do you want to comment further, because I think some of 12 

us do. 13 

 14 

DR. PONWITH:  What would be the procedure to do some editing on 15 

that?  For example, the $1.5 million dedicated directly to 16 

fishery-independent sampling was the amount that was going 17 

directly to the South Atlantic.  There are just some edits in 18 

there and it would be easier to be able to do that on paper than 19 

word for word.  Could we defer this section? 20 

 21 

MR. RIECHERS:  You can certainly take the report from John and 22 

edit it and get it back to us.  The whole report will be 23 

included in the minutes, as I understand it.  Is that correct?  24 

We asked that question earlier.  Then, of course, that will be 25 

linked back to your transcript of what you said in committee as 26 

well. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do any other council members want to comment on 29 

this, because I do.   30 

 31 

MR. PERRET:  I’m certainly pleased to know we’ve got an 32 

additional one-and-a-half million for independent data 33 

collection and fisheries assessment and so on and that somewhere 34 

it’s going to be spent in the Gulf of Mexico.  I suspect you 35 

could sit down with each council member and we could obligate 36 

you $1.5 million plus a lot more for you, but you’ve sat in 37 

these meetings for a number of times now and heard the need for 38 

assessment data for various species. 39 

 40 

Harlon is big on electronic logbooks and he’s big on red drum 41 

right now, for example, and so I’m encouraged by the amount of 42 

dollars.  I wish it were more, but I would certainly hope we 43 

could see something insofar as hey, this is what the Center 44 

proposes to do and at least we would be able to provide 45 

appropriate input.  Hopefully we’ll agree with most of what 46 

comes down and hopefully you may be able to utilize some of our 47 

suggestions as the council as a whole. 48 
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 1 

DR. PONWITH:  Thank you and that is really important.  This is a 2 

remarkable stride forward in the Gulf of Mexico in terms of our 3 

increased capability, the addition of the Pisces into the fleet 4 

in the Gulf of Mexico and some additional days at sea that are 5 

going to be made available to carry out work in the Gulf of 6 

Mexico is a giant stride forward and the addition of those stock 7 

assessment scientists. 8 

 9 

One of the things that I’ll rely on quite heavily is the report 10 

that the council put together in response to the data call that 11 

came from the Office of Science and Technology in terms of the 12 

council’s science priorities and that’s something that is 13 

requested on an annual basis. 14 

 15 

This represents a great opportunity to highlight to you how 16 

important that exercise is, because it creates a record for what 17 

your views are collectively on what your top priority science 18 

requirements are.   19 

 20 

One of the things that I would like to do is to hold a workshop 21 

in the Gulf of Mexico that’s science-oriented, but also includes 22 

the clients of our science, to evaluate our priorities in terms 23 

of fishery-independent data collection, so this doesn’t cover 24 

the electronic logbooks in the recreational or the commercial 25 

fishery, but focuses more on the fishery-independent data 26 

collections and gives us an opportunity to look at what the 27 

management side of the houses view on the priorities for those 28 

collections would be while we’ve got the scientists present. 29 

 30 

What we’re looking for are the highest returns on the dollar to 31 

focus those resources, both old and new, to make sure that we’re 32 

gathering the data that has the highest impact in the quality of 33 

those stock assessments that’s possible. 34 

 35 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think what we’re all trying to sort out, 36 

Bonnie, is I think the Center got on the order of $5 million in 37 

additional funds this year and some of it is going to the South 38 

Atlantic for fishery-independent monitoring programs and some of 39 

it is going to new positions, which we certainly need for stock 40 

assessment folks, but then another portion of it was to go to 41 

fishery-independent monitoring programs in the Gulf. 42 

 43 

I think what’s not clear to me right now is -- As you’re aware, 44 

we’ve got some real issues with the red snapper assessment and 45 

we had discussions with Clay at the last council meeting and we 46 

weren’t able to come to a decision about when will we be able to 47 

do another red snapper assessment and is it going to be an 48 
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update or a benchmark, because doing a benchmark seemed 1 

contingent upon getting the fishery-independent data we need. 2 

 3 

There was discussions of trying to get some work done this year, 4 

particularly in the eastern Gulf, to resolve some of these 5 

questions and I think what we’re all looking at is what new 6 

programs are we going to see in the Gulf of Mexico this year to 7 

begin to address those issues and is it going to be sufficient 8 

that we’re going to have something we can use and come back to a 9 

new benchmark red snapper assessment? 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think that’s really well put.  We can talk 12 

about red drum and we can talk about other species, but the 13 

nine-hundred-pound gorilla in the Gulf of Mexico is red snapper, 14 

in addition to that being the big player. 15 

 16 

I think certainly all the participants in the fisheries believe 17 

that the stock assessments are dated, at best, and that we have 18 

a lot better stocks than the models show and the reason is 19 

because we lack the fishery-independent data.  I think that 20 

message has gotten to Washington loud and clear. 21 

 22 

I’m like Roy.  We really need to get something started this 23 

year, as soon as possible, so that we can have a new stock 24 

assessment, new benchmarks, and rectify a situation that is just 25 

devastating the industry. 26 

 27 

MR. RIECHERS:  I don’t know whether Bonnie wanted to try to 28 

respond to Roy.  That could stop my comments short or do you 29 

want me to just go ahead? 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Bonnie, do you want to make any further 32 

comments before Robin and Bill speak? 33 

 34 

DR. PONWITH:  I do agree that the highest demand right now is 35 

for really being able to focus on improving the fishery-36 

independent data collections that inform us as to the status of 37 

red snapper and to that end, the additional days at sea that we 38 

would get available on the Pisces would be focusing on the 39 

expansion of the spatial coverage that we have available for 40 

those indices. 41 

 42 

MR. RIECHERS:  Now it’s a little different than it was even 43 

yesterday, because now we are talking about some additional days 44 

at sea, where yesterday you basically suggested that the meeting 45 

before when you had talked about it and you talked about 46 

increased sampling -- Yesterday, you talked about this just 47 

really filling a gap, because you had been pulling money from 48 
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other places to keep the sampling at the level it is and so 1 

yesterday I walked away with the feeling that we’re going to 2 

have new stock assessment scientists, but we’re not going to 3 

give them anymore information to work with and that was somewhat 4 

troubling, in that while we probably need additional scientists 5 

-- That’s good, but we’ve got to have the data that feeds that 6 

system. 7 

 8 

Today, it seems a little bit more like we may have some extra 9 

sampling going on and I think the reason why we asked you to 10 

come here this time is because last time it was real soft as to 11 

where that fishery-independent money was going and we were, at 12 

least from our regional perspective, wanting to know what it was 13 

getting for us here in the Gulf. 14 

 15 

Maybe at the next meeting we can, kind of in answer to Roy’s 16 

question as well, maybe we can get some of those details of 17 

really what it’s going to be -- What kind of additional fishery-18 

independent sampling we’re going to have in our programs here in 19 

the Gulf, whether it’s additional days at sea, whether it’s some 20 

new things, anything you may have in that regard.  That may be 21 

useful to bring back to us. 22 

 23 

MR. TEEHAN:  I guess I’m going to be piling on here, but I do 24 

also share the sentiment of other council members here that we 25 

need fishery-independent data and we need it badly and we need 26 

it as quickly as we can and it should become a top priority for 27 

stock assessments, be it a single species, be it a complex, 28 

however that evolves. 29 

 30 

Knowing that the Pieces is going to be let loose in the Gulf of 31 

Mexico is very fine information.  I looked it up on Google last 32 

night and it looks like a very impressive ship and should be 33 

able to do quite a bit of stuff, but as we all know -- Any of 34 

you that have ever worked on a research vessel, which I have, 35 

many years ago, but scheduling research time on vessels is 36 

difficult at best and we need to make that a very high priority. 37 

 38 

Mr. Chairman, you’re correct that members of Congress are very 39 

aware of this nugget of information.  How they’re getting it, I 40 

don’t know, but they’re aware of it and they’re pushing for it 41 

and I know members of industry, the charter industry -- I know 42 

Pam Anderson is out there and her group has been very vocal up 43 

in Washington.  There’s going to come a time when we’re not 44 

going to be able to hide.  There’s not going to be any cover to 45 

hide under. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would just like to add to that that the 48 
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fishery-independent concerns about red snapper were articulated 1 

directly to Secretary Locke three weeks ago and I think a lot of 2 

you saw the video.  It’s there and I think it behooves this 3 

council to continue to put on the pressure everywhere we can, 4 

because that’s the big problem in the Gulf of Mexico.  It’s just 5 

so important. 6 

 7 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I have to -- This is to Bonnie, but I have to 8 

believe if it is a money thing and we need a line item, that if 9 

we can get a one-page thing written up -- We can go as 10 

individuals up there and ask for the money and as an individual, 11 

I don’t mind asking for money, but I want to make sure when you 12 

ask for money that we’re going to get, for the money, what we 13 

need it spent on. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think Bonnie has been beat up enough. 16 

 17 

MR. TEEHAN:  I just wanted to ask real quick, should we make a 18 

formal -- Should we form a motion that makes a request to make 19 

fisheries-independent data collection for red snapper a high 20 

priority in the Gulf or is that necessary or do you think we -- 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think that would be a very appropriate thing 23 

to put on the record and this would be under the guise of the 24 

Data Collection Committee and so yes, would you make such a 25 

motion? 26 

 27 

MR. TEEHAN:  There are those that are more articulate than me 28 

and so if I need some help -- I guess that we send a request to 29 

the Southeast Science Center, or whoever the appropriate 30 

authority is, to make fisheries-independent data collection for 31 

the red snapper fishery in the Gulf of Mexico the highest 32 

priority.  I’ll be glad to accept any editorial help on this. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  First, is there a second, before discussion? 35 

 36 

MS. MORRIS:  I would second and also offer a friendly amendment.  37 

It seems like could we make it the reef fish instead of just the 38 

red snapper?  We’re dying for better fishery-independent data on 39 

all the reef fish species or on the main ones, the groupers. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Given the potential interaction between red 42 

snapper and the other species, I do think that would be 43 

appropriate, but I would rather see red snapper and other reef 44 

species, so that -- I just think we need the red snapper in 45 

there. 46 

 47 

MR. TEEHAN:  Ms. Morris, are you asking me if that’s acceptable 48 
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as the maker of the motion? 1 

 2 

MS. MORRIS:  Yes. 3 

 4 

MR. TEEHAN:  That would be marvelous. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there any further discussion of this motion?  7 

Any objections to this motion?  Hearing none, the motion passes.  8 

That concludes Data Collection and moves us to Coastal Migratory 9 

Pelagics and Mr. Fischer. 10 

 11 

COASTAL MIGRATORY PELAGICS (MACKEREL) COMMITTEE REPORT 12 

 13 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Coastal Migratory 14 

Pelagics met and we opened the meeting when David presented a 15 

couple of motions discussed at the South Atlantic meeting.  16 

Basically, we discussed having panel members join our Ad Hoc 17 

King Mackerel LAPP AP from the South Atlantic region, being it’s 18 

one management plan and those members do fish in the Gulf. 19 

 20 

The other issue he brought out was they approved a Joint 21 

Mackerel Management Committee meeting, and we call it Coastal 22 

Pelagics here in the Gulf and I think that’s what it states on 23 

the fishery management plan, to meet in conjunction with the 24 

South Atlantic at their June meeting in Orlando.   25 

 26 

After further discussion, the committee recommends, and I so 27 

move, to add two representatives and one alternate from the 28 

South Atlantic Fishery Management Council, and it’s not from the 29 

council, but it’s just the names come from them, to the Ad Hoc 30 

King Mackerel LAPP AP. 31 

 32 

MR. GILL:  Thank you.  We have a committee motion.  Any 33 

discussion on the committee motion?  Any objection to the 34 

committee motion?  The motion passes without objection. 35 

 36 

MR. FISCHER:  Mr. Chairman, I think we understand the gist.  37 

It’s not two members from the South Atlantic Council, but it’s 38 

two members, two names, that they’re going to send forward.  I 39 

know what it’s read, but we’re not taking their council members.  40 

They’re going to provide us names and thank you very much. 41 

 42 

MR. GILL:  All right.  Let’s revisit the motion as clarified by 43 

the Mackerel Committee chair.  Is there any discussion?  Any 44 

objection to the motion as it stands on the board?  The motion 45 

passes without objection. 46 

 47 

MR. FISCHER:  After further discussion, the committee 48 



133 

 

recommends, and I so move, to request that the council approve 1 

holding a joint meeting of the Coastal Migratory Pelagic 2 

Management Committees in conjunction with the South Atlantic 3 

Fishery Management Council’s June 2010 meeting in Orlando, 4 

Florida. 5 

 6 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion?  7 

Any objection?  The motion passes without objection. 8 

 9 

MR. FISCHER:  Later in the meeting, Dr. Leard discussed minor 10 

edits he made to Amendment 18 and not a hold up, but the South 11 

Atlantic needed advice from their SSC, which was yet to meet, 12 

but by the June meeting, this should all be cleared up.  Mr. 13 

Chairman, this concludes my report. 14 

 15 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 16 

 17 

MR. DAVID CUPKA:  Just in regards to the second motion there 18 

about the joint committee meeting at our June Orlando meeting, I 19 

talked to Bob Mahood today and he was working on the draft 20 

agenda for that meeting and the way it’s set up now, Monday, 21 

which is the first day of our meeting, Monday is devoted 22 

entirely to a joint meeting of the Spiny Lobster Committees and 23 

APs of both councils and then Tuesday morning, starting at 8:30 24 

and running until 3:00 is time that’s on our agenda for this 25 

joint Mackerel Committee meeting.  That’s the current plan.  26 

Monday would be spiny lobster all day and the majority of 27 

Tuesday would be the Mackerel Committee meeting. 28 

 29 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, David. 30 

 31 

MR. RAY:  I missed the date in June for that Tuesday meeting. 32 

 33 

MR. CUPKA:  It’s the first week in June.  It would be the 8th for 34 

the joint Mackerel Committee. 35 

 36 

MR. GILL:  At this point in the agenda, it’s probably 37 

appropriate that we recess.  The next committee is Sustainable 38 

Fisheries and that’s probably going to be a lengthy one.  We 39 

have quite a bit to go and so that will be first on the agenda 40 

tomorrow, which means we’ll start at 8:30. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  No, let me correct.  Remember we are going to 43 

start at 8:15 with a closed session for fifteen minutes and so 44 

be reminded of that and hopefully as soon as that’s over, which 45 

maybe just takes five minutes, then we can go ahead and start 46 

in.  It will be 8:15 tomorrow. 47 

 48 
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(Whereupon, the meeting recessed at 5:50 p.m., April 14, 2010.) 1 

 2 

- - - 3 

 4 

THURSDAY MORNING SESSION 5 

 6 

- - - 7 

 8 

The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 9 

Council reconvened in the Galleon Ballroom of the Galveston 10 

Convention Center, Galveston, Texas, Thursday morning, April 15, 11 

2010, and was called to order at 8:30 a.m. by Vice Chairman Bob 12 

Gill. 13 

 14 

MR. GILL:  We’ll start with Sustainable Fisheries, Tab G, and 15 

Julie Morris. 16 

 17 

MS. MORRIS:  We have the committee report and it would be 18 

probably helpful to also open Tab G-5, which is the draft 19 

options paper for the Generic ACL, because the motions we’ll be 20 

talking about deal with the actions in that options paper. 21 

 22 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Julie, if I could, I need to get staff to give me 23 

a copy of those documents.  I’m having trouble with my computer.   24 

 25 

MS. MORRIS:  The options paper is G-5 and so I’m assuming, Mr. 26 

Chairman, that would prefer the Cliffs Notes, right? 27 

 28 

MR. GILL:  I think given today’s schedule and timing that yes, 29 

ma’am, the faster we can do it, the better. 30 

 31 

SUSTAINABLE FISHERIES/ECOSYSTEM COMMITTEE REPORT 32 

 33 

MS. MORRIS:  We started with a report on the uncertainty 34 

workshop and John gave us a good summary of -- 35 

 36 

MR. GILL:  Excuse me, Julie, but don’t we have to finish up the 37 

committee portion on Actions 8 and 9 before we get into 38 

finishing the report or were you going to do it the other way? 39 

 40 

MS. MORRIS:  Actually, my proposal was to move through the 41 

committee report that goes through Action 7 and then take full 42 

council discussion of Actions 8 and 9.  Is that okay? 43 

 44 

MR. GILL:  Yes, ma’am.  Thank you. 45 

 46 

MS. MORRIS:  We started with a report on the uncertainty 47 

workshop that John presented and you can see the notes in the 48 
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committee report on that.  Then we went over the report from the 1 

latest SSC meeting, where they did additional work on the ABC 2 

control rule, and then we started talking about the options 3 

paper for the Generic ACL/AM. 4 

 5 

The first action in the ACL/AM identifies a group of species 6 

that we might consider changing our management approach to in 7 

terms of delegation or removal and so we had some discussion 8 

about the species that are listed here and Mr. Teehan reported 9 

on the response from the Wildlife Commission about some of the 10 

ideas that have to do with delegating management to the Florida 11 

FWC and then we passed the following motion. 12 

 13 

Without opposition, the committee recommends, and I so move, 14 

that a new Alternative 4 be added to the Generic ACL/AM 15 

Amendment in Action 1.3 and Action 1.4 to allow the South 16 

Atlantic Fishery Management Council to manage Nassau grouper and 17 

yellowtail snapper throughout their range. 18 

 19 

MR. GILL:  It’s a committee motion.  Is there discussion? 20 

 21 

MS. MORRIS:  David Cupka reminded me that we have not conferred 22 

with the South Atlantic in any official way about this idea and 23 

so I hope we pass the motion, but we need to have some kind of 24 

official conversation begun with them about whether they would 25 

be willing to accept this or not. 26 

 27 

MR. GILL:  Absolutely.  Is there further discussion on the 28 

motion?  Any objection to the motion?  The motion passes with no 29 

opposition. 30 

 31 

MS. MORRIS:  The next motion added mutton snapper to Action 1.  32 

Without opposition, the committee recommends, and I so move, 33 

that mutton snapper be added to Action 1 with the same suite of 34 

alternatives as in Nassau grouper. 35 

 36 

MR. GILL:  It’s a committee motion.  Any discussion?  With no 37 

discussion, are there any objections?  Without objection, the 38 

motion passes. 39 

 40 

MS. MORRIS:  Next we talked about Action 2, which describes a 41 

potential list of ecosystem component species, and we ended up 42 

with a motion which is, by a voice vote with one nay, the 43 

committee recommends, and I so move, the Action 2, Designation 44 

of Ecosystem Component Species, be removed from the Generic 45 

ACL/AM Amendment. 46 

 47 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion? 48 
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 1 

MS. MORRIS:  There has been a sort of detailed back-and-forth 2 

between Shepherd and Steve about this, particularly in relation 3 

to corals.  I don’t know if either of them wants to bring that 4 

discussion up with full council, but this would be the moment if 5 

they do. 6 

 7 

MR. GILL:  Shep or Steve? 8 

 9 

MR. STEVEN ATRAN:  What happened was during committee Roy 10 

Crabtree had expressed an opinion that if we declared these 11 

protected corals ecosystem component species that it would 12 

remove the protections that we currently have in place and 13 

people would be able to go out and harvest them. 14 

 15 

I went back and I looked through the National Standard 1 16 

Guidelines and it does indicate that you can have prohibitions 17 

on harvest even if you declare a stock to be an ecosystem 18 

component species.  I had sent an email to Julie and Shep 19 

pointing that out and then we got into a debate.   20 

 21 

Shepherd kept sending me information and pointing out the full 22 

text of what’s in there, that ecosystem component species no 23 

longer have the requirement to declare MSY and OY and all those 24 

other status determination criteria.  My response was that I 25 

felt at least in the case of corals -- I thought they met the 26 

criteria that are listed for declaring them to be an ecosystem 27 

component species. 28 

 29 

They’re not an exploited resource.  We protect them and unlike 30 

something like goliath grouper, where we’re protecting them only 31 

to the point where we want to reopen the fishery, our intent, at 32 

least I believe our intent, is to never reopen these particular 33 

corals and so they’re not really an exploitable resource, but 34 

they are a resource.  They’re a living resource and they’re a 35 

habitat resource and it seemed to me that they’re an ideal 36 

component to declare an ecosystem component resource. 37 

 38 

Also, in the National Standard Guidelines, it states that the 39 

purpose of having this designation is to encourage an approach 40 

to ecosystem-based management, but it doesn’t tell you what that 41 

means.  If we were to declare these an ecosystem component, we 42 

could leave the protection in place that says don’t harvest 43 

them, but perhaps refer this to our Ecosystem SSC to say what’s 44 

a good approach to integrate this into the framework that 45 

they’re putting together on an ecosystem-based approach to 46 

fisheries management. 47 

 48 
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MR. GILL:  Shep, would you like to provide an opposing view? 1 

 2 

MR. GRIMES:  Yes, thank you, Mr. Chairman, I would like to 3 

retort.  The National Standard Guidelines provide if the intent 4 

is to prohibit directed fishing and retention throughout the EEZ 5 

for which a council has jurisdiction, the stock would most 6 

likely be identified in an FMP as in the fishery rather than an 7 

ecosystem component of one particular FMP. 8 

 9 

I think it is disingenuous, in the least, to say that we meet 10 

the criteria with regard to corals, because they’re not targeted 11 

and they’re not harvested.  They’re not targeted or harvested 12 

because that’s illegal and the whole reason you put those 13 

measures in place was to protect corals that were prior to that 14 

point targeted and harvested. 15 

 16 

That doesn’t seem to make a lot of sense to me.  Also, it’s a 17 

coral FMP and so you have -- You seem to be creating an FMP for 18 

the sake of managing an ecosystem component species and I have 19 

significant concerns with having regulations tailored directly 20 

to manage an ecosystem component species. 21 

 22 

If you have an FMP for something, it’s considered in the fishery 23 

and then you have to have management parameters for it.  You 24 

have to have MSY and OY and you need to know overfished and 25 

overfishing and ACLs and the rest.  By pushing it into an 26 

ecosystem classification, you avoid having to do all that, yet 27 

you’re still going to purport to have all these management 28 

measures in place for it that regulate the harvest and to me, 29 

that seems to be an end run around having to specify the other 30 

required management parameters on which management is supposed 31 

to be based. 32 

 33 

I generally would not encourage you to try to do this with 34 

corals.  Now, it’s up to you in the end and there may be other 35 

instances where ecosystem classification would be appropriate, 36 

but I feel very strongly that this is not one of those 37 

instances. 38 

 39 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t disagree with what Shepherd just said, 40 

but with respect to his comments about the end run about the 41 

parameters that management is supposed to be based on, in this 42 

case though management is not based on MSY and it’s not based on 43 

overfishing or stock size thresholds.  It’s not based on any of 44 

those things.   45 

 46 

This fishery is closed because of the value of the habitat and 47 

so it is really being managed, based on ecosystem 48 
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considerations, as habitat and not as a sustainable fisheries 1 

type resource.  We really aren’t managing most of these 2 

protected corals as fisheries.  We’re protecting them as habitat 3 

and so I think it is different from these other species. 4 

 5 

MR. GRIMES:  If that’s the case, then the most sensible thing to 6 

do would be to have them EFH in the Reef Fish FMP or have them 7 

as this fish habitat, which you can protect through your other 8 

FMPs, but not have them set up as a fishery management plan for 9 

which there is a fishery.  That may be the way things are done, 10 

but my understanding is this plan was put in place because it 11 

was a targeted resource.  People were harvesting it and within 12 

that FMP, there are still octocorals for which we have quotas 13 

and allowable harvest. 14 

 15 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes, but I think the -- I think Shep makes a good 16 

suggestion there and maybe we ought to look at can we maintain 17 

these closures without having these in the fishery management 18 

plan by protecting them as EFH.  That might be the most 19 

consistent way to do it, but I think, Shepherd, when the coral 20 

plan was originally put in place that we didn’t have that 21 

option, because I don’t think we had the ability to protect 22 

things as EFH at that time and then I just don’t think we’ve 23 

gotten around to it. 24 

 25 

We’re clearly not going to manage these corals as fisheries.  26 

We’re managing them as habitat and so that might be something 27 

for staff to look into and talk to Shepherd about and advise us 28 

at the next meeting, because that would, I think, simplify a lot 29 

of these things with respect to the corals. 30 

 31 

DR. LEARD:  I just wanted to point out that they’re basically 32 

under dual management, because they’re managed under the Generic 33 

EFH FMP, because we have areas specifically designated as coral 34 

areas where we prohibit other activities from even damaging 35 

coral.  We don’t know where all of the hard corals areas are, 36 

but we know where a lot of them are and where we do know, we 37 

have provided those protections via that FMP.  I just wanted to 38 

point that out. 39 

 40 

MS. MORRIS:  Back to the motion.  Let me just read you one 41 

statement from the committee report.  Mr. Atran noted that the 42 

interdepartmental planning team working on this amendment felt 43 

that no stocks under Gulf Council management were likely to 44 

qualify as ecosystem components and that this section could be 45 

removed.  I think we should pass this motion. 46 

 47 

MR. GILL:  Further discussion?  Are you ready to vote?  All 48 
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those in favor of the motion say aye; all those opposed like 1 

sign.  The motion passes. 2 

 3 

MS. MORRIS:  Then moving on to Action 3, which is on page 21, 4 

this is the species grouping action which builds on the 5 

presentation we had at the last meeting about how to group 6 

species that are not well known together with other species. 7 

 8 

We worked through this and we had a discussion that centered 9 

around the fact that some of the species listed in the species 10 

groupings already had allowable biological catches and annual 11 

catch limits established for them and we requested that the 12 

staff revise the way these alternatives are presented so that 13 

those species that already have ABCs and ACLs -- There could be 14 

an alternative that said these will remain as they are and then 15 

we would set ACLs for the other species that didn’t have those. 16 

 17 

There weren’t any motions along those lines, but it was clearly 18 

a request to staff that they revise and reorganize this section 19 

so that those species that already have ABCs and ACLs would be 20 

clearly identified and we would have the option of just sticking 21 

with those established ABCs and ACLs. 22 

 23 

Action 4 had to do with the ABC control rule, which is still 24 

under development by the SSC, and so we didn’t spend much time 25 

talking or working on that one.  Action 5 has to do with the 26 

ACL/ACT control rule.  There’s a working group within the 27 

council and it actually includes Steve, Carrie, Shannon Calay, 28 

and Elbert Whorton.   29 

 30 

It’s two SSC members and two of our staff members that came up 31 

with this first draft of the control rule and the committee 32 

requested that they expand the group a bit and that they add 33 

Andy and someone from the Law Enforcement AP and a sociologist 34 

from the SEP and take it to the next draft with that larger 35 

expanded working group and show us a revised ACL/ACT control 36 

rule at the June council meeting. 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  Julie, a comment here.  This is perhaps part of Roy’s 39 

point.  When they ran the ABC control rule for black grouper, 40 

they came up with a probability risk of overfishing of 33 41 

percent and given that that stock is in excellent shape, in all 42 

facets with the exception that the data was sparse, but totally 43 

agreeable amongst itself, it makes you wonder what kind of stock 44 

requirement is there to achieve a lesser risk of overfishing, 45 

something higher than the low 40 percent range.  I think that 46 

might have been part of what Roy was addressing during the 47 

committee in terms of the individual species or groupings level 48 
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of risk and the SSC making that determination. 1 

 2 

MS. MORRIS:  In response to that, what the ABC control rule is 3 

supposed to do is it’s supposed to focus in on scientific 4 

uncertainty and in your question or your comment, you said that 5 

the data was sparse on black grouper and so I imagine that the 6 

sparseness of that data contributes to the scientific 7 

uncertainty. 8 

 9 

Even though the stock is found to be healthy, the fact that the 10 

data is not very robust creates uncertainty in the overfishing 11 

level and so that’s probably -- I wasn’t there, but there’s 12 

these different -- How healthy is the stock is one question and 13 

how certain are we about the data and if it’s sparse, then that 14 

creates the scientific uncertainty. 15 

 16 

Moving on to Action 6, this one has to do with -- This is page 17 

35 and this is the sector allocation action and it is focusing 18 

on only those species that we have a commercial and recreational 19 

allocation already established and so that’s gag, gray 20 

triggerfish, greater amberjack, red grouper, and red snapper. 21 

 22 

There are three alternatives, the no action alternative, the go 23 

ahead and divide the recreational sector into for-hire and 24 

private angler sectors, and then the third alternative has to do 25 

with accountability measures for sectors. 26 

 27 

We had one motion.  By unanimous voice vote, the committee 28 

recommends, and I so move, that in Action 6, Alternative 2, the 29 

last sentence be revised to read after “sectors”, “based on 30 

established council allocation principles and guidelines.” 31 

 32 

What this motion was intended to do, I understand, was instead 33 

of restricting Alternative 2 to only different series of 34 

historical catches in order to figure out what a for-hire annual 35 

catch limit and a private recreational annual catch limit would 36 

be, it would instead refer work on figuring that out to the 37 

council allocation principles and guidelines. 38 

 39 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion? 40 

 41 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I just want to make sure that I’m clear on this 42 

and we’re only talking about the allocation between for-hire and 43 

recreational and this has nothing to do with commercial and is 44 

that right? 45 

 46 

MS. MORRIS:  Right. 47 

 48 
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MR. GILL:  Further discussion? 1 

 2 

MS. MORRIS:  I’ve had a lot of discussions about this with Ed 3 

and some with Assane since the committee meeting and it seems 4 

like what Ed is intending with this motion is that it’s effect 5 

would be that we would take any decisions about the actual ACLs 6 

for these two sectors out of the amendment and it would work on 7 

its own timeline in a separate process.  Correct me if I’m 8 

mischaracterizing the intent here. 9 

 10 

That’s what Ed thinks this motion that the committee made would 11 

accomplish and so another way to do this would be to add an 12 

alternative to this action that would actually specify an 13 

additional set of bases for this split of the ACL between for-14 

hire and private recreational. 15 

 16 

We could both have this as an option and we could add another 17 

alternative which was along the lines of in this document we are 18 

going to actually analyze three different ways that we might 19 

figure out how to base a separate ACL, historical landings, some 20 

kind of economic impact or net benefits analysis, and do that 21 

and develop it in the document and have discussion and be ready 22 

to go with that.  I just wanted to provide that context for this 23 

motion. 24 

 25 

MR. GILL:  I guess Ed ought to weigh in here, but my read was 26 

not the same as Ed’s, because there’s nothing in here about 27 

changing timelines or taking it out of the document or anything 28 

of that.  29 

 30 

My understanding of what we were trying to accomplish here is 31 

instead of, as you mentioned, relegating the decision on the 32 

allocation to a specific type, which is historical landings and 33 

then a subset of those that were considered acceptable, was to 34 

go back to what the council has agreed to do, which was look at 35 

other possibilities as well, which is I guess what you’re 36 

addressing in your additional options.  I think that’s fully 37 

compliant with what the intent of the motion is and so I guess I 38 

would ask Ed to elucidate on his different version of what he 39 

thinks the motion is. 40 

 41 

MR. SAPP:  I think the way that each of you characterized what 42 

my intent was is probably correct.  I apologize if after a year-43 

and-a-half I’m still procedurally challenged on how these things 44 

work, but let me tell you what my concern is. 45 

 46 

I think that all of us absolutely agree that we need to put 47 

everything in place that we can that’s going to get us better 48 
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data information.  One of the things that I think we probably 1 

all agree is that we’re to the point now, and we’ll be more so 2 

in the future, that we’re going to have better data collection 3 

for the for-hire industry. 4 

 5 

The whole issue of sector separation, I don’t think we’ve ever 6 

exactly defined it, because to my way of thinking, it’s a two-7 

part process and part of this process I’m at least agreeable to 8 

moving forward with within this amendment if that is something 9 

that’s really doable without taking that second step. 10 

 11 

What I see as the first step is that we acknowledge that for the 12 

purpose of data collection that it might be appropriate for us 13 

to move forward with that portion of sector separation, but the 14 

second portion, and this is what I know the industry that are 15 

interested in pursuing it really want out of it, is separate 16 

ACLs and AMs and ultimately potentially some kind of a catch 17 

share program or if not a catch share program, some sort of 18 

separate management regulations for them that are different from 19 

what the private hire guys are. 20 

 21 

If we can do it within this amendment in a way that will take us 22 

that first step, then I’m agreeable to it, but if we’re doing 23 

anything within this amendment that’s going to define how we’re 24 

going to take that second step, then I’m completely in 25 

opposition to that, but what my motion was was just to the point 26 

of if we ever get to the point that we’re actually going to have 27 

to determine allocation between those two subsectors, that it be 28 

done based on the principles and guidelines that we’ve 29 

established and put into our SOPPs and not limit it to just 30 

using historical catch data. 31 

 32 

MR. RIECHERS:  I’ll add a little bit to that discussion from Ed 33 

as well.  The reality of it is that if we can do net benefits 34 

and if we can do those things between the for-hire sector and 35 

the recreational sector, we can also include the commercial 36 

sector, because at least four of these species we talk about in 37 

Alternative 1 are the ones that we set aside and I believe it 38 

was Dr. Shipp’s language that called it an interim allocation, 39 

if I’m remembering correctly. 40 

 41 

There are some bigger issues at play here in regards to how 42 

these species have shifted in allocation through time and if we 43 

can use our principles and guidelines to do it for two of the 44 

three sectors, we can do it for the third as well.  We need to 45 

keep that in mind as we go down this road. 46 

 47 

I agree with Ed that if we’re going to look at this from a 48 
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notion of sector separation in regards to data collection, 1 

folks, we have different data collection mechanisms already and 2 

we can certainly use a new data collection mechanism in one of 3 

those two recreational activities, be it for-hire or the private 4 

recreational. 5 

 6 

In fact, you can argue that we’re going down a road to have new 7 

data collection systems in both of those right now, with MRIP 8 

and with the electronic data system that we’re talking about for 9 

the for-hire sector.  In that context, I think we can go down 10 

that road.  I’m fearful that people are going to be rushing and 11 

racing to the fish to build catch histories if we go down that 12 

road, but that’s probably what will happen in the for-hire 13 

sector, because many of those people believe it’s going to lead 14 

to some sort of catch-rights system and, of course, we may end 15 

up having more effort in that fishery than we anticipated 16 

associated with that. 17 

 18 

If we’re going to add that other notion back in here, and I’m 19 

for adding it back in here actually, because we should look at 20 

our principles and we shouldn’t just look at a historical 21 

period, but we need to be thinking we also have interim 22 

allocations on those other species, or on four of these five 23 

species that we talked about, and that we said we were going to 24 

come back and deal with when we set that aside from another 25 

amendment, from an earlier amendment. 26 

 27 

MS. WILLIAMS:  When this motion was passed, it was my opinion 28 

that it was in the context as Mr. Gill described.  It had 29 

nothing to do -- That’s why my first question earlier was is 30 

this between recreational and just charter. 31 

 32 

We have another amendment to look at allocations that was 33 

actually following one of our principles and guidelines 34 

philosophy, which said there were steps in order to do that.  35 

One, a council person had to bring it to the table and in doing 36 

that, they had to state the purpose and needs and other things 37 

that they were trying to accomplish before we even went down 38 

that road. 39 

 40 

Our ACLs and our AMs, to me, are different from that.  This 41 

council can go in and change allocations if they have the 42 

information that justifies doing an action like that at any 43 

time.  It doesn’t necessarily have to be tied to the ACL/AM.   44 

 45 

To me, the ACL/AM is where we have our TACs or limits and 46 

they’re divided and if this council wants to go back into 47 

another amendment, but if we get into this trying to -- I’m not 48 
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going to say allocate, but I’m going to say to reallocate things 1 

between different sectors, commercial and recreational, then 2 

that’s really going to slow this down and we keep hearing that 3 

we’ve got to get the ACLs and AMs in in a certain time span and 4 

we have time to work on the other things, if this council 5 

chooses to do that, later.  I would only support this if in fact 6 

it is worded and the intentions are as Mr. Gill explained. 7 

 8 

MS. MORRIS:  I’m going to offer a substitute motion and it will 9 

start with the beginning of this motion and I’m going to replace 10 

everything starting with “based on established council 11 

allocation principles and guidelines” and so in place of that, I 12 

would like it to say “based on one or a combination of the 13 

following options: historical landings data, net benefits to the 14 

nation, economic impact”.  If I can get a second, I will 15 

explain. 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  There’s a substitute motion on the board that in 18 

Action 6, Alternative 2, that the last sentence be revised after 19 

the word “sectors” to read: “based on one or a combination of 20 

the following options: historical landings data, net benefits to 21 

the nation, economic impact”.  Is there a second? 22 

 23 

MR. SAPP:  I’ll second for discussion. 24 

 25 

MR. GILL:  The motion is seconded.  Is there discussion? 26 

 27 

MR. TEEHAN:  Julie, correct me if I’m wrong, but the way this 28 

thing reads is it could be any one of those three things that 29 

you’ve listed and one of those is economic impacts and we’re not 30 

allowed to, by Magnuson, to establish allocation based on 31 

economic impact alone.  The way this is worded implies that that 32 

could occur and can we somehow wordsmith that a little bit? 33 

 34 

MS. MORRIS:  We could just say “based on a combination of the 35 

following options” and that would solve that. 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  Good point, Bill. 38 

 39 

MR. SAPP:  My comment is that it well be that when we decide to 40 

do an allocation between the two subsectors that these are the 41 

things that are most attractive as methods for doing it, but 42 

what our SOPPs says is that when we consider allocation that we 43 

use the principles and guidelines and the principles and 44 

guidelines include things that aren’t among these two that are 45 

in the substitute motion.  They include arbitration between the 46 

sectors and market-based and my point is that our guidelines are 47 

broader than what this substitute motion offers to us. 48 
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 1 

MS. MORRIS:  These are on the menu that are laid out as possible 2 

methods for determining an allocation in our principles and in 3 

looking at all the methods that were laid out, these seemed to 4 

me and to a couple of people that I talked to to be the most 5 

viable of the methods for this particular allocation or ACL 6 

setting challenge.  That’s why they’re included in the 7 

substitute motion. 8 

 9 

DR. ASSANE DIAGNE:  I just wanted to say that the principles and 10 

guidelines just lists a series of methods and it is up to the 11 

council to suggest the methods that they deem appropriate for 12 

this particular exercise and so as a council, you could pick any 13 

one of them and say that we would like to allocate based on this 14 

one. 15 

 16 

MR. SAPP:  I’m not willing to make that determination for which 17 

of those methods is appropriate for a broad range of fish that 18 

are included within this.  I want the council to, at the 19 

appropriate time, consider which of the methods that are 20 

available to us in the principles and guidelines are appropriate 21 

for that particular species that we’re talking about and this is 22 

telling the council that these are the methods that they’re 23 

going to have to use, when the time comes, for that whole 24 

handful of different fish. 25 

 26 

MR. TEEHAN:  Ed, would it ease your angst a little bit, and 27 

maybe this is going too far for Julie, to say “based on a 28 

combination of the options outlined in the council’s guidelines 29 

for allocation”? 30 

 31 

MR. SAPP:  I’m going to make a request of Shep that he weighs 32 

in.  Are we not required to refer to the SOPPs at the point that 33 

we officially make within the council or request for allocation, 34 

that at that point we use the principles and guidelines that 35 

we’ve established and included as part of the SOPPs? 36 

 37 

MR. GRIMES:  I didn’t really follow that, but I would say, not 38 

having your policy right in front of me, you set up the policy 39 

and you put it in the SOPPs and you said this is how we’re going 40 

to handle allocation and then you should follow it.  Whether you 41 

reference it in this motion, I guess I don’t have much concern 42 

over that, but ultimately, when you get around to addressing the 43 

allocation issues, you should follow the policy which you just 44 

established and please let me know if that did not answer your 45 

question, because I don’t think I understood it. 46 

 47 

MR. GILL:  My comment would be that the way I see this 48 
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substitute motion is it’s asking staff to analyze those areas 1 

which are most productive and you’re certainly not going to be 2 

able to analyze mediation, et cetera, some of those options.  3 

This is an attempt to get to the next step, doing some analysis, 4 

and see what comes out and it does not obviate other steps down 5 

the road, but you certainly can’t analyze some of the 6 

possibilities. 7 

 8 

MS. MORRIS:  The principles for allocation call for the process 9 

to be initiated by a council motion laying out the purpose and 10 

objectives for the allocation decision and then to suggest from 11 

that long menu of possible methods that could be used as the 12 

basis for that allocation which ones seem to be the most 13 

appropriate in this particular situation. 14 

 15 

One interpretation is that by having this Action 6 in this 16 

amendment the council has indicated their interest in initiating 17 

an allocation discussion in between charter for-hire and private 18 

angler.  That’s been done and that the objectives and purpose 19 

for doing that are laid out in Action 6. 20 

 21 

Then the way that the council is suggesting the methods to be 22 

followed is by which of these things will be analyzed in the 23 

discussion of Action 6 and so this is an attempt to use Action 6 24 

to follow the principles and guidelines for allocation through 25 

this options paper and as it develops into a draft. 26 

 27 

If the council would prefer to have a motion with purpose and 28 

objectives and suggested methods, I’ve also prepared a way for 29 

us to do that in this meeting that we can get to after we work 30 

through this amendment. 31 

 32 

MR. SAPP:  This is to your point, Bob.  You suggest that this is 33 

more appropriate because it gives a more limited guidance to 34 

staff to begin to analyze it and my point is that I don’t want 35 

them analyzing anything at this point.  I don’t want them to go 36 

into that list of five fish that are under consideration and 37 

begin to determine what an allocation might look like. 38 

 39 

I think we’re a long way from being there.  I think first we’ve 40 

got to see if we get improved data collection through our pilot 41 

programs that we’re fixing to initiate and that we accumulate 42 

some of that data and at some point two or three or four or five 43 

years down the road, then maybe we begin to have those 44 

discussions. 45 

 46 

You’re assuming that we’re ready to move forward with this whole 47 

issue of sector separation that goes to that second point, where 48 
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we begin to establish some kind of a catch share system or some 1 

other management measures for that subsector and I’m not 2 

anywhere near ready to go there yet. 3 

 4 

MR. RIECHERS:  I kind of want to go back to Julie’s point about 5 

the purpose and need and all of that discussion, because if you 6 

go back in the council record, after we moved those out of the 7 

other documents and we created this interim allocation notion, 8 

we had a lot of discussion around this table about purpose and 9 

need and about revisiting this at another time. 10 

 11 

We established that we were going to do that and we established 12 

that we had a purpose and need at that time.  Some people around 13 

the table don’t think we did that adequately, but we have a 14 

couple of different votes that in fact suggest that we were 15 

going to do that and look at that.  I think that would just be 16 

redundant to what we’ve already done.   17 

 18 

I’m certainly not opposed to you doing it here, but we’ve 19 

already said that we’re going to go back and visit this and that 20 

we need to go back and visit this and we in fact indicated that 21 

to all of our stakeholders in four of these five fisheries, 22 

dealing with those interim allocations. 23 

 24 

I can support this motion, but I can also support the motion of 25 

opening it up to a broader sector allocation discussion and that 26 

is something as we really should be looking at, as we’ve talked 27 

about around this table in the past, and we’ve kind of just let 28 

it kind of wash under the rug as we’ve tried to talk about ACLs 29 

and AMs and how urgent it is and all the other things we’ve got 30 

to do in an urgent fashion.  We’ve basically just dismissed 31 

ourselves from some of the previous conversations that we’ve had 32 

in regards to that. 33 

 34 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I can support the motion that’s on the board and 35 

in reference to what Robin was talking about, if you go back and 36 

you read through several of the minutes and you see what was 37 

said and the actions that the council took, like I said, there 38 

is something there where the broader allocations can be looked 39 

at at some time. 40 

 41 

To me, all that’s going on here right now is the effort to try 42 

and stop this council from looking at some type of allocation 43 

between the for-hire and the private recreational and anything 44 

that can be stuck in here to muddy the road, to slow things 45 

down, to try and get people to change their minds and not look 46 

at this, then that, to me, is the attempt that I’m hearing in 47 

some of the discussion around the table, but as that reads on 48 
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the board, I can support that. 1 

 2 

MS. MORRIS:  Just a final comment.  This is, again, an options 3 

paper and we’re not choosing preferred alternatives.  Folks who 4 

don’t want to go forward with sector separation in this 5 

amendment, there’s Alternative 1, which is the no action 6 

alternative.  What I’m trying to do with the substitute motion 7 

is make Alternative 2 workable and to have more than just 8 

historical landings in the mix of thinking about what the basis 9 

for a separate ACL for the two parts of the recreational 10 

allocation would be.  That’s all I wanted to say. 11 

 12 

MR. GILL:  We’ll vote this one up or down.  The substitute 13 

motion is in Action 6, Alternative 2, that the last sentence be 14 

revised after the word “sectors” to read, “based on a 15 

combination of the following options:  historical landings data, 16 

net benefits to the nation, economic impact.”  All those in 17 

favor, with a show of hands; all those opposed, with a show of 18 

hands.  The motion passes. 19 

 20 

MS. MORRIS:  Moving on to Action 7, we had a briefing by 21 

Shepherd Grimes that helped us understand, in a very logical and 22 

helpful way, what Action 7 was about.  It sets out three 23 

alternatives, actually four alternatives including no action, 24 

for a generic framework procedure that would allow us to make 25 

adjustments within a framework in a more elegant and expeditious 26 

way.   27 

 28 

There weren’t any committee motions on that and that would take 29 

us to Action 8 and that is as far as we got in the committee 30 

work.  We would be looking at additional discussion of Action 8 31 

and Action 9 for the rest of the time devoted to this committee. 32 

 33 

MR. GILL:  You can discuss Action 8 and Action 9. 34 

 35 

MS. MORRIS:  Steve, you can help by introducing Action 8. 36 

 37 

MR. ATRAN:  Action 8 deals with initial specification of annual 38 

catch limits.  For the majority of the species, this will have 39 

to be filled in at a later time, once we have our ACL control 40 

rule ready, but there’s some species that fall outside of what 41 

that control rule will cover and so we have some subsections for 42 

red drum, octocorals, stone crab, and I think there was 43 

something else in here. 44 

 45 

Karen Burns prepared the section on red drum and Carrie prepared 46 

the sections for the other species where we’re looking at 47 

species setting and so I’m going to ask them to review the 48 
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sections that they wrote and one thing I just wanted to note, 1 

first of all, is that some of these sections had to make some 2 

assumptions as to where we’re going to be setting an ABC, 3 

because some of these species currently either don’t have an ABC 4 

or they’re defined in terms of a range rather than a single 5 

value. 6 

 7 

We’ve got some numbers in here, but those will have to be run 8 

through the SSC and be approved by the SSC in order to be 9 

formally adopted.  Karen, did you want to start with Action 8.1 10 

on page 47? 11 

 12 

DR. KAREN BURNS:  Thank you, Steve.  The alternatives for the 13 

red drum, you have them in your briefing book.  3 and 4 are 14 

changed from the original ones because the council did not want 15 

to have an annual catch limit in federal waters that was equal 16 

to zero and so basically, these are not complete until we get 17 

the ruling from the Scientific and Statistical Committee on an 18 

acceptable biological catch and then the options under 19 

Alternative 3 and Alternative 4 can be completed. 20 

 21 

MS. MORRIS:  Any comment on that?  That’s good and that 22 

implements what we asked you to do at the last meeting and so 23 

let’s move on to the next species then, which is on page 51. 24 

 25 

DR. CARRIE SIMMONS:  For allowable octocorals, again, remember 26 

this is a joint quota and so I don’t know if the South Atlantic 27 

and Gulf SSCs need to meet to develop an ABC for octocorals and 28 

then from there, you can see the various alternatives under 29 

Alternative 3 for how the annual catch limit would be divided, 30 

based on that quota.  That species is a little tricky still. 31 

 32 

MS. MORRIS:  Any discussion or changes that the council wants to 33 

suggest at this point for octocorals?  Hearing none, then we 34 

will move on to the next species, which is on page 53, which is 35 

stone crab. 36 

 37 

DR. SIMMONS:  The SSC will be discussing these species I guess 38 

in May and my understanding is the State of Florida is 39 

conducting a stock assessment for stone crab that will be 40 

updated and that will be very beneficial for setting an ABC and 41 

then an ACL for stone crab.  These are just the current draft 42 

alternatives I have on page 53 for stone crab. 43 

 44 

MS. MORRIS:  Any discussion or comment on stone crab?  Thank 45 

you, Carrie.  Then the next species is on page 55, royal red 46 

shrimp. 47 

 48 
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DR. SIMMONS:  These are the same alternatives that you saw at 1 

the last council meeting, with the exception of Alternative 2 2 

was modified to match the other species, where you’re taking 100 3 

percent of the ABC, 75 percent, or using the ACL/ACT control 4 

rule. 5 

 6 

MS. MORRIS:  Any discussion or comment on royal red?  Then we’re 7 

going to move on to Action 8.5, which is data-adequate stocks 8 

and stock groupings. 9 

 10 

MR. ATRAN:  Those are sections that I’ve been working on.  11 

Action 8.5 and Action 8.6 are worded the same way, except that 12 

one deals with data-adequate stocks and one deals with data-poor 13 

stocks that will require a different control rule. 14 

 15 

Since we don’t have those control rules in place yet, we are 16 

unable to give specific alternatives for where those limits 17 

would be set.  I just envision, when we do get them, putting 18 

them in a table similar to the example that’s on page 58 and 59, 19 

where I’ll have a column for the no action alternative that will 20 

indicate where our current ACLs and ACTs are, if we have them 21 

set elsewhere or stocks that we don’t have them set for, and 22 

Alternative 2 would have any proposed ACLs and ACTs under the 23 

control rules. 24 

 25 

If these are going to be species groupings that we’re using with 26 

an indicator species, there’s also a column to indicate what 27 

species would be the indicator species and so these still need 28 

to await completion of the ACL control rule before we can 29 

complete this section. 30 

 31 

MS. MORRIS:  Any comment on those two, data-rich or data-poor?  32 

I’m not hearing any.  Then let’s move on to Action 9 -- 33 

 34 

DR. CRABTREE:  I have a comment on this.  I guess it would be 35 

this section of the document.  If you go through the ACL 36 

guidelines, there’s a section in there where it says -- This is 37 

under Status Determination Criteria.  It says each FMP must 38 

describe which of the following two methods will be used for 39 

each stock or stock complex to determine an overfishing status.  40 

Method 1 is fishing mortality rate exceeds the maximum fishing 41 

mortality threshold, which is how we’ve always done it, but 42 

Method 2 is catch exceeds the overfishing limit, which is now a 43 

way of doing things. 44 

 45 

This, I think, is a solution to what is a significant problem 46 

for us, because we typically are going four and five years in 47 

between stock assessments and I’ll lay out a real example of 48 
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this problem to you. 1 

 2 

We have a red snapper assessment update and we just raised the 3 

TAC, but the update projected that the overfishing ended in 4 

2009.  I do not think that Headquarters will change the status 5 

of red snapper in the Status of Stocks Report to Congress and so 6 

we’re operating on the basis that in red snapper the overfishing 7 

has ended, yet we’re going to send a report to Congress that 8 

until we get a new stock assessment that actually shows that 9 

yes, the F estimate is below the threshold and overfishing has 10 

ended, we’re going to be sending a report to Congress saying 11 

that the overfishing has not ended. 12 

 13 

The solution to this, in my view, is for us to decide we’re 14 

going to make these determinations based on is the catch below 15 

the overfishing limit or not below the overfishing limit and if 16 

we did that, I think we could say that the overfishing has ended 17 

on red snapper, because the catches are less than the 18 

overfishing limit. 19 

 20 

I don’t know, and Shepherd can advise us, if this needs to be an 21 

action or not, but I think somewhere in this document, and it 22 

seems like it would go in this section probably, we ought to 23 

have a discussion in there that indicates which method we’re 24 

going to use and I think my preference is to use the overfishing 25 

limit, because we can look at that every year and say we’re 26 

above it or we’re under it, whereas if we use fishing mortality 27 

rates, we can only look at it when we get a new assessment.  We 28 

always get an assessment and take an action, but then we go 29 

years and years before we get the next assessment.  I offer that 30 

up for some discussion. 31 

 32 

MS. MORRIS:  I understand your point about above an overfishing 33 

limit or below an overfishing limit, but could you say again how 34 

that would fit into this document?  Is it a separate action or 35 

would it be alternatives within some other actions? 36 

 37 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t know that it needs to be an action.  I 38 

think we probably need to pass a motion on how we want to do 39 

this and then just in the document say this is the way we’re 40 

going to do it.   41 

 42 

I guess it could be an action and I think Shepherd would be the 43 

one to advise us on that, but we’re basically saying we’re going 44 

to continue to base all of these determinations on maximum 45 

fishing mortality thresholds and fishing mortality rates or 46 

we’re going to make it based on are the catches above or below 47 

the overfishing level.  Shepherd, do you think this needs to be 48 
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an action or how would we do this, structurally? 1 

 2 

MR. GRIMES:  It’s necessarily a dichotomous choice, right?  You 3 

have to base it on one or the other and I really don’t see a 4 

whole lot of benefit from making it a separate action.  I would 5 

just include the discussion and lay out the council’s rationale 6 

for why it wants to assess overfishing status based on one or 7 

the other criteria.  I think Dr. Crabtree has just done a 8 

reasonably good job of doing that for you. 9 

 10 

MR. ATRAN:  We can put a discussion in, but it might have to be 11 

its own section, because this isn’t an ACL or an ACT.  It’s 12 

something else, but I was going to suggest that you don’t really 13 

need to choose one or the other.  You could use both of them.   14 

 15 

In the year in which you get a stock assessment, you’ll get the 16 

fishing mortality estimate and that will tell you whether your 17 

fishing mortality rate is over or under the overfishing limit, 18 

but then for the projections going forward, as long as you can 19 

keep your catches under the projected landings that correspond 20 

to F overfishing, then you can say you’re not overfished.  You 21 

could use both of them together.  It’s not necessary to make a 22 

choice. 23 

 24 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think it is necessary to make a choice of how 25 

we’re going to do it, because in the years in between 26 

assessments, you’re going to get the actual landings and I think 27 

we need to lay out in here -- I think when you get an assessment 28 

the overfishing level will be based on the MFMT and the current 29 

estimate of stock status and so I think the two are connected 30 

and are the same thing, essentially. 31 

 32 

What we can’t do is make our overfishing determination changes 33 

based on projections, because Headquarters won’t go along with 34 

making those.  I think when you get the assessment they’re 35 

equivalent.  It’s the years in between assessments that you’re 36 

going to base it on the catch levels.  That’s a change from what 37 

we’ve done in the past, of course, because we’ve never had 38 

overfishing levels and we’ve never had this option. 39 

 40 

MS. MORRIS:  I’m trying to figure out if we need a motion on 41 

this and what the motion would say and I’m not seeing a clear 42 

path.  Is it enough, Dr. Crabtree, to request that staff -- 43 

 44 

DR. CRABTREE:  Do you want me to make a motion? 45 

 46 

MS. MORRIS:  Yes, please. 47 

 48 
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DR. CRABTREE:  I move that staff include, at the appropriate 1 

section in the document, a discussion of the two methods for 2 

determining overfishing status and the benefits and drawbacks of 3 

each method.  I’ll explain that if I have a second. 4 

 5 

MS. MORRIS:  We’ve got a second. 6 

 7 

DR. CRABTREE:  What I’m asking is staff will put a discussion in 8 

there of the methods and lay it all out for us and then when we 9 

come back to the next time we go through this document, we can 10 

take a look at that and then maybe at that time we can make a 11 

decision about which method we’re going to use. 12 

 13 

MS. MORRIS:  Is there any further discussion of this motion?  Is 14 

there any opposition to the motion?  The motion passes without 15 

opposition.  We’re going to go back to Action 9, which has to do 16 

with accountability.  There’s 9.1, which is accountability for 17 

the commercial sector, which is what we’re going to talk about 18 

first. 19 

 20 

MR. ATRAN:  This section was put together by Peter Hood and so 21 

I’m going to ask him to review the alternatives and as he goes 22 

through them, please bear in mind that these are not mutually 23 

exclusive alternatives and in fact, I believe it’s set up with 24 

the intent that you would adopt a suite of alternatives to cover 25 

different scenarios that might require accountability measures.  26 

Peter, are you ready? 27 

 28 

MR. PETER HOOD:  Accountability measures -- This is a very 29 

complicated amendment, as you know, and certainly when we start 30 

to apply these accountability measures things that you’ll need 31 

to be taking into consideration are how was the ABC control rule 32 

put together, how were ACLs set, are we using targets, what are 33 

the species groups, and do we have some type of sector 34 

separation or not?  Those are all factors that you’ll need to 35 

think about. 36 

 37 

In terms of the accountability measures, there are two types 38 

that are discussed in the guidance and one is in-season, where 39 

within a year, if it looks like the ACL is going to be exceeded, 40 

you would implement some measures to try to ensure that the ACL 41 

is not exceeded and then corrective measures, where if at the 42 

end of the fishing year it appears that the ACL has been 43 

exceeded, then you would put in some sort of measure for the 44 

following year, to make sure that the ACL for that year isn’t 45 

exceeded. 46 

 47 

For stocks that are in a rebuilding plan, the guidance talks 48 
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about overage adjustments and do you reduce the ACL the 1 

following year if a stock is under rebuilding and then also 2 

we’ve used this for some of the grouper species in the 3 

recreational fishery, but you can use averaging in terms of how 4 

you apply the ACL trigger. 5 

 6 

I’ll start with Action 9.1 for the commercial sector and I would 7 

just first point out that the alternatives that we have are not 8 

mutually exclusive and so a couple of these alternatives could 9 

be used together to manage a stock and basically, we’re talking 10 

about non-IFQ fisheries here. 11 

 12 

Alternative 1 is the no action alternative, which would be not 13 

to establish accountability measures for stocks that don’t have 14 

accountability measures.  Alternative 2, this has both in-season 15 

and corrective measures in it.  Basically, if it looks like a 16 

stock is going to exceed its ACL, the AA for Fisheries would 17 

file a notification to close the fishery within that year and 18 

then if for some reason the ACL is exceeded, then we have two 19 

options in terms of what can be done. 20 

 21 

Option A is that the AA would file a notification in the Federal 22 

Register which would implement temporary regulations consistent 23 

with those that are dictated under framework and that would 24 

include things like trip limits, maybe some season closures to 25 

try to reduce effort within that fishing year and ensure that 26 

the harvest doesn’t exceed the ACL. 27 

 28 

Option B basically does the same thing.  The difference is that 29 

you as the council would determine what sort of measures would 30 

be put in place and then you would request the AA to put those 31 

measures in place through a notification to the Office of the 32 

Federal Register. 33 

 34 

Alternative 3 is another -- This would be an in-season measure 35 

and basically you split the fishing year up into quarters, with 36 

parts of the harvest allocated to each quarter.  If it looks 37 

like that portion of the harvest is going to be exceeded, then 38 

you would shut down the fishery within that quarter and then 39 

until the next quarter starts up again, the fishery would be 40 

closed. 41 

 42 

Basically, if the harvest is above what that allocation for that 43 

quarter would be, then you would reduce that from the following 44 

quarter.  If it was below that level, then you could add it to 45 

the following quarter. 46 

 47 

Alternative 4 is another in-season measure and basically, after 48 
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about half the year you would evaluate what the landings are and 1 

if it looks like the landings are too high, you would request 2 

the AA to put in place some temporary measures to try to reduce 3 

effort and make sure that the ACL is not exceeded. 4 

 5 

Alternatives 5 and 6 are overage adjustments.  Alternative 5 6 

would be for stocks undergoing rebuilding and so these would be 7 

stocks that had been determined to be overfished.  We have three 8 

options.  Option A basically follows guidance for National 9 

Standard 1 and basically here the full amount of the overage, 10 

unless there’s some information to dictate otherwise, would be 11 

reduced in the following year if you went over. 12 

 13 

Option B would be the amount the ACL exceeded with some sort of 14 

weighting factor and this would be based on the stock’s 15 

productivity or susceptibility.  I’m working with Nick Farmer on 16 

this to try to flesh this out a little bit better, but in 17 

essence, the lower the productivity of the stock or the higher 18 

the susceptibility of a stock to overfishing, the higher the 19 

overage adjustment would be. 20 

 21 

Then Option C is basically just doing an overage adjustment and 22 

this is beyond what guidance dictates and it would just say that 23 

you would apply an overage that’s greater than what the fishery 24 

went over in that particular year and so in this case, as an 25 

example, we have 110 percent of the overage amount. 26 

 27 

Alternative 6 is for stocks that are not under a rebuilding plan 28 

and in essence, if there’s an overage, do you want to apply some 29 

sort of adjustment to the following year and under Option A, it 30 

would be the full amount, unless there’s information to dictate 31 

that it should be some value less than that, and then Option B, 32 

you would not apply an overage adjustment unless you have maybe 33 

some severe overfishing that’s been going on that’s damaged the 34 

stock, at which point then you would, based on the information 35 

that you have, apply some type of overage adjustment to the 36 

stock.  That’s what we have for the commercial measures. 37 

 38 

MS. MORRIS:  Discussion or comments about accountability 39 

measures for the commercial sector? 40 

 41 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Peter, what I don’t understand -- I don’t support 42 

most of these accountability measures that you’ve got for the 43 

commercial sector and I’ll say the same thing when I get to the 44 

recreational.   45 

 46 

We are being asked to set ACLs and AMs and we’re looking at 47 

species groupings and we’re looking at using certain methods to 48 
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set these ACLs, determining on what type of information that we 1 

have on some of these species and/or groupings of stocks, 2 

however we decide to go. 3 

 4 

Those that we have very little information on that some of the 5 

fishermen do catch, but they don’t really target them as they do 6 

in your ITQ fisheries, if we use what you have here and they 7 

happen to go over some small amount that we have listed as the 8 

ACL for something that we know very little about and someone 9 

happens to come in and for whatever reason happens to have an 10 

abundance of these fish that we really haven’t went out there 11 

and assessed or have very little information on to assess, you 12 

will shut down the entire fishery, including the IFQ fishery. 13 

 14 

These measure, the way that I read them, if you have a non-IFQ 15 

fishery and that is exceeded, for whichever stock this is that 16 

you’re referring to that we don’t have the IFQ fishery and when 17 

that’s reached you’re going to shut down the entire commercial 18 

fishery, that makes absolutely no sense or to go and divide the 19 

seasons up by non-IFQ fishery when we have an IFQ fishery.  I 20 

don’t know how you handle this. 21 

 22 

Basically, if you overfish something or if you go over your 23 

limit, when you do, pay it back the next year, but to just shut 24 

down a fishery for stocks that we know very little about, that’s 25 

going to happen with this language. 26 

 27 

MS. MORRIS:  Any other discussion on this section or any motions 28 

regarding this section?  Then we’re going to move on to the next 29 

section, which is accountability measures for the recreational 30 

sector. 31 

 32 

MR. HOOD:  Just to Kay’s point, these are just examples of 33 

accountability measures and these would be applied to specific 34 

groups or species where we’ve set ACLs and so this wouldn’t 35 

close down an entire fishery, per se, unless you decided to set 36 

it up along those lines.  Again, these are just examples of 37 

trying to put some information out for you to look at and, 38 

again, any advice we can get, we certainly would appreciate it 39 

in terms of how we structure these. 40 

 41 

With that said, we did not divide up the recreational measures 42 

basically for separate sectors.  That’s certainly something that 43 

could happen if you all decide that you want to separate them 44 

and so we would apply them to the different sectors. 45 

 46 

Alternative 1 is no action, which basically wouldn’t establish 47 

accountability measures, except for those species where we 48 
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already have them.  Alternative 2, this is that multiyear 1 

trigger that we use for grouper.  This talks about what to use 2 

as a trigger.  Option A would be a single year of landings and 3 

then Option B would be a -- For the first year, it would be a 4 

single year of landings and for the second year, it would be an 5 

average of the two years and then for the third year and on, it 6 

would be a three-year average. 7 

 8 

For that option, we have two suboptions that if during that 9 

timeframe an ACL is reduced, the sequence of future ACLs would 10 

either be, one, continue using the three-year averages, or, two, 11 

you would start the clock again with the first year’s ACL being 12 

based on one year of landings and so on. 13 

 14 

Alternative 3, this is similar to Alternative 2 for the 15 

commercial measures.  Basically, you have in-season and 16 

corrective measures, where if it looks like the ACL is going to 17 

be exceeded within a year, the AA would close the fishery once 18 

it looked like that ACL was going to be reached. 19 

 20 

If the ACL was exceeded -- This is an error.  I think it should 21 

read pretty much the same as for the commercial ACLs, but 22 

basically, the AA would file a notification implementing 23 

temporary measures that would keep the stock from exceeding the 24 

ACL and those measures would be dictated by what’s allowed in 25 

the framework. 26 

 27 

Then Option B would just be that rather than the AA determining 28 

what measures are taken that the council would make that 29 

determination and request that from the AA and if the council 30 

didn’t make such a request, then the AA would be able to close 31 

the fishery once it looked like the ACL was going to be reached. 32 

 33 

Alternative 4, this is similar to the Alternative 4 for the 34 

commercial measures, where basically after a certain period of 35 

time, and in this place we say through April, the harvest is 36 

exceeded and if it exceeds some value, and in this case it’s an 37 

overage over the past five years, by 20 percent, which is what 38 

we put in and it’s just an example, that then the council would 39 

request temporary measures to be put in place to keep the 40 

fishery from exceeding the ACL through a reduction in fishing 41 

effort and then Alternatives 5 and 6 are exactly like what we 42 

have in -- This refers to the overage adjustments and this is 43 

exactly like what we have in the commercial measures and if it’s 44 

okay with you, I won’t repeat myself, in the interests of time. 45 

 46 

MS. MORRIS:  Thank you, Peter.  In your introductory remarks, 47 

you mentioned that you recognized that this needed to be 48 
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reorganized a bit so that if the preferred alternative in Action 1 

6 ends up being sector separation that this makes sense in terms 2 

of accountability measures, right? 3 

 4 

MR. HOOD:  That’s correct. 5 

 6 

MS. MORRIS:  Any other discussion about Action 9.2, 7 

Accountability Measures for the Recreational Sector? 8 

 9 

MR. RAY:  I think I heard this and I’ll ask again, but these 10 

particular alternatives are not mutually exclusive.  We can use 11 

like a combination of these, should we get that far, in the 12 

future.  Is that correct? 13 

 14 

MR. HOOD:  Yes, that’s definitely correct. 15 

 16 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I see under the recreational that you have an 17 

alternative here that states beginning with landings from 2011.  18 

What about the ACLs and AMs that we already have in our 19 

documents and the language that we have there about the rolling 20 

three-year average?  Are you wanting this to take the place of 21 

what’s in our fishery management plans now or how does that 22 

work? 23 

 24 

MR. HOOD:  It’s dependent upon your choices.  We do have 25 

accountability measures and we do have ACLs established for some 26 

of our fisheries and in those cases, if you decided that you did 27 

not want to apply any of these accountability measures, that 28 

would certainly be fine.  Again, this is just sort of a first 29 

test of some accountability measures for you to look at and 30 

we’re looking for input on that.  We’re still in an options 31 

paper here. 32 

 33 

MS. MORRIS:  Any other discussion?  It would be fair to say that 34 

we like the way this looks at this point in time and anything 35 

else that needs to be said about this action?  Anything else 36 

that needs to be said about the options paper at this meeting?  37 

 38 

MR. ATRAN:  There is one other section.  It’s not an alternative 39 

section, but it is one that the council needs to be aware of.  40 

It’s the ABC statement for penaeid shrimp species that’s on 41 

pages 70 to 71.   42 

 43 

Penaeid shrimp, which are the brown shrimp, white shrimp, and 44 

pink shrimp, are not subject to the requirements for ACLs 45 

because they’re annual species and they’re not subject to 46 

overfishing and they’re unlikely to become subject.  They’re one 47 

of the categories that the guidelines say we don’t need ACLs on. 48 
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 1 

However, we were advised by the regional office that we do need 2 

to have ABCs for them, as well as status determination criteria, 3 

maximum sustainable yield, optimum yield, and an ABC control 4 

rule.  Some of these we already have. 5 

 6 

Shrimp Amendment 13 established the status determination 7 

criteria, maximum sustainable yield, and optimum yield, but it 8 

did not establish an overfishing limit or an ABC or an ABC 9 

control rule.   10 

 11 

The regional office provided us with this language which we’ve 12 

inserted in as an item, which simply what it does is it takes 13 

these three shrimp species and it considers them to be a shrimp 14 

assemblage and a shrimp grouping and it establishes and OFL for 15 

the group based upon what Amendment 13 indicated was the maximum 16 

probable catch for these species together, which is 216 million 17 

pounds of tails. 18 

 19 

Then it established an ABC based upon the sum of the maximum 20 

ABCs for each of these three species, which came out to 194 21 

million pounds of tails.  The MSYs had been established as a 22 

range of MSYs and so these used the maximum values. 23 

 24 

As it was provided to us, even though the regional office 25 

indicated we needed a control rule, they didn’t put the control 26 

rule into what they provided and so on page 71, I added a very 27 

simple control rule that simply says that as we get new stock 28 

assessments for these species the new MSY will continue to be 29 

the sum of the MSYs as long as that sum doesn’t exceed 215 30 

million pounds of tails.  If it does, then we keep the old MSY 31 

definition, until we can reevaluate what the new OFL should be.  32 

Then I added a summary paragraph, just to quickly go over what 33 

is in here. 34 

 35 

As I said, this doesn’t require any action on the part of the 36 

council.  It does require that we go to the SSC and then they 37 

approve this, because the SSC are the ones who actually set ABC.   38 

 39 

Another consideration is that we are going to be getting new 40 

stock assessments on each of the three shrimp species over the 41 

next few years that will have a completely different set of 42 

status determination criteria and MSY estimates.  The reason for 43 

this is because the National Marine Fisheries Service is 44 

beginning to standardize on using a computer stock assessment 45 

model called Stock Synthesis 3, SS3. 46 

 47 

They’re trying to standardize nationwide on using this 48 
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particular model and it will come up with a different set of 1 

parameters for how MSY is defined and so as we get those 2 

assessments, we will probably replace this grouped species OFL 3 

and MSY with individual MSYs and ABCs for the brown shrimp, the 4 

white shrimp, and the pink shrimp.  I’m not sure what the 5 

schedule is on that.  I believe one of those may have already 6 

been done or is about to be done.  That’s just for your 7 

information. 8 

 9 

MS. MORRIS:  Thank you, Steve, and thank you everybody on the 10 

staff of both the Southeast Office and the council who are 11 

working on the different sections of this generic amendment.  12 

It’s big and it’s complicated and we have made a lot of progress 13 

since the last meeting. 14 

 15 

MR. GRIMES:  I just wanted to point out that the reason the 16 

regional office advised you that you needed ABC control rules 17 

and ABC still is because it’s explicitly spelled out in the 18 

guidelines. 19 

 20 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I need just a little clarification from Peter.  I 21 

would like for him to give me an example, because -- I realize 22 

this is an options paper and I know we want to be able to get 23 

our materials from staff and I also know when you have a great 24 

number of options that staff has to analyze every one of those 25 

options and so it’s a lot of work on the staff when we have 26 

options that we really would not choose anyway, but could you 27 

explain to me, and I would like to give an example. 28 

 29 

If we have -- Right now, we have IFQs in the red snapper fishery 30 

and we have the grouper fishery coming onboard.  Let’s take 31 

vermilion.  If we had a very low quota on vermilion and that 32 

vermilion is caught, what happens to the rest of the fisheries 33 

that have IFQs? 34 

 35 

MS. MORRIS:  Is Peter still in the room?  Peter, did you hear 36 

the question? 37 

 38 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Sorry, Peter.  I appreciate all of these 39 

alternatives and what I was saying with each alternative, as it 40 

has been my experience, you all have to analyze every one of 41 

them.  I know that you do that because NEPA says that we need to 42 

go out with quite a few and I can appreciate that, but can you 43 

tell me how in a non-IFQ fishery, such as right now with the IFQ 44 

fisheries that we do have, let’s say vermilion.  That’s not 45 

under an IFQ right now.  If the vermilion TAC or ACL is caught, 46 

what happens to the red snapper fishery or the grouper fishery 47 

that actually have IFQs? 48 
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 1 

MR. HOOD:  I would assume that what we would be looking at is in 2 

setting the vermilion snapper ACL that we would be considering 3 

what sort of bycatch that could be as a species in other 4 

fisheries.  For example, with red snapper, if they were to catch 5 

vermilion when they’re out fishing, we would want to have some 6 

sort of adjustment for that in setting the ACL or if we used 7 

targets, in setting that target.  If we closed down vermilion 8 

snapper because they hit their ACL, I would assume that we would 9 

allow red snapper fishing to continue under the IFQ program. 10 

 11 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I appreciate that, because the way that I’m 12 

reading it, we wouldn’t, because it just says the commercial 13 

fishery would close.  I thought that you were saying that when 14 

that was reached the commercial fishery would close and all 15 

fishing would stop. 16 

 17 

MS. MORRIS:  I think that concludes the committee report, unless 18 

there’s more hands being raised. 19 

 20 

MR. GRIMES:  I would just note, in response to Kay’s comments, 21 

that when we go back through this document we’re going to clean 22 

up the language on it some and do like we’ve done in the past 23 

and we need to use “fishery” more consistently instead of 24 

throwing that term around to describe every sector or component 25 

of a fishery.  The fishery is described in our FMP and we should 26 

focus on that.  We have sectors within that larger fishery and 27 

we’ll strive to do a better job of having more precise 28 

terminology. 29 

 30 

MS. MORRIS:  Back to you, Mr. Chairman. 31 

 32 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  I would like to heighten 33 

everybody’s sensitivity to our time issues that we have.  As you 34 

know, the agenda is scheduled to complete at twelve o’clock and 35 

I believe there’s a significant number of members that have made 36 

travel arrangements based on that and so we have a high 37 

probability of losing a quorum by that time and we’re running 38 

significantly behind schedule. 39 

 40 

Two points in regards to that.  One is we’re not stopping for 41 

breaks and we’re going straight through and so if you need to do 42 

it, do your thing.   43 

 44 

Secondly, please consider that when you’re making your comments 45 

and discussion and let’s try and highlight the important things 46 

and allow us to get as much work done by twelve o’clock as we 47 

can. 48 
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 1 

REEF FISH MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 2 

 3 

The next item on the agenda is me and it’s the Reef Fish 4 

Committee.  We had two items of unfinished business.  The first 5 

one was raised by Bill Teehan relative to the length of the 6 

recreational red snapper season and I guess, Dr. Crabtree, if 7 

you would address that one. 8 

 9 

DR. CRABTREE:  We put out a proposed rule that proposed raising 10 

the TAC and had a comment period on it and in that proposed 11 

rule, the tentative closure date was put forward as I believe it 12 

was July 24. 13 

 14 

The reason it’s tentative is because we were, at that time, 15 

still waiting on Texas data, primarily.  I think we have Texas 16 

data now.  Andy?  No?  We have headboat and we have everything 17 

now and we’re waiting on the Texas data.  I think Mr. Riechers 18 

indicated that would come any day now.  That date was put 19 

forward assuming that the Texas catches will be the same as last 20 

year and I think it was put forward assuming the headboat 21 

catches would be the same as last year.  Until we have the Texas 22 

data, we can’t really come up with a more final date. 23 

 24 

Now, the comment period on that rulemaking is completed and I’m 25 

hopeful that we’ll get the Texas data and get this all together 26 

very quickly and get this out, but that’s really what’s holding 27 

us back right now. 28 

 29 

MR. TEEHAN:  FWC has a commission meeting on the 18th of this 30 

month and we are in a position, because we don’t have the ending 31 

date locked in stone at this point, of having to go to an 32 

extraordinary procedure if the commissioners decide that they 33 

want to go consistent and that’s called a federal consistency 34 

rule, which means that if they decide to go consistent, they can 35 

do it in one process and finalize that and have it in place 36 

before the red snapper season opens. 37 

 38 

I would want to reemphasize that the commission believes that we 39 

should do everything we can to give ample advance notice to any 40 

season changes and by not having a concrete season change at 41 

this point, it’s very difficult for the commissioners to make 42 

any sort of rational decision. 43 

 44 

The red snapper season in north Florida is an important economic 45 

engine and we should try to allow some level of certainty about 46 

the season for the charter, tourism, private vessels and all of 47 

the infrastructure that is dependent upon this fishing activity 48 
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and lack of a definite season will complicate the deliberation 1 

of the commissioners. 2 

 3 

I won’t go so far at this point to say that it makes it less 4 

likely that they will go consistent, but clearly the 5 

commissioners are concerned about letting key industries in 6 

Florida know as early as possible.   7 

 8 

The latest information that I’ve seen on landings has Florida 9 

pushing into the forefront above Alabama for the first time in 10 

some time in recreational landings in the Gulf of Mexico and the 11 

first thing that was presented to me by each of the state 12 

directors when we got here on Monday morning was what is your 13 

state going to do and my answer was that our staff is going to 14 

recommend consistency, but I cannot put words in my 15 

commissioner’s mouths. 16 

 17 

All I can say is this.  By not having a concrete ending date and 18 

I know, Roy, you’ve got a rule that’s published, but is not 19 

finalized, but by not having a concrete ending date, it makes it 20 

a little bit more of a slippery slope as far as the 21 

commissioners are concerned.  If we don’t have that concrete 22 

ending date by the time I have to present this in front of the 23 

commissioners on June 18th, I can almost guarantee that they 24 

won’t go consistent. 25 

 26 

DR. CRABTREE:  We should have a concrete date by June 18th.  27 

That’s the date you just mentioned.  That’s what I heard you say 28 

anyway.  Did I hear you wrong? 29 

 30 

MR. TEEHAN:  No, you didn’t hear me wrong and I don’t want to 31 

get snarky about this, but it was my understanding from a month 32 

ago that we were going to have a concrete date at this 33 

particular meeting, this council meeting, that would be noticed 34 

to the public and I don’t hear one. 35 

 36 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t think we ever said we would have a 37 

concrete, finalized date prior to this meeting, because we had 38 

to go through the proposed rule for the TAC increase and until 39 

the TAC increase is finalized, the closing date of the season 40 

cannot be finalized, but my goal has been to have a final date 41 

prior to your upcoming commission meeting and I’m still trying 42 

to do that, but it’s hard for us to put a date together until we 43 

have the data. 44 

 45 

If we can’t get the Texas data, we can make a decision just to 46 

go without it, I guess, and use last year’s data, but that’s not 47 

a very good way to go, but I understand your concerns, Bill, and 48 
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we’ll do everything we can to get this done quickly.   1 

 2 

All I can tell you is this is going to be a recurring problem 3 

that is going to continue to happen when we get assessments like 4 

this and we come in and take an action in February.  Things 5 

happen fast and that’s just the way it is. 6 

 7 

Now, I would like your input on a related matter.  We did have a 8 

request -- We put this rule out with a fifteen-day comment 9 

period.  We’re trying to move forward.  I have a request now to 10 

extend the comment period.  I cannot extend it.  It’s already 11 

over and so we would have to reopen the comment period.  If we 12 

did that, that would delay this, my guess is by another forty-13 

five days or so and so I would be interested in your input on 14 

that as well.   15 

 16 

Clearly that would create a lot of problems for you guys, Bill, 17 

but there’s just -- We can only move so fast and that’s just the 18 

way it is and we’re trying to move this as quickly as we can and 19 

do the best we can, Bill, but my goal is still to try and have 20 

you a final date prior to your April commission meeting.  Unless 21 

something unforeseen happens, I don’t see a problem with a final 22 

date by your June meeting. 23 

 24 

MR. TEEHAN:  Once again, Roy, I’m not trying to get 25 

confrontational over this.  Our staff is making its 26 

recommendation and we would like that recommendation to be 27 

accepted by the commission.   28 

 29 

However, they’ve made it very plain at their last meeting that 30 

they don’t like this going into a season that’s as important as 31 

this with such short notice and I’m just trying to help you guys 32 

out and the feeling that I got from the other state directors, 33 

from comments that they’ve made to me, is they’re going to base 34 

their decisions possibly on what Florida is going to do.  I 35 

think it’s imperative that we do whatever we can as quickly as 36 

we can to satisfy the commissioners in the State of Florida so 37 

that we can get consistent regulations. 38 

 39 

DR. CRABTREE:  I understand that, Bill, and it might be worth 40 

pointing out -- The reason this is happening this way is because 41 

this council made a decision to raise the TAC.  Had we decided 42 

to not raise the TAC until next year’s season and leave it at 43 

five for 2010, we wouldn’t have been in this rush. 44 

 45 

I think your commission would agree with this council to raise 46 

the TAC, but that’s what has put us largely in this position, 47 

that and time lags in data delivery, but mainly it’s the raising 48 
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of the TAC that has slowed this down and put us in a rush and I 1 

don’t think anyone sitting here or anyone on your commission 2 

would oppose raising the TAC and so I hope that the 3 

commissioners will understand that, that the reason we’re in 4 

this crunch is because we’re trying to give more fish to the 5 

fishermen. 6 

 7 

MR. GILL:  Roy raised the point of an additional comment period.  8 

I suspect that nobody is interested in extending it any further.  9 

Are there any comments to the contrary?  10 

 11 

MR. MCKNIGHT:  I would just like to ask Roy if he’s got any 12 

projected update for amberjack this year of when the season 13 

might end. 14 

 15 

DR. CRABTREE:  Amberjack, I think the drawback is Wave 5 mainly.  16 

There were problems with the Wave 5 data.  Those are supposed to 17 

be corrected and we’ll have that pretty soon.  Right now, it 18 

looks like it’s somewhere in the late July area, but I don’t 19 

have a specific date on that one. 20 

 21 

MR. GILL:  I don’t see any interest in an additional comment 22 

period, Roy, and so I believe that’s the direction from the 23 

council.  The next item on the agenda that was unfinished was a 24 

reef fish permit income requirement that I raised, but in the 25 

interest of time, I think we can postpone that until the next 26 

meeting, unless somebody has an urgent need to bring it up at 27 

this point.  It was discussed at the Q&A, to some extent, and so 28 

it’s out there in the thought process, but we’ll put it on the 29 

next meeting’s agenda if that’s okay with the council. 30 

 31 

We’ll go into the committee report.  The first portion was the 32 

black grouper stock assessment that Carrie gave in the absence 33 

of Dr. Bob Muller and the bottom line on the assessment was that 34 

the stock is in good shape and there are some issues here that 35 

we have not addressed. 36 

 37 

For example, this is a stock that was recommended to be managed 38 

as one unit, but it’s in both the South Atlantic and the Gulf 39 

and so there’s some consideration there that we have to work 40 

with the South Atlantic as to how we do it and, of course, then 41 

there’s the issue of how we handle ACLs and AMs and whether we 42 

do it as a single one or whether we do it by sectors, et cetera.  43 

Those are some issues upcoming.  Relative to the work with the 44 

South Atlantic in this species, I would ask Dave Cupka if he has 45 

some comments. 46 

 47 

MR. CUPKA:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  We do have somewhat of a 48 
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dilemma, since the stock assessment was done based on the fact 1 

that it’s considered a single stock.  I think that was the 2 

correct way to do it, but in order for our council and your 3 

council to move ahead on setting things like ACLs, we’re going 4 

to have to somehow partition that TAC between the two councils 5 

so we can move ahead. 6 

 7 

I talked with Roy briefly earlier this week and he talked with 8 

Shep and I think the latest thinking is that we need to probably 9 

partition that based on historical catches within the two 10 

councils areas of jurisdiction, but Roy maybe would want to add 11 

to that.  I don’t know if he’s had any further thoughts on that.  12 

I also would point out that we’re in a similar situation in 13 

regard to yellowtail snapper. 14 

 15 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’m not sure how to handle it, other than look at 16 

what proportion of the landings has typically come from each 17 

jurisdiction and then just split the ACL up.  Other ways of 18 

dealing with this are more long term and involve things like 19 

joint plans or allowing one or the other council to manage the 20 

stock throughout its range, but in the short term, I think 21 

you’ve just got to partition the ABC based on the jurisdictional 22 

boundaries. 23 

 24 

MR. ATRAN:  I was just going to mention that our SSC has given 25 

you an ABC for the next five years for the black grouper stock 26 

and that’s for the entire stock.  I don’t know when the South 27 

Atlantic Council’s SSC is going to be reviewing this, but if 28 

they come up with a different ABC, I think we’re going to have 29 

to get our two SSCs together to resolve the differences, because 30 

the beginning point is that we need to agree on what that ABC 31 

should be before we can divide it up. 32 

 33 

MR. CUPKA:  Our SSC is meeting next week and so hopefully that’s 34 

on their agenda.  We’ll be in touch and let you know what comes 35 

out of that, Steve. 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  That was the next item on the agenda, was the report 38 

of the SSC.  As Steve mentioned, they utilized the ABC control 39 

rule for the first time and came up with ABC, including 40 

discards, on black grouper, which is on page 2.  They did 41 

discuss the fishery-independent research design that we had 42 

requested and they’ll be working on that through a workshop in 43 

September.  They also mentioned the interest in a joint 44 

SSC/council meeting, but no decisions were made. 45 

 46 

The next item that was addressed in committee was Amendment 32 47 

and we’ll go through that item-by-item if nobody has any 48 
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questions thus far.  Steve reviewed Amendment 32 and going 1 

through the actions, there was no change in Action 1. 2 

 3 

Action 2 is ACLs and ACTs and Steve discussed that with 4 

preliminary landings and by a unanimous voice vote, the 5 

committee recommends, and I so move, that the council remove 6 

from the options paper for Reef Fish Amendment 32 Action 2, 7 

Alternatives 3 and 4, because they were, in essence, duplicative 8 

of Amendment 30B, where we had already established the ACLs and 9 

ACTs.  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion?  Is 10 

there objection to the motion?  The motion passes without 11 

objection. 12 

 13 

Action 3 was next and the committee had no motions in terms of 14 

accountability measures.  Action 4 was adjusting the multiuse 15 

IFQ shares and some discussions on how to handle additional 16 

considerations in that regard.  Two motions resulted. 17 

 18 

By a unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so 19 

move, that an additional alternative be added to Action 4 that 20 

would allow both red and gag multiuse shares to be used for 21 

harvesting other shallow-water grouper.  It’s a committee 22 

motion.  Is there any discussion?  Is there any objection?  23 

Without objection, the motion passes. 24 

 25 

The second motion was by a unanimous voice vote, the committee 26 

recommends, and I so move, that an additional alternative be 27 

added to Action 4 to set gag multiuse allocation to a percentage 28 

to be determined and usable for any other shallow-water species.  29 

It’s a committee motion.  Is there any discussion?  Any 30 

objection?  Without objection, the motion passes. 31 

 32 

Next was Action 5, Recreational Bag Limits, Size Limits, and 33 

Closed Seasons.  That section had not been fleshed out and so 34 

that was not discussed.  Action 6 was bycatch issues on both the 35 

commercial and the recreational sector and we had a motion 36 

relative to recreational bycatch. 37 

 38 

By unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so 39 

move, that a new Alternative 5 be added to Action 6.2 that 40 

explores an upper limit maximum size slot.  It’s a committee 41 

motion and is there any discussion?  Is there any objection to 42 

the motion?  Without objection, the motion passes. 43 

 44 

Then Julie made a motion to remove the recreational bycatch 45 

quota because she didn’t think it would be effective.  By 46 

unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so move, 47 

that in Section 6.2 of the options paper that Alternative 2, 48 
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recreational bycatch quotas, be removed.  It’s a committee 1 

motion.  Is there any discussion?  Any objection?   2 

 3 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I wanted to ask you something about the 4 

commercial bycatch if I may.  Just back up just a moment. 5 

 6 

MR. GILL:  Go ahead. 7 

 8 

MS. WILLIAMS:  It talks about or Steve said that in Alternative 9 

2 that it would establish a bycatch quota and authorize the AA 10 

to reduce the red grouper quota to ensure that the gag bycatch 11 

quota is not exceeded.  How can you do that when they’re under 12 

an IFQ?  I’m just reading the language here.  If we did that, I 13 

don’t understand -- I don’t understand most of this paragraph. 14 

 15 

DR. CRABTREE:  The question is how would we reduce the red 16 

grouper quota? 17 

 18 

MS. WILLIAMS:  No, why would you reduce the red grouper quota?  19 

If we have a low quota on gag, you’re going to go and reduce the 20 

red grouper quota? 21 

 22 

DR. CRABTREE:  The reasoning behind this was to reduce gag 23 

discards.  If you reduce the red grouper quota, you’re going to 24 

have fewer hooks in the water less time.  People aren’t going to 25 

fish as long and they’re going to have less bycatch. 26 

 27 

MR. GILL:  Steve, do you have a comment on the question? 28 

 29 

MR. ATRAN:  No, Roy said what I was going to say.  The other 30 

thing is that the quota would not be reduced in the current 31 

year.  It would be reduced in the following year. 32 

 33 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Are you saying that the commercial bycatch -- You 34 

have more concerns over that then you do the recreational 35 

bycatch when it comes to gag?  That’s what you’re saying in this 36 

motion or in this action. 37 

 38 

DR. CRABTREE:  We’re concerned about both of them.  This is an 39 

action to address the issue in the commercial fishery.  We’re 40 

going to have to have actions to reduce discards in the 41 

recreational fishery as well, but we’ve got problems in both 42 

fisheries with discards and we’re going to need substantial 43 

reductions in discards in both fisheries.  44 

 45 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I still don’t understand reducing an acceptable 46 

allowable catch because another species has a lower allocation 47 

when there are other ways to address this. 48 
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 1 

MR. GILL:  Back to the motion on the board. 2 

 3 

MR. GRIMES:  I would just point out that one of the factors 4 

you’re supposed to consider in setting optimum yield is other 5 

ecological considerations.  That means if you have a gear that 6 

can’t extract an allowable catch of a species without imposing 7 

problematic ecological impacts on another species, i.e., 8 

bycatch, then you should reduce optimum yield for that other 9 

species in order to mitigate those impacts and that is exactly 10 

what all of this stuff is attempting to do. 11 

 12 

DR. CRABTREE:  Based on that, Shepherd, it sounds like if we 13 

chose some of these alternatives that we might have to revisit 14 

specification of OY and I guess that’s something staff should 15 

bear in mind, because some of these could result in that. 16 

 17 

MS. WILLIAMS:  To Shepherd’s point, if I may, when you’re 18 

talking about a gear, I think you’re talking about longline gear 19 

instead of bandit gear, because bandit gear pretty much is 20 

fished the same way or very close to the same way that our 21 

recreational industry fishes. 22 

 23 

MR. GRIMES:  Vertical gear has discard mortality just as any 24 

other gear does and what all this is trying to address is the 25 

discard mortality associated with vertical gear in the 26 

recreational sector and in the commercial sector. 27 

 28 

DR. CRABTREE:  If I could, Mr. Chairman, right now, optimum 29 

yield is expressed for the fishery, meaning commercial and 30 

recreational and everyone.  We don’t have optimum yields that 31 

are partitioned out. 32 

 33 

MS. WILLIAMS:  That’s sort of my point. 34 

 35 

MR. GILL:  Back to the motion on the board.  Any discussion on 36 

the motion?  Any objection to the motion?  The motion passes.  37 

Moving on to Action 7, which is Data Collection and Monitoring 38 

Programs for the Recreational Sector, we did have one motion. 39 

 40 

By unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so 41 

move, that Alternative 3, recreational grouper vessel permit, be 42 

removed from Action 7.  It’s a committee motion and is there any 43 

discussion?  Any objection?  Without objection, the motion 44 

passes. 45 

 46 

Then on to Action 8, Time and Area Closures, Carrie noted that 47 

there was not yet all the analysis available.  We did have some 48 
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discussion and made several motions. 1 

 2 

By unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so 3 

move, that in Action 8 to add suboptions to Alternatives 2 and 3 4 

that list different seasons of closure, including a year-round 5 

closure.  It’s a committee motion.  Is there any discussion?  6 

Any objection to the motion?  Without objection, the motion 7 

passes. 8 

 9 

The next motion was by a unanimous voice vote, the committee 10 

recommends, and I so move, that in Action 8 to add an 11 

Alternative 4 that would contain suboptions for longer seasonal 12 

closures of Madison-Swanson, the Edges, and Steamboat Lumps, 13 

including year-round closures.  It’s a committee motion.  Is 14 

there any discussion?  Is there any objection to the motion?  15 

Without objection, the motion passes.  Next was -- That’s a 16 

typo.  It says Action 5, but I believe it’s Action 9. 17 

 18 

MR. ATRAN:  No, that was a return to Action 5.  We had skipped 19 

over that until we got through the rest of the items. 20 

 21 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Steve.  Action 5, Recreational Bag Limits, 22 

Size Limits, and Closed Seasons, Andy pointed out that he is 23 

revisiting and enhancing the spreadsheet we saw several meetings 24 

ago and how we could look at impact on there, but we’ll need to 25 

see that, I assume, at the next council meeting. 26 

 27 

We then selected public hearing locations and they are in 28 

Alabama, Mobile; Florida, Panama City, St. Petersburg area, Ft. 29 

Myers, and Marathon; Louisiana, Kenner/St. Rose area; 30 

Mississippi, Biloxi area; Texas, Galveston and Port Aransas. 31 

 32 

At that point, Roy brought up the question of a possible interim 33 

rule and it will be put on the agenda for the next meeting and 34 

considerations for that interim rule on gag would be partial 35 

release of IFQ shares, restrictions on multiuse IFQ shares, 36 

recreational closed season extended to include January and 37 

possibly an additional month, and gag bag limit changes.  That 38 

was all for Amendment 32.  Are there any comments on Amendment 39 

32? 40 

 41 

MR. TEEHAN:  You’re running such an efficient meeting that you 42 

went right past my hand a little while ago.  I’m wondering, Dr. 43 

Bortone, and it may be premature, discussion of these public 44 

hearing locations, but do we have an idea -- I’m sure they’re 45 

going to be in the summer, but do we have any idea whether 46 

they’re going to be beginning, middle, or end? 47 

 48 
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  No, we will discuss that on 1 

Wednesday and get that information to you very shortly 2 

thereafter. 3 

 4 

DR. CRABTREE:  One other thing to think about -- We’re talking 5 

about an interim rule to reduce the quotas and do things with 6 

gag.  We also are going to end up reducing the quotas and TACs 7 

for red grouper in Amendment 32. 8 

 9 

We can’t do that through an interim rule, since it’s not 10 

undergoing overfishing.  You could do that though through a 11 

framework action and so I guess the question is, do you want to 12 

consider reducing the quotas for red grouper and putting in 13 

place the same seasonal closures that you may ask for with gag 14 

for red grouper and do that in a framework action and try to get 15 

that done by January 1? 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  Council discussion? 18 

 19 

DR. CRABTREE:  The particular thing to bear in mind is come 20 

January 1 if we release all of the red grouper quota to the IFQ 21 

fishery, it will be very difficult then to reduce the amount of 22 

fish they’re allowed until the next season.   23 

 24 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I also recall that you can actually -- You don’t 25 

have to release all of it.  You can actually release half of it 26 

if you wanted to. 27 

 28 

DR. CRABTREE:  You would have to take an action for that to 29 

happen.  We don’t have any authority to not release all of it. 30 

 31 

MS. MORRIS:  Roy, is this the moment where we would request you 32 

to prepare a regulatory amendment for red grouper or is this 33 

kind of like with the interim rule and you’re letting us know 34 

that we may need to do that in June? 35 

 36 

DR. CRABTREE:  I guess I would like something more definitive, 37 

Julie, and to hear from you that you would like us to prepare 38 

something along those lines of a regulatory amendment for red 39 

grouper and bring it to the next council meeting. 40 

 41 

MS. MORRIS:  Could you remind us what kind of a reduction we’re 42 

looking at for red grouper in 2011? 43 

 44 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think it’s about a 25 percent reduction.  I 45 

don’t have the figures right in front of me. 46 

 47 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I was just going to say I’m not willing to reduce 48 
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a fishery that is not undergoing overfishing. 1 

 2 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would point out that you have to.  You cannot 3 

exceed the fishing level recommendation you’ve gotten from your 4 

SSC and so you’re going to have to reduce the red grouper catch 5 

levels.  You have no choice.  The law requires that you do that. 6 

 7 

MS. WILLIAMS:  We reduce it to what the TAC is supposed to be or 8 

the ACL. 9 

 10 

DR. CRABTREE:  That’s exactly what we’re talking about doing 11 

right now. 12 

 13 

MS. MORRIS:  We have a motion already on the board and is that 14 

right?  No?  Would you like a motion or just the -- Do you need 15 

a motion for this? 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  I think we do need a motion, yes. 18 

 19 

MS. MORRIS:  The motion would be to ask for a draft regulatory 20 

amendment to adjust red grouper catch for 2011 for consideration 21 

in June. 22 

 23 

MR. GILL:  It’s moved and seconded to ask that a draft 24 

regulatory amendment be prepared to adjust the red grouper catch 25 

for 2011 for consideration in June.  Any discussion? 26 

 27 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Will we have an analysis on the bag limit because 28 

of this? 29 

 30 

DR. CRABTREE:  If you ask for an analysis.  If that council 31 

wants that to be part of this then it will, Kay.  It’s up to you 32 

guys as to what you want to include in this, but you can adjust 33 

bag limits in your frameworks.  You can do closed seasons and 34 

you can adjust quotas and those kinds of things.  It really 35 

comes down to what you guys want to look at.  If you want to 36 

give staff some specific ideas like that, you probably ought to 37 

do that. 38 

 39 

MR. ATRAN:  The current catches on both the recreational and 40 

commercial side for red grouper have been running below what 41 

their ACLs have been for the last year or two and so it’s 42 

entirely possible that even with a reduction in the ACL and the 43 

ACT that we may not need to adjust the recreational bag limits. 44 

 45 

DR. CRABTREE:  The real concern is just about bringing the 46 

quotas down where it needs to be.  Unless something changes, 47 

Kay, the commercial fishery is not going to catch up all the -- 48 
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There’s going to be leftover red grouper allocation at the end 1 

of next year that just isn’t caught, but just in order to make 2 

sure we don’t run into problems, I think adjusting the quotas is 3 

a good idea. 4 

 5 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Roy, I was just concerned about are we then going 6 

to have to go in and reduce the quota even more because of the 7 

gag situation on top of this? 8 

 9 

DR. CRABTREE:  Kay, I can’t answer those questions.  Those are 10 

things we’re going to have to figure out and the council is 11 

going to have to decide.  I don’t have those answers now.  All I 12 

have for you right now is that the current quotas for red 13 

grouper are too high and if we don’t make an adjustment before 14 

the IFQ allocation is released, you’re not going to be able to 15 

address that for an entire other year, which I think personally 16 

is too late.  You guys are going to have to decide these things. 17 

 18 

MS. MORRIS:  In the wording of the motion, Roy, I’m worried 19 

about the word “catch”.  Is what we’re doing actually adjusting 20 

the annual catch limit?  You keep using the word “quota”, but is 21 

it the annual catch limit?  Is that really what we’re going to 22 

be adjusting? 23 

 24 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think it’s adjusting the TAC and that then 25 

adjusts the quotas and the ACLs. 26 

 27 

MS. MORRIS:  So if we could replace the word “catch” with “total 28 

allowable catch”, that would be great. 29 

 30 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think staff understands what we’re doing and 31 

can figure out the details of it. 32 

 33 

MR. GRIMES:  I would just point out that there will be 34 

associated management measures, options for management measures, 35 

in the document to actually achieve the reduction in catch 36 

associated with the reduction in TAC. 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  That’s noted.   39 

 40 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Do we also need -- In our regulatory framework, 41 

at the earlier meeting, we were talking about allowing or having 42 

the ability for those commercial IFQ shares to sort of be like 43 

traded or sold or leased to like our charter industry and we 44 

were told that we would have to have some type of a regulatory 45 

framework adjustment.  Would we do that in this document or does 46 

that come later? 47 

 48 
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DR. CRABTREE:  Did you say to allow trading of shares to the 1 

recreational fishery? 2 

 3 

MS. WILLIAMS:  There was some discussion where it talked about 4 

that our existing regulatory framework would need adjustments 5 

before we can have the ability, when the IFQ shares come online, 6 

to allow I guess our charter or for-hire sector to be able to 7 

lease or buy those because they can’t fish them if they don’t 8 

have -- Right now, the framework is, you have to have a 9 

commercial reef fish permit. 10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  That’s a whole separate issue. 12 

 13 

MS. WILLIAMS:  We can’t add that to 32? 14 

 15 

DR. CRABTREE:  No.  Well, I guess you could add something along 16 

those lines to 32, but you can’t do that -- That’s not part of 17 

this framework amendment we’re talking about and right now, 18 

there’s nothing, I don’t think, in 32 that addresses that. 19 

 20 

MR. GILL:  This simply mirrors the gag interim rule proposal for 21 

red grouper. 22 

 23 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I was just hoping that somehow we could put it in 24 

there as far as adjusting our framework procedure. 25 

 26 

MR. GILL:  Without further discussion, the motion on the board 27 

is to request that a draft regulatory amendment be prepared to 28 

adjust red grouper total allowable catch for 2011 for 29 

consideration at the June 2010 council meeting.  All those in 30 

favor say aye; all those opposed like sign.  The motion passes 31 

without objection. 32 

 33 

Going back to the public hearing locations, does the council 34 

wish to do it by motion or just the recognition and accept the 35 

committee locations?  Not seeing any signs, we’ll leave it as is 36 

without a motion.  Any other further discussion regarding 37 

Amendment 32?  Not seeing any, we then went into Framework 38 

Action for Greater Amberjack and Andy gave us a presentation -- 39 

 40 

MS. TRISH KENNEDY:  On the public hearings, we would like an 41 

opinion if you want to have the Q&A for just an hour beforehand, 42 

a single room, a double room, and if there’s going to be extra 43 

council members attending -- The last batch we put in order of 44 

convenience of staff going from Point A to B and then Ed Sapp 45 

drove the State of Florida four times.  We would like to be more 46 

considerate of those things, if you’ll give us some direction. 47 

 48 
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MR. GILL:  Comment on the request on public hearing locations 1 

and venue? 2 

 3 

MR. TEEHAN:  I thought it was more than just the venue.  I think 4 

the ones of us that did those double room things came to the 5 

conclusion at the last meeting that we only wanted to do one 6 

room and so I think that’s the way we want to go this time.  I 7 

don’t think we need to have the complete carnival on the road.  8 

I’m at this point going to stick by my four selections for 9 

Florida, because that’s what the industry request has been.  10 

Those are my comments at this point. 11 

 12 

MR. GILL:  I believe the conclusion also was to do the hour 13 

before for the dialogue section and that was the most 14 

appropriate way to go and the final question was additional 15 

council members and I think the consideration is no, those that 16 

want to attend can and there will be the normal one and there 17 

won’t be any necessarily additional. 18 

 19 

MR. TEEHAN:  We would certainly expect the award winner from the 20 

last round, Mr. Sapp, to be at all of the hearings at his own 21 

expense. 22 

 23 

MR. GILL:  We would continue that same level of performance as 24 

we saw the last time, I agree. 25 

 26 

MR. TEEHAN:  Until somebody replaces him with that, then he’s 27 

still the road dog. 28 

 29 

MS. MORRIS:  Feel free to rule me out of order on this one, but 30 

I forgot to bring up the question of whether we wanted public 31 

hearing locations -- If we wanted to start thinking about public 32 

hearing locations for the ACL/AM Amendment.  One possibility 33 

would be to co-locate them in time and space, at least some of 34 

them, with the Amendment 32 public hearings.  Is that an idea 35 

that we should consider further? 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  I think the idea is good, but will the timing work 38 

out?  Will we be far along with the ACL/AM Amendment to hold 39 

that?  It doesn’t seem to me that that will occur. 40 

 41 

MR. ATRAN:  Right now, I’m thinking that Amendment 32 is going 42 

to be proceeding faster than the ACL Amendment, but this is 43 

something we can discuss when we get to staff meetings together 44 

and after the SSC meeting, to see what sort of a timetable we’re 45 

going to have for the two amendments. 46 

 47 

MR. GILL:  I think Julie’s point, however, is that if joint is 48 
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desirable, then we haven’t set anything relative to the ACL/AM 1 

Amendment and the question is whether or not we want to address 2 

it like that. 3 

 4 

DR. LEARD:  Another consideration is that if you’re going to 5 

have basically some hour of public session and you’ve got 32 and 6 

the ACL Amendment, those are two very large, very complicated 7 

amendments.  You could be there until midnight every night and 8 

it would be pretty tedious to go through both of those at one 9 

meeting, at least that’s my personal opinion. 10 

 11 

MR. GILL:  Good point.  Burning the midnight oil would be a 12 

little tough. 13 

 14 

MR. TEEHAN:  I agree with Rick.  I think the ACL Amendment on 15 

its own is going to be so complex that it’s going to be very 16 

difficult to get the public to understand it and I plan as one 17 

council member to be very hard to find when they’re looking for 18 

somebody to go to those meetings.  I also question whether we 19 

should allow a short-timer to be making decisions for periods 20 

that are going to occur after the last meeting that’s she’s 21 

going to be at. 22 

 23 

MR. SAPP:  I concur with those comments. 24 

 25 

MR. GILL:  My, oh my.  Any further departures from where we are 26 

in the committee report?  We’re on to Framework Action for 27 

Greater Amberjack.  As I was mentioning, Andy briefed us on an 28 

analysis that was done on different season options and we 29 

certainly heard much in terms of public testimony on that issue 30 

and the considerations regarding it. 31 

 32 

We made two motions for inclusion.  By a unanimous voice vote, 33 

the committee recommends, and I so move, that an Alternative 4 34 

be added to the Regulatory Framework Action to establish a 35 

recreational seasonal closure of May 1 through July 31.  It’s a 36 

committee motion.  Is there discussion?   37 

 38 

MR. MCKNIGHT:  I would like to make a substitute motion and I 39 

would like it to read exactly like it is except change July 31 40 

to June 30.  After talking with Andy, he said that this would 41 

get us where we need to be and we wouldn’t have to have that 42 

extra month closure there. 43 

 44 

MR. GILL:  Do I hear a second for the substitute motion to add 45 

to the Regulatory Framework Action an Alternative 4 to establish 46 

a recreational seasonal closure of May 1 through June 30?  It’s 47 

seconded by Mr. Teehan.  Is there discussion?  I see no 48 
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discussion and we’ll vote this one up or down.  All those in 1 

favor of the substitute motion say aye; all opposed like sign.  2 

The motion passes unanimously. 3 

 4 

The second motion that was made in committee was by a unanimous 5 

voice vote -- By the way, that’s the second one in a row for 6 

Damon and so kudos to Mr. McKnight.  The second motion was by a 7 

unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so move, 8 

that an Alternative 5 be added to Action 1 which would be Option 9 

3 at Tab B, Number 6(a), which is a March through May 10 

recreational closure parallel to the commercial closure.  It’s a 11 

committee motion and is there discussion?  Seeing no discussion, 12 

all those in favor say aye; all opposed like sign.  The motion 13 

passes unanimously. 14 

 15 

MR. SAPP:  Something real quick for Roy.  I know when we came in 16 

mid-season without much notice and cut down the amberjack 17 

fishery that we caused some problems for fishing rodeos or 18 

derbies or tournaments.  Are we going to have any issues that 19 

you’re aware of if we implement this May 1 through June 30 20 

closure or are they outside of that timeframe? 21 

 22 

DR. CRABTREE:  The big complaint we had when we closed when we 23 

closed greater amberjack came from the Destin rodeo and that, I 24 

think, takes place the entire month of October.  I’m not aware 25 

of a tournament in May or June, but that doesn’t mean there 26 

isn’t one.  I think Dr. Shipp was talking about a tournament 27 

that was going to be in July. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes, the Alabama Deep Sea Fishing Rodeo, which 30 

is the oldest and largest fishing tournament in the world, is 31 

the third weekend in July and so it won’t be affected.  I think 32 

the main problem is notice ahead of time.  If they know ahead of 33 

time -- Like the Alabama tournament, they’re prepared to make 34 

modifications, as long as they know it in time to go to press 35 

with their guides. 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  Any further discussion regarding the amberjack 38 

regulatory amendment?  Next, we got a Reef Fish Limited Access 39 

Privilege Program AP Report from Assane and he discussed what 40 

went on at the meeting and progress was made.  They did agree on 41 

objectives of the group and they will hold another meeting 42 

hopefully in July, before the August council meeting. 43 

 44 

Corky suggested that we set aside public testimony time at each 45 

council meeting on catch shares and if no one objects, I would 46 

request staff to add that to the agenda for council meetings 47 

until we get that issue off the table. 48 
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 1 

The next item was the Haugen EFP, exempted fishing permit, was 2 

discussed and no action was take.  If there’s no discussion on 3 

that item, the next -- 4 

 5 

MR. TEEHAN:  Once again, like I said in committee, I’ve got a 6 

lot of concerns about proceeding with the permission to conduct 7 

this experiment if it is the intent of the council to not allow 8 

fish traps back into the Gulf of Mexico.  Everybody pretty much 9 

looked at me the same way they’re looking at me now when I said 10 

it then.  Is there any feel from anybody else that fish traps 11 

are going to be eventually re-allowed in the Gulf of Mexico, 12 

even if they’re modified?  Just a little discussion on this. 13 

 14 

MR. ANSON:  I agree with you, Mr. Teehan, that if the other 15 

problems associated with fish traps are going to still remain 16 

and are major impediments to approving that gear, then I agree 17 

with you that it’s kind of a moot point for Mr. Haugen to go 18 

ahead and continue the process and for NMFS to be involved and 19 

the council to be involved. 20 

 21 

MR. SAPP:  I also share all those concerns and even if we get a 22 

request for a permit that gets the wink and the nod from the 23 

Science Center, I, for one, am not prepared to vote, I don’t 24 

think, to agree to allow it, based on all of the other factors 25 

that we’re not even talking about and that’s the bottom 26 

destruction, the enforcement issues, the lost gear.  All of 27 

those other issues haven’t gone away.  If you wanted to make a 28 

motion to kill it at this point, I would sure second it. 29 

 30 

MR. TEEHAN:  I won’t make a motion to kill it, but I’ll make a 31 

motion that -- I guess, Shep, help me out.  I would move that 32 

the Haugen exempted fishing permit application be denied.  Is 33 

that the correct word to be used? 34 

 35 

MR. GRIMES:  Yes, I would say that the council recommends that 36 

NMFS deny the EFP application. 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  There’s a motion on the board to recommend that NMFS 39 

deny the Haugen EFP application.  Do I hear a second?   40 

 41 

MR. SAPP:  Second. 42 

 43 

MR. GILL:  Seconded by Ed. 44 

 45 

MR. GRIMES:  I presume they would elaborate on it, but it’s 46 

basically sort of a misdirection of resources at this point.  47 

The council hasn’t given any indication that you intend to let 48 
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these fish traps back into the fishery and so it doesn’t seem 1 

like there’s a lot of utility in doing research on changing the 2 

traps so as to minimize their bycatch. 3 

 4 

MR. TEEHAN:  That and I also have concerns that we would be 5 

tying up Mr. Haugen’s own personal finances on a futile effort.  6 

For him to, at his personal expense, to go about building these 7 

traps and testing them with his own vessels and so forth seems, 8 

to me, an injustice to him if we’re not intending to even 9 

consider allowing these things back in.  That’s also a concern 10 

that I have. 11 

 12 

MS. WILLIAMS:  It was my understanding, through the discussion, 13 

that the Southeast Fisheries Science Center had concerns about 14 

the experimental design, impact on endangered species, ghost 15 

fishing, and how scientists will be involved.  If they have 16 

those issues, I don’t really know how Mr. Haugen could even 17 

attempt to address all of those.  I would have to support the 18 

motion. 19 

 20 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I would just indicate that Mr. 21 

Haugen is really trying to develop a trap and it may be obvious 22 

that he eventually wants to use it in the Gulf, but he also 23 

wants to develop this trap for use in other parts of the world 24 

and this would be an opportunity for him to test that in the 25 

Gulf, but it would be an eventual application outside the Gulf. 26 

 27 

MR. GILL:  Further discussion on the motion?  Seeing none, the 28 

motion to recommend that NMFS deny the Haugen EFP application, 29 

all those in favor say aye; all those opposed like sign.  The 30 

motion passes without objection. 31 

 32 

The next item was a new definition of buoy gear that Dr. 33 

Crabtree brought up and I believe it would be appropriate at 34 

this time -- There’s a new definition and it’s been discussed 35 

during Q&A at length and I believe there’s a new one.  I have a 36 

paper in that regard and is it possible to put that up on the 37 

board?  Phyllis, if you could put the new definition on the 38 

board?  You all have a copy of it then?  We do have a motion 39 

from committee and I guess we have to get it amended to reflect 40 

the new definition. 41 

 42 

MR. FISCHER:  I would like to amend the committee motion to 43 

reflect the language that was in the email from Steve earlier 44 

and I would like to make one change to that amendment, to the 45 

exact verbiage.  Where it says the drop line must be no greater 46 

than one-and-a-half times the water depth, I would like to 47 

change that to two times and I believe I could support that. 48 
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 1 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Since my computer is down, could somebody put the 2 

motion on the board so I can see what it says, because I have 3 

not seen it. 4 

 5 

MR. GILL:  We have it on the board.  We’ll put the motion up and 6 

then we’ll show the suggested language as amended by the motion. 7 

 8 

MR. FISCHER:  Then, Mr. Chairman, either in this motion or in a 9 

follow-up motion, we would probably want to address the amount 10 

of gear that could be rigged on a boat, the amount of gear that 11 

can be deployed.  This just addresses a single gear. 12 

 13 

MR. GILL:  I suspect there will be consideration of other things 14 

as we go along.  Let’s get it up and get that started and then 15 

we can see if folks want to amend it. 16 

 17 

MR. FISCHER:  I could quickly tell you just my real brief 18 

rationale of changing it from one-and-a-half to two times, 19 

unless you want to wait for that. 20 

 21 

MR. GILL:  I think that reflects Myron’s motion.  Did I hear a 22 

second? 23 

 24 

MR. HENDRIX:  Second. 25 

 26 

MR. GILL:  It’s seconded by Joe Hendrix.  Is there discussion? 27 

 28 

DR. CRABTREE:  I was just going to say what we did is we tried 29 

to incorporate a lot of the comments that we heard at the Q&A 30 

and things in this and so we allow monofilament to be used as 31 

the drop line now.  That’s a change.  It specifies that the 32 

weight has to be at the end of the line and the hooks before the 33 

weight and the hooks have to be in -- Remember they were calling 34 

it the backbone, which is that final stretch.  It still has the 35 

same hook limitation of ten hooks.  I think it still has the 36 

same limit on the weight of less than ten pounds.  We tried to 37 

incorporate in their comments. 38 

 39 

MR. GILL:  I appreciate it.  I think you all did a good job 40 

incorporating all that and I think this is much improved from 41 

the original version. 42 

 43 

MR. FISCHER:  I wasn’t going to say eliminate the scope from 44 

one-and-a-half, but just change it to two.  I spoke to a few 45 

fishermen also and just many reasons why.  One is your gear is 46 

rigged up and you’re fishing in 200 foot of water, historically, 47 

and you might have a 280-foot line, because you do have to have 48 
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some bow in it, some scope. 1 

 2 

You run into a ball of fish at 180 foot or 170 foot of water 3 

where you can’t drop your lines and you have to start cutting 4 

them and re-rigging them.  This also eliminates a longline.  5 

We’re just changing it from one-and-a-half to two times the 6 

length. 7 

 8 

Sometimes also, if there’s no current whatsoever and 9 

traditionally -- This is the traditional buoy gear that was used 10 

twenty-five years ago, this definition, and traditionally it was 11 

fished on flats where the current would slowly move the weight 12 

along the flat and you would fish more than one location. 13 

 14 

Sometimes in low current situations, you need more scope to have 15 

more friction for that current to drag it.  I think it’s just -- 16 

We’re not talking about six miles of longline, but just changing 17 

it from one-and-a-half to two times the water depth to 18 

accommodate fishermen and try to keep them legal. 19 

 20 

MR. GRIMES:  Mr. Fischer makes a good point.  I’ve been a 21 

proponent of one-and-a-half times because -- First, the hook 22 

limitation is the most enforceable thing and that’s really where 23 

the teeth of this definition are.   24 

 25 

I don’t know that it’s all that significant, but at the same 26 

time, it is vertical gear and allowing, it seems to me, 27 

uninformed, non-commercial fishermen -- If you allow the line to 28 

be twice the depth, then there’s going to be some of it laying 29 

flat on the bottom horizontally, which does not, to me, seem to 30 

be vertical gear.   31 

 32 

Those are just things to keep in mind and that’s why I had been 33 

a proponent of one-and-a-half times.  I understand they drift 34 

and I understand there’s bow in it, but I don’t know, but it 35 

just seemed to be more consistent with the notion of it being 36 

floating vertical gear. 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  On the other hand, there’s no entangling gear on any 39 

additional line that may be down there, which is part of the 40 

concern. 41 

 42 

DR. STEVE BRANSTETTER:  I just wanted to clarify for the council 43 

that we still have that parenthetical what is rope and we will 44 

work on that.  I got to looking on the -- I forgot about there’s 45 

other types of natural fiber ropes besides hemp.  There’s sisal 46 

and there’s cotton and there’s manila and there’s other things, 47 

but that was to give you -- It was more an indication and in 48 
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fact, you can call wire rope and so we’ll make sure that we add 1 

back the no cable or no wire back into this definition as well. 2 

 3 

MR. GRIMES:  Just a procedural point and understand that this 4 

definition will have to be incorporated into some rulemaking 5 

action.  I presume you will get text back and you will deem that 6 

at some point and submit it along with some other regulatory 7 

action. 8 

 9 

MR. GILL:  Thank you for that clarification.  Is there further 10 

discussion on the motion?  The substitute motion is to approve 11 

the new definition of buoy gear as provided with a change of two 12 

times the depth of the water being fished.  All those in favor 13 

of the motion say aye; all those opposed like sign.  The motion 14 

passes unanimously. 15 

 16 

MS. WILLIAMS:  If I may, Mr. Chairman, we had some constituency 17 

-- Everybody does not bring computers to these meetings and 18 

we’re supposed to have -- Any time we vote on something, the 19 

motion has to be on the board.  The public has to be able to see 20 

it.  If they don’t have the computer, as in the past, we’re 21 

supposed to have the committee reports laying back there on the 22 

table so that they have the opportunity to pick them up and look 23 

at them so that they can compare them. 24 

 25 

Like I said, everybody doesn’t bring computers to these meetings 26 

and they would like for the council to please accommodate that 27 

request as far as having all of the motions on the board, all of 28 

the motions and not just referring to something.  You had the 29 

motion on the board, because I saw it, but they would also like 30 

us to start putting our committee reports -- Instead of just 31 

emailing them out, to please lay some back there on the table 32 

for them. 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  I don’t see a problem with that. 35 

 36 

MR. RIECHERS:  I just want to go, before we get out of Reef 37 

Fish, in regards to Mr. Teehan’s and Dr. Crabtree’s discussion, 38 

I went ahead and emailed our folks down in Rockport this 39 

morning.  The data was delivered to you two days ago and so you 40 

have the red snapper private recreational data from Texas. 41 

 42 

MR. SAPP:  Back to the buoy gear definition, thanks to Dr. 43 

Branstetter for putting together a definition for us.  My 44 

question goes to Roy and it concerns the urgency for us to do 45 

something here at this meeting and my concern is that it’s 46 

something new to us and we haven’t had much opportunity for 47 

industry input or for input from other people. 48 
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 1 

We’ve had observers onboard and evidently we’re not having an 2 

interaction problem with the loggerheads and if what I heard was 3 

correct, there’s only been one so far and it was a live release 4 

and I think we also don’t have a problem that we’ve got to worry 5 

about with too many fish being taken. 6 

 7 

That leaves the only concern that I’ve heard about the issues we 8 

face with the ESA and the consultation and so my question is, is 9 

that such an urgent and pressing need that we actually need to 10 

take some action today? 11 

 12 

MR. GRIMES:  My response would be you took somewhat of an 13 

action.  You discussed the definition and I would also argue 14 

that it’s not really much of a change.  This just tightens up 15 

your existing definition and as to what’s occurring in the 16 

fishery now, we don’t really now. 17 

 18 

We have had some observed trips, but that doesn’t mean there 19 

isn’t a potential problem there.  It’s by no means definitive 20 

and I think you’re just trying to be proactive to prevent a 21 

dramatic expansion of the use of this gear, which could 22 

potentially pose a problem, especially if they developed 23 

different gears than what we’ve already heard, things that 24 

presented even more of a problem for sea turtles. 25 

 26 

MR. GILL:  It certainly has been a fast slide on this one.  On 27 

the other hand, we did have extensive discussion at Q&A and we 28 

heard numerous testimonies during public testimony yesterday 29 

regarding this issue and so there has been some fleshing out in 30 

that regard. 31 

 32 

MR. GRIMES:  You did pass the motion, right? 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  That’s correct.   35 

 36 

MR. HENDRIX:  I have to direct this to Dr. Crabtree.  Dr. 37 

Crabtree, you brought up this concern about the definition of 38 

the gear, but what about the number of rigs allowed per vessel?  39 

Is that another issue? 40 

 41 

DR. CRABTREE:  It’s hard to say, because I don’t really know how 42 

many people are using this.  I heard some talk of one guy said 43 

he was using six sets and said you couldn’t realistically tend 44 

more than that, but it’s really hard to say, Joe.  This is so 45 

new that we don’t have much basis on it. 46 

 47 

Then when the gentleman who was using it said he was fishing 48 
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six, that gear doesn’t meet this new definition and so whether 1 

he’ll continue to do that when the definition is changed, I 2 

don’t know, but I think you can do gear restrictions through the 3 

framework and so I guess in one of these framework amendments 4 

you could put limits, Shepherd, on the number of these deployed 5 

from a vessel. 6 

 7 

It seems to me if you’re going to do that that you’re going to 8 

have to also put marking requirements in, so that we can 9 

identify what gear goes with what vessel. 10 

 11 

MR. ANSON:  Dr. Crabtree and Mr. Hendrix addressed my two 12 

concerns, the number of gear and then the identification of the 13 

gear. 14 

 15 

MR. GRIMES:  I just wanted to point out that when Amendment 31 -16 

- When the final rule goes into place for that and it adds a new 17 

definition of bottom longline gear, the gear that the gentleman 18 

testified that he is using now as buoy gear would clearly meet 19 

that definition of bottom longline gear and it would not be 20 

allowed. 21 

 22 

Now, maybe we don’t have a precise definition of buoy gear on 23 

the books, but we’re addressing that and my perspective would be 24 

that since you’ve defined buoy gear to establish it where it is 25 

only a type of gear that should not present a significant risk 26 

of maybe not entanglement, but certainly mortality for sea 27 

turtles, and that would be consistent with what was analyzed in 28 

the biological opinion, then I would wonder what the basis of 29 

limiting the number of buoy gear rigs you could have would be, 30 

because it wouldn’t be to protect sea turtles, because the gear 31 

doesn’t seem to pose the same level of risk. 32 

 33 

MR. TEEHAN:  I share also the marking of the buoys and also the 34 

number of the buoys and it may be premature to worry about that 35 

at this point, because as Roy said, the gear is not in any large 36 

number in the Gulf at this point, but I could see scenarios in 37 

the future, having been in this business for thirty years, where 38 

you set up a rule and then folks try to figure out a way to get 39 

around that rule of multiple vessels putting out a bunch of 40 

different buoys and tending them as a group.  You could come up 41 

with all kinds of nightmare scenarios.  We may want to think 42 

about that in the future and keep a fairly close eye on how this 43 

fishery is protracted. 44 

 45 

MR. GILL:  That would conclude the Reef Fish Committee Report 46 

and I apologize for rushing so fast, but we have about an hour 47 

and eight minutes left.  Is there anything up not brought up 48 
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during Reef Fish? 1 

 2 

MR. FISCHER:  I don’t know about limiting the amount of gear at 3 

this time, because we’re not trying to make the fleet 4 

inefficient, especially if it’s a gear that won’t have the 5 

turtle interactions.   6 

 7 

The individual boats will be covered with their quotas and so I 8 

don’t think at this time the limit is necessary.  I think they 9 

should be marked and maybe we might want to address that, just 10 

to see who is fishing what, because the gear -- I don’t think we 11 

have provisions of soak time, but it sounded, from what the 12 

audience said, that it was a rather quick soak time and they 13 

were trying to get them back up, because they were coming up 14 

with no bait on the hooks anyway, using tender baits. 15 

 16 

MR. TEEHAN:  I would agree with the marking and I also agree 17 

it’s too -- As I said, it’s premature to start worrying about 18 

expansion of the fishery, but, Shep, I think in the roundtable 19 

we heard that it was acceptable, at least as far as the industry 20 

representatives that were there, to put their vessel 21 

registration number on the buoy or as far as marking these 22 

buoys, what would be a more effective method or maybe I should 23 

be asking the Coast Guard.  Would it be the reef fish 24 

endorsement number or would it be vessel registration or what 25 

would be the most enforceable thing there? 26 

 27 

MR. GRIMES:  I think you could set it up -- Any way you do it, 28 

it’s going to identify the individual, but reef fish permit 29 

number, Coast Guard vessel documentation number, any of the 30 

above.  It would be an easy thing to look at other gear marking 31 

requirements.  I don’t believe we have many, if any, in the Gulf 32 

of Mexico, but we can look at what other folks do and consider 33 

that. 34 

 35 

MR. TEEHAN:  In Florida, our buoys are marked with the 36 

endorsement number and so I would make a motion that buoys used 37 

in the buoy gear shall be marked with the federal reef fish 38 

endorsement number.  What would be a good height?  Two inches or 39 

three inches?  I just think these things ought to be 40 

identifiable, in case they get away from the fishermen. 41 

 42 

MR. GILL:  Do you want to specify a size? 43 

 44 

MR. TEEHAN:  Tom was just saying the -- Are they the same size 45 

buoys as are used in the crustacean fisheries?  I was thinking 46 

these big orange things are what they brought in here the other 47 

night. 48 



186 

 

 1 

DR. MCILWAIN:  The ones they were showing the other night were 2 

so big.  I don’t know how many letters are in the endorsement 3 

number, but if you start talking a couple of inches, you would 4 

have it wrapped around a couple of times.  Something reasonable, 5 

but they’re not real big buoys, from what I gather. 6 

 7 

MR. TEEHAN:  Brian, as far as enforcement is concerned, you guys 8 

like to be able to identify these things without actually 9 

getting your feet wet, pretty much? 10 

 11 

LCDR BRIAN SULLIVAN:  That would be correct and I think the 12 

vessel identification number would probably be better Coast 13 

Guard-wise.  Then you’re going to mitigate people taking other 14 

people’s gear and stuff like that, too.  It would be easier for 15 

us if we find somebody else with a different documentation 16 

number for their boat.  Also, it will mitigate what you were 17 

talking about, ten vessels getting out there and working the 18 

same gear and stuff like that.  I think it would be easier for 19 

us in the long run. 20 

 21 

MR. TEEHAN:  So could we change the reef fish endorsement number 22 

to vessel registration number?  I think let’s just go ahead and 23 

worry about the size and all that stuff from public comment.  24 

Would that satisfy everybody? 25 

 26 

MR. GILL:  Is that your motion, sir? 27 

 28 

MR. TEEHAN:  That is my motion, sir. 29 

 30 

MR. GILL:  We have a motion on the board that buoys used in buoy 31 

fishing gear -- 32 

 33 

DR. MCILWAIN:  I’ll second that motion. 34 

 35 

MR. GILL:  We have a second.  Is there further discussion?  36 

Seeing no discussion, the motion is that buoys used in buoy 37 

fishing gear should be marked with the vessel registration 38 

number.  All in favor of the motion say aye; all opposed like 39 

sign.  The motion passes unanimously.  Anything further on the 40 

Reef Fish Committee? 41 

 42 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Mr. Chairman, I know that you had earlier brought 43 

up the fact about the income requirements on the permits and you 44 

said we could have some discussion at the next meeting.  Could 45 

we have some type of discussion about what we could do in order 46 

to have it so that our for-hire sector can start leasing, 47 

buying, I don’t care how they do it, but a mechanism and a way 48 
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that they can use these commercial IFQ shares on their vessels, 1 

so that they can extend their seasons, because they won’t be 2 

selling the fish. 3 

 4 

MR. GILL:  I think that’s a totally separate discussion. 5 

 6 

DR. CRABTREE:  In order to do what you’re talking about, Kay, 7 

you’re going to have to set up a catch share program for the 8 

for-hire sector and that’s going to require sector separation 9 

and it’s going to require a referendum and it’s going to require 10 

a plan amendment.  You’re talking that’s a big deal and so I 11 

think you’re just getting a little ahead on that. 12 

 13 

MR. GRIMES:  Two things.  I just wanted to point out, 14 

procedurally, again, I presume we’ll add the definition and the 15 

marking stuff as something we could probably fold into your 16 

amberjack regulatory amendment.   17 

 18 

It is also my understanding, or at least I was told, that there 19 

is no place on the logbook form to report the use of buoy gear 20 

and so it seems appropriate that you would ask that the agency 21 

make sure that there is a place on the logbook form to report 22 

buoy gear landings specifically.  I don’t know that it is or 23 

isn’t, but I was told it’s not currently on the form. 24 

 25 

MR. GILL:  It seems to me we’ve just had it asked for.   26 

 27 

DR. CRABTREE:  Do you want to request that the Center modify the 28 

logbook form?  That did come up in the Q&A, I think. 29 

 30 

MR. GILL:  Sure.  Seeing that, the next committee report will be 31 

Shrimp and Chairman Perret had to leave and so Vice Chair 32 

Williams. 33 

 34 

SHRIMP MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 35 

 36 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The agenda was adopted 37 

as written and the minutes of the February 3, 2010 meeting in 38 

Mobile, Alabama were approved as written.  The Report on the 39 

2009 Shrimp Fishing Effort, Dr. Nance stated that the analysis 40 

of the effort was based on comparison of the 2009 shrimping 41 

effort expended in the Statistical Zones 10 through 21 and the 42 

ten to thirty-fathom depth zone, as compared to the average 43 

effort for the 2001 to 2003 period. 44 

 45 

He noted that the target goal was a 74 percent reduction.  He 46 

stated that November and December 2009 data for Louisiana were 47 

not available and consequently, he used the 2008 data for this 48 
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period as a proxy.  He reported that based on these analyses, a 1 

77.6 percent reduction was achieved in 2009 and thus, the 2 

reduction was above the target and no additional framework 3 

action is needed. 4 

 5 

Then they had the discussion of the shrimp trawl bycatch 6 

reduction under the highly migratory species.  The committee 7 

noted that based on previous correspondence the target reduction 8 

in bycatch of blacknose share had been achieved.  It was pointed 9 

out that a new stock assessment was pending and that issues may 10 

need to be revisited in the future.  Mr. Sapp stated that the 11 

HMS personnel had acknowledged that the council had achieved its 12 

goal and no further action was needed at this time. 13 

 14 

Under Other Business, the committee discussed a proposed rule 15 

that would list loggerhead turtles as endangered and noted that 16 

the comment period on the rule ends June 14, 2010.  The 17 

committee noted that if a final rule is implemented to list them 18 

as endangered that NMFS may have to initiate an ESA consultation 19 

process.  Mr. Chairman, this concludes my report. 20 

 21 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Kay.  The next committee is Red Drum and 22 

Mr. Pearce. 23 

 24 

RED DRUM COMMITTEE REPORT 25 

 26 

MR. PEARCE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The Red Drum Committee met 27 

and we had a quorum.  The agenda was adopted as written.  The 28 

minutes were approved as written.  We had a discussion of state 29 

escapement rates.  Dr. Burns reviewed the current state red drum 30 

escapement rates and size and bag limits requested by the Gulf 31 

Council at the February meeting were presented.   32 

 33 

In the committee discussion, I stated the council had received a 34 

letter from Dr. Ponwith that upon review of the two documents I 35 

presented at the February meeting, there was no new information 36 

available that would warrant an update of the red drum sampling 37 

protocols at this time.   38 

 39 

Mr. Riechers said that the red drum fishery was dependent on the 40 

number of red drum schools.  He asked Dr. Ponwith if she knew 41 

the number of red drum taken in the longline fishery and the 42 

number of red drum that may be captured in other fish sampling 43 

programs.  Dr. Ponwith said she would find out and provide that 44 

information to the council.   45 

 46 

I said it was important to obtain any offshore data and analyses 47 

conducted by the states and investigate any other way to obtain 48 
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data for this data-poor fishery.  Dr. McIlwain suggested looking 1 

at the SEAMAP data for red drum caught offshore.  He said SEAMAP 2 

data might be useful, because red drum schools are composed of 3 

same age fish and age differs among red drum schools.    4 

 5 

Following this discussion, Dr. McIlwain moved to have the 6 

Scientific and Statistical Committee look at the existing data 7 

to recommend an acceptable biological catch. 8 

 9 

Dr. Leard pointed out that the Scientific and Statistical 10 

Committee will be examining the existing data to recommend an 11 

acceptable biological catch for red drum as part of the Generic 12 

ACL/AM Amendment for the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 13 

Council’s Red Drum, Reef Fish, Shrimp, Coral and Coral Reefs and 14 

Stone Crab Fishery Management Plans and there was no need for 15 

the motion because this information will be available to the Red 16 

Drum Committee.  In response to this statement made by Dr. 17 

Leard, Dr. McIlwain withdrew his motion. 18 

 19 

Mr. Perret asked what funds would be necessary for the sampling 20 

process.  Dr. Ponwith suggested three steps to approach data 21 

collection.  The first step is to determine the number of red 22 

drum in current fishery samples.  The second is to determine the 23 

type of augmentation regimes to current sampling.  The third is 24 

to determine the budget necessary to fund the sampling process. 25 

 26 

Under Other Business, Mr. Sapp stated it would be important to 27 

obtain a response from the states on opening federal waters to a 28 

red drum fishery.  Mr. Teehan stated that he felt it was 29 

premature until the analyses were completed.  30 

 31 

There was also a discussion of an increase in incidental catch 32 

of red drum and their sensitivity to barotraumas beginning at 33 

100 feet.  With numerous large red drum offshore, there was a 34 

discussion that these fish will probably not survive catch and 35 

release offshore in federal waters.  The committee also 36 

discussed the fishing method used in the commercial fishery off 37 

Mississippi.  38 

 39 

The last item discussed was the letter of support by the Gulf 40 

States Marine Fisheries Commission.  The letter supported and 41 

encouraged efforts toward obtaining the necessary data that 42 

would result in an amendment to the Red Drum Fishery Management 43 

Plan that may lead to a controlled red drum fishery in federal 44 

waters.  Mr. Chairman, this concludes my report. 45 

 46 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Next is the SEDAR Selection 47 

Committee and Chairman Shipp. 48 
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 1 

SEDAR SELECTION COMMITTEE REPORT 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, sir.  The committee was called to 4 

order by me at 5:00 P.M. on Tuesday, April 13, 2010.  The agenda 5 

was adopted as written.  Dr. Bortone explained there were 6 

problems with the current SEDAR Process.  When the Council 7 

Chair, Vice-Chair and Executive Director attends the SEDAR 8 

Steering Committee meeting in May, he would like to bring some 9 

of the problems to the table for discussion. 10 

 11 

Dr. Leard pointed out the guidelines were complicated with 12 

regards to the process.  Our council would prefer a strict 13 

process for each workshop, like what type or expertise of people 14 

will attend, how many, and for how long. 15 

 16 

He added that the workgroups are not finishing their products 17 

until after the meeting is completed.  He noted data was coming 18 

in during and after the meeting and most of the workshop time 19 

was spent watching presentations.  A lot of the data gathering 20 

should be done up front.  Also, streaming would make more people 21 

involved.   22 

 23 

Dr. Ponwith stated now was the best time to make any changes, 24 

since many changes in the SEDAR Process were coming up this 25 

year.  She suggested a document done in red-line format be 26 

presented to the Steering Committee meeting for review in May. 27 

 28 

She felt that it was logical and constructive criticism to have 29 

short, concise guidelines.  She added that the data workshop was 30 

put early in the process, which gave the opportunity to approve 31 

the data to be used.  However, that made the last minute data 32 

hard to incorporate until right before the meeting. 33 

 34 

Dr. Bortone noted he would complete his compiled list of the 35 

issues and forward them to the council for review and comment in 36 

the next two weeks, so the final list would be ready for the 37 

SEDAR Steering Committee meeting.  Mr. Chairman, this completes 38 

my report and I will note that we are now ahead of schedule. 39 

 40 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The next item on the agenda 41 

is the AP Selection Committee and in the absence of Chairman 42 

Perret, I will recognize Vice Chairman Anson. 43 

 44 

AP SELECTION COMMITTEE REPORT 45 

 46 

MR. ANSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Sixteen council members 47 

were present.  The council discussed a violation reported in the 48 
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NOAA Law Enforcement Report which was assigned to a current 1 

advisory panel member.  There was a motion made to remove the 2 

person from the advisory panels.  However, since there were 3 

further questions about the situation that could not be 4 

answered, the motion was tabled until the council could hear 5 

from NOAA Enforcement with more details of the situation. 6 

 7 

The council passed a motion to appoint Bill Kelly to the Spiny 8 

Lobster Advisory Panel.  Additional discussion was held 9 

regarding modifying the SOPPs to include language that would be 10 

clearer about what constitutes a violation and how to remove a 11 

person with a violation.  Suggested changes will be discussed at 12 

a future meeting. 13 

 14 

The council then reconvened in a closed session on April 15, 15 

2010 to hear more information about the situation of the 16 

advisory panel member’s violation.  After discussion, a motion 17 

carried to remove David Krebs from the Reef Fish AP and Ad Hoc 18 

LAPP AP.  The council also decided to advertise for the opening 19 

on the Stone Crab Advisory Panel.  Mr. Chairman, this concludes 20 

my report. 21 

 22 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  That concludes committee 23 

reports. 24 

 25 

MS. MORRIS:  I mistakenly passed over one agenda item on the 26 

Sustainable Fisheries/Ecosystem Report and it is Tab G, Number 27 

6.  It’s a short ecosystem summary that Karen Burns prepared and 28 

at a minimum, I would like to suggest that people open it and 29 

look at it and read it and if you want a five-minute 30 

presentation from Karen, she’s available to do that. 31 

 32 

MR. GILL:  I think we have time to do that and that would be 33 

helpful. 34 

 35 

ECOSYSTEM SUMMARY 36 

 37 

DR. BURNS:  Thank you, Bob.  The ecosystem -- I have just four 38 

things.  The first one was to note that Steven Atran completed 39 

the final report for the ecosystem pilot project.  I did not 40 

bring copies, because it’s 555 pages, but in the briefing book, 41 

there is directions to the FTP site on the Gulf Council homepage 42 

and you can read that if you want to see all the things that 43 

Steven has done. 44 

 45 

The Ecosystem Scientific and Statistical Committee activities, 46 

Dr. Priscilla Weeks, who is the chair of the Ecosystem 47 

Scientific and Statistical Committee, completed the draft 48 
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document for the scope of work for the next two years, as well 1 

as a conceptual model for the Ecosystem Scientific and 2 

Statistical Committee.  She recently has distributed these 3 

drafts to the other committee members for comments and 4 

consensus. 5 

 6 

The last two items are the two Ecosystem Committee workshops.  7 

The SEDAR integration workshop, which was discussed at the last 8 

council meeting, the ecosystem group decided that instead of 9 

choosing a particular species what they preferred to do was to 10 

take a step back and to instead have their workshop consist of 11 

the Ecosystem Committee members as well as members of SEDAR and 12 

members of the Scientific and Statistical Committee, to 13 

basically have a collaborative process where they would be able 14 

to draft a usable framework to integrate ecosystem information 15 

principles directly into the SEDAR process in a usable format, 16 

rather than providing them a document or a model that would not 17 

be useful to the SEDAR process. 18 

 19 

The final was a Joint Ecosystem Scientific and Statistical 20 

Committee/Socioeconomic Panel workshop and Dr. Priscilla Weeks, 21 

the chair of the ecosystem group, and Dr. Mike Jepson of the 22 

Socioeconomic Panel have been in contact with staff, as well as 23 

their committee members, and basically what they’re doing is 24 

coming up with a process to have a joint Ecosystem Scientific 25 

and Statistical Committee/Socioeconomic Panel workshop on 26 

incorporating social science into the ecosystem-based fisheries 27 

management. 28 

 29 

Following the conference call that they had with staff, both 30 

chairs are in the process of contacting the members of their 31 

respective committees to determine which members are interested 32 

in participating in designing the workshop and deciding the 33 

structure the workshop should take and also determining which 34 

colleagues of theirs are experts in the field.  Thank you.  Any 35 

questions? 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Karen.  Any questions of Dr. Burns?  Thank 38 

you, Julie, for filling in the gaps.  That does bring us to 39 

Other Business and the first item I think is -- Dr. Crabtree is 40 

not currently in his seat and so we will go to the second item, 41 

which is Joint Meeting with the Law Enforcement AP and Harlon 42 

Pearce. 43 

 44 

OTHER BUSINESS 45 

JOINT MEETING WITH LAW ENFORCEMENT AP 46 

 47 

MR. PEARCE:  It has come to my attention that there’s a pretty 48 
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major disconnect between law enforcement and the council and 1 

what they think we’re doing and what we know we have to have to 2 

help them understand what we want done. 3 

 4 

I know in the South Atlantic they’ve had the Law Enforcement AP 5 

meet with the council itself and I would like to at least once a 6 

year bring the Law Enforcement AP to meet with the council and 7 

maybe with a little bit different agenda than a regular 8 

committee meeting, but at least bring them up to speed as to 9 

what we’re doing and ask whatever problems they may have with 10 

what we’re doing. 11 

 12 

With that, I would like to maybe schedule one of our meetings 13 

maybe in Baton Rouge maybe, give us a couple of meetings to get 14 

it done, and have them come to this council and hold a Law 15 

Enforcement Committee meeting. 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  Are you making a motion? 18 

 19 

MR. PEARCE:  I’ll make a motion that at the Baton Rouge meeting 20 

of the Gulf Council that we have the Law Enforcement Advisory 21 

Panel meet with the Law Enforcement Panel meeting of the 22 

council, at that meeting.  They would meet with the Gulf 23 

Council’s Law Enforcement Committee. 24 

 25 

MR. GILL:  We have a motion on the board and it’s seconded.  26 

Discussion? 27 

 28 

MR. FISCHER:  Mr. Chairman, I support this effort.  In my first 29 

run on the council and outgoing to some South Atlantic meetings, 30 

I enjoyed the way their committees meet with the council, with 31 

that committee on the council.  Their advisory panels meet and 32 

sit at the same table and discuss the issues at one time and 33 

then the AP votes and the committee votes and the council is 34 

right there. 35 

 36 

I just thought it was a smooth process and very transparent and 37 

it gave the APs the feeling that they were really part of making 38 

a difference.  I would also like to see this follow through in 39 

some of our other advisory panels also. 40 

 41 

LCDR SULLIVAN:  Also, for me, being on the South Atlantic also, 42 

sometimes the law enforcement needs to be reassured that you do 43 

value our opinions and when we’re actually sitting in the same 44 

room, it does work out really good that way and so I would 45 

definitely think this is a good idea. 46 

 47 

MR. GILL:  Further discussion?   48 
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 1 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think this is a great idea, but having sat 2 

through a lot of these on the South Atlantic Council, the joint 3 

meetings, sometimes though when the committee votes to do what 4 

the AP just recommended for them not to do, which happens fairly 5 

often, it’s a little awkward sometimes. 6 

 7 

MR. GILL:  I would suggest, Harlon, that should this motion pass 8 

that you get with the chairman and work out the protocol for the 9 

joint committee, so that it’s handled properly so that we don’t 10 

get a misstep, because we haven’t got much experience with joint 11 

meetings and you want it to run smoothly and that could be part 12 

of it, but who chairs and how you conduct the flow and the 13 

protocol, et cetera. 14 

 15 

MR. PEARCE:  Are you afraid they’re going to arrest us all? 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  No.  Any other discussion?  The motion on the board 18 

is at the Baton Rouge meeting of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery 19 

Management Council in October of 2010 that the Law Enforcement 20 

Advisory Panel meet with the Gulf Council’s Law Enforcement 21 

Committee.  All those in favor say aye; all those opposed like 22 

sign.  The motion passes unanimously. 23 

 24 

MR. SAPP:  Under Other Business, we just created vacancies on 25 

the Reef Fish Advisory Panel and Ad Hoc LAPP -- 26 

 27 

MR. GILL:  Ed, could I ask you to hold that so we could do the 28 

other business on the agenda and then we’ll come to you?  The 29 

first item under Other Business was Council Meeting Time and Dr. 30 

Crabtree.  Certainly this meeting and certainly some of the 31 

committee meetings would buttress what I believe he has to say. 32 

 33 

COUNCIL MEETING TIME 34 

 35 

DR. CRABTREE:  We just don’t have enough time at these meetings 36 

and we’re running -- I think sometimes we’re not doing as good a 37 

job as we could do if we had additional time.  It seems to me we 38 

ought to think about rather than adjourning Thursday at lunch 39 

that we ought to think about adjourning Friday at lunch.  That 40 

would give us enough time to get through some of these things. 41 

 42 

MR. GILL:  I would like council discussion. 43 

 44 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  We’ve already reserved the space 45 

for the next meeting for Friday.  We’ll work on the scheduling 46 

on that and if it’s necessary, we do have the space. 47 

 48 
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MR. SAPP:  I agree completely and since we’re going to have some 1 

extra time, I would like to -- There’s three things that I think 2 

we need to spend more time talking about than we ever have in 3 

the past and those issues are, number one, the whole issues of 4 

catch shares.  Number two is specifically sector separation and 5 

number three, we need some time to begin discussion of the 6 

commercial red snapper IFQ. 7 

 8 

I don’t know if it’s too early to assign times to allow council 9 

discussions of those things, but also, as part of the 10 

discussion, I would like to see -- I feel a little bit 11 

constrained when the discussion happens in committee and I’m not 12 

a member of that committee and so when we’re having discussions 13 

and not necessarily asking for motions, it somehow seems like it 14 

might be more appropriate to have those discussions with full 15 

council. 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  I would suggest don’t feel constrained.  Anyhow, 18 

other discussion? 19 

 20 

MR. TEEHAN:  I concur with the extra time at the meetings, 21 

because it seems like this meeting especially we got wrapped 22 

around the axle on what I consider probably some fairly publicly 23 

embarrassing discussions over travel and so forth when we 24 

probably would have been better served, as far as the public is 25 

concerned and as far as our charges are concerned, if we worked 26 

on fisheries problems.  I think the problems are getting so 27 

complex and with the things that Ed is adding on to it, I think 28 

adding an extra half a day is a wise idea. 29 

 30 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I do too.  There is something that this council 31 

can do and I’m not sure if they can do it at this meeting.  32 

There was discussion when Roy held the public little get 33 

together that we have after these meetings to discuss other 34 

issues. 35 

 36 

The issue is at one time we said you could only have three 37 

passengers on a charter vessel or if you had a reef fish permit 38 

and we limited how many people you could have on that vessel, 39 

because the commercial industry was concerned that the charter 40 

vessels would go out there and be commercially fishing for red 41 

snapper and coming in and affecting -- Effectively selling the 42 

fish and causing even more of a congestive market that they were 43 

going through. 44 

 45 

I believe that we should lift that restriction, because if we 46 

lifted that restriction and you were a charter vessel and you 47 

had a commercial reef fish permit, I guess you could take your 48 
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passengers out there and use them for crew to harvest your ITQ 1 

shares.  Can we lift that restriction of holding it to only 2 

three people on the charter vessels? 3 

 4 

MR. GILL:  Kay, before we get to that, we are on the agenda item 5 

of council meeting time.  Let’s finish that one up and then 6 

we’ll get to that and Ed was in front of you in that regard. 7 

 8 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I thought you were through with that and I’m 9 

sorry. 10 

 11 

MR. GILL:  Anything further on council meeting time?  Okay.  Now 12 

I’ll recognize Ed on his other business item. 13 

 14 

ADVISORY PANEL VACANCIES 15 

 16 

MR. SAPP:  If my motion will magically appear on the board, we 17 

need to fill the vacancies in the Reef Fish Advisory Panel and 18 

Ad Hoc LAPP Advisory Panel and so the motion is that we 19 

advertise to fill these vacancies. 20 

 21 

MR. GILL:  There’s a motion on the board.  Do we have a second?   22 

 23 

DR. MCILWAIN:  I’ll second it. 24 

 25 

MR. GILL:  It’s seconded by Dr. McIlwain.  Is there further 26 

discussion? 27 

 28 

MR. SAPP:  Some things are pretty obvious.  I don’t know how 29 

much discussion this takes. 30 

 31 

MR. GILL:  Any discussion by the rest of council?   32 

 33 

MR. TEEHAN:  This is probably appropriate and maybe this is 34 

written down somewhere, but Mr. Krebs has now been removed and 35 

how long can it be before he can come back?  Two years?  Five 36 

years? 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  Five years, I believe.  Shep, would you confirm? 39 

 40 

MR. GRIMES:  I think that’s right, but it’s in the SOPPs. 41 

 42 

MR. GILL:  Further discussion?  The motion is to advertise to 43 

fill the vacancies on the Ad Hoc Reef Fish LAPP AP and the Reef 44 

Fish AP.  All those in favor say aye; all those opposed like 45 

sign.  The motion passes unanimously.  Now, Kay, your issue. 46 

 47 

PERMIT MODIFICATIONS 48 
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 1 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I just asked Shep and he said that this council 2 

come back in and ask that that regulation where your for-hire 3 

sector was only limited to three passengers be removed, but it 4 

would have to be attached to -- What did you say it was, Shep? 5 

 6 

MR. GRIMES:  It’s a rulemaking and it requires some sort of 7 

regulatory change and so whatever rulemaking package you have, 8 

you would submit it along with it, I guess. 9 

 10 

MR. GILL:  The question I would ask, Kay, is I thought we 11 

addressed this a couple of council meetings ago and there seemed 12 

to be a lack of interest.  Are you wanting to reintroduce it, 13 

given our recent past history? 14 

 15 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes, because I think this would be a way that if 16 

a charter for-hire wanted to fish and they had ITQ coupons that 17 

they had purchased or leased, because they also have a federal 18 

reef fish permit, then they could use those IFQ coupons or 19 

shares to do that and there’s no competition between the for-20 

hire sector and the commercial sector anymore.  The IFQ took 21 

care of that. 22 

 23 

This would be a way that those guys could go out fishing when 24 

the recreational season was even closed, because they’re 25 

commercial fishing with their IFQ shares.  They have the reef 26 

fish permit. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I don’t necessarily disagree, but I think this 29 

would require some detailed discussion.  For instance, the 30 

people they took out, are they paying to go out to catch fish?  31 

Again, I don’t necessarily disagree, but I don’t think this is 32 

something that we can decide at the last minute of a meeting.  33 

It needs to go to the proper committee for discussion and be put 34 

on the agenda. 35 

 36 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I would like to discuss it at the next council 37 

meeting, if we could. 38 

 39 

MR. GILL:  Further discussion?  There’s no motion coming? 40 

 41 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Dr. Shipp said he felt that we should take this 42 

up at the next council meeting.  It wasn’t on the agenda and I’m 43 

not asking you to do it today, but my motion would be for the 44 

Reef Fish Committee -- I guess that’s the proper committee, 45 

unless Dr. Shipp can -- 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  No, I think that’s fine.  She just requests 48 
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that it be put on the agenda for the next meeting.  I don’t 1 

think you need a motion for that. 2 

 3 

MR. GILL:  Is there any other business? 4 

 5 

MR. ATRAN:  I just wanted to warn you that I’ve been keeping a 6 

running tab of what’s going to go on the reef fish agenda for 7 

the next meeting and we may need the entire month of June just 8 

for the Reef Fish Committee.  Some of this may need to be 9 

deferred. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’ve got an extra day. 12 

 13 

MR. GILL:  We’ll ask Dr. Bortone to schedule that in then.  No 14 

problem.  Any other business to be brought before this council?  15 

Johnny, would you like to make the motion to adjourn? 16 

 17 

MR. GREENE:  I’ll make the motion to adjourn. 18 

 19 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Mr. Chairman, we missed an item and that was 20 

timeliness of getting our materials to us before the meetings.  21 

That was on the agenda.  As a matter of a fact, I think Dr. 22 

Crabtree brought it up and I would like Dr. Bortone to tell us a 23 

little bit of his difficulties.  It was on there. 24 

 25 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  We work on this diligently after 26 

every council meeting.  I ensure you that the staff are working 27 

as hard as they can.  The problem is many of these issues are 28 

outside our purview.  We’re waiting for materials to come in 29 

from other individuals, the SSC in one case and NMFS people, 30 

SEDAR materials. 31 

 32 

As soon as they come in -- We are changing it a little bit.  As 33 

soon as these materials are available, they will be posted on 34 

the FTP site, so we don’t have to wait for a bunch or a batch to 35 

be completed.  That should at least help in some instances, but 36 

I see the inevitably unless we just pick a date seven days 37 

before the council meeting and it’s a drop-dead deadline, but if 38 

you do that, it may delay things several months.  That’s your 39 

choice. 40 

 41 

MR. GILL:  Thank you all.  Have a safe trip back to your homes. 42 

 43 

(Whereupon, the meeting adjourned at 11:30 a.m., April 15, 44 

2010.) 45 

 46 

- - - 47 

48 



199 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 1 

 2 

Call to Order and Introductions..................................3 3 

 4 

Adoption of Agenda...............................................5 5 

 6 

Approval of Minutes..............................................6 7 

 8 

Public Testimony.................................................7 9 

     Framework Action for Greater Amberjack......................7 10 

     Open Public Comment Period..................................14 11 

 12 

Discussion of NMFS Observer Program..............................96 13 

 14 

Budget Committee Report..........................................100 15 

 16 

Administrative Policy Committee Report...........................109 17 

 18 

Data Collection Committee Report.................................117 19 

 20 

Coastal Migratory Pelagics (Mackerel) Committee Report...........132 21 

 22 

Sustainable Fisheries/Ecosystem Committee Report.................134 23 

 24 

Reef Fish Management Committee Report............................162 25 

 26 

Shrimp Management Committee Report...............................187 27 

 28 

Red Drum Committee Report........................................188 29 

 30 

SEDAR Selection Committee Report.................................190 31 

 32 

AP Selection Committee Report....................................190 33 

 34 

Ecosystem Summary................................................191 35 

 36 

Other Business...................................................192 37 

     Joint Meeting with Law Enforcement AP.......................192 38 

     Council Meeting Time........................................194 39 

     Advisory Panel Vacancies....................................196 40 

     Permit Modifications........................................196 41 

 42 

Adjournment......................................................198 43 

 44 

Table of Contents................................................199 45 

 46 

Table of Motions.................................................200 47 

 48 

49 



200 

 

TABLE OF MOTIONS 1 

 2 

PAGE 101:  Motion to adopt the 2010 budget revisions as proposed 3 

in Tab K-4.  The motion carried on page 101. 4 

 5 

PAGE 101:  Motion to start receiving quarterly budget reports 6 

with detailed reporting by budget category.  The motion carried 7 

on page 103. 8 

 9 

PAGE 103:  Motion that staff request and compile a personnel and 10 

budget accounting from the other councils regarding number of 11 

staff by classification and salary, percent spent by budget 12 

category on staff, equipment, travel, contracts, and 13 

professional services, and a description of benefits received.  14 

The motion failed on page 108. 15 

 16 

PAGE 109:  Motion to continue working on the SOPPs as presented 17 

in Tab E-3 in regard to the upcoming model SOPPs revisions 18 

coming from National Marine Fisheries Service and continue to 19 

develop a companion handbook that works in concert with the 20 

revised SOPPs.  The motion carried on page 110. 21 

 22 

PAGE 110:  Motion that in the Travel Guidelines, in Section D, 23 

Actual Expenses, after “or less”, which refers to the fifty-mile 24 

distance, to add “except for council meetings” so that sentence 25 

will read: Lodging will not be authorized if commuting is fifty 26 

miles or less, except for council meetings.  The motion was 27 

tabled on page 115. 28 

 29 

PAGE 116:  Motion to add a sentence to read: “A council member 30 

will only be reimbursed for hotel up to the rate negotiated for 31 

the master account per room.”  The motion carried on page 116. 32 

 33 

PAGE 116:  Motion to accept the revisions to the Travel 34 

Guidelines as presented in Tab E-7 along with the committee 35 

revisions and forward to the council for approval.  The motion 36 

carried on page 117. 37 

 38 

PAGE 118:  Motion to request that NMFS, in consultation with the 39 

Gulf States Marine Fisheries Commission, define data standards 40 

and operating requirements for an integrated, mandatory 41 

electronic reporting system for the federally permitted Gulf of 42 

Mexico for-hire sector by June 2010.  The motion carried on page 43 

118. 44 

 45 

PAGE 118:  Motion to request that NMFS implement a trial 46 

electronic reporting system for the federally permitted Gulf of 47 

Mexico for-hire sector, using existing authority under 50 CFR 48 



201 

 

622, by August 2010.  The motion carried on page 118. 1 

 2 

PAGE 118:  Motion to request that NMFS work with the Gulf States 3 

Marine Fisheries Commission to begin an education system for a 4 

mandatory electronic reporting system for the federally 5 

permitted Gulf of Mexico for-hire sector by June of 2010.  The 6 

motion carried on page 118. 7 

 8 

PAGE 118:  Motion to request that the NMFS develop a system for 9 

at-sea and shore-side validation of fishing effort, landings, 10 

and discards by January 2011.  The motion carried on page 118. 11 

 12 

PAGE 119:  Motion to request that the NMFS implement, using 13 

existing authority under 50 CFR 622, a mandatory, enforceable, 14 

and validatable electronic reporting system for the federally 15 

permitted Gulf of Mexico for-hire sector by January 2011.  The 16 

motion carried on page 124. 17 

 18 

PAGE 124:  Motion to request that the NMFS implement a mandatory 19 

electronic reporting system for federally permitted dealers by 20 

January 2011.  The motion carried on page 126. 21 

 22 

PAGE 131:  Motion to send a request to the SEFSC to make 23 

fisheries independent data collection for the red snapper and 24 

other reef fish species in the Gulf of Mexico the highest 25 

priority.  The motion carried on page 132. 26 

 27 

PAGE 132:  Motion to add two representatives and one alternate 28 

from the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council to the Ad Hoc 29 

King Mackerel LAPP AP.  The motion carried on page 132. 30 

 31 

PAGE 132:  Motion to request that the council approve holding a 32 

joint meeting of the Coastal Migratory Pelagic Management 33 

Committees in conjunction with the South Atlantic Fishery 34 

Management Council’s June 2010 meeting in Orlando, Florida.  The 35 

motion carried on page 133. 36 

 37 

PAGE 135:  Motion that a new Alternative 4 be added to the 38 

Generic ACL/AM Amendment in Action 1.3 and Action 1.4 to allow 39 

the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council to manage Nassau 40 

grouper and yellowtail snapper throughout their range.  The 41 

motion carried on page 135. 42 

 43 

PAGE 135:  Motion that mutton snapper be added to Action 1 with 44 

the same suite of alternatives as in Nassau grouper.  The motion 45 

carried on page 135. 46 

 47 

PAGE 135:   Motion that Action 2, Designation of Ecosystem 48 



202 

 

Component Species, be removed from the Generic ACL/AM Amendment.  1 

The motion carried on page 139. 2 

 3 

PAGE 140:  Motion that in Action 6, Alternative 2, that the last 4 

sentence be revised after the word “sectors” to read, “based on 5 

a combination of the following options:  historical landings 6 

data, net benefits to the nation, economic impact.”  The motion 7 

carried on page 148. 8 

 9 

PAGE 153:  Motion that staff include, at the appropriate section 10 

in the document, a discussion of the two methods for determining 11 

overfishing status and the benefits and drawbacks of each 12 

method.  The motion carried on page 153. 13 

 14 

PAGE 167:  Motion that the council remove from the options paper 15 

for Reef Fish Amendment 32 Action 2, Alternatives 3 and 4.  The 16 

motion carried on page 167. 17 

 18 

PAGE 167:  Motion that an additional alternative be added to 19 

Action 4 that would allow both red and gag multiuse shares to be 20 

used for harvesting other shallow-water grouper.  The motion 21 

carried on page 167. 22 

 23 

PAGE 167:  Motion that an additional alternative be added to 24 

Action 4 to set gag multiuse allocation to a percentage to be 25 

determined and usable for any other shallow-water species.  The 26 

motion carried on page 167. 27 

 28 

PAGE 167:  Motion that a new Alternative 5 be added to Action 29 

6.2 that explores an upper limit maximum size slot.  The motion 30 

carried on page 167. 31 

 32 

PAGE 167:  Motion that in Section 6.2 of the options paper that 33 

Alternative 2, recreational bycatch quotas, be removed.  The 34 

motion carried on page 169. 35 

 36 

PAGE 169:  Motion that Alternative 3, recreational grouper 37 

vessel permit, be removed from Action 7.  The motion carried on 38 

page 169. 39 

 40 

PAGE 170:  Motion that in Action 8 to add suboptions to 41 

Alternatives 2 and 3 that list different seasons of closure, 42 

including a year-round closure.  The motion carried on page 170. 43 

 44 

PAGE 170:  Motion that in Action 8 to add an Alternative 4 that 45 

would contain suboptions for longer seasonal closures of 46 

Madison-Swanson, the Edges, and Steamboat Lumps, including year-47 

round closures.  The motion carried on page 170.  48 
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 1 

PAGE 172:  Motion to request that a draft regulatory amendment 2 

be prepared to adjust red grouper total allowable catch for 2011 3 

for consideration at the June 2010 council meeting.  The motion 4 

carried on page 174. 5 

 6 

PAGE 176:  Motion to add to the Regulatory Framework Action an 7 

Alternative 4 to establish a recreational seasonal closure of 8 

May 1 through June 30.  The motion carried on page 177. 9 

 10 

PAGE 177:  Motion that an Alternative 5 be added to Action 1 11 

which would be Option 3 at Tab B, Number 6(a), which is a March 12 

through May recreational closure parallel to the commercial 13 

closure.  The motion carried on page 177. 14 

 15 

PAGE 178: Motion to recommend that NMFS deny the Haugen EFP 16 

application.  The motion carried on page 179. 17 

 18 

PAGE 179:  Motion to approve the new definition of buoy gear as 19 

provided with a change of two times the depth of the water being 20 

fished.  The motion carried on page 182. 21 

 22 

PAGE 185:  Motion that buoys used in buoy fishing gear should be 23 

marked with the vessel registration number.  The motion carried 24 

on page 186. 25 

 26 

PAGE 193:  Motion at the Baton Rouge meeting of the Gulf of 27 

Mexico Fishery Management Council in October of 2010 that the 28 

Law Enforcement Advisory Panel meet with the Gulf Council’s Law 29 

Enforcement Committee.  The motion carried on page 194. 30 

 31 

PAGE 196:  Motion to advertise to fill the vacancies on the Ad 32 

Hoc Reef Fish LAPP AP and the Reef Fish AP.  The motion carried 33 

on page 196. 34 

 35 

- - - 36 


